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FILE

The Public Utilities Commission of Ohio

RENEWAL APPLICATION FOR RETAIL GENERATION PROVIDERS
AND POWER MARKETERS

Please print or type all required information. Identify all attachments with an exhibit label and
title (Example: Exhibit A-11 Corporate Structure). All attachments should bear the legal name
of the Applicant. Applicants should file completed applications and all related correspondence
with the Public Utilities Commission of Ohio, Docketing Division; 180 East Broad Street,

Columbus, Ohio 43215-3793.

This PDF form is designed so that you may input information directly onto the form.
You may also download the form, by saving it to your local disk, for later use.
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A-1  Applicant intends to be renewed as: (check all that apply) O :: §
o = 7

FIR etail Generation Provider OPower Broker M oz
[EAPower Marketer O Aggregator o oo

- <

A-2  Applicant’s legal name, address, telephone number, PUCO certificate number, and
web site address

Legal Name MidAmerican Energy Company

Address 4299 NW Urbandale Drive / Urbandale, 1A 50322

PUCQ Certificate # and Date Certified__# 08-009 (4) October 30, 2006

Telephone #(515) 281-2000 Web site address (if any) www.midamericanchoice.com

A-3  List name, address, telephone number and we b site address under which Applicant
does business in Ohio

Legal Name_ MidAmerican Energy Company
Address 4299 NW Urbandale Drive / Urbandale, 1A 50322
Telephone #{515) 281-2900 _ Web site address (if any) www.midamericanchoice.com

This is to certify that the ima
g8 appeary are
accurate and complete reproduction of a cagg :Eilean
document delivered in the regular course of businessa
.

Tachnician L Date Processed _ s

—


file:///iigust
http://www.midamericanchoicexom
http://www.midamericanchoice.com

A-4  List all names under which the applicant does business in North America
MidAmerican Energy Company

A-5  Contact person for regulatory or emergency matters

Name_Jay Dillavou
Title__Balancing and Settiement Analyst

Business address_4299 NW Urbandale Drive / Urbandale, IA 50322
Telephone # (515) 281-2319 Fax # _(515) 281-2927
E-mail address (if any}_jhdillavow@midamerican.com

A6  Contact person for Commission Staff use in investigating customer complaints

Name_Kay Twigy
Title__Director - Unrepuiated Services

Business address 320 LeClaire / Davenport, IA 52308

Telephone # (563) 333-8598 Fax # (563) 333-8563

E-mail address (if any)_katwigg@midamerican.com

A-7  Applicant's address and tol-free number for customer service and complaints

Customer Service address 106 E Second Street / Davenport, A 52801
Toll-free Telephone # (800) 432-8574 Fax # (563) 333-8563
E-mail address (if any)

A8 Applicant's federal employer identification number # 42-1425214

A9  Applicant’s form of ownership (check one)

[Sole Proprietorship OPartnership
DOJLimited Liability Partnership (LLP) CJLimited Liability Company (LLC)
ECorporation O Other

PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING AS SEPARATE ATTACHMENTS AND LABEL AS INDICATED:

A-10 Exhibit A10 "Principal Officers, Directors & Partners” provide the names, titles,
addresses and telephone numbers of the applicant’s principal officers, directors, partners,

or other similar officials.

A-11 Exhibit A-11 "Corporate Structure,” provide a description of the applicant’s corporate
structure, including a graphical depiction of such structure, and a list of all affiliate and
subsidiary companies that supply retail or wholesale eleciricity or natural gas to
customers in North America.


mailto:jhdiUavou@midamerican.com

B-1

B-3

B-5

1

MANAGERIAL CAPABILITY AND EXPERIENCE

PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING AS SEPARATE ATTACHMENTS AND LABEL AS INDICATED: -

Exhibit B-1 “Jurisdictions of Operation,” provide a Ist of all jurisdictions in which
the applicant or any affiliated interest of the applicant is, at the date of filing the
application, certified, licensed, registered, or otherwise authorized to provide retail or
wholesale electric services.

Exhibit B-2 "Experience & Plans." provide a description of the applicant’s experience
and plan for contracting with customers, providing contracted services, providing billing
statements, and responding to customer inquiries and complaints in accordance with
Commission rules adopted pursuant 1o Section 4928.10 of the Revised Code.

Exhibit B-3 "Disclosure of Liabilities and Investigations," provide a description of all
existing, pending or past rulings, judgments, contingent liabilities, revocation of
authority, regulatory investigations, or any other matter that could adversely impact the
applicant’s financial or operational status or ability to provide the services it is seeking to
be certified to provide.

Disclose whether the applicant, a predecessor of the applicant, or any principal officer of
the applicant have ever been convicted or held fiable for fraud or for violation of any
consumer protection or antitrust laws within the past five years.

No [ Yes

If yes, provide a separate attachment labeled as Exhibit B-4 "Disclosure of Consumer
Protection Violations” detailing such violation(s) and providing all relevant documents.

Disclose whether the applicant or a predecessor of the applicant has had any certification,
license, or application to provide retail or wholesale electric service denied, curtailed,
suspended, revoked, or cancelled within the past two years.

No 3 Yes

If yes, provide a separate attachment labeled as Exhibit B-5 "Disclosure of
Certification Denial, Curtailment, Suspension, or Revocation” detailing such

action(s) and providing all relevant documents.

FINANCIAL CAPABILITY AND EXPERIENCE

PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING AS SEPARATE ATTACHMENTS AND LABEL AS INDICATED:

Exhibi¢t C-1 “Annual Reports,” provide the two most recent Annual Reports to
Shareholders. If applicant does not have annual reports, the applicant should provide
similar information in Exhibit C-1 or indicate that Exhibit (-1 is not applicable and why.



C2

C-3

C4

C-6

C-8

C-9

Exhibit C-2 “SEC Filings,” provide the most recent 10-K/8-K Filings with the SEC. If
applicant does not have such filings, it may submit those of its parent company. If the
applicant does not have such filings, then the applicant may indicate in Exhibit C-2 that
the applicant is not required to file with the SEC and why.

Exhibit C-3 “Financial Statements,” provide copies of the applicant’s two most recent
years of audited financial statements (balance sheet, income statement, and cash flow
statement). If audited financial statements are not available, provide officer certified
financial statements. If the applicant has not been in business long enough to satisfy this
requirement, it shall file audited or officer certified financial satements covering the life
of the business.

Exhibit C-4 “Financial Arrangements,” provide copies of the applicant's financial
arrangements to conduct CRES as a business activity {e.g., Buarantees, bank

commtitments, contractual arrangements, credit agreements, etc.,).

Exhibit C-5 “Forecasted Financial Statements.,” provide two years of forecasted
financial statements (balance sheet, income statement, and cash flow statement) for the
applicant’s CRES operation, along with a list of assumptions, and the name, address, e-
mail address, and telephone number of the preparer.

Exhibit C-6 “Credit Rating.” provide a statement disclosing the applicant’s credit rating
as reported by two of the following organizations: Duff & Phelps, Dun and Bradstreet
Information Services, Fitch IBCA, Moody’s Investors Service, Standard & Poors, or a
similar organization. In instances where an applicant does not have its own credit ratings,
it may substitute the credit ratings of a parent or affiliate organization, provided the
applicant submits a statement signed by a principal officer of the applicant’s parent or
affiliate organization that guarantees the obligations of the applicant.

Exhibit C-7 “Credit Report,” provide a copy of the applicant’s credit report from
Experion, Dun and Bradstreet or a similar organization.

Exhibit C-8 “Bankruptcy Information,” provide a list and description of any
reorganizations, protection from creditors or any other form of bankruptey filings made

by the applicant, a parent or affiliate organization that guarantees the obligations of the
applicant or any officer of the applicant in the current year or within the two most recent
years preceding the application.

Exhibit -9 “Merger Information,” provide a statement describing any dissolution or
merger or acquisition of the applicant within the five most recent years preceding the

application.



D. TECHNICAL CAPABILITY

D-1

D-2

D-3

D4

PROVIDE THE FOLLOWING AS SEPARATE ATTACHMENTS AND LABEL AS INDICATED:

Exhibit D-1 grations” provide a written description of the operational nature of the
applicant’s business. Please inciude whether the applicant’s operations include the
generation of power for retail sales, the scheduling of retail power for transmission and
delivery, the provision of retail ancillary services as well as other services used to arrange
for the purchase and delivery of electricity to retail customers.

Exhibit D2 “Opérations Expertise,” given the operational nature of the applicant’s
business, provide evidence of the applicant’s experience and technical expertise in
performing such operations.

Exhibit D-3 “Kev Technical Personnel,” provide the names, titles, e-mail addresses,
telephone numbers, and the background of key personuel involved in the operational
aspects of the applicant’s business.

Exhibi¢t D-4_“FERC Power Marketer License Number,” provide a statement
disclosing the applicant’s FERC Power Marketer License number. (Power Marketers
only)

D 0. LS

?ﬂature of Applicant and Title

ack P. Kelleher

Vice President - Unregulated Retail Services

Sworn and subscribed before me this__ 14th dayef  July » 2008
Month Year

Barbara J. Hawbaker
Print Name and Title

Balancing and Settlement

My commission expireson__ July 16, 2010




AFFIDAVIT

State of IOWA

County of __ POTEK :

URBANDALE _ ss.
(Town}

Jack P. Kelleher .Affiant, being daly swom/affirmed according to law, deposes and says that:

MidAmerican Energy Compan

He/Sheisthe Vice President (Office of Affiant) of {Name on Applicant),

Unregulated Retail Services

That he/she is authorized to and does make this affidavit for said Applicant,

1.

10.

The Applicant herein, attests under penalty of false statement that all siatements made in the
application for certification renewal are true and complete and that it will amend its application while
the application is pending if any substantial changes occur regarding the information provided in the
application.

The Applicant herein, attests it will timely file an anmual report with the Public Utilities Commission
of Ohio of its intrastate gross receipts, gross earnings, and sales of kilowait-hours of electricity
pursuant to Divisien (A) of Section 4905.10, Division (A) of Section 4911.1%, and Division (F) of
Section 4928.06 of the Revised Code.

The Applicamt herein, attests that it will timely pay any assessments made pursuant to Secctions
4905.10, 4911.18, or Division F of Section 4928.06 of the Revised Code.

The Applicant heremn, attests that it will comply with all Public Utilities Comunission of Ohio rules or
orders as adopted pursvant to Chapter 4928 of the Revised Code.

The Applicant herein, attests that it will cooperate fidly with the Public Utilities Comamission of Ohio,
and its Staff on any utility matter including the investigation of any consumer complaint regarding any
service offered or pravided by the Applicant.

The Applicant herein, attests that it will comply with all state and/or federal rules and repulations
concerning conswmer protection, the environment, and advertising/promotions.

The Applicant herein, atiests that it will fully comply with Section 4928.09 of the Revised Code
regarding consent to the jurisdiction of Ohio Courts and the service of process.

The Applicant herein, attests that it will use #ts best efforts to verify that any entity with whom it has a
contractual Telationship to purchase power is in compliance with all applicable licensing requirements
of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission and the Public Utilities Commmission of Ohio.

The Applicant herein, attests that it will cooperate fully with the Public Utilies Commission of Ohio,
the electric distribution companics, the regional transmission entities, and other electric suppliers in the
event of an emergency condition that may jeopardize the safety and rehiability of the clectric service in
accordance with the emergency plans and other procedures as may be determined appropriate by the
Commission.

If applicable to the service(s) the Applicant will provide, the Applicant herein, attests that it will adhere
to the reliabikity standards of (1) the Nerth American Electric Reliability Council (NERC), (2) the
appropriaie regional rehiabtlity council(s), and {3) the Public Utilities Commission of Chia, (Only
applicable if pertains to the services the Applicant is offering)



11. The Applicant herein, attests that it will inform the Commission of any material change to the
information supplied in the renewal gpplication within 30 days of such material change, including any
change i contact person for regulatory purposes or contact person for Staff use in investigating
customer complaimts.

That the facts above set forth are frue and correct to the best of his/her knowledge, information, and belief and that
he/she expects said Applicant to be able to prove the same at any hearing hereof.

. W L.

Sifnture of Affiant & Title
k P. Xelleher

Vice President - Unregulated Retail Services

Sworn and subscribed before me this l4thday of July ., 2008
Month ‘ Year

Barbara .J. Hawbaker
Print Name and Title
Balancing and Settlement

My comunission expires on July 16, 2010




MidAmerican Energy Company ExHIBIT A-10
"Principal Officers, Directors, & Partners

Case No. 00-1786-EL-CRS

Principal Officers, Directors, & Partners Address - Telephone .-

- William Fehrman 666 Grand Avenue o :
Chief Executive Officer / President Des Moines, IA 50303 515/281-2326 =
Jon A. Andreasen 4299 NW Urbandale Drive :
Vice President / Associate General Counsel Urbandale, IA 50322 515/281-2642
James Averweg One River Center Place
Vice President / Engineering 106 E Second Street 563/333-8110

Davenport, [A 52801

Barry Campbell 3500 104+ Street - :
Vice President / Delivery Urbandale, TA 50322 515/281-2733
David C. Caris 666 Grand Avenue
Vice President / State Legislative Affairs Des Moines, IA 50303 515/281-2288
Jeffrey ]. Gust 4299 NW Urbandale Drive
Vice President / Energy Supply Mgt Urbandale, IA 50322 515/252-6429
Steven D. Harding 8602 - 172nd Street . 563/ 262-2865
General Manager / Mississippi River Energy Cir Muscatine, IJA 52761
Jack P. Kelleher 4299 NW Urbandale Drive
Vice President / Unregulated Retail Services Urbandale, IA 50322 515/281-2339
Kathryn M. Kunert 429% NW Urbandale Drive
Vice President / Community Relations Urbandale, IA 50322 515/281-2287
Paul . Leighton 4299 NW Urbandale Drive
Vice President, Corporate Secretary Urbandale, IA 50322 515/242-4099
Brian ]. Mundt 7215 Navajo Street,
General Manager, Walter Scott Jr. Energy Center Council Bluffs, [A 51501 712/366-5315
Terry T. Ousley One River Center Place
Vice President, Customer Satisfaction 106 E Second Street 563 /336-3587

Davenport, IA 52801

Dana M. Ralston 2761 Port Neal Circle
General Manager / Neal Energy Center Sioux City, IA 51052 712/277-5222



MidAmerican Energy Company EXHIBIT A-11

“Corporate Structure”
Case No. 00-1786-EL-CRS

Mid American Energy Company is an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Mid American -
“Energy Holdings Company. MidAmerican Energy Holdings Company (incorporated) isa =~
majority owned subsidiary of Berkshire Hathaway Inc., Omaha, Nebraska. The balance of = -
Mid American Energy Holdings Company is owned by a private investor group ,
comprised of businessman Walter Scott, Jr., Mid American Energy Holding Company’s
Chief Executive Officer and Chairman, David L. Sokol, and Mid American Energy
Holding Company’s President, Gregory E. Abel.

Mid American Energy Company provides both regulated and unregulated electric and gas
service to more than 1.4 million customers in Iowa, Illinois, Nebraska, Michigan, Maryland,
Delaware and South Dakota. The company is headquartered in Des Moines, Iowa, and is
organized into two business units: supply and marketing, and delivery services. The supply and
marketing unit has electric generation assets in lowa and Illincis. MidAmerican Energy
Company supplies gas and electric retail and wholesale services in the following states:
¢ Regulated Electric Services:
> Ilinois
> lowa
» South Dakota
* Regulated Gas Services:
» Illinois
» lowa
» Nebraska
» South Dakota
+ Unregulated Electric Services:
» IHlinois
Michigan
Maryland
Delaware
District of Columbia
Ohio
» Unregulated Gas Services:
Minois
Iowa
Michigan
Nebraska
South Dakota

Y ¥V ¥ Vv v

¥ V V Vv V¥V

CE Generation LLC is fifty percent (50%) owned by Mid American Energy Holdings Company
and as such is an affiliate of MidAmerican Energy Company. CE Generation LLC is an electric
generation company that provides electrical energy to the wholesale energy market through its
subsidiaries listed below:
» California Energy Development Corp.
» Yuma Cogeneration Associates - Gas fired electric generation station.
+ FSRI Holdings, Inc.
» Power Resources, LTD - Gas fired electric generation station.
» Saranac Power Partners

10
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MidAmerican Energy Company EXHIBIT B-1

Case No. 00-1786-EL-CRS *Jurisdictions of Operation”

A list of all jurisdictions in which the applicant or any affiliated interest of the applicant is, at -
the date of filing the application, certified, licensed, registered, or otherwise authorized to
provide retail natural gas service, or retail/ wholesale electric services. :

Retail Services

Regulated Serﬁces-

Towa South Dakota
Minois MNebraska
Unrepulated Services

Natural Gas

Dlinois: MidAmerican Energy, Nicor Gas, Peoples Gas Light and Coke, North Shore Gas
Towa: Alliant Energy, Mid American Energy, United Cities Gas,
- Michigan: Consumers Energy, Michigan Consolidated
Nebraska: MidAmerican Energy
South Dakota: MidAmerican Energy

Electric

Illinois: Ameren, Commonwealth Edison

Maryland: Baltimore Gas & Electric, Potomac Electric Power Company, Delmarva
Michigan: Consumers Energy Detroit Edison

Ohio: Duke Energy, First Energy

Delaware: Delmarva

District of Columbia: Potomac Electric Power Company

Wholesale Services
CE Generation LLC
{Wholesale Electric Services}

FSRI Holdings, Inc.
Power Resources, Ltd.

California Energy Development Corp.
Yuma CoGeneration Associates

Cordova Energy Company LLC
Saranac Power Partners

Magma Power Company
Vulcan BN/ Geo. Power Company
Del Ranch LP
Elmore LP
Leathers LP
Salton Sea Power Gen,, LP

13



MidAmerican Energy Company ExHIBIT B-2
“Experience & Plans”

Case No. 00-1786-EL-CRS

Mid American has extensive experience cohtractihg with customers, providing contracted : -
services, billing statements, and responding to customer inquiries. Beginning in September. .
1999 with the opening of the Illinois market, Mid American began offering competitive energy

services to commercial and industrial customers across Illinois. Since that time, MidAmerican -

has been certified to provide electric services in the states of Ohio, Michigan, Maryland,

Delaware, the District of Columbia and Texas. Currently, the unregulated portfolio includes 10 -

billion kWh and 39 billion cubic feet of natural gas served on an annual basis.

Our contracting process includes specific procedures for different contract types and
distribution company requirements. Signed contracts are sent to a central contract
administration department in Des Moines. It is this group’s responsibility to enter contract
information into a data base management system that allows for tracking activity, reporting and
viewing contract information. The data base management system features a notification
procedure for termination or rollover provisions in customer contracts. Contract information is
maintained in the database management system after termination as inactive.

All contracts are identified with a version number and a record is maintained of contract types
and the corresponding version numbers. Hard copies of customer contracts are stored in the
Contract Administration Depariment and in Corporate Records Department for a minimum of
five years after the termination date, and are scanned for others to view electronically. The
Contract Administration Department communicates with the distribution company to start
serving the new customer and with the Mid American Customer Service Department to set up a
new account and start billing. When processing is completed a welcome packet is sent to the
customer, which includes a copy of their signed contract and a letter listing the accounts to be
served with the starting date. Also included in the letter are a toll free phone number for
MidAmerican Unregulated Customer Service if the customer has any questions about their
service or bill, and a phone number for the distribution company if they have issues about
outages and meter reading.

In 1999 Mid American separated its unregulated customer service operations from its regulated
customer service division establishing a dedicated unregulated customer service team to
administer billing and customer care. This “in-house” team calculates customer bills and issues
billing statements for all of Mid American’s unregulated customers. A customer call center is
housed within the unregulated customer service team. This call center is staffed to respond to
all customer inquiries and issues regarding billing and service. The toll free phone number
provides our unregulated customers with immediate access to Mid American.

14



MidAmerican Energy Company EXHIBIT B-3
Case No. 00-1786-EL-CRS Disclosure of Liabilities and Investigations

- Mid American Energy Company has no existing, pending or past rulings, judgments, contingent

liabilities, impending revocation of authority, regulatory investigations, or any other matter ofa . o

. material nature that could adversely impact its financial or operational status or which would - .

" adversely impact its ability to serve as'a Retail Generation Provider in the State of Ohio.. ...

15



MidAmerican Energy Company EXHIBIT B4
Case No. 00-1786-EL-CRS | Disclosure of Consumer Protection Violations”

MidAmerican Energy Company or any principal officer of Mid American has not been .
convicted or held Lable for fraud or for violation of any consumer protection or antitrustlaws . -
within the past five years. ‘

16



MidAmerican Energy Company EXHIBIT B-5

No. 00-1786-EL-CRS “Disclosure of Certification Denial,
_Case ____0 o Curtailment, Suspension, or Revocation”

. MidAmericari Energy Company has not had any.éerﬁﬁcation, license, or ap;ﬁ]icaﬁon to provide
retail or wholesale electric service denied, curtailed, suspended, revoked, or cancelled within the
past two years. o o

17



EXHIBIT C-1

MidAmerican Energy Company
“Annual Reports”

Case No. 00-1786-EL-CRS
MidAmerican Energy Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Mid American Energy

Holdings Company. As such, there are no shareholder annual reports for this entity. Similar -
information and data is being provided in the 10-K Reports within Exhibit C-2, “SEC Filings”.

18



MidAmerican Energy Company ExHisiT C-2
Case No. 00-1786-EL-CRS “SEC Filings"”

Exhibit C-2 contains MidAmerican Energy Company’s last two previously filed 10-K Fﬂmgs
W1th the SEC for fiscal years ended December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2007. '

19



ExHiBIiT C-2

\ “SEC Filings"
. UNITED STATES
SECURTTIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
‘Washingion, D.C, 20549

FORM 10-K

[X] Annual Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006
or
[ | Transition Report Pursuaat to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

For the transition period from i

Commission Registrant’s Name, State of Incorporation, IRS Employer
File Number Address and Telephone Number Identification No.

33390553 MIDAMERICAN FUNDING, LLC 47-0819200
(An Iewa Limited Liability Company)
666 Grand Ave, Suife 500
Des Moines, lowa 50309-2580
515-242-4300

333-15387 MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY 42-1425214
(An Towa Corporation)
666 Grand Ave., Suite 500
Des Moinges, Iowa 56309-2580
515-242-4300

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act: None
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:

Preferred Stock, $3.30 Series, no par value
Preferred Stock, $3.75 Series, no par value
Preferred Stock, $3.90 Series, no par value
Preferred Stock, $4.20 Series, no par vaiue
Preferred Stock, $4.35 Series, no par value
Preferred Stock, $4.40 Series, no par value
Preferred Stock, $4.80 Series, no par value

(Title of each Class)

Indicate by check mark if either registrani is a well-kmown seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities
Act Yes B No

Indicate by check mark if either registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d) of
the Act.

MidAmerican Funding, LLC ~ Yes B4 No Ll MidAmerican Energy Company Yes £ No H

19,



EXHIBIT C-2

“SEC Filings”

Indicate by check mark whether the registrants (1) have filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d)
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the
Tegistrants were required to file such reporis), and (2) have been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90
days,

MidAmerican Funding, LLC Yes [ No MidAmerican Energy Company Yes Bl No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained
herein, and will not be contzined, to the best of registranis’ kmowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements
“incorparated by reference in Part Il of this Form L0-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrants are larpe accelerated filers, accelerated filers, or non-accelerated
filers. See definition of “accelerated filer and large accelerated filer” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check
one):

Large accelerated filer O Accelerated filer O Non-accelerated filer

Indicate by check mark whether either registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act),
Yes O No

All of the member’s equity of MidAmerican Funding, LLC is held by its parent company, MidAmerican Energy
Holdings Company, as of February 15, 2007,

All commeon stock of MidAmerican Energy Company is held by its parent company, MHC Inc,, which is a direct,
wholly owned subsidiary of MidAmerican Funding, LLC. As of February 15, 2007, 70,980,203 shares of
MidAmerican Energy Company commeon stock, without par value, were outstanding.

MidAmerican Funding, LLC and MidAmerican Energy Company meet the conditions set forth in General
Instruction I{1)(a) and (b) of Form 10K and are therefore filing this Form 183-K with the reduced disciosure format
specified in General Instruction I(2) of Form 10-K.

A/



ExHIBIT C-2

“SEC Filings"”

MidAmerican Funding, LLC (“MidAmerican Funding™), and MidAmerican Energy Company (“MidAmerican
Energy™), scparately file this combined Form 1¢-K. Information relating to each individual registrant is filed by such
registrant on its own behalf. Except for its subsidiaries, MidAmerican Energy makes no tepresentation as to
information relating to any other subsidiary of MidAmerican Funding.

Item 1.
Ttem 1A,
Ttem 1B.
Item 2.
Item 3.
Item 4.

Ttern 5.

ltem 6.
Item 7.
Item 7A.
Ttem 8.
ltem 9.
Ttem SA.
Item 9B,

Tiem 190.
Item 11.
Ttem 12,

Item 13.
Item 14,

Tiem 15.
Signatures
Exhibit Index

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PARTI

Business

Risk Factors

Unresoived Staff Comments

Properties

Legal Proceedings

Submission of Matters io a Vote of Security Holders
PARTHO

Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockbolder Matters and Issuer

Purchases of Equity Securities
Selected Financial Data

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure
Controls and Procedures

Other Information

PART I

Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

Executive Compensation

Security QOwnership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Managetent and Related
Stockholder Matters

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Principal Accountant Fees and Services

PART IV

Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedules

20
27
27
28
28

29

31
52
55
114
114
il4

115
116
116

116
117

118

121
123
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ExHIBIT C-2

“SEC Filings”

PARTI1
Item 1. Business

MidAmerican Funding, LL.C (“MidAmerican Funding™), which was formed on March 12, 1999, is an Towa limited
liability company whose sole member is MidAmerican Esergy Holdings Company (“MidAmerican Energy
Heldings™). MidAmerican Famding owns all of the outstanding common stock of MHC In¢. ("MHC”), which owns
all of the common stock of MidAmerican Energy Company (“"MidAmerican Energy™); InterCoast Capital Company
(“InterCoast Capital™); Midwest Capital Group, Inc. (“Midwest Capital”’); MidAmerican Services Company
(“MidAmerican Services™); and MEC Construction Services Co. {“MEC Construction™). MidAmerican Energy is 2
public utility company headquartered in Des Moines, lowa, and incorporated in the state of Iowa. MHC,
MidAmerican Funding and MidAmerican Energy Holdings are holding companies headquartered in Des Moines,
Iowa,

On February 9, 2006, following the effective date of the repeal of the Public Utility Holding Company Aci of 1935,
Berkshire Hathaway Inc. converted its 41.3 million shares of MidAmerican Energy Holdings' no par zero-coupon
convertible preferred stock into an equal number of shares of MidAmerican Energy Holdings' common stock.
Presently, Berkshire Hathaway Inc. owns 87.8% of the common stock of MidAmerican Energy Holdings and
consolidates MidAmerican Energy Holdings in its financial statements as a majority-owned subsidiary. Following
the conversion, Walter Scott, Jr., David L. Sokol and Gregory E. Abel are the minority owners of MidAmerican
Energy Holdings.

On March 1, 2006, MidAmerican Energy Holdings and Berkshire Hathaway entered intc an Eguity Commitment
Agresment pursuant to which Berkshire Hathaway has agreed o purchase up to $3.5 billion of common equity of
MidAmerican Energy Holdings upon any requests authorized from time to time by the Board of Directors of
MidAmerican Energy Holdings. The proceeds of any such equity contribution may only be used by MidAmerican
Energy Holdings for the purpose of (i) paying when due its debt obligations and (ii) funding the general corporate
purpases and capital requirements of its regulated subsidiaries, including MidAmetican Energy. Berkshire Hathaway
will have up to 180 days to fimd such request. MidAmerican Energy has no right to make or to canse MidAmerican
Energy Holdings to make any equity contribution requests. The Berkshire Hathaway equity commitment will expire on
February 28, 2011,

FORWARD- KING STAT

This report containg statements that do not directly or exclusively relate to historical facts. These statements are
“forward-looking statements’® within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reforrn Act of 1995,
Forward-looking statements can typically be identified by the use of forwand-looking words, such as “‘may,””
“could,”” “‘project,”” “*belicve,”” “‘anticipate,”” ‘‘expect,’”” *‘estimate,” ‘‘continue,”” “intend” ‘‘potential,” *“plan,”
““forecast,”” and similar terms. These statements are based upon MidAmerican Funding’s and/or MidAmerican
Energy's curtent intentions, assumptiions, expectations and beliefs and are subject to risks, uncertainties and other
important factors. Many of these factors are outside the control of MidAmetican Funding or MidAmerican Energy
and could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed or implied by such forward-looking
staiements. These factors include, among others:

» general economic and business conditions in the United States as a whole and in the midwastem
United States and MidAmerican Energy’s service territory in particular,

+  the financijal condition and creditworthiness of their significant customers and suppliers;

s governmental, statutory, legislative, regulatory or adminisirative mitiatives, proceedings or decisions,
including those relating to the Energy Policy Act of 2005;

» weather effects on sales and revenues;
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» changes in expected customer growth or usage of electricity or gas;

= economic of industry frends that could impact electricity or gas usage;

+ increased compctition in the powet generation, electric or gas industries,

e fuel, fuel transportation and power costs and availability;

s  changes in business strategy, development plams or customer or vendor relationships;
«  availability, term and deployment of capital;

s availability of qualified personnel;

» unscheduled generation outages or repairs;

» rigks relating o nuclear generation;

» financial or regulatory accounting principles or policies imposed by the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, the Securities and Exchange Commission
(“SEC"), the Federal Energy Regulatory Conpnission and skmilar entitics with regulatory oversight;

+ changes in, and compliance with, environmental laws, repulations, decisions and policies that could
increase operating and capital improvement costs ot affect plant output and/or delay plant construction;

e other risks or unforeseen events, including wars, the effects of terrorism, embargoes and other
catastrophic events; and

= other business or investment considerations thai may be disclosed from time to time in MidAmerican
Funding’s or MidAmerican Energy’s SEC filings or in other publicly disseminated writien documents,

Further details of potential risks and uncertaintics affecting MidAmerican Energy or MidAmerican Funding are
described in their filings with the SEC, including Item 1A. Risk Factors and other discussions contained in this Form
10-K. MidAmerican Funding and MidAmerican Energy undertake no obligation to publicly update or revise any
forward-looking statements, whether as a result of pew information, futwre events or otherwise. The foregoing
review of factors should not be construed as exclusive.

MIDAMERICAN FUNDING AND MHC

Both MidAmerican Funding and MHC are hoiding companics. MidAmerican Funding conducts no business other
than activities retated to its debt securities and the ownership of MHC. MHC conducts no business other than the
ownership of its subsidiaries,. MHC’s interests include 100% of the common stock of MidAmerican Energy,
InterCoast Capital, Midwest Capital, MidAmenican Services and MEC Construction. MidAmerican Fnergy, which
accousts for the predominant part of MHC's assets and earnings, is primarily engaged in the busingss of generating,
fransmitting, distributing and selling electricity and in distributing, selling and transporting natural gas. Substantially
all of MidAmerican Funding’'s consolidated operating revenues are from MidAmerican Energy. Financial
information on MidAmerican Funding’s segments of business is included in Note (18) of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements in Item 8.

As of December 31, 2006, MidAmerican Funding amd ils subsidiaries had 3,694 employees.
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MIDAMERICAN ENERGY

MidAmerican Energy is a public vfility company headquartered in lowa with $6.5 billion of assets as of
December 31, 2006, and operating revenues for 2006 totaling 33.4 billion. MidAmerican Energy is principally
engaged in the business of penerating, transmitting, distributing and selling electricity and in distributing, selling and
transporting natral gas. MidAmerican Energy distributes electricity at retail in Counci! Bluffs, Des Moines, Fort
Dodge, Iowa City, Sioux City and Waierloo, Iowa; the Quad Cities (Davenport and Bettendorf, Iowa and Rock
Island, Moline and East Moline, DMinois); and 5 number of adjacent communities and areas. It also distributes natural
gas at reail in Cedar Rapids, Des Moines, Fort Dodge, lowa City, Sioux City and Waterloo, Jowa; the Quad Cities;
Sioux Falls, South Dakota; and a number of adjacent communities and arcas. Additionally, MidAmerican Energy
wansports natural gas through its distribution system for a number of end-use customers who have independently
secured their supply of natural gas. As of December 31, 2006, MidAmerican Energy had approximately 714,000
regulated retail electric customers and 696,000 regulated retail and transportation natural gas customers.

In addition to retail sales and natural gas transportation, MidAmerican Energy sells electric energy and natural gas to
other utilities, marketers and municipalities. These sales are referred to as wholesale sales.

MidAmerican Energy’s regulated electric and gas operations are conducted under franchise agreements, certificates,
pemuits and licenses obtained from state and local authorities. The franchise agreeinents, with various expiration
dates, are typically for 25-year terms.

MidAmerican Energy has a diverse customer base consisting of residential, agricultural, and a variety of commercial
and industrial cusiomer groups. Some of the larger indusirial groups served by MidAmerican Energy include the
processing and sales of food products; the manufacturing, processing and fabrication of primary mefals; farm and
other non-electrical machinery; real estate; and cement and gypsum praducts.

MidAmerican Energy also conducts a number of nomregulated business activities. Refer to the “Nonregulated
Operations™ section later in [tem 1 for further discussion.

Financial information on MidAmerican Energy’s segments of business is included in Note {18) of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Siatements in Item 8.

For the years ended December 31, MidAmerican Energy derived its gross operating revenues from the following
business activities.

Gross Operating Revenugs
By Business Activity
2006 2005 2004
Repulated electric 51.6% 479% 52. M
Regulated gas 22 418 37.5
Nonregulated 162 —103 — 928

100.0% 100.0% 100,0%

As of December 31, 2066, MidAmerican Encrgy had 3,694 employees, of which 1,781 were covered by union
contracts. MidAmerican Encrgy has five separatc contracts with locals of the International Brotherhood of Electrical
Workers (“IBEW™), the United Association of Plumbers and Pipefitiers and the United Paper Workers International
Untion, One contract with TBEW locals 109 and 499 expires April 3@, 2009, and covers 1,659 employee members.
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Regulated Electric Operations

The following tables present historical regulated electric sales data related to customer class and jurisdictions.

Total Reguiated Electric Sales
By Customer Class

2006 2005 2004
Residential 18.6% 21.3% 19.6%
Small general service 13.1 15.0 14.3
Large general service @ 27.6 279 26.7
Wholesale @ : 36.0 %0.5 34.2
Other 47 23 3.0

—L100.0% e 0,0% ~100.0%

O Small general service gemerally includes commercial and industrial customers with a demand of 200
kilowatts or less.

(2} Large general service generally includes commercial and industrial customers with a demand of more than
200 kilowatis.

&) Whplesale generally inciudes other utilities, marketers and municipalities 1o whom clectric energy is sold at
wholesale for resale 0 ultimate customers,

Regulated Retail Electric Sales By State

2006 2005 2004
Towa 89.5% 89.0% 88.7%
Tiinois 9.5 10.1 10.3
South Dakota 1.0 0.9 1.0

—100.0% —100.0% ~100.0%

There are seasonal variations in MidAmerican Epergy’s eleciric business that are principally related to the use of
eleciricity for air conditioning. In general, 35-40% of MidAmerican Energy’s regulated eleciric revemmes are
reported in the months of June, July, August and September.

The anomal howrly peak demand on MidAmerican Energy’s electric system usually occurs as & result of air
conditioning use during the cooling season. On July 31, 2006, retail customer usage of electticity caused a new
record bourly peak demand of 4,136 megawatts (“'MW™) on MidAmerican Energy’s electric system, an increase of
137 MW from the previous record sei in 2005,

MidAmerican Energy’s total accredited net generating capability in the summer of 2006 was 5,032 MW, including
354 MW of net capacity purchases and sales. Accredited net generating capability represents the amount of
generation available to mees the requirements on MidAmerican Energy’s system and consists of MidAmerican
Energy-owned generation and the net amount of capacity purchases and sales. Accredited capacity may vary from
the nameplate, or design, capacity ratings, particularly for wind turbines whose output is dependent upon wind levels
at any given time. Additionally, the actal amount of generating capacity available at any time may be less than the
accredited capacity due to regulatory vestrictions, transmission constraints, fuel resirictions and generating units
being temporarily out of service for inspection, maintenance, refucling, modifications or other reasons.

A
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The following table details information related to MidAmerican Energy’s eleciric gencrating facilities for summer
2006 accreditation.
Focliity Net
Esnergy Year Capacity Net MW
Generating Facility Lecation Source Installed (MW@ Owned
COAL: .

Comneii Binffs Unit No. | Council Bluffs, 1A Coal 1954 45 45

Council Bluffs Umt No. 2 Council Bluffs, 1A Coal 1958 &8 88

Counci! Bluffs Unit Mo, 3 Council Bluffs, IA Coal 1978 690 546

Neal Unit No. 1 Sergeant Bluff, JA Cosl 1964 135 135

Meal Unit No. 2 Serpeant Bluff, 1A Coal 1972 300 300

Neal Unit No. 3 Sergeant BIuff, 1A Coal 1975 515 371

Neal Unit No. 4 Salix, IA Coal 1979 632 256

Lotrisa Muscatine, [A Cogl 1983 T00 616

Omumwa Otmumwa, 1A Coal 1981 672 349

Riverside Unit No. 3 Bettendorf, 1A Coal 1925 4 4

Riverside Unit No. 5 Betiendorf, 1A Coal 1961 130 130

3911 2.840
NATURAL GAS AND OTHER:

Greater Des Moines Plessant Hill, LA Gas 2003-04 491 491

Coralville Coralviiie, 1A Gas 1970 64 64

Electrifarm ‘Waterloo, LA Gas/Oil 1975-78 200 200

Mbotine Moline, IL Gas 1970 64 64

Pare Charles City, IA Gas 1969 32 32

Pleasant Hilt Pieasant Hill, 1A Gas/Oil 1990-94 163 163

River Hills Des Moines, [A Gas 1966-57 120 120

Syeamore Johnston, [A Gas/Oil 1974 149 149

28 portable power modules Various 0il 2000 56 5G

— 1339 1.339

NUCLEAR;
Quad Cities Unit No, 1 Cordova, IL Uranium 1972 872 218
Quad Cities Unit No. 2 Cordova, 1L Uramium 1972 876 219
1748 437
WIND™®: —

I[ntrepid Schailer, [A Wind 2004-05 32 32

Century Blairsburg, [A Wind 2005 27 27

Victary Westide, L4 Wind 2006 - .

58 39
HYDROELECTRIC:

Moline Enit Nos. 1-4 Moliae, IL. Mississippi River 1841 3 3
ACCREDITED GENERATING CAPACITY 7,060 4678
WIND INCREMENTAL CAPACITY ®:

ftrepid 144 144

Century 158 158

Vigtory __ 9 949

.40l _—401

(0 Facility Net Capacity (MW) represents total plant accredited net generating capacity from the summer of
2006 based on MidAmerican Energy’s accreditation approved by the Mid-Continent Area Power Pool.
Actual MW may vary depending on operating conditions and plant design. Net MW Owned indicates

MidAmerican Energy’s ownership of Facility Net Capacity.
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4} MidAmerican Energy owned 459.53 MW (namepiate, or design capacity, tatings) of wind-powered
generation as of December 31, 2006. The 59 MW of accredited capacity for these facilities in the table is
considerably less than the nameplate rating due to the varying nature of wind and to the fact that the
Victory wind-powered generation facilities were placed in service after the 2006 summer accreditation.

3 The wind incremental capacity represents the difference between the summer 2006 accreditation of the
facilities and the nameplate ratings.

Om April 18, 2006, the Iowa Utilities Board (“TUB™) approved a seitlemeni agreement between MidAmerican
Energy and the Iowa Office of Consumer Advocate (“OCA™) regarding ratemaking principles for up to 545 MW
(nameplate ratings) of wind-powered generation capacity in lowa to be installed in 2606 and 2007. In the fourth
quarter of 2006, MidAmerican Energy placed in service 99 MW (namgplate ratings) of wind-powered generation at
its Victory wind sile, and in June 2006, MidAmerican Energy entered inte agreements to add an additional 123 MW
(nameplate ratings) of wind-powered generation by the end of 2007. MidAmerican Energy continues io pursue
additional cost effective wind-powered generation.

MidAmericar Energy is currently constructing Council Bluffs Energy Center Unit No. 4 (“CBEC Unit 47), a 790-
MW (based on expected accreditation) super-critical-temperature, coal-fired generating plant. MidAmerican Energy
will operate the plant and hold an undivided ownership interest as a tenant in common with the other owners of the
plant. MidAmerican Energy’s current ownership interest is 60.67%, equating to 479 MW of output. Municipal,
cooperative and public power utilities own the remainder, which is a typical ownership arrangement for large base-
load plants in Iowa. The plant will provide service to regalated retail electricity customers. Wholesale sales may also
be made from the plant to the extent the power is not immediately needed for regulated retail service. MidAmerican
Ensrgy has obtained regulatory approval to include the Jowa portion of the actual cost of CBEC Unit 4 in its lowa
rate basc as long as the actual cost does not exceed the agreed cap that MidAmerican Energy has deemed to be
reasopable. If the cap is exceeded, MidAmerican Energy has the right to demonsirate the prudence of the
expenditures above the cap, subject to regulatory review. MidAmerican Energy expects to invest approximately
$870 million in CBEC Unit4, imncluding transmission facilities and approximately $64 million of non-cash
allowance for equity funds used during comstruction. Through December 31, 2006, MidAmerican Energy has
invested $785.% million in the plant, including $121.3 million for MidAmerican Energy’s share of deferred
payments allowed by the construction contract and $49.2 million of non-cash allowance for equity fimds used during
construction.

MidAmerican Energy is interconpected with utilities in Iowa and neighboring states. MidAmerican Energy is also a
party to an electric generation reserve sharing pool and regional transmission group administered by the Mid-
Continent Area Power Pool “MAPP”). The MAPP is a voluntary association of clectric utilities doing business in
Minnesota, Nebraska, North Dakota and the Canadian provinces of Saskatchewan and Manitoba and portions of
Towa, Montana, South Dakota and Wisconsin. Its membership also includes power marketers, regulaiory agencies
and independent power producers. The MAPP performs functions including administration of its short-term regional
Open-Access Transmission Tariff, coordination of regional planning and operations, and operation of the generation
reserve sharing pool.

Each MAPP generation reserve participant is required to maintain for emergency putposes a net generating
capability reserve, including net capacity purchases and saies, of at least 15% above its system peak demand for
gach month. MidAmerican Energy’s reserve margin at peak demsnd for 2006 was approximately 22%.
MidAmerican Energy believes it has adequate electric capacity reserve through 2009, including capacity provided
by the generating projects discussed above. However, significantly higher-than-normal temperatwes during the
cooling season could cause MidAmerican Energy’s reserve to fall below the 15% minimum. If MidAmerican
Energy fails to maintain the required minimum reserve, significani penaltics could be contractually imposed by the
MAPP,

MidAmerican Energy can transact with a substantial number of parties through its participation in MAPP and
through it direct interconnections to the Midwest ISO, Southwest Power Pool and PJM Regional Transmission
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Organizations (RTOs) and several other major transmission-owning utilities in thé region, Under normal operating
conditions, MidAmerican Energy’s transmission system has adequate capacity to deliver energy to MidAmerican
Energy’s distribution system and to export and import energy with other interconnected systems.

E; Su for Electric Operations

MidAmerican Energy’s total energy supplied to retail and wholesale electric customers was from the foliowing
sources;

2006 2005 2004
MidAmerican Epergy - owned generation 72.1% 78.9% 76.5%
Energy purchased under long-terin contracts 72 79 126

Energy purchased - other — 207 132 10.9
: - 100.0% —106.0% —100.0%

Sources of fuel for energy supplied by MidAmerican Energy-owned eleciric generation were as follows for the years
ended December 31:

2006 2005 2004
Coal 76.8% 79.3% 84.2%
Nuclear 145 14.7 14.8
Wind 4.9 2.7 -
Gas 37 32 0.9
{il/Hydro 01 0.1 0.1

—100.0% —1000% el 0.0%

MidAmerican Energy is exposed to fluctuations in energy costs relating to retail sales in lowz as it does not have an
energy acljustment clause. Under its Illinois eleciric tariffs through December 31, 2006, and its current South Dakota
electric tariffs, MidAmerican Energy is allowed to recover fluctuations in the cost of all fuels and purchased energy
used for retail electric generation through a fuel cost adjustment clause. In November 2006, the Nlinpis Commerce
Commission {“ICC™) approved a proposal to eliminate MidAmerican Energy’s monthly Illinois fuel adjustment
clause. Base rates have been adjusted to include recoverics at average 2004/2005 cost levels beginning January |,
2007. The elimination of the fuel adjustment clause exposes MidAmerican Energy to monthly market price changes
for fuel and purchased power costs in Illinois, with ratc case approval required for any base rate changes.
MidAmerican Energy may not petition for reinstatement of the Iliinpis fuel adjustment clanse until November 2011.

All of the coal-fired generating stations operated by MidAmerican Energy are fueled by low-sulfur, western coal
from the Powder River Basin. MidAmerican Energy’s coat supply portfolio includes multiple suppliers and mines
under short-term and mmlti-year agreements of varying quantitics. MidAmerican Encrgy’s coal supply porifolio has
100% of its expected 2007 requirements under fixed-price contracts. MidAmerican Energy reguiarly monitors the
western coal market looking for opportunities to enhance its coal supply portfolio. Well-publicized operationsai
delays in rail transportation out of the Powder River Basin during 2005 and 2006 have resulted in the reduction of
coal ihventories below targeted ranges. MidAmerican Energy believes the transportation issues have largely been
resolved and that its coal inventories will be restored to their target ranges during 2007, Additional information
regarding MidAmerican Energy’s coal supply coatracts is inciuded in Note (15) of Notes to Consolidaied Financial
Statements in Item 8,

MidAmerican Energy has a long-term coal transportation agreement with Union Pacific Railroad Company (“Union
Pacific”). Under this agreement, Union Pacific delivers coal direcity to MidAmerican Energy’s Neal and Council
Bluffs Energy Centers and 1o an interchange point with the Iowa, Chicago & LFastern Railroad Corporation for
delivery to the Louisa and Riverside Energy Centers. MidAmerican Energy has the ability to use The Burlingion
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Northern and Santa Fe Railway Company for delivery of a small amowmt of coal to the Council Bluffs, Louisa and
Riverside Energy Centers should the need arise.

MidAmerican Energy uses natural gas and oil as fuel for intermediate and peak demand electric generation, igniter
fuel, transmission support and standby purposes. These sources are presently in adequate supply and available to
meet MidAmerican Energy’s needs.

MidAmerican Energy is a 25% joint owner of Quad Cities Generating Station (“Quad Cities Station™), 8 nuclear
power plant. Exelon Generation Company, LLC (“Exelon Generation™), the other joint owner and the operator of
Quad Cities Station, is a subsidiary of Exelon Corporation.

Approximately one-third of the nuclear fuel assemblies in the core at Quad Cities Station Units 1 and 2 are replaced
every 24 months. MidAmerican Energy has been advised by Exelon Generation that all of its uranium requirements
for Quad Cities Station through 2009 and part of the requirements through 2015 can be met under existing supplies
or conmnitments. Additionally, under existing supplies and commitments, uranium ¢onversien reguirements can be
met through 2009 and part of 2010 and enrichment requirements can be met through 2011. Commitments for fuel
fabrication have been obtained for the next four reloads, or eight years. MidAmerican Energy has been advised by
Exelon (Generation that it does not aniicipate it will have difficulty in contracting for uranium, conversion,
enrichment or fabrication of nuclear fuel needed to operate Quad Cities Station.

Regulated Natural Gas Operations

MidAmerican Energy is engaged in the procurement, transportation, storage and distribution of natural gas for
customers in the Midwest. MidAmerican Energy purchases natural gas from various suppliers, transports it from the
production areas to MidAmerican Energy’s service territory under contracts with interstate pipelines, stores it in
various storage facilitics to manage fuctuations in system demand and scasonal pricing, and distribuics it to
customers through MidAmerican Energy’s distribution system,

MidAmerican Energy sells natural pas and transportation services to end-use customers and natural gas to other
utilities, marketers and mumicipalities. MidAmerican Energy also transports through its distribution system natural
gas purchased independently by a number of end-use customers. During 2006, 47.2% of total gas delivered through
MidAmerican Energy’s system for end-use custorners was under gas transportation setvice.

There are seasonal variations in MidAmerican Energy’s gas business that are principally due to the use of natural
gas for heating. In general, 45-55% of MidAmerican Energy’s regulated gas revenues are reported in the months of
January, February, March, and December.

The following tables present historical regulated gas sales data, excluding wansportation throughput, related o
customer class and jurisdiciions.

Total Regulated Gas Sales
By Customer (lass
2006 2005 2004
Residential 37.2% 37.5% 40.0%
Small general service ¥ 18.1 18.2 19.8
Large general service ¥ 36 4.1 22
Wholesale ? 41,1 402 38.0
=100.0% —100.0% —106G.0%
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{1) Small and large gencral service customers are classified primatrily based on the nature of their business and
gas nsage. Small general service customers are business customers whose gas usage is principatly for
heating. Large general service customers are business customers whose principal gas usage is for their
manufacturing processes. :

(¢3] Wholesale generally includes other wtilities, marketers and municipalities to whom natural gas is sold at
wholesale for eventual resale to end-use customers.

Regulated Retail Gas Sales By State
2006 2005 2004
Towa 77.3% 77.4% 77. 7%
South Dakota 12.0 11.7 11.5
Thinois ' 9.8 10.0 99
Nebraska 0.9 0.9 0.9

100.0% 100.0% _160.0%
1 ly. #n

MidAmerican Energy purchases gas supplies from producers and third party marketers. To enhance system
reliability, a geographically diverse supply portfolio with varying terms and contract conditions is utilized for the
gas supplics. MidAmerican Energy attempis to optimize the value of its reguiated assets by cngaging in wholesale
transactions, [UB and South Dakota Public Utlities Commission (“SDPUC™) rulings have aliowed MidAmerican
Energy to tetain 50% of the respective jurisdictional margins earned on wholesales sales of natural gas, with the
remaining 50% being returned to customers through the purchased gas adjusunent clauses discussed below.

MidAmerican Energy has rights to firm pipeline capacity to transport gas to its service territory through direct
interconnects to the pipeline systems of Northern Natural Gas Company (an affiliate company), Natura! Gas
Pipeline Company of America, Northem Border Pipeline Company and ANR Pipeline Company. At times, the
capacity available through MidAmerican Energy’s finm capacity portfolio may exceed the demand on MidAmerican
Energy’s distnibution sysiem. Firm capacity in excess of MidAmerican Energy’s system needs can be released to
other companies to achieve optimum use of the available capacity. Past IUB and SDPUC rulings have allowed
MidAmerican Energy to retain 30% of the respective jutisdictional margins eamed on the released capacity, with the
remgaining 70% being returmed to customers through the purchased gas adjustment clanses.

MidAmerican Energy is allowed to recover its cost of gas from all of its regulated gas customers through purchased
gas adjustment clauses. Accordingty, as long as MidAmerican Energy is prudent in its procurement practices,
MidAmerican Energy’s repulated gas customers retain the risk associated with the market price of gas.
MidAmerican Energy uses several sirategies designed io reduce the market price risk for its gas customers,
including the use of storage gas and peak shaving facilities, sharing arranpements to share savings and costs with
customers, and short-term and long-termn financial and physical gas purchase agreements.

MidAmerican Energy utilizes leascd gas storage to meet peak day requirements and to manage the daily changes in
demand due to changes in weather, The storage gas is typically replaced during off-peak monihs when the demand
for gas is historically lower than during the heating season. In addition, MidAmerican Energy also utilizes three
liquefied natural gas plants and two propane-air plants to mest peak day demands in the winter. The storage and
peak shaving facilities reduce MidAmerican Epergy’s dependence on gas purchases during the volatile winter
heating season. MidAmerican Energy can deliver approximately 50% of its design day sales requirements from its
storage and peak shaving supply sources.

In 1995, the IUB gave initial approval of MidAmerican Energy’s Incentive Gas Supply Procurement Program. In

December 2006, the JUB exiended the program through October 31, 2010. Under the program, as amended,
MidAmerican Energy is required 1o file with the IUB every six months a comparison of its gas procurement costs to
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a reference price. If MidAmerican Energy’s cost of gas for the period is less or greater than an esiablished tolerance
band around the reference price, then MidAmerican Energy shares a portion of the savings or costs with customers.
A similar program is currently in effect in South Dakota through October 31, 2014, Since the implermentation of the
program, MidAmerican Energy has successfully achieved amd shared savings with its natural gas customers, Refer
to the “Nonregulated Operations” section for additional information.

On Febmuary 2, 1996, MidAmerican Engrgy had its highest peak-day delivery of 1,143,026 decatherms (“Diths™).
This peak-day delivery consisted of approximately 88% traditional sales service and 12% transportation service of
cusiomer-owned gas. As of March 1, 2007, MidAmerican Energy’s 2006/2007 winter heating scason peak-day
deliverv of 1,071,380 Dths was reached on February 5, 2007, This peak-day delivery included 68% traditional sales
service and 32% wansportation service,

The supply sources uiilized by MidAmerican Energy to meet its 2006/2007 winter heating season peak-day
deliveries to its traditional sales service cusiomers were:

Thousands Percent
of of
Dihs Total
Leased storage and peak shaving plants 253.0 34.9%
Firm supply 4719 65.1
: 1249 =——100.0%

MidAmerican Enecrgy has sirategically built nmltiple pipeline interconmnections info several of its larger
communities. Multiple pipeline interconnects create competition among pipeline suppliers for transportation
capacity to serve those commumities, thus reducing costs. In addition, multiple pipeline intercomnects give
MidAmerican Energy the ability to optimize delivery of the lowest cost supply from the various supply basins into
these communities and increase delivery reliability. Benefits to MidAmerican Energy’s system customers are shared
with all jurisdictions through a consolidated purchased gas adjustment clause.

MidAmerican Energy does not anticipate difficulties in meeting its fumre demands througb the use of its supply
portiotio and pipeline interconnections for the foreseeable future,

NONREGULATED OPERATIONS

MidAmerican Energy’s nonregulated operations include a variety of activities outside of the traditional regulated
electric and gas services, including eiectric and gas sales and income-sharing arrangements. -

Nonregulated electric includes nonregulated retail and wholesale operations. MidAmerican Energy’s nonregulated
retail electric marketing services provide electric supply services to retail customers in lilinois, Ohio, Michigan and
Maryland, Nonregulated wholesale operations buy from, and sell 1o, other utilities and marketers.

MidAmerican Energy’s nonregulated gas marketing services operate in Iowa, Iilinois, Michigan, and South Dakota.
MidAmerican Energy purchases gas from producers and third party marketers and sells it directly to large
commercial end-users. In addition, MidAmerican Energy manages gas supplies for a number of smaller commercial
end-users, which includes the sale of gas to these customers to meet their supply requirements.

Nonregulated operations also include earnings from sharing arrangements under applicable state regulations and
tariffs filed with the ITUB and the SDPUC for MidAmerican Energy’s regulated natural gas operations. Under these
arrangements, MidAmerican Energy is allowed to keep a portion of the benefils of gas sates for resale and capacity
release fransactions. MidAmerican Energy also has an Incentive Gas Supply Procurement Program, under which it
can receive awards for successful performance of gas supply procurement. Refer to the preceding “Repulated
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Ninn'al Gas Operations™ section of Item 1 for further discussion of the sharing arranpements and the gas
procurement program.

Regulation
-General Utility Regulation

MidAmerican Energy is a public utility within the meaning of the Federal Power Act and a natural gas company

within the meaning of the Natural Gas Act. Therefore, it is subject to regulation by the Federal Energy Regulatory

Commissice (“FERC™) in regard to numerous activities, including accounting policies and practices, electricity
wholesale rates, the establishment and regulation of electric intercommections and transmission services, the
acquisition and disposition of utility assets and securities over threshold amounts and replacement of certain gas
utility propetty.

MidAmerican Energy is regulated by the TUB as to retail rates, services, construction of utility property and in other
respects as provided by the laws of lowa. MidAmerican Energy is regulated by the Illinois Commerce Commission
("ICC™ as to bundled retail rates, unbundied delivery services, setvices that have not been declared to be
competitive, aspects of competitive gas sales in Illinois, issuance of securities, affiliate ttansactions, construction,
acquisition and sale of utility property, acquisition and sale of securities and in other respects as provided by the
laws of Iliinois. MidAmerican Energy is also subject to regulation by the SDPUC as to ¢lectric and gas retail rates
and service as provided by the laws of South Dakota.

Rate Regulation

Under a series of electric settiement agreements between MidAmerican Energy, the Iowa Office of Consumer
Advocate ("OCA”) and other intervenors approved by the IUB in 2001, 2003, 2005 and 2006, MidAmerican Energy
has agreed not to seek a gencral increase in electric base rates to become effective prior to January 1, 2013, unless its
Iowa jurisdictional electric return on equity in any year falls below 10%. Prior to filing for a general increase in
electric rates, MidAmerican Energy is required to conduct 30 days of good faith negotiations with the signatories to
the settiement agreements to attempt to avoid a general increase in rates. As a party to the sctilement agreements, the
OCA has agreed not io seck any decrease in MidAmerican Energy’s lowa electric base rates prior to January 1,
2013. The settlement agreements specifically allow the IUB to approve or order electric rate design or cost of
service rate changes that could result in changes to rates for specific customers as long as such changes do not result
in an overall increase in revenues for MidAmerican Energy. Additionally, under the incentive regulation aspects of
the settiements, carmings excecding a returm on equity of 11.75% are shared with customers. See Note (14) of Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statemenis in Item 8 for additional discussion of these setflements.

Under Iowa law, there are two options for temporary collection of higher rates following the fling of a request for a
rate increase. Collection can begin, subject to refund, either (1} within 10 days of filing, without TUB review, or (2)
90 days after filing, with approval by the TUB. Under the 10-day option, Iowa law provides that if the utility is later
requited to make refunds, the refunds may be based on overpayments made by each customer class, group or rate
zone of the difference between final rates and the rates that would have been collected if temporary rates had been
based upon prior regulatory principles. Under the 90-day option, lowa law provides that the IUB shall prescribe the
manner of refunding the difference between final rates and the rates based om prior ratemaking principles and a rate
of return on common equity previously approved by the IUB. In cither case, if the TUB has not issued a final order
within ten months after the filing date, the temporary rates become final and any difference between the requested
rate increase and the temporary rates may then be collected subject to refund until receipt of a final order.
Exceptions to the ten-month limitation provide for extensions due to a uttlity’s lack of due diligence in the rate
proceeding, judicial appeals and situations involving new generating units being placed in service. MidAmerican
Energy's cost of gas is collected in its Jowa gas rates through the Iowa Uniform Purchased Gas Adjustment Clause,
which is updated monthiy to reflect changes in actual costs.

32



EXHIBIT C-2

“SEC Filings"

South Dakota law authorizes the SDPUC to suspend new rates for up to six months during the pendency of rate
proceedings; however, the rates are permitted to be implemented afier six months subject to refund pending a final
order in the proceeding,

Under 1llinois law, new rates may become effective 45 days after filing with the ICC, or on such earlier date as the
ICC may approve, subject to its authority & suspend the proposed new rates, subject to hearing, for a period not 1o
- exceed approximately eleven months after filing. MidAmerican Energy’s cost of gas is reflected in its Hlinois gas
rates throupgh the Illinois Uniform Purchased Gas Adjustment Clause. The adjustment clanse is updated on a
monthly basis to reflect changes in actual costs.

In December 1997, lllinois enacted a taw o restructure Illinois’ electric utility industry. The law changed how and
what electric services are regulated by the ICC and transitioned portions of the traditional electric services to a
compelitive environment. Electric base rates in llinois were generally frozen until January 1, 2007, but are now
subject to cost-based ratemaking.

The FERC regulates MidAmerican Energy’s rates charged to wholesale customers for electricity and transmission
services. Most of MidAmerican Energy’s electric wholesale sales and purchases take place under market-based
pricing allowed by the FERC and are therefore subject to market volatility. A December 2006 decision of the United
States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circnit changed the interpretation of the relevant standard which the FERC
should apply when reviewing wholesale contracts for eleciricity or capacity. The decision raises some concerns
regarding the finakity of contract prices, parficularly from the sellers’ side of the transactions, Partics to this
proceeding are seeking review before the U.S. Supreme Court. Whether the U.S. Supreme Court will hear the case
or the outcome of its ruling should it decide to consider the matter, cannot be predicted at this time. All sellers
subject to the FERC’s jurisdiction, including MidAmerican Energy, are currently subject to increased risk as 2 result
of this decision.

The FERC conducts a triennial review of MidAmerican Energy’s market-based pricing authority. Margins earned on
wholesale sales have historically been included as a component of retail cost of service upon which retail rates are
based.

On Aungust 30, 2006, a third party vendor comunenced operations as MidAmerican Energy’s transmission service
coordinator (“TSC”). The TSC is the administrator of various MidAmerican Energy Open Access Transmission
Tariff (“OATT™) functions for transmission service. The FERC approved MidAmerican Encrgy’s TSC agraement
and selection of a third party vendor. Under the contract, the vendor provides its tariff administration and planning
services for a three-year tetm. MidAmerican Energy does not believe that the incremental costs will have a material
impact on its financial results,

Refer to the “Utility Regulatory Matters™ section of Management’s Discussion and Analysis in Item 7 for additional
discussion of matters affecting utility regulation.

Nuclear Repgulation

MidAmerican Energy is subject to the jurisdiction of the Nuclear Regulatory Commission (“NRC™), with respect to
its license and 25% ownership interest in Quad Cities Station Units 1 and 2. Exelon Generation is the operator of
Quad Cities Station and is under contract with MidAmerican Energy to secute and keep in effect all necessary NRC
licenses and authorizations.

The NRC regulations control the granting of permits and licenses for the construction and operation of nuclear
generating stations and subject such stations 1o contipuing review and regulation. On October 29, 2004, the NRC
granted renewed licenses for both Quad Cities Station Unit 1 and Unit2 that provide for operation umtil
December 14, 2032, which is in effect a 20-year extension of the licenses. The NRC review and regulatory process
covers, among other things, aperations, maintenance, and environmental and radiological aspects of such stations.
The NRC may modify, suspend or revoke licenses and impose civil penalties for failure to comply with the Atomic
Energy Act, the regulations under such Act or the terms of such licenses.
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Federal regulations provide that any nuclear operating facility may be required to cease operation if the NRC
determines there are deficiencies in state, local or utility emergency preparedness plans relating to such facility, and
the deficiencies are not comrected. Exelon Generation has advised MidAmerican Energy that an emergency
preparedness plan for Quad Cities Station has been approved by the NRC. Exelon Generation has also advised
MidAmerican Energy that state and Jocal plans relating to Quad Cities Station have been approved by the Federal
Emergency Management Agency.

The NRC also regulates the decommissioning of muclear power plants including the plamming and funding for the
eventual decommissioning of the plants. In accordance with these regulations, MidAmerican Energy submits a
repart to the NRC every two years providing reasonable assurance that funds will be available to pay the costs of
decommissioning its share of Quad Cities Station.

Under the Nuclear Waste Policy Act of 1982 ("NWPA™), the U.S. Department of Energy (“DOE™) is responsible for
the selection and development of repositories for, and the permanent disposal of, spent nuclear fuel and high-level
radioactive wastes. Exelon Generation, as required by the NWPA, signed a contract with the DOE under which the
DOE was to receive spent nuclear fuel and high-level radioactive waste for disposal beginning not Iater than
Tanuary 1998. The DOE did not begin receiving spen( muclear fuel on the scheduled date and remains unable to
receive such fuel and waste, The earliest the DOE currently is expected to be able to receive such fuel and waste is
2017, The costs to be incurred by the DOE for disposal activities are being financed by fees charged to owners and
generators of the waste. In 2004, Exelon Generation reached a scttlement with the DOE concerning the DOE’s
failure # begin accepting spent nuclear fuel in 1998, As a result, Quad Cities Station has been billing the DOE, and
the DOE is obligated to reimburse the station for all station costs incurred due 1o the DOE’s delay. Exelon
Generation bas completed construction of an interim spent fuel storage installation (“ISFST™) at Quad Cities Station
te store spent nuclear fuel! in dry casks in order to free space in the storage pool. The first pad at the ISFSI is
expected to facilitate storage of casks to support operations at Quad Cities Station until at least 2017, The first
storage in a dry cask conmmenced in November 2005. In the 2017 to 2022 timeframe, Exelon Generation plans o
add a second pad to the ISFSI to accommodate storage of spent miclear fuel through the end of operations at Quad
Cities Starion.

MidAmerican Energy has established tusis for the investment of funds coliected for nuclear decommissioning
associated with Quad Cities Station. Flectric tariffs currently in effect include provisions for annualized collection of
estimated decommissioning costs at Quad Cities Station. In Iowa, estimated Quad Cities Station decommissioning
costs are reflected in base rates.

Nuclear Insurance -

MidAmerican Energy maintains financial protection against catastrophic loss associated with its interest in Quad
Cities Station through a combination of insurance purchased by Exelon Generation Company, LLC {the operator
and joint owner of Quad Cities Station), insurance purchased directly by MidAmerican Energy, and the mandatory
industry-wide loss funding mechanism afforded under the Price-Anderson Amendments Act of 1988, which was
amended and extended by the Energy Policy Act of 2005. The general types of coverage are: nuclear liability,
property coverage and nuclear worker liability.

Exelon Generation purchases private market nuclear liability insutance for Quad Cities Station in the maximum
available amount of $300 million, which includes coverage for MidAmerican Energy’s ownership. In accordance
with the Price-Anderson Amendments Act of 1988, as amended and extended by the Energy Policy Act of 2045,
excess liability protection above that amount is provided by a mandatory industry-wide Secondary Financial
Protection program under which the licensees of nuclear generating facilities could be assessed for liability incurred
due to a serious nuclear mcident at any commercial nuclear reactor in the United States. Currently, MidAmerican
Energy’s aggregate maximum potential share of an assessment for Quad Cities Station is approximately
$50.3 million per incident, payable in installments not to exceed $7.5 mitlion annually.
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The property insurance covers property damage, stabilizatdon and decontamination of the facility, disposal of the
decontaminated material and premature decommissioning arising out of a covered foss. For Quad Cities Station,
Exelan Generation purchases primary and excess property insurance protection for the combined interests in Quad
Cities Station, with coverage limits totaling $2.1 billion. MidAmerican Energy also directly purchases extra expense
coverage for its share of replacement power and other extra expenses in the event of a covered accidental cutage at
Quad Cities Station, The property and related coverages purchased directly by MidAmerican Energy and by Exelon
Generation, which includes the interests of MidAmerican Energy, are underwriiten by an industry mutual insurance
company and contain provisions for retrospective premium assessments should two or more full policy-limit losses
occur in one pelicy year. Currenfly, the maximum rterospective amounts that could be assessed against
MidAmerican Energy from industry muiual pohctes for its obligations associated with Quad Cmes Station total
$9.5 million,

The master nuclear worker liability coverage, which is parchased by Exelon Generation for Quad Cities Station, is

an industry-wide guaranteed-cost policy with an apggregate limit of $300 million for the nuclear mdustry as a wholg,

w]nch 15 in effect 1o cover tort claims of workers in nuclear-related industries.

Environmental Peguiations

MidAmerican Energy is subject to a number of federal, state and local environmental laws and environmentally
related laws and regulations affecting many aspects of its present and fiture operations. These requirements relate to
air emissions, water quality, waste management, hazardous chemical use, noisc abatement, land use aesthetics and
atomig radiation.

Environmental laws and regulations currently bave, and future modifications may have, the effect of (i) increasing
the lead time for the construction of new facilities, (ii) significantly increasing the total cost of new facilities, (iti)
requinng modification of MidAmerican Energy’s existing facilities, (iv) increasing the risk of delay on construction
projects, (v) increasing MidAmerican Energy’s cost of waste disposal, and (vi) reducing the reliability of service
provided by MidAmerican Energy and the amount of enerpy availabie from MidAmerican Energy’s facilities. Any
of these items could have a substantial impact on amounts required to be expended by MidAmerican Energy in the
firure,

Air Quality -

MidAmerican Energy has five jointly owned, and six wholly owned, coai-fired generatng units, which represented
56.4% of MidAmerican Energy’s accredited net generating capability for summer 2006 and the source of 76.8% of
the electric emergy gemerated in 2006, MidAmerican Energy’s genmerating facilities are subject 1o applicable
provisions of the Clean Air Act and related air quality standards promulgated by the U.5. Environmental Protection
Agency (“EPA™). The Clean Air Act provides the framewark for protecting and improving the nation’s air quality,
and controlling mobile and stationary sources of air emissions. MidAmerican Energy believes it is in material
complizmce with curment air quality requirements.

The EPA implements national ambient air quality standards for ozone and finc particulate matter, as well as for
other criteria pollutants that set the minimum level of air quality for the United States. Arcas that achieve the
standards, as determined by ambient air quality moritoring, are characterized as being in attainment while those that
fail to meet the standards are designated as being nonattainment areas. Generally, sources of emissions in a
nonattainment area are reguired to make emissions reductions. The EPA has determined that the entire state of Towa,
where MidAmerican Energy’s major emission sources are located, is in atiainment of the ambient air quality
standards. A new, more stringent standard for fine particulate matter became effective on December 18, 2006, but ts
under legal challenge in the United States Couri of Appeals for the District of Columbia Circuit. Air quality
modeling and preliminary air quality monitoring data indicate that portions of the states in which MidAmerican
Energy bas major emission sources may not meet the new standards. Until three years of data are collected and
attainment designations under the new fine particulate standard are made, the impact of these new standards on
MidAmerican Energy will not be known.
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iegal challenge and, until such time as the legal challenges are resolved and the revised rules are effective,
. MidAnkrican Energy will continug 10 manage projects at its generating plants in accordance with the rules in cifect
prior to 2002, except for pollution control projects, which are now subject to permitting under the PSD permitting
program. In 2005, the EPA proposed a rule that wouid change or clarify how emission increases are to be calculated
for purposes of determining the applicability of thc NSR permitting program for existing power plants. The EPA
alsp proposed additional changes to the NSE rules in September 2006 that are intended to simplify the permitting
process and allow facilities 1o undertake activities that improve the safety, reliability and efficiency of plants without
triggering NSR. The EPA plans to finalize the rules by May 2607,

As a result of increased attention to climate change in the United States, numeraus bills have been introduced in the
current session of the United States Congress that would reduce greenhouse gas emissions in the United States.
Congressional leadership has made climate change legislation a priority, and many congressional abservers expect
to see the passage of climate change legislation within the next several years. While debate continues at the nationaf
~ level over the direction of domestic climate policy, several states have developed state-specific or regional
legislative initiatives to reduce greenhouse gas emissions. The outcome of federal and state climate change
legislation cannot be determined at this time; however, adoption of stringent limits on greenhouse emissions could
significantly impact the Company’s fossil-fueled facilities, and, therefore, its financial results.

The EPA’s regulation of certain pollutants nnder the Clean Air Act, and its failute 1o regulate other pollutants, is
being challenged by various lawsuits brought by both individual state attorney generals and environmental groups.
To the extent that these actions may be successful in imposing additional and/or more stringent regulation of
emissions on fossil-fueled facilities in general and MidAmerican Energy’s facilities in particular, such actions will
likely impact Mid American Energy's fossil-fueied facilities and, therefore, its financial resulis.

Water Quality -

The Clean Water Act establishes the framework for maintaining and improving water quality in the United States
through a program that reguiates, among other things, discharges to and withdrawals from waterways. The Clean
‘Water Act requires that cooling water intake structures reflect the “best technology available for minimizing adverse
environmental impact” to aquatic organisms. In July 2004, the EPA established significant new national technology-
based petformance standards for existing electric generating facilities that take in more than 50 million gallons of
water a day. These riles are aimed at migimizing the adverse environmental impacts of cooling water intake
structures by reducing the number of aquatic organisms lost as a result of water withdrawals. In response to a legal
challenge to the rule, in January 2007, the Second Circuit Court of Appeals remanded almost all aspects of the rule
to the EPA, leaving companies with cooling water intake stractures uncertain regarding compliance with these
requirements. Compliance and the potential costs of compliance, therefore, cannot be ascertained unti! such time as
further action is taken by the EPA. In the event that MidAmerican Energy’s existing intake structures require
modification or altemnative technology is reguired by new rules, expenditures to comply with these reguirements
could be significant.

INTERCOAST CAPITAL

InterCoast Capital is a wholly owned nonregulated subsidiary of MHC primarily engaged in investment activities,
which it manapes through its nonreguiated investment subsidiaries. As of December 31, 2006, InterCoast Capital
had total assets of $7.2 milfion.

ImterCoast Capital had equity participations in equipment leases totaling $5.7 million and $7.4 million at
December 31, 2006 and 2003, respectively. Approximately $5.4 million of the December 31, 2006, investment in
equipment leases related to a seven percent undivided interest in an electric generating station leased to a utility
located in Arizoma. Refer to Note (5) of MidAmerican Funding’s Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in
Item 8 for additional discussion of equipment leases.

In addition, InterCoast Capital and its subgidiaries had direct investments in energy projects and indirect
investments, through veniure capital fumds, in a variety of nonregulated energy production technologies.
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MIDWEST CAPITAL

Midwest Capital is a wholly owned nonregulated subsidiary of MHC with total assets of $6.8 million as of
December 31, 2006, Midwest Capital’'s primary activity is the management of utility service area investments io
support economic development, Midwest Capital’s principal interest is a 1,920-acre planned residential and
commercial development in southeastern South Dakota. The major construction phase of the planned community is
complete, and the marketing phase to scll developed rtesidential and commercial lots is in progress. As of
December 31, 2006, 53.0% of the development available for sale had been sold.

Item 1A,  Risk Factors

MidAmerican Energy and MidAmerican Funding are subject to certain risks in their business operations, some of
which are described below. These risks should be carefully considered before making an investment decision
relating to MidAmerican Energy or MidAmerican Funding. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known
or that are currently deemed immaterial may alse impair the business operations of MidAmerican Energy or
MidAmerican Funding.

Middmerican Energy is subject o extensive regulations that affect its operations and costs. These regulations are
complex, dynamic and subject to change.

Mid American Encrgy is subject to numerous regulations and laws enforced by regulatory agencies. These regulatory
agencies include, among others, the FERC, the EPA, the NRC, the TUB. the ICC and other federal, state and local
agencies.

Regulations affect almost every aspect of MidAmerican Energy’s business and Limits its ability to independently
make and implement management decisions regarding, among other items, business combinations, constructing,
acquiring or disposing of operating assets, setting rates charged to customers, establishing capital structures and
issuing equity or debi securities, and engaging in transactions between MidAmerican Energy and its affiliates,
Regulgtions are subject 10 on-going policy initiatives, and MidAmerican Energy cannot predict the future course of
changes in regulatory laws, regulations and orders, or the wliimate effect that regulatory changes may have on
MidAmerican Energy. However, such changes could materially impact MidAmerican Energy’s financial resulis. For
example, such chenges could result in, but are not limited to, increased retail competition within its service
territories, new cnvironmental requirements, and the acquisition by a municipality or other quasi-governmental body
of its distribution facilities (by negotiation, legisiation or condemnation).

Federal and state reguliation changes arc emerging as the most challenging aspect of managing wtility operations.
New and expanded regulations imposed by policy makers, court systems, and industry restructuring have provided
the most change and challenge in the industry since the start of utility regulation.

The Energy Policy Act of 2005, or the Energy Policy Act, impacts many segments of the energy industry. Congress
granted the FERC additional authority in the Energy Policy Act which expanded its regulatory rele from a
regulatory body 1o an enforcement agency. To implement the law, the FERC has and will continue to issue new
regnlations and regulatory decisions addressing electric system reliability, electric transmission expansion and
pricing, regulation of utility helding companics, and enforcement suthority, including the ability to assess civil
penalties of up to $1.0 million per violation per day per infraction for non-cowpliance. The full impact of those
decisions remains uncertain, however, the FERC has recently exercised its enforcement authority by imposing
significant civil penalties for vielations of its rules and regulations. In addition, as a result of past events affecting
eleciric reliability, the Energy Policy Act requires foderal agengics, working together with non-governmental
organizations charged with electric reliability responsibilities, to adopt and implement measures designed to ensure
the reliability of electric transmission and distribution systems effective June 1, 2007. Under the new regime, a
transmission owner's reliability compliance issues counld result in financial penalties. Such measures could impase
more comprehensive or stringent requirements on MidAmerican Energy, which would result in increased
compliance costs and could adversely affect its financial results.
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Recovery of MidAmericon Energy’s costs is subject to regulaiory review end approval, and the inability to
recover costs may adversely affect MidAmerican Energy’s financial vesults.

State Rate Proceedings

 MidAmerican Energy establishes rates for its regulated retail service through state regulatory proceedings. These
proceedings typically involve multiple parties, including government bodics and officials and various consumers of
energy, who have differing concerns, bui who geperally have the common objective of limiting rate increases.
Decisions are subject to appeal, potentially leading to additional uncertainty associated with the approval
proceedings. Each state sets retail rates based in part upon the staie utility cominission’s acceptance of an allocated
share of total utility costs. When states adopt different methods to calculate inter-jurisdictional cost allocations,
some costs may not be incorporated into rates of any state. Rafemaking is also generally done on the basis of
- estimates of normalized costs, so if a given year’s realized costs are higher than normal, rates will not be sufficient

. 1o cover those costs. State commissions also decide the allowed rate of retum MidAmerican Energy will be given an
" opportunity to ¢am on MidAmerican Energy’s equity investment. They also decide the allowed icvels of expense
and investment that they deem is just and reasonable in providing service, The state commissions may disallow
recovery in rates for any costs that do not meet such standard.

In Iowa, MidAmerican Energy has agreed not to segk a general increase in electric base rates to become effective
prior to January 1, 2013, unless its Iowa jurisdictional electric return on equity for any year falls below 10%.
MidAmerican Energy expects to continue to make significant capital expenditures to maintain and improve the
reliability of its generation transmission and distribution facilities, to reduce emissions and 1o support new business
and customer growth. As a result, MidAmerican Energy’s financial results may be adversely affected if it is not able
to deliver electricity in a cost-efficient manner and is unable to offset inflation and the cost of infrastructure
investments with cost savings or additional sales.

In Towa and Illinois, MidAmerican Energy’s electric fuel costs are embedded in its base rates. Accordingly,
MidAmerican Energy is not permitted to pass through fuel price increases in its electric rates in those states without
regulatory approval. In Towa, MidAmerican Energy is prohibited from seeking reinstatemment of a fuel adjustment
clause for electric rates to become effective until January 1, 2013, unless its Towa jurisdictional electric return on
equity for any year falls below 10%. In Ilinois, MidAmerican Energy is prohibited by law from secking
reinstatement of a fuel adjustment clause for electric rates uniil November 2011. Any significant increase in fuel
costs or purchased power costs for clectricity generation could have a negative impact on MidAmerican Energy,
“despite efforts to minimize the impact through the use of hedging instruments. Any of these consequences could
adversely affect MidAmerican Energy's financial results.

While rate regulation is premised on providing MidAmerican Energy a fair opportumity to obtain a reasonable rate of
return on invested capital, state regulatory commissions do not guarantee that MidAmerican Energy will be abie 1o
realize a reasonable rate of return.

FERC Jurisdiciion

The FERC establishes cost-hased tariffs under which MidAmerican Energy provides transmission services to
wholesale markets and retail markets in states that allow retail competition, The FERC also has responsibility for
approving both cost- and market-based rates under which MidAmerican Energy sells electricity at wholesale. The
FERC may impose price limitations, bidding mles and other mechanisms to address some of the volatility of these
markets or may (pursuant to pending or future proceedings) revoke or restrict MidAmerican Energy’s ability to seil
electricity at market-based rates, which could adversely affect MidAmerican Energy’s financial results. The FERC
may also impose substantial civil penalties for any non-compliance with the Federal Power Act or the FERC's rules
or orders.
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MidAmerican Energy is actively pursuing, developing and constructing new facilifies, the completion and
expected cost of whieh is subject to significant risk, and it has significant funding needs related to its planned
capital expenditures.

MidAmerican Energy is comstructing a new coal-fired electric generating plant and wind-powered generating
facilities in Towa, and, in the future, may pursue the development, consiruction, ownership and operation of
additional new or expanded faciliies. The completion of any of these projects is subject to substantial risks,
including fluctuations in the price and availability of commodities, manufactured goods, equipment, labor and other
flems over a nnidti-year construction period. These risks may result in higher-than-expected cosis to complete an
asset and place it into service. Additionally, MidAmerican’s major new generation facility additions are subject to 2
saft price cap in Iowa. If actual capital costs exceed the cap, MidAmerican will not be able to recover those
additional costs without an IUB determination that such additional costs are prodently incurred. It is also possibie
that additional generation needs may be obtained through power purchase agreements, which could impose long-
-term purchase obligations on MidAmerican Energy and force it to rely on the operating performance of a third party.
The inagbility to successfully and timely complete a project, avoid unexpected costs or to recover any such cosis
through ratemaking decisions may materially affect MidAmierican Energy’s financial resuits.

Furthermore, MidAmerican Energy depends upon both internal and external sources of liguidity to provide working
capital and 10 fund capital requirements. If MidAmerican Energy is unable to obtain funding from external sources,
it may need to postpone or cancel planned capital expenditures, Failure to construct these projects could Iimit
opportunities for revenue growth and increase operating costs.

MidAmerican Energy is subject to numerous environmental, health, safety, and other laws, regulations and
reguirements that may udversely affect its financial resaits.

Operational Standards

MidAmerican Energy is subject to nmmerous environmental, health, safety, and other laws, regulations and
reguirements affecting many aspects of MidAmerican Energy’s present and future operations, incinding, among
others;

» the EPA’s CAIR, which esiablished cap and irade programns to reduce SO, and NOx emissions starting
in 2009 1o address alieged contributions to downwind non-attainment with the revised National
Ambient Air Quality Standards;

o the EPA’s CAMR, which establishes a cap and trade program to reduce mercury emissions from coal-
fired power plants starting in 2010; and

s other laws or regulaiions that establish standards for greenhouse pgas emissions, water guality,
wastewater discharges, solid waste and hazardous waste.

These and related laws, regulations and orders generally require MidAmerican Energy to obtain and comply with a
wide variety of environmental ficenses, perinils, inspections and other approvals.

Compliance with envirommental, health, safety, and other laws, regulations and requiremenis can necessitate
significant capital and operating expendiiures, including expenditures for new equipment, inspection, clean-up costs,
damages arising out of contaminated properties, and fines, penaities and injunctive measures affecting operating
assets for failure to comply with environmental regulations. Compliance activities pursuant to regulations couid be
prohibitively expensive. As a resuli, some facilities may be required to shut down or alter their operations. Further,
MidAmerican Foergy may not be able to obtain or maintain all required environmental regulatory approvals for its
operating asseis or development projects. Delays in obtaining any required environmental or regulatory permits,
failure 10 comply with the terms and conditions of the permits or increased regulatory or environmental
requirements may increase its costs or prevent or delay MidAmencan Energy from operating its facilities or
developing new facilities. If MidAmerican Energy fails to comply with all applicable environmental requirements, it
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may be subject to penalties and fines or other sanctions. The costs of complying with current or new environmental,
health, safety, and other laws, regulations and requirements counid adversely affect MidAmerican Encrgy’s financial
results. Propesals for veluntary initiatives and mandatory controls are being discussed in the United States and
worldwide to reduce so-called *‘greenbouse pases’ such as carbon dioxide, a by-product of burning fossil fuels;
methane, the primary component of natural gas; and methane leaks from pipelines. These actions could result in
increased costs for MidAmerican Energy to (i) operate and maintain its facilities, (ii) install new emission controls
on its facilities and (iii) administer and manage any greenhouse gas emissions program. These actions could also
impact the consumption of natural pas, thereby affecting MidAmerican Energy’s operations.

Further, the regulatory rate structure or long-term customer contracts may not necessarily allow MidAmerican
Energy fo recover all costs incurred to comply with new environmentai requirements. Akhough MidAmerican
Energy belicves that, in most cases, it is legally entitled to recover these kinds of costs, the inability to fully recover
such costs in a timely manrer could adversely affect its financial results.

Site Clean-up and Contamination

Environmental, health, safety, and other laws, regulations and requirements also impose obligations to remediate
contaminated properties or to pay for the cost of such remediation, often by parties that did not actually cause the
contamination. MidAmerican Energy is generally responsible for on-site liabilities, and in some cases off-siie
liabilitias, associated with the environmental condition of MidAmerican Energy’s assets, including power generation
facilities, and electric transmission and electric and natural gas distribution assets that it has acquired or developed,
regardless of when the liabililies arose and whether they are Imown or mnknown. In connection with acquisitions,
MidAmerican Energy may obtain or require indemmification against some environmental Habilities. If MidAmerican
Enerpy incurs a material liability, or the other party to a transaction fails to meet its indemnification obligations, it
could suffer material losses. MidAmerican Energy has ¢stablished liabilities to recognize its estimated obligations
for known remediation ligbilities, but such estimnates may change materially over time. In addition, fiture cvents,
such as changes in existing laws or policies or their enforcement, or the discovery of currently unknown
contamination, may pive rise to additional remediation liabilities which may be material. MidAmerican Energy is
also required to fund iis portion of the costs for decommissioning the Quad Cities Siation when it is retired from
service, which may include site remediation or decontamination.

Infiation, changes in commadity prices and fuel transportation costs may adversely affect MidAmerican Energy’s
Jinancial results,

Inflation affects MidAmnerican Energy through increased operating costs and increased capital costs for plant and
equipment. As a result of existing rate agreements and competitive price pressures, MidAmerican Energy may not
be able to pass the cosis of inflation on to its electric customers. If MidAmerican Energy is unable to manape cost
increases or pass them on to its customers, MidAmerican Energy’s financial results could be adversely affected.

MidAmerican Energy is also heavily exposed to changes in prices and availability of coal and natural gas and the
transpartation of coal and natural gas because a substantial majority of iis generation capacity utilizes these fossil
fuels. MidAmerican Energy currently has contracts of varying durations for the supply and transporuation of coal for
its existing generation capacity. When these contracls expire or if they are not honored, MidAmerican Energy may
not be able to purchase or fransport coal on terms as favorable as the current contracts. MidAmerican Energy has
similar exposures regarding the market price of natural gas. Changes in the cost of coal ar natural gas supply or
transportation and changes in the relationship between such costs and the market price of power will affect its
financial results. Since the saics price MidAmerican Energy receives for power may not change at the same rate as
MidAmerican Energy’s coal or natural gas supply or transportation costs, it may be unable to pass on the changes in
costs 1o its customers. In addition, the overall prices MidAmerican Energy charges its retail customers in Iowa are
frozen, as described above, and MidAmerican Energy does not have fuel recovery mechanisms in Jowa and Illinois.
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A significant decrease in demand for natural gas in the markets served by MidAmerican Energy’s gas
distribution system may adversely affect MidAmerican Energy’s financial results. ‘

A sustgined decrease in demand for natural gas in the markets served by MidAmerican Energy’s gas distribution
system would significantly reduce its operating revenne and adversely affect its financial results. Factors that could
lead to a decrease in market demand include, among others:

e arecession or other adverse economic condition that results in a lower ievel of economic activity or
- reduced spending by consumers on natural gas;

=  an increase in the market price of natural gas or a decrease in the price of other competing forms of
energy, including electricity, coal and fuel oil;

o efiorts by customers to reduce their consumption of natural gas through varioys conservation measures
and programs;

+ higher fuel taxes or ather governmental or regulatory actions that increase, directly or indirectly, the
cost of natural gas or that limit the use of natural gas; and

e a shift to more fuel-efficient or alternative fuel machinery or an improvement in fuel economy,
whether as a result of technological advances by mamufacturers, legislation proposing to mandate
higher fuel economy, price diffetentials, mcentives or otherwise.

Middmerican Erergy’s financial resulfs muay be adversely affected if it is unable to obiain adequate, reliable and
-affordable access to transmission service,

MidAmerican Energy depends on transmission facilities owned and operated by utilities 1o transport eleciricity and
natural gas to both wholesale and retail markets, as well as natural gas purchased to supply some of MidAmerican
Energy’s electric generation facilities. If adequate transmission is unavailable, MidAmerican Energy may be unable
purchase or sell and deliver products. Such unavailability could also hinder MidAmerican Energy from providing
adequate or economical electricity or natural gas to its wholesale and retail electric and gas customers and could
adversely affect MidAmerican Energy’s financial results.

The different regional power markets have varying and dynamic regulatory structures, which couid affect
MidAmerican Energy’s growth and performance. In addition, the independent sysiem operators who overse the
transmission systems in regional power markets have inposed in the past, and may impose in the future, price
fimitations and other mechanisms to counier volatility in the power markets. These types of price limitations and
other mechanisms may adversely affect MidAmerican Energy’s financial results.

MidAmerican Erergy is subject to market risk, counterparty performance risk and other risks associated with
wholesale energy markets.

In general, wholesale market risk is the risk of adverse fiuctuations in the market price of wholesale electricity and
fuel, including natural gas and coal, which is compounded by volumetric changes affecting the availability of or
demand for electricity and fuel. MidAmerican Energy purchases electricity and fuel in the open market or pursuant
to short-term or variable-priced contracts as part of its normal operating business. If market prices rise, especiaily in
2 time when larger than expected volumes must be purchased at market or short-term prices, MidAmerican Enargy
may incur significantly greater expense than anticipated. Likewise, if eleciricity market prices decline in a peried
when MidAmerican Energy is a net seller of electricity in the wholesale market, MidAmerican Energy will eam less
revenue.

MidAmerican Energy’s fotal accredited net gemerating capability exceeds its historical peak load. As a result,
MidAmerican Energy has less exposure 1o wholesale clectricity market price fluctuations. The actual amouni of
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generation capacity available at any time, however, may be less than the accredited capacity due to regulaiory
restrictions, transmission constraints, fuel restrictions and generating units being temporarily out of service for
inspection, maintenance, refueling, modifications or other reasons. In such circwmstances, MidAmerican Energy
may need fo purchase energy in the wholesale markets and MidAmerican Energy may not recover in rates all of the
additional costs that may be associated with such purchases. Most of MidAmerican Energy’s electric wholesale
saics and purchases take place under market-based pricing ailowed by the FERC and are therefore subject to market
volatility, including price fluctuations.

MidAmerican Energy is also exposed to risks related to performance of contraciual obligations by wholesale -

suppliers and customers. MidAmerican Energy relies on suppliers to deliver commodities, including natural gas,
coal and electricity, in accordance with short-term and long-ierm contracts. Failure or delay by suppliers to provide
these commoditics pursuant to existing contracts could disrapt the delivery of clectricity and require Mid American
Energy to incur additional expenses to meet customer needs. In addition, when these contraciual agreememis
terminate, MidAmerican Energy may be unable to purchase the commodities on terms equivalent to the terms of
* current confractual agreements. MidAmerican Energy also relies on wholesale customers to take delivery of the
energy they have committed to purchase and to pay for the energy on a timely basis. Failure of wholesale customers
1o take delivery may require MidAmericap Energy to find other customers to take the energy at lower prices than the
original customers committed to pay. At certain times of the year, prices paid by MidAmerican Erergy for energy
needed to satisfy its customers” energy needs may exceed the amounts received through retail rates from these
customers. If the strategy used to hedge these risk exposures is ineffective, significant losses could result.

MidAmerican Energy’s operating results may fluctuate on a seasonal and quarterly basis.

The sale of electricity and natural gas are generally seasonal businesses. In the markets in which MidAmerican
Energy operates, demand for electricity peaks during the hot summer months when cooling needs are higher. Market
prices for electric supply also generally peak at that time. In addition, demand for gas and other fuels generaily
peaks during the winter when heating needs are hipher. Further, extreme weather conditions such as heat waves or
winter storms could caunse these seasonal fluctuations to be more pronounced.

As a result, MidAmerican Energy’s overall financial results may fluctuate substantially on a seasonal and quarterly
basis. MidAmerican Energy has historically sold less power, and consequently earned less income, when weather
conditions are mild. Umusually mild weather in the funwe may adversely affect MidAmerican Energy’s financial
results through lower revenues or increased energy costs. Conversely, unusually extreme weather conditions could
increase MidAmerican Energy’s costs to provide power and adversely affect its financial results. The exient of
fluctuation in financial results may change depending on a nwber of factors related to MidAmerican Energy’s
regulatory environment and confractual agreements, inchuding MidAmerican Energy’s ability to recover power
costs, the existence of revenue sharing provisions and terms of the power sale coniracts.

MidAmerican Energy is subject (o operating uncertainties which may adversely affect its financial resuls.

The operation of a complex eleciric and gas utility (including generation, transmission and distribution) systems
involves many operating uncertginties and events beyond MidAmerican Energy’s control. These potential events
include the breakdown or failure of power generation equipment, compressors, pipelines, transmission and
distribution lines or other equipment or processes, unscheduled plant outages, work stoppages, a shortage of
qualified labot, transmission and distribution system constraints or outages., fiuel shortages or interruption,
unavailability of critical equipment, materials and supplies, performance below expectad levels of output, capacity
or efficiency, operator error, and catastrophic events such as severe storms, fires, earthquakes or explosions. A
casuaity occurrence might result in injury or loss of life, extensive property damage or environmental damage. Any
of these risks or other operational risks could significantly reduce or eliminate MidAmerican Energy’s revenues or
significantly increase its expenses. Further, MidAmerican Energy self-insures many risks and current and future
insurance coverage may not be sufficient to replace lost revenue or cover repair and replacement costs. Any
reduction of revenues for such reason, or any ather reduction of MidAmerican Energy’s revenues or increase in its
expenses resulting from operational risks could adversely affect MidAmerican Energy’s financial results.
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Potential terrorist activities or military or other actions could adversely affect us.

The continued threat of terrorism since September 11, 2001, and the impact of military and -other actions by the
United States and its allies may lead w0 increased political, economic and financial market instability and subject
MidAmerican Energy’s gas or electric operations to increased risk of acts of terrorism. The United States
government has issued warnings that energy assets, specifically nuclear generation and other electtic utility
-infrastucture, are potential tarpets of terrorist organizations. Political, economic or financial market instability or
damage io MidAmerican Energy’s operaling assets or the assets of its customers or suppliers may result in business
interruptions, lost revenyes, higher commodity prices, disruption in fuel supplies, lower energy consumption and
unstable markets, particularly with respect to natural gas and electric energy, increased security, repair or other costs
that may materially adversely affect MidAmerican Energy in ways that cannot be predicted at this time. Any of
these risks could materially affect MidAmerican Energy’s financial results, Furthermore, instability in the financial
markets as a result of terrorism or war couid also materially adversely affect the ability to raise capital.

The insurance indusiry changed in response to these cvents. As a result, insurance covering risks MidAmerican
Energy typically insures against may decrease in scope and availability, and it may elect to self-insure against many
such risks. In addition, the available insurance may have higher deductibles, higher premiums and more restniciive
policy terms.

MidAmerican Energy Is subject o the unique risks associaled with nuvlear generation.

The ownership and operation of nuclear power plants, such as MidAmerican Energy’s 25% ownership interest in the
Quad Cities Station involves certain risks. These risks include, among other items, mechanical or structural
problems, inadequacy or lapses in maintenance protocols, the impairment of reactor operation and safety systems
due to human ervor, the costs of storage, handling and disposal of nuclear materials, limitations on the amounts and
tvpes of insurance coverage commercially available, and uncertaintics with respect to the technological and financial
aspects of decommissioning nuclear facilities at the end of their useful lives. The prolonged unavailability of the
Quad Cities Station couid materially affect MidAmerican Energy’s financial results, particularly when the cost to
produce power at the plant is significantly less than market wholesale power prices. The following are amoeng the
more significant of these risks:

o  Opecrational Risk — Operations at any nuclear power plant could degrade to the point where the plant
would have to be shut down. If such degradations were to occur, the process of identifying and
comrecting the causes of the operational downgrade to return the plant to operation could require
significant lime and expense, resulting in both lost revenue and increased fuel and purchased power
expense to meer supply commitments. Rather than incurring substantial costs to restart the plant, the
plant could be shut down. Furthermore, a shui-down or faihure at any other nuclear plant could cause
raguiaiors to require a shut-down or reduced availability at the Quad Cities Station.

» Repulatory Risk — The NRC may modify, suspend or revoke licenses and impose civil penalties for
failure to comply with the Atomic Energy Act, applicable regulations or the terms of the licenses of
nuclear facilities. Unless extended, the NRC operating licenses for the Quad Cities Station will expire
in 2032, Changes in regulafions by the NR.C could require a substantial increase in capital expenditures
or result in increased operating or decommissioning costs.

s  Nuclear Accident Risk — Accidents and other unforeseen problems have occurred at nuclear facilities
other than the Quad Cities Station, both in the United States and elsewhere, The consequences of an
accident can be severe and include loss of life and property damage. Any resulting liability from a
nuclear accident could exceed Mid American Energy’s resources, including insurance coverage.

MidAmerican Energy is involved in numerous legal proceedings, the owtcomes of which are uncertain and could
negatively affect its financial resalls.

MidAmerican Energy is party to numerous legal proceedings. Litigation is subject to many uncertzinties, and
MidAmerican Emergy cannot predict the outcome of individual maiters. It is reasonably possible that the final
resolution of some of the matters in which MidAmerican Energy s involved could result in additional payments in
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excess of established reserves over an extended period of time and in amounts that could bave a material adverse
effect on our financial results. Similarly, it is also reasonably possible that the terms of reselution coutd require that
MidAmerican Energy change business practices and procedures, which could also have a material adverse effect on
its financial results.

Potential changes in acrounting standards might cause MidAmerican Energy o revise ifs financial results and
disclosure in the future, which may change the way analysts measure ifs business or financial performance.

Accouniing irregularities discovered in the past few years in various indusiries have caused regulators and
legislators to take a renewed look at accounting practices, financial disclosures, companies’ relationships with their
independent suditors and retirement plan practices. Because it is stil unclear what laws or regulations will
ultimately develop, we cannot predict the ultimate impact of any fiture changes in accounting regulations or
practices in general with respect to public companies or the energy industry or in our operations specifically. In
addition, the Financial Accounting Standards Board, or FASB, the FERC or the SEC could enact new or revised

accounting standards or FERC orders that might impact how we are required to record revenues, expenses assets

and liabilities.

MidAmerican Erergy's indivect parent, MidAmerican Energy Holdings, could exercise comirol over
MidAmerican Energy in ¢ manner that wonld benefic MidAmerican Energy Holdings to the detriment of
MidAmerican Energy’s creditors and preferred stockholders.

MidAmerican Energy Holdings is MidAmerican Energy’s indirect parent and the direct parent of MidAmerican
Funding and, accordingly, has control over all decisions requiring shareholder approval, including the election of
directors. In circumstances involving a conflict of interest between MidAmerican Energy Holdings and
MidAmerican Energy’s or MidAmerican Funding’s creditors and prefetred stockholders, MidAmerican Energy
Holdings could exercise its control in a manner that would benefit MidAmerican Enerpgy Holdings to the detrimen
of gur creditors and preferred stockholders,

Item 1B, Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
Item 2. Properties

MidAmerican Energy’s reguiated utility properties consist of physical asscts necessary and appropriate to render
gleciric and gas service in its service territorigs. It is the opinion of management that the principal depreciable
properties owned by MidAmerican Energy are in good operating condition and well maintained. MidAmerican
Energy’s most individually significanl properties are its electric generation facilities. For information regarding
these facilities, please refer to the “Regulated Electric Operations” discussion in Item 1, Additional eleciric property
consists primarily of transmission and distribution facilities.

The electric transmission system of MidAmerican Energy at December 31, 2006, included 969 miles of 345-kilovolt
(“kV™) lines and 1,129 miles of 161-kV lines. MidAmerican Energy’s electric distribution system included 384
substations at December 31, 2006.

Gas property consists primarilty of natural gas mains and services pipelines, meters and related distribution
equipiment, including feeder lines to commmunities served from natural gas pipelines owned by others, The gas
distribution facilities of MidAmerican Energy at December 31, 2006, included approximately 22,200 miles of gas
mains and service pipelines. In addition, gas property inciudes three liquefied natural gas plants and two propane-air
plants. Refer to the “Regulated Natural Gas Opcrations” discussion in Item i for information regarding these
facilities.
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Uhility plant, including construction work in progress and net of accumulated depreciation, by operating segment is
as follows as of December 31 (in thousands):

2006 2005
Electric ‘
‘Generation 3 2,551,230 - % 2,089,349
Transmission 370,066 333,653
Distribution 1,418,192 1,356,413
Gas distribution 663 583 646,311
$5.003,071 £.4.425.746

Refer to Note (18) of MidAmerican Energy’s Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 for a discussion
of operafing segments. '

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

On December 28, 2004, an apparent gas explosion and fire resalied in three fatalities, one serious injury and
property damage at a commercial building in Ramsey, Minnesota. According to the Minnesota Office of Pipeline
Safety, an improper instaflation of a pipeline connection may have been a cquse of the explosion and fire. A
predecessor company to MidAmerican Energy provided gas service in Ramsey, Minnesota, at the time of the
original instaliation in 1980. In 1993, a predecessor of CenterPoint Energy, Inc, (“CenterPoint™) acquired ail of the
Minnesota gas properties owned by the MidAmerican Energy predecessor company.

All of the wrongful death, personal injury and property damage claims arising from this incident have been settled
by CenterPoint. MidAmerican Energy’s exposute, if any, to these settlements is covered under its liability insurance
1o which a $2.0 million retention applies.

Two lawsuits naming MidAmerican Energy as a third party defendant have been filed by CenterPoint Energy
Resources Corp. in the U.S. District Court, District of Minnesota, related to this incident. The complaints seck
reimbursement of all sums associated with CenterPoint’s replacement of all service lings in the MidAmerican
Energy predecessor company’s properties located in Minnesota at a cost of approximately $39 million according to
publicly available reports. A Report and Recommendation on MidAmerican Energy’s motion for summary
judgment in both of these actions was issued on January 16, 2007, recommending that CenterPoint’s third party
claims based wpon negligent instaliation be bamred against MidAmerican Energy and its third party claims based
upon pegligent operation and maintenance of the gas pipeline be allowed 1o continue. The parties imely objected o
the Report and Recommendation and filed an appeal. MidAmwerican Energy intends o vigorously defend its position
in these claims and believes their uitimate outcome will not have a material impact on its financial results.

Other than the litigation described above, MidAmerican Funding and its subsidiaries currently have no material
legal proceedings. Information on MidAmerican Energy’s environmental matters is included in Item I - Business.

Tiem 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None,
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PART I

Ttem 5. Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases
of Equity Securities

All common stock of MidAmerican Energy is held by its parent company, MHC, which is a direct, wholly owned
subsidiary of MidAmerican Funding. MidAmerican Funding is an Iowa limited liability company whose
membership interest is held solely by MidAmarican Energy Holdings.

Tem 6. Selected Financial Data

The following tables set forth selected financial data of MidAmerican Energy and MidAmerican Funding, which
should be read in confunction with their respective consolidated financial statements and the related notes to those
statements included in Item 8 and with Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results
of Operations in item 7, ‘

MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
(In thousands)
Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Statement of Operations
Data: )
Revenues $3.447 931 $3,160337 52,696,353 $2,595,812 $2,236,159
Operating income 421,175 381,124 356,396 370,820 354,997
Net income 266,676 221297 210,455 188,597 175,821
Earnings on common stock 265,429 220050 209210 187,181 172,888
As of December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

Balance Sheet Data:
Total assets $6,509,593 $5,864,137 $5.111,951 $4,404 434 34,209,642
Long-term debt (a) 1,821,009 1,631,760 1,422,527 1,128,647 1,053,418
Short-term bommowings - - - 43,000 55,000
Prefarred securities not '

subject to mandatory

redemption 3{,329 30,329 340,329 31,759 31,759
Common shareholder’s

equity 1,950,779 1,744,882 1,527,468 1,318,519 1,319,139

{a) Includes amounts due within one year.
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MIDAMERICAN FUNDING, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
(In thousands)
Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002
Statement of Operations
Data:
Revenues $3,452,794 $3.166,084 $£2.701,700 $2,600,239 $2.240,879
Operating income 420 618 381,083 355,947 367,868 349,988
Net income (8) 288,241 195,069 179,257 157,176 136,716
As of December 31,
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

Balance Sheet Data:
Total assets $7,794,491 $7.157.416 $6,427,244 $5,737,614 $5,551,747
Long-term debt (b) 2,521,009 2,331,760 2,122,527 1,828,647 1,753,418
Short-term borrowings - - - 48,0600 55,000
Preferred securities not

subject to mandatory

redeniption 30,329 30,329 30,329 31,759 31,759
Member's eguity 2,513 402 2.234 837 2,042 403 1,863,769 1,879,191

{a) In 2002, MidAmerican Funding recorded after-tax losses of $14.3 million for write-downs of impaired
assets and investments, including an $8.2 million afier-tax write-down of airplane leases. In 2005,
MidAmerican Funding recorded after-tax losses totaling $7.0 million for write-downs of impaired airplane
leases and $8.4 million of after-tax gains on the sales of assets and investments. Net income for 2006
reflects a $19.3 million reduction of income taxes due to the resolution of a potential tax matter and afiet-
tax gains totaling $29.6 million on the sales and restructurings of MidAmerican Funding sonsorategic

passive investments.

(b}

Includes amounts due within one year.
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Item 7, Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Coadition and Results of Operations
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
General

MidAmerican Funding, L1.C (“MidAmerican Funding™), is an Iowa limited liability company that was formed in
March 1999, The sole member of MidAmerican Funding is MidAmerican Energy Holdings Company

(“MidAmerican Energy Holdings™). MidAmerican Funding owns all of the outstanding coramon stock of MHC Ing,

(“MHC™), which owns all of the common stock of MidAmerican Energy Company (“MidAmerican Energy™),
InterCoast Capital Company, Midwest Capital Group, Inc, MidAmerican Services Company and MEC
Constructon Services Co. MHC, MidAmerican Funding and MidAmerican Energy Holdings are public utility
holding companies headquartered in Des Moines, Iowa.

Management's Discussion and Analysis (“MD&.A™) addresses the financial statements of MidAmerican Energy and
MidAmerican Funding as presented in this joint filing. Information related to MidAmerican Energy, whether or not
segregated, also relates to MidAmerican Funding. Information related to other subsidiaries of MidAmerican Funding
pertains only to the discussion of the financial condition and results of operations of MidAmerican Funding. Where
necessary, discussions have been segregated and labeled to aliow the reader to identify information applicable onty
1o MidAmerican Funding,

Execuiive Summary

The following significant events and changes, as discussed in more detail bergin, highlight some of the factors that
had sn effect on MidAmerican Epergy’s and MidAmerican Funding’s operating rtesulls, liquidity and capital
Tesources:

» MidAmerican Energy’s regulated electric gross margin increased $70.9 million for 2006 compared to
2005 due to a $31.4 million increase in gross margin for electric wholesale sales, driven primarily by a
33.3% increase in sales volumes, and a $21.3 million increase in electric retail gross margin as a result
of customer growth, in particular, the addition of a large industrial customer in the fourth quarter of
2005,

s MidAmerican Energy is cumently constructing a 79C-megawatt (“MW™) (expected accreditation)
super-critical-temperature, coal-fired generation project and expects to invest approximately
$870 million in the project throngh 2007, including transmission facilities. Through December 31,
2006, $785.9 million had been invested, including $121.3 million for MidAmerican Energy’s share of
deferred payments allowed by contract.

e On April 18, 2006, MidAmerican Enerpy received lowa Utilities Board (“TUUB™) approval of the
ratemaking principles for up to 545 MW (nameplate ratings) of additional wind-powered generation
capacity in lowa. In the fourth quarter of 2006, MidAmerican Energy placed 99 MW (nameplate
ratings) of wind-powered generation into service. MidAmerican Energy has entered into agreements
with wind project developers and contractors to add 123 MW (nameplate ratings) of wind-powered
generation by the end of 2007,

¢ On Ociober 6, 2006, MidAmerican Energy issued $350.0 million of 5.8% mediwm-tenm notes due
October 15, 2036.

«  During 2006, MidAmcrican Funding recognized pre-iax gains of $48.1 million, or $29.6 million after-
tax, on the sales and restruchrings of nonstrategic, passive investments.

+ In the fourth quarter of 2006, MidAmerican Funding reduced its income tax expense by $19.3 million
due to the resolution of a potential tax matter.

32

o/



ExHIBIT C-2

“SEC Filings”

Following is a discussion of various factors that affected eamings for the periods presented on the Consolidated
Statement of Operations. Explanations include management’s best estimate of the impact of weather, customer
growth and other factors. ‘

Results of Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2006 and 2005

Earnings Dverview

MidAmerican Energy -

MidAmerican Energy’s earnings on common stock improved $45.4 million to $265.4 million for 2006 compared to
$220.0 million for 2005. Operating income mcreased $40.1 million due primarily to improved regplated electric
margias. Aiso, an increase in income taxes due (o greater pre-tax income in 2606 was partially offset by the
resolution of & potential tax matter and by additional renewable electricity production tax credits as a result of
greater wind-powered generation. -

MidAmerican Funding -

MidAmerican Funding’s net income for 2006 increased $93.1 million to $288.2 million for 2006 compared to
$195.1 million for 20{5. In addition to the items discussed for MidAmerican Energy, MidAmerican Funding’s net
income for 2006 reflects a $19.3 million reduction in income fax expense due to the resclution of a potential 1ax
matier and $29.6 million of after-tax income from gains on the sales and restructurings of a number of nonstrategic,
passive investments.

Regulated Eleciric Gross Margi
2006 2005
Gross margin (in millions):
Operating revenues $ 17795 £ 15132
Less cost of fuel, energy and capacity 672.0 476.6
Electric gross margin $ 11075 $ 10366
Sales (GWh):
Retail 19,831 19,044
Wholesale 11,168 83278
Total = 30299 X VA

Electric gross margin for 2006 increased $70.9 million compared © 2005 due to a $31.4 million increase in gross
margin on wholesale sales due primarily to an increase in related sales volumes. Gross margin on retail sales
increased $21.3 million due principally to customer growth. Additionally, transmission revenues increased
$14.0 million due to an increase in the use of MidAmerican Energy’s transmission services.

Sales of energy to other utilities, municipalities and marketers inside and outside of MidAmerican Energy’s delivery
system are classified as wholesale. The increased availability of MidAmerican Energy-owned basc load gencration,
in part due to the effect of newly added wind-powered generation to supply retail customers, and greater market
opporhmities coniributed to a 33.3% increase in wholesaie sales volumes during 2006, resuling in a $29.4 million
increase in wholesale gross margin. An increase in the average electric wholesale marging per megawatt hour sold
due to higher market prices improved electric wholesale gross margin by $2.0 million compared fo 2005,

Gross margin on electric tetail sales increased $21.3 million, with electric retail sales volumes increasing 4.1%

compared fo 2005, An increase in the average mumber of retail customers, in particular the addition of a large steel
manufacturer in the fourth quarter of 2005, improved electric retail gross margin by $30.4 million compared to
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2005. Electricity usage factors not dependent on weather, such as changes in individoal customer ysage patterns,
increased electric margin by $11.0 million. The effect of temperature conditions during 2006 compared to 2005
- resulted in an $18.3 million decrease in electric retail gross margin. An increase in fuel costs related to Iowa retail
electric sales decreased electric retail gross margin by $8.8 million compared to 2005 due in part to an increase in
the cost of energy purchased to serve the retail load. Recoveries of energy efficiency program costs increased
electric retail gross margin by $7.1 million compared to 2005. Changes in revenues from the recovery of energy
elficiency program costs are substantially matched with corresponding changes in other operating expenses.

Re as Gross Margin
2006 2005
Gross margin (in millions):
Operating revenues $1,111.6 $1,3227
Less cost of gas soid 888.5 1.098.4
Gas gross margin § 2231 $ 2243
Sales (000’s Dths):
Retail 70,587 76,942
Wholesale 49,209 51,658
Totai S419.7% 128,597

Gas gross margin for 2006 decreased $1.2 million compared io 20035,

Regulaied gas revenues include purchased gas adjustment clauses through which MidAmerican Energy is allowed to
recover the cost of gas sold from its retail gas utility customers. Consequently, fluctuations in the cost of gas sold do
not affect gross margin or net income because revenues reflect comparable fluctuations through the purchased gas
adjustment clauses. MidAmerican Energy’s average per-unit cost of gas decreased 13.2% compared to 2005
resulting in a $134.7 million decrease in cost of gas sold. In addition, a 6.8% decrease in sales volumes compared to
2005 reduced cost of gas sold by §75.2 miilion.

The following table sumnmarizes the variance in gas operating revenues based on the change in cost recoveries and
margin components (in millions).

2006 vs. 2005
Change in recoveries of cost of gas sold:
Average cost per unit $ (134.7)
Sales volumes {(75.2)
Total change in cost of gas sold (205.9)
Change in margin:
Weather (5.8)
Other usage factors 4.1
Customer growth 23
Energy efficicncy cost recovery 6.5
Other {0.D
Total revenue variance p 211.1)

The decrease in gas margin due to weather was the result of warmer temperature conditions during the heating
seasons of 2006 compared o 2005, Other gas usage factors, such as changes in individual customer usage patterns,
decreased gas margin, MidAmerican Energy’s average number of gas refail customers increased 1.2% compared {o
2005. Changes in revenues from the recovery of energy efficiency program costs are substantially matched with
corresponding changes in other operating expenses. Total natural gas retail sales vohunes decreased 8.3%.
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lated Operating Expenses

Dther operating expenses of $402.0 million increased $21.1 million for 2006 compared to 2005 duc primarily 1o a
$13.6 million increase in epergy efficiency program costs. Changes in energy efficiency program costs are
substantialty matched with changes in related electric and gas revenues, Additionalty, steam generating plant
operating costs increased $4.7 million, while electric and gas distribution costs increased $3.7 million.

Maintenance expenses for 2006 increased $5.5 million compared to 2005, Maintenance costs for the Quad Cities
Station increased $1.8 million, while maintenance costs related 1o wind-powered generating facilities increased
$1.7 million. Maintenance costs for the electric and gas distribution systems increased a total of $2.0 million
compared to 2005.

Depreciation and amortization expense for 2006 increased $5.9 million compared (o 2005 due to an increase in
ntility plant depreciation principally as a resuit of wind-powered generating facilities placed in service in the third
quarter of 2005 and the last half of 2006, offset partially by a decrease in amortization of software.

Property and other taxes increased $2.1 million due to an increase in property taxes as a result of higher levels of
electricity generated and delivered during the measurement period.

Nonregulated Gross Margin

2006 2005
{In mitlions)
MidAmerican Energy —
Nonregulated operating revenues ¥ 5568 § 3244
Less nonreguiared cost of sales 53221 2909
Nonrcgulaicd gross margin 3 347 § 335
MidAmerican Funding Consolidated —
Noenregulated operating revenues § 5617 § 3301
Less nonrggulated cost of sales 3234 2925
Nonregulated gross margin 3383 3 376

MidAmerican Energy’s nomregulated gross margin for 2006 increased $1.2 million compared to 2005. The
following table presents the margins related to various nonregulated activities (in millions);

2006 2005

Nonregulated electric $ 134 $ 129
Nonregulated gas 169 7.5
Income sharing arrangements under regulated gas tariffs 59 5.6
Incentive gas supply procurement program award 11 34
Other 34 4.1
§ 347 §_333

Naonregulated revenues and cost of sales for 2006 increased duc primarily 1o a change in the management strategy
related to certain end-use gas contracts that resulted in recording prospectively the related revenues and cost of sates
on a gross, rather than net, basis in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 02-3, “Recognition and
Reporting of Gains and Losses on Energy Trading Contracts Under [ssues No. 98-10 and 00-17.” For 2005, cost of
sales totaling $289.2 million was netted in nonregulated operating revenues for such end-use gas contracts. The
increase in nonregulated gross margin compared to 2005 was principally due to higher realized gas margins,
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partially offset by an increase in unrealized net losses on pas financial insttuments. Beginning in the second half of
2006, MidAmerican Energy began recognizing unrealized gains and losses on certain electric and gas positions in
other comprehensive income, reducing a portion of future market volatility on margins.

Nonregulated operations also inciude earnings from sharing arrangements under applicable state regulations and
tariffs filed with the IUB and the South Dakota Public Utiliies Commission (“SDPUC™) for MidAmerican Energy’s
regulated natural gas operations. Under these arrangements, MidAmerican Energy is allowed to keep & portion of
the benefits of gas sales for resale and capacity release transactions. MidAmerican Energy also has an Incentive Gas
Supply Procurement Program (“IGSPP”) in Jowz and 2 similar program in South Dakota, under which if can receive
awards for successful performance of gas supply procurement. Under the IGSPP, if MidAmerican Energy’s cost aof
gas varics from an established reference price range, then the savings or cost is shared between customers and
shareholders. The IGSPP and the South Dakota program extend through October 31, 2010.

MNon-Operating Income
MidAmerican Energy -

MidAmerican Energy’s non-operating income increased $19.5 million compared to 2005 due primarily to a
$12.8 million increase in allowance for equity funds as a result of the increase in construction work in progress. As a
regulated public utility, MidAmerican Energy is allowed to capitalize, and record as income, a cost of construction
for equity funds used, based on guidelines set forth by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (“FERC™),
MidAmerican Energy expects to confinue to record higher-than-normal income for the allowance on equity funds
used during construction through 2007 while the announced generating facilities are constructed.

Interest and dividend income increased $2.9 million compared to 2005 due to a more favorable cash position and
higher interest rates. Other income increased due to & $2.0 million increase in income from corporate-owned life
insurance policies.

MidAmerican Funding -

MidAmerican Funding’s non-operating income increased $68.2 million for 2006 compared to 2005. In addition to
the MidAmerican Energy items discussed above, MidAmerican Funding’s non-operating income reflects the
following significant factors.

Other income for MidAmerican Funding increased $40.2 miilion due principally to $27.6 million of pre-tax gains
from saies of MidAmerican Funding’s shares of common stock of an electronic energy and metals trading exchange
and $4.5 million of pre-tax gain on MidAmerican Funding’s remaining shares of that common stock, which it
donated to a charitable foumdation. Other expense for 2006 teflects $4.5 million of expense for the donation of the
shares,

Other income for 2006 also includes an $8.5 million pre-tax gain on the sale of MidAmerican Funding’s non-
controlling interest in a non-utility gas-fired cogencration plant and a $6.8 million pre-tax gain on the sale of a
commercial passenger aircraft. Additionally, other income reflects $5.2 million of pre-tax income resulting from
changes in a financing arrangement related to a non-strategic investment in a hydroelectric generating plant. Other
income for 2005 includes $9.9 million of pre-tax gains from the sale of two non-strategic, passive investments and a
$3.4 million pre-tax gain on the sale of MidAmerican Funding’s shares of common stock of the electronic energy
and metals trading exchange discussed above.

Other expense for MidAmerican Funding decreased $12.1 million for 2006 compared to 2005 due primarily 10
write-downs m 2005 of some of MidAmerican Funding's investments in commercial passenger aircrafi
MidAmerican Funding’s evaluation of its investments in these aircraft resulted in $15.6 million of pre-tax write-
downs in 2005. The write-downs reflected a continued deterioration in the airfine industry, including the bankruptcy
filings of two major carriets during 2005,
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The $12.9 million increase in MidAmerican Energy’s interest on long-term debt was due to the issuance of

MidAmerican Energy long-term debt in the amount of $300.0 million on November 1, 2005, and $350.0 million on

October 6, 2006, offset partially by maturities of higher inierest rate debt in 2005 and 2006. Other interest expense
increased $£3.4 million due principally o 2 higher balance of the Iowa revenue sharing ligbility. MidAmerican
Energy is allowed to capitalize, and record as a reduction to fixed charges, a cost of construction for debt funds used,
based on guidelines set forth by the FERC. The $5.6 million increase in allowance for borrowed fimds for 2006 was
due 10 the mcrease in construction work in progress compared to 2005. MidAmerican Encrgy expects to continue to
record higher-than-normal allowance for borrowed funds used during construction through 2007 while the
announced generating facilities are constructed.

Income Taxgs
MidAmerican Energy -

Federal law currently provides for federal production tax credits for emergy produced by renewable electricity
generation projects, including wind-powered gemerating facilities for ten years after the in-service date.
MidAmerican Energy’s income taxes for 2006 include $10.2 million of additional production tax credits compared
o 2005 due to additional wind-powered generation.

State utility rate recognition in lowa requires that the tax effect of certain timing differences be flowed through
immediately to customers. Therefore, amounts that would otherwise have been recognized in income tax expense
have been included as changes in regulatory assets. This flow-through treatment of such timing differences impacts
the effective tax rates from year to year.

MidAmerican Funding -

In 2006, MidAmerican Funding reduced iis income tax expense by $19.3 million due to the resolution of a potential
tax maiter.

Resnlts of Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2005 and 2064

Eamings Overyi

MidAmerican Energy -

MidAmerican Energy’s earnings on common stock improved $10.8 million to $220.0 million for 2005 comparad to
$209.2 million for 2004. Operating income increased $24.7 million due primatily to improved margins. The
improvement in operating income was partially offset by a comparative increase in income taxes due to benefits

recognized in 2004 as a result of changes in state and federal income tax laws in 2004 and the benefits from a
settlement with the Internal Revenue Service of an income tex audit issue in 2004,
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MidAmerican Funding —

MidAmerican Funding’s net income for 2003 increased $15.8 million to $195.]1 millien for 2005 compared to
$179.3 million for 2004. In addition to the items discussed for MidAwmerican Energy, MidAmerican Funding’s net
income for 2004 reflects additional income tax expense due to an adjustment to goodwill as a result of the settiement
of the income tax audit issue above.

Regulated Electric Gryss Margin
2005 2004
Gross margin (in millions);
Operating revenues $1,513.2 51,4217
Less cost of fuel, energy and capacity 4766 404 6
Eleciric gross margim 310366 $1.017.1
Sales (GWh):
Retail 19,044 17863
‘Wholesale 8378 9,260
Total 2742 27125

Electric gross margin for 2005 increased $19.5 million compared to 2004 due to a $24.5 million increase in retail
gross margin as a result of warmer weather in the third quarter of 2005 and customer growth. A $17.1 million
decrease in MidAmerican Energy’s cosl of sales for electric capacity purchases and a $7.9 million increase in
transmission revenues also coniribuied to the increase in electric gross margin, The improvement in gross margin as
a result of these factors was partially offset by a $29.4 million decrease in gross margin on wholesale sales,
primarily as a result of generation outages in the first quarter of 2005,

Gross margin on electric retail sales increased $24.5 million, with electric retail sales volwmes increasing 6.6%
compared to 2004. The effect of emperature conditions during 2005 compared to 2004 resulted in a $38 2 million
increase in electric retail gross margin. A 1.3% increase in the average number of retail customers improved electric
retail gross margin by $14.7 million compared o 2004, while electricity usage factors not dependent on weather,
such as chumges in individual customer usage patterns, increased clectric margin by $6.0 million. Revenues from the
recovery of energy efficiency program costs increased $3.4 million compared to 2004, Changes in these revenues
are substantally matched with corresponding changes in other operating expenses. An increase in fuel costs related
1o Jowa retail electric sales decreased electric retail gross margin by $37.2 million compared to 2004 due in part to
the cost of replacement power as a result of the generating station outages mentioned below.

Sales of energy to other wtilities, municipalities and marketers inside and outside of MidAmerican Energy’s delivery
system are classified as wholesale. A change in the mix of higher-priced on-pesk and lower-priced off-peak sales
and a higher average cost of energy caused a decrease in the average electric wholesale margin per megawatt hour
sold, reducing electric wholesale gross margin by $18.4 million compared to 2004. Additionally, a 9.5% decrease in
wholesale sales volumes reduced electric wholesale gross margin by $11.0 million. The timing of planned
generation outages, mainly for the Louisa Generating Station, and the loss of generating capacity at the Ottumwa
Genperating Station Unit No. 1 (“OGS Unit No. 17), which experienced a failure of its step-up transformer on
February 20, 2005, resulied in iost wholesale sales opportunities. OGS Unit No. 1 retumed to service on May 3,
2005. An increase in clectric retail sales also reduced the availability of competitively priced generation,
contributing 1o the decrease in wholesale sales volumes.
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lated Gas Gross Margi

2005 2004

Gross margin (in millions);
Operating Tevenues $1,3227 51,0109
Less cost of gas sold 1.098.4 790.0
Gas gross margin § 2243 3 2209

Sales (000°s Dths):

Retail 76,942 76,242
Wholesale 51,655 46,630
Total 128,597 122,872

Gas gross margin for 2005 increased $3.4 million comparzd to 2004

Regulated gas revenues include purchased gas adjustment clauses throngh which MidAmerican Energy is allowed to
recover the cost of gas sold from its retail gas wtility customers. Consequently, flactuations in the cost of gas sold do
not affect gross margin or net income because revenues refiect comparable fluctuations through the purchased gas
adiustinent clauses. MidAmerican Energy’s average per-unit cost of gas increased 32.8% compared to 2004
resulting in a $271.6 million increase in cost of gas sold. The remainder of the increase in cost of gas sold was due to
an increase in sales volumes related to wholesale customers.

The following table swminarizes the variance in gas operating revenues, including the impact of the flucation in
the cost of gas sold. The variances in gas operating revenues other than the fluctuation & cost of gas sold have the
same impact on gross margin.

2005 vs. 2004
(In millions)
Change in cost of gas sold:

Average cost per unit 3 2716
Sales volumes 6.8
Total change in cost of gas sold 3084
Weather 0.8
Energy efficiency cost recovery 25
Customer growth 32

Other usage factors (3.9
Cther 0.8
Total revenue variance 3 3118

Overall weather conditions during the heating seasons of 2005 were relatively unchanged compared to 2004,
MidAmerican Energy’s average number of gas retail customers increased 1.4% compared to 2004, Other gas usage
factors, such as changes in individual customer usage patterns and reaction to historically high prices, decreased gas
margin, Changes in revenucs from the recovery of energy efficiency program costs are substantially matched with
comresponding changes i other operating expenses. Total natral gas retail sales volumes increased 0.9%.

lated ting Expenses

Other operating expenses increased $6,0 million compared to 2004 dug 10 a $5.9 million increase in costs related to
energy efficiency programs and a $5.6 million increase in health care benefits and pension costs. These increases
were partially offset by a 56.0 million decrease in postretirement benefit expense compared to 2004 due to the
impact of the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modemizaton Act of 2003 and a plan amendment
gffective July 1, 2004. Increases in energy efficiency programs costs are substantially matched by increases in
related electric and gas revenues.
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Maintenance expenses for 2005 decreased $14.1 million compared to 2004 due principally 1o a $19.4 miliion
decrease in steam generating maintenance, mostly as a result of additional preventive maintenance in 2004, The
decrease was offset partially by a $3.3 million increase in other generating mainienance related to wind facilities and
combustion turbines.

Depreciation and amortization expense fot 2005 incteased $2.7 million compared to 2004 due to an $11.7 million
increase in uiility plant depreciation due in part to the second phase of the Greater Des Moines Energy Center and
wind power facilities placed in service in December 2004, and wind power facilities placed in service in the third
quarter of 2005. These and other increases in utility plant depreciation were partially offset by a decrease in wiility
plamt depreciation that began in November 2004 as a result of a 20-year extension to the operating license for the
Quad Cities Station. The increase in ufility plant depreciation was partiatly offset by a $9.9 million decrease in
regulatory expense relfated to a revenue sharing arrangement in Iowa due to lower Iowa electric equity retums, Refer
to the “Usility Regulatory Matters” section for an explanation of the revenue sharing arrangement.

Nonresylat s Margi
2005 2004
(In millions)
MidAmerican Energy -
Nonregulated operating revenues $ 3244 $ 2637
Less nonregulated cost of sales 2909 230.6
Nonregulated gross margin 335 $ 331
MidAmerican Funding Consclidated -
Nonregulated operating revenues § 3301 ¥ 2601
Less nonregulated cost of sales 29235 232.0
Nonregulated gross margin 3376 $§ 371

MidAmerican Energy’s nonregulated gross margin for 2005 increased 304 million compared to 2004, The
following table presents the margins related to various nonregulated activities (in millions):

2005 2004
Nonregulated electric $ 129 $ 168
Nonregulated gas 7.5 7.2
Income sharing arrangements under regulated gas tariffs 5.6 37
Incentive gas supply procurement program award 34 2.4
Other 4.1 30

$ 335 £.331

Gross margin for nonregulated electric marketing services decreased due to a reduction in the margin per unit sold in
2005 compared to 2004, partially offset by an increase in related sales volumes. The margin per unit decreased in
2005 compared to 2004 due to higher costs for wholesale energy and fimited ability 1o pass such cosis on to
customers due to the level of bundled rates offcred by the local utility companies. Nonregulated gas gross margin
increased due to an increase in the margin per unit sold compated to 2004. A small decrease in nonregutaied gas
sales volumes was due in large part to the non-renewal of the sales contracts as a result of a related regulatory issue
in Illinois. Refer to “Utility Regulatory Matters” for a discussion of the issue.

Nomregulated operations alse include earnings from sharing arrangements under applicable state regulations and
tariffs filed with the IUB and the SDPUC for MidAmerican Energy’s regulated natural gas operations.
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Non-Operating Income
MidAmerican Energy -
MidAmerican Energy’s non-operating income increased $7.3 million for 2005 compared to 2604 due principally to
a $5.5 million increase in income for capitalized allowance for equity fimds used during construction as a result of
an increase in construction work in progress compared to 2004,
MidAmerican Funding -

MidAmerican Fumding’s other income for 2005 includes $13.3 million of gains from the saie of three non-sirategic,

passive investments. During 2005 and 2004, MidAmerican Funding received distributions totaling $1.2 million and

$2.5 million, respectively, from several of its investments in energy projects and vennare capital funds.

Other expense for 2005 inciudes write-downs of MidAmerican Funding’s investments in commercial passenger
aircraft, which it accounts for as leveraged leases. MidAmerican Funding’s evaluation of iis investments in these
aircraft resuited in $15.6 million of pre-tax write-downs in 2005. The write-downs reflect a continued deterioration
in the airline industry, including the bankauptcy filings of two major carriers during 2005, Other expense for 2004
includes iosses totaling $1.7 million for write-downs related to two commercial passenger aircraft investments.

Fixed Charges

The increase i interest on long-term debt was due to miterest on MidAmerican Energy long-term debt issuances of
$350.0 million on QOctober 1, 2004 and $300.0 million on November 1, 2005, offset partially by maturities of higher
rate debt, totaling $90.5 million and $55.6 miilion in 2005 and 2004, respectively. Other interest expense increased
due to a higher balance of the Iowa Tevenue sharing liability. Allowance for borrowed funds increased due to
increased utility construction expenditures. MidAmerican Energy expects to continue {o record higher-than-normal
ailowance for borrowed funds used during construction through 2007 while the announced generating facilities are
constructed.

Income Taxes
MidAmerican Energy -

In Sepicmber 2004, the Iowa legislature passed legislation adopting a federal tax provision into Iowa law that
provides accelerated tax depreciation for certain assets acquired after May 5, 2003 and before January I, 2005, As a
result of Iowa regulatory tules for utility income taxes, MidAmerican Energy’s income taxes for 2004 were reduced
by approximately 515.7 million, including the retroactive adjustment for 2003,

In 2005, MidAmerican Energy’s incomse faxes included $11.1 million of the production tax credits related to energy
produced by its wind-powered generating facilities, the first of which were placed in service December 31, 2004.

State utility rate recognition in lowa requires that the tax effect of certain timing differences be flowed through
immediately to customers. Therefore, amounts that would otherwise have been recognized in income tax expense
have been inciuded as changes in regulatory assets. This flow-through treatment of such timing differences impacts
the effective tax rates from year to year.

Alse, during 2004, MidArmerican Energy settled an income tax audit with the Internal Revenne Service and recorded

as income & tax liability previously established for the settled issue, resulting in an $8.5 million reduction to
MidAmerican Energy’s income tax expense for 2004,

41

Ve,



ExHIBIT C-2 |

“SEC Filings”
MidAmerican Funding -

A significant portion of MidAmerican Energy’s tax liability for the $8.5 million settled issue above was originally
established in 1999 when MidAmerican Energy’s parent company, MHC Inc., was acquired by MidAmerican
Funding. This change in estimate of an income tax uncertainty that resulied from a purchase business combination
was accounted for as an adjustment to the remaining balance of goodwill aitributable to the acquisition.
Accordingly, in 2004, MidAmerican Funding decreased goodwill and increased income tax expense by $4.7 million
to reflect the seftiement of that portion of the income tax liability recognized at the time of the acquisition of MHC.
The net result of the reduction at MidAmetican Energy and the goodwill adjustment at MidAmerican Funding was a
$3.8 million decrease in consolidated income tax expense for 2004,

Liguidity and Capital Resources

MidAmerican Energy and MidAmerican Funding have available a variety of sources of liquidity and capital
resources, both iniernal and external. These resources provide funds required for current operations, construction
expenditures, dividends, debt retirement and other capital requirerents.

As reflected on the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, MidAmerican Energy’s net cash provided by operating
activitics was $560.0 million, $463.2 million and $523.5 million for 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
MidAmerican Funding’s net cash provided by operating activities was $515.3 million, $423.7 million and
$493.6 million for 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The increase in cash provided by operating activities for 2006
campared to 2005 is due principally to improved earnings, a reduction in income taxes and interest paid and a
number of working capital variances, The decrease in cash provided by operating activities for 2005 compared to
2004 was principally due to an inctease in income taxes paid as tax depreciation was unusually high due to benefits
from bonus depreciation in 2004.

Uility Construction Expenditures

MidAmerican Energy’s primary need for capital is utility construction expenditures, For 2006, utility cash
construction expenditures totaled $757.3 million, including Quad Cities Station nuclear fuel purchases.
MidAmerican Energy’s capital requirements for 2007, which exclude the non-cash allowance for equity funds used
during construction, are estimated to be approximately $926 million, which inciudes $375 million for the coal-fired
and wind-powered generation projects discussed below, $150 million for emissions control equipment to address
current and anticipated air quality regulations and $401 million for ongoing operational projects, including
comnections for new customers and facilities to accommedate load growth, Capital expenditure needs are reviewed
regularly by management and may change significantly as a result of such reviews. MidAmerican Energy expects to
meet these capital expenditures with cash flows from operations and the issuance of long-term debt.

MidAmerican Energy anticipates & continuing increase in demand for electricity from its regulated customers. To
meet anticipated demand and ensure adequate electric generation in its service temitory, MidAmerican Energy is
currently constructing Council Bluffs Energy Center Unit No. 4 (“CBEC Unit 47), a 790-MW (expected
accreditation) super-critical-temperature, coalfired generating plant. MidAmerican Energy will operate the plant
and hold an undivided ownership interest as a tenant in commeon with the other owners of the plant. MidAmerican
Energy’s current ownership imierest is 60.67%, equating to 479 MW of output. Municipal, cooperative and public
power utilitics own the remainder, which is a typical ownership arrangement for large base-load plants in Iowa. The
plant will provide service to regulated retail ¢lectricity customers. Wholesale sales may also be made from the plani
to the extent the power is not immediately needed for regulated retail service. MidAmerican Energy has obtained
regulatory approval to include the Iowa portion of the actual cost of CBEC Unit 4 in its Iowa rate base as long as the
actual cost does not exceed the agreed cap that MidAmerican Energy has deemed to be reasonable. If the cap is
exceeded, MidAmerican Energy has the right to demonstrate the prudence of the expenditures above the cap, subject
to regulatory review. MidAmerican Energy expects 1o invest approximately 3870 million in CBEC Unit 4, including
transmission facilities and approximately $64 million of non-cash allowance for equity funds used during
construction. Through December 31, 2006, MidAmerican Energy has invested $785.9 million in the plant, including
$121.3 million for MidAmerican Energy’s share of deferred payments allowed by the construction coniract and
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$49 .2 million of non-cash allowance for equity funds used during construction and expects to pay approximately
$191 million for CBEC Unit 4 cash construction costs in 2007,

On April 18, 2006, the IUB approved a settlement agreement between MidAmerican Enerpy and the Iowa Office of
Consumer Advocate (“OCA™) regarding ratemaking principles for up to 545 MW (nameplate ratings) of wind-
powered generation capacity in Iowa to be instalied in 2006 and 2007. Generally speaking, accredited capacity
ratings for wind-powered generation facilities are considerably less than the nameplate ratings due to the varying
natare of wind. In the fourth quarter of 2006, MidAmerican Energy placed in service 99 MW (nameplate ratings) of
wind-powered generation, and in June 2006, MidAmerican Energy eniered into agreements to add an additional 123
MW (nameplate ratings) of wind-powered generation by the end of 2007. Refer to “Utility Regulatory Matiers™
below for more information regarding the rate aspects of the settlement agreement. MidAmerican Energy continues
to pursiie additional cost effective wind-powered generation,

Refer to the “Environmental Matiers” section later in MD&A for additional information regarding capital
expenditures for emission control equipment.

Nuglear D

Each licensee of 2 nuclear facility is required to provide financial assurance for the cost of decommissioning its
licensed nuclear facility. In general, decommissioning of a nuclear facility means to safely remove the facility from
service and restore the property to a condition allowing vnrestricted use by the operator.

MidAmerican Energy currently contributes $8.3 million annually 10 trusts established for the investment of funds for
decommissioning Quad Cities Station. Pending regulatory approvals, funding is expected to be reduced to $1.6
million annuaily beginning in 2007, The change in funding results from a recent evaluation of the funded status,
estimated decommissioning costs and usefu! life of the plant. As of December 31, 2006, approximately 56.1% of the
fair value of the trusts’ funds was invested in domestic common equity securities, 13.3% in domestic corporate debt
and the remainder in investment grade municipal and U.8. Treasury bonds. Funding for Quad Cities Station nuclear
decommissioning is refiected as depreciation expense in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. Future funding
levels are subject 10 a variety of faclors and are periodically reviewed.
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Contractual Obligations and Commiercial Comymitments

MidAmerican Energy and MidAmerican Funding have various contractual obligations and commercial
commitments, The following table summarizes as of December 31, 2006, the material cash obligations of
MidAmerican Energy and MidAmerican Funding (in millions).

Period Payments are Dug
- 2008- 2010- After
T'vpe of Obligation Total 2007 2009 ‘ 2011 2011
MidAmerican Energy:
Long-term debt, excluding unamortized
debt premium and discount, net $ 1,826.6 $ 16 $ 05 % - $1,824.5
Operating leases, easements and
maintenance contracts (1) 107.3 i2.8 13.9 72 73.4
Coal, clectricity and nanmal gas coniract
commitments (1} 652.6 203 4 200.6 69.6 179.0
Deferred costs on construction contract (2) - 2000 200.0 - - -
Interest payments on long-term debt (3) 20350 938 193.3 1933 1.554.6
48215 5116 4083 2761 363153
MidAmerican Funding parent:
Long-term debt 700.0 - 175.0 2000 3250
Interest payments on long-tetm debt 595.0 47.1 88.7 65.3 3939
1.295.0 47.1 263.7 2653 7189
Total $e6l1l65 $ 5587 $6720 $5354 $£4.3504

)] The operating leases, casements and maintensnce confracts, and coal, eleciricity and natural gas
commitments are not reflected on the Consolidated Balance Shects. Refer to Note (15) in Notes to
Consclidated Financial Statements in Item 8 for a discussion of the nature of these commitments,

2) MidAmerican Energy is allowed to defer up to $200.0 million in payments to the coniractor under its
contract to build CBEC Unit 4, Refer to Note (15) in Noies to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8
for a discussion of this commitment. Approximately 39.3% of this commitment is expected to be funded by
the joint owners of CBEC Unit 4.

3 Excludes interest payments on variabie rate long-term debt.

MidAmerican Energy has other types of commitments that are subject 1o change and relate primarily to the items

lisied below. For additional information, refer, where applicable, to the respective teferenced note in Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8,

» Construction expenditures: Refer to the “Utility Construction Expenditures” section above.
s Residual guaramtees on operating Ieases (see Note (15))

=  Pension and postretirement plans (see Note (16))
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Debt Redemption and Issuance

MidAmerican Energy’s 6.375% series of medium-term notes, totaling $160.0 million, matured on June 15, 2006. On
October 6, 2006, MidAmerican Energy issued $350.0 miltion of 5.8% medium-term notes due October 15, 2036.

Debt Au jzat d Credit Facilities

MidAmerican Energy has authority from the FERC to issue through April 14, 2007, shori-term debt in the form of
commercial paper and bank notes aggregating $500.0 million. MidAmerican Encrgy currently has in place a
$500.0 million revolving credit facility that supports its $379.6 million commercial paper program and its variable
rate polhuion contro! revenue obligations. The facility expires July 6, 2011.

MidAmerican Energy currently has the necessary aythorizations from the Securities and Exchange Commission to
issue up 1o $420.0 million of additional long-term securities; from the FERC to issue up to $600.0 million of
additional iong-term securities through November 30, 2008, and from the [linois Commerce Commission (“ICC™)
to issue up to $480.0 million of additional long-term debi securities through July 12, 2011

In conjunction with the March 1999 merger, MidAmerican Enerpy committed to the IUB to use commercially
reasonable efforis to maintain an investment grade rating on its long-term debt and to maintain its common equity
level abave 42% of total capitalization unless circumstances beyond its control result in the common equity level
decreasing to below 39% of toal capitalization, MidAmerican Energy mmust seek the approval of the IUB of a
reasonable utility capital structure if MidAmerican Energy’s common equity level decreases below 42% of total
capitalization, unless the decrease is beyond the control of MidAmerican Energy. MidAmerican Energy is also
required to seek the approval of the [UB if MidAmerican Energy’s equity level decreases to below 39%, even if the
decrease is due to circumstances beyond the conirol of MidAmerican Energy. If MidAmerican Energy’s common
equity level were to drop below ihe required thresholds, MidAmerican Energy’s ability to issue debt could be
restricted. As of December 31, 2006, MidAmerican Energy’s common equity ratio was 53.6% computed on a basis
consistent with its commitment.

Other Fi i ion

MidAmerican Funding ar one of its subsidiaries, inchuding MidAmerican Energy, may from time to time seek to
retire its outstanding debt through cash purchases and/or exchanges for other securities, in open market purchases,
privately negotiated fransactions or otherwise. The repurchases or exchanges, if any, will depend on prevailing
market conditions, the issning company’s liquidity requirements, contractual restrictions and other factors. The
amounts involved may be material.

Credit Ratings Risks

Debt and preferred securities of MidAmerican Funding and MidAmerican Energy are rated by nationally recognized
credit rating agencies. Assigned credit ratings are based on each rating agency’s assessment of MidAmerican
Funding’s or MidAmerican Energy’s ability to, in general, meef the obligations of the debt or preferred securities
issued by the rated company. The credit ratings are not a recommmendation to buy, sell or hold securities, and there is
10 assurance that a particular credit rating will continue for any given period of time. As of February 3, 2007,
MidAmerican Energy’s senior unsecured debt credit ratings were as follows: Fitch Ratings, “A/stable;” Moady's
Investor Service, “A2/stable;” and Standard and Poor’s, “A~/stable.” Other than the energy supply and marketing
agreements discussed beiow, neither MidAmerican Funding nor MidAmerican Energy has any credii agreements
that require termination or a material change in collateral requirements or payment schedule in the event of a
downgrade in the credit ratings of the respective company’s securities.

In conjunction with its risk management activitics, MidAmerican Energy must meet credit quality standards as
required by counterparties. In accordance with industry practice, master agreements that govern MidAmerican
Energy’s energy supply and marketing activities either specifically require it to maintain investment grade credit
Tatings or provide the right for counicrpartics 1o demand “adequate assurances™ in the event of a material adverse
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change in MidAmerican Energy’s creditworthiness. If one or more of MidAmerican Energy’s credit ratings decline
below investment grade, MidAmerican Energy may be required to post cash collateral, letters of credit or other
similar credit support to facilitate ongoing wholesale energy supply and marketing activities. As of December 31,
20006, MidAmerican Energy’s estimated potential collateral requirements totaled approximately $249 million.
MidAmerican Energy’s potential collateral requirements could fluctuate considerably due to seasomality, market
price volatility, and a loss of key MidAmerican Energy generating facilitics or other related factors.

Utility Regnlatory Matiers

Rate Mafters

Under a series of electric setilement agreements between MidAmerican Energy, the Iowa Office of Consumer
Advocate (“OCA™) and other intervenors approved by the IUB, MidAmerican Energy has agreed not to seek a
general increase in electric base rates to become effective prior to January I, 2013, unless its Iowa jurisdictional
electric return on equity in any year falls below 10%. As a patty to the settlement agreements, the OCA has agreed
not to seek any decrease in MidAmerican Energy’s lowa electric base rates prior to January 1, 2013. Illinois bundled
electric rates were frozen until 2007, subject to certain exceptions allowing for increases, at which time bundled
rates may be increased or decreased by the ICC. Refer to Note (14) of MidAmerican Energy’s Notes 10 Consolidated
Financial Statemnents for further discussion of these rate matiers.

In an order issued September 27, 2004, the TUB required MidAmerican Energy to file various plans to fully equalize
and consolidate its class zomal eleciric rates by the end of each of the vears 2007 through 2010. On
October 18, 2004, MidAmerican Energy filed a motion for reconsidetation opposing full rate equalization and
proposing a series of rate reductions. On March 21, 2005, the [UB required MidAmerican Energy to file additional
information about potential rate changes concerning phased equalization or consofidation of existing zonal rate
differences that could have the effect of bringing rates together on a basis designed o have no impact on the overall
revenues MidAmerican Energy receives from its Towa electric customers. MidAmerican Energy filed the requested
information on April 11, 2005. In the same proceeding, MidAmerican Energy has a pending plan to reduce rates for
some residential customers by a total of approximately $7.0 million in the 2008-2009 time frame in addition to the
reductions tc be offset by cost decreases related to existing contracts. The $7.0 million reduction in revennes may
begin fo be offset by a rate increase for other residential customers starting in 2011, On June 19, 2006, without
ruling on revenue requirement issues, the JUB issued an order requiring MidAmerican Energy to hold informal
workshops in 2007 and file a comprehensive class cost-of-service study and a revenue neutral rate equalization/rate
consolidation plan by mid-2009.

In 2004, the ICC issued a declaratory ruling finding that MidAmerican Energy’s competitive sales of gas to retail
customers within the state of Illinpis were not authorized under the Ilinois Public Utilities Act, In its raling, the ICC
ieft for purchased gas adjustment reconciliation proceedings issues related to the financial implications of these
sales. In its testimony in such proceedings for the years 2001 and 2002, the ICC staff had expressed its position that
MidAmerican Energy must reduce gas costs recovered from Ilinois regulated gas customers through the purchased
gas adjustment. “Gross margin” for the purpose of this adjustment is the difference between the revenue and the
related cost of gas for MidAmerican Energy’s nonregulated sales of gas to retail customers in the entire state of
Illinois. Under Illinois law, it could have been possible to reopen proceedings as far back as 1996 to restate
reconciliation results consistent with staff’s position. On January 24, 2007, the ICC approved final orders which
conciude the 2001 and 2002 PGA reconciliation proceedings; interim orders, which conclude consideration of the
competitive gas issue for 2003 and 2004, and dismissed a remedies proceeding that sought 10 impose penalties
against MidAmerican for its competitive gas business prior fo January 1, 2005, the cffective date of SB2523, an
Hlingis law that allows MidAmerican Energy fo continue its competitive gas business in Illinois subject to ICC
requirements for separation of the function from regulated operations. An integral part of the orders issued by the
ICC is a seftlement agreement between all parties to the proceedings that requires MidAmerican Energy to credit to
its regulaied gas customers, through the purchased gas adjustment clause, $5.1 million as soon as possible. The
credit was included in the February 2007 PGA. In addition to agreeing to submission of the orders mentionad above,
the setiement agreement binds the parties (o not seek reopening of any prior final proceeding in which the issue of
MidAmerican Energy’s competitive gas business could be raised.
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In November 2006, the ICC approved a proposal to climinate MidAmerican Energy’s monthly fuel adjusiment
clause. Effective Jamuary 1, 2007, Illinois base rates have been adjusted to include recoveries at average 2004/2005
¢ost levels, The climination of the fuel adjusmment clause exposes MidAmerican Energy to monthly market price
changes for fuel and purchased power costs in Nllinois, with rate case approval required for any base rate changes.
MidAmerican Energy may not petition for reinstatement of the Tllinois fuel adjustment clause until Navember 2011.

On August 30, 2006, a third party vendor commenced operations as MidAmerican Energy’s transmission service
coordinator {“TSC™). The TSC is the administrator of various MidAmerican Energy Open Access Transmission
Tariff (“OATT”) functions for transmission service. The FERC approved MidAmerican Energy’s TSC agreement
and selection of a third party vendor. Under the contract, the vendor provides its tariff administration and planning
services for a three-year term. MidAmerican Energy does not believe that the incremental costs will have a material
impact on its financial resulis.

On February 16, 2007, the FERC adopted a final rule designed to strengthen the pro forma OATT by providing
greater specificity and increasing transparency. The most significant revisions 1o the pro forma QATT relate to the
development of more consistent ‘metbodologies for calculating available transfer capability, changes to the
fransmission planning process, changes to the pricing of certain generator and energy imbalances to encourage
efficient scheduling behavior and to exempt intermoittent generators, and changes regarding lang-term point-to-point
transmission service, including the addition of conditicnal firm long-term point-to-point transmission service, and
generation redispatch. As transmission providers with OATTS on file with FERC, MidAmerican Energy will be
required (o comply with the requirements of the new rule. Certain details related to the rule, such as the precise
methodology that will be used to calculate available transfer capability, will be determined prospectively and thus, it
is difficult 1o make a precise determination of the effect of this new rule on MidAmerican Energy’s transmission
operations, In addition, it is difficult to determine the effect of this new rule once fully implemented on the
availability and price of transmission service from the perspective of the wholesale marketing function. However, at

ieast on @ preliminary basis, the rule is not anticipated to have a significant impact on MidAmerican Energy’s

financial results.
Electric D

On July 13, 2004, the FERC issued an order requiring MidAmerican Energy to conduct a study to deiermine
whether MidAmerican Energy or its affiliates possess generation market power. MidAmerican Energy is being
required to show the absence of peneration market power in order to be allowed 10 continue to sell wholesale electric
power at markei-based rates. The FERC order is intended (o bave MidAoxrican Energy conform to what has
become the FERC's general practice for utiliies given authorization io make wholesale market-based sales. Under
this general practice, utilities anthorized to make market-based electric sales must submit 4 new market power study
to the FERC every three years. MidAmerican Energy filed the required study on October 29, 2004, On June 1, 2005,
the FERC issued an order setting for investigation the reasonableness of MidAmerican Energy’s market-based rates
within s control area. The order also terminated the previcusly established November 1, 2004, refund date and
instead required that market-based sales made by MidAmerican Energy within its control area beginning August 7,
2005, be subject to refund until the matter is resolved. The FERC also required MidAmerican Energy to file
additional information by July 1, 2005, and August 1, 2005. In its August 1, 2005 filing, MidAmerican Energy filed
a proposed cost-based sales tariff (“CBST”) applicable 1o sales made within its control area to replace its market-
based sales tariff. On March 17, 2006, the FERC issued an order (“March 17 Order™) accepting MidAmerican
Energy’s commiment not to make sales using market-based rates in its control area but rejected the proposed
applicable tariff language. The FERC directed MidAmerican Energy to file revised tariff language by April 17,
2006. Mid American Energy made such filing together with a request for clarification, or in the altemnative, rehearing
{(“Request for Clarification™) of the March 17 Order. On November 9, 2006, the FERC approved a settlement
agricement among MidAmerican Energy and the other parties to the proceeding for rates to be chargad under the
CBST and ordered that refunds be paid to customers within 30 days for ceriain sales transactions in the control area
on or after August 7, 2005, MidAmerican Energy timely made the refunds of an imumaterial amount. Any actual
remaining refund will depend upoen the FERC’s ruling on the Request for Clarification and the applicability of the
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CBST to certain sales made within the control area for delivery outside the control area. MidAmerican Energy
estimates that its maximum potendal refund obligation is $9.2 million for the period August 7, 2005 through
December 31, 2006. MidAmerican Energy does not believe at this time that the ultimate outcome of this issue will
have a material impact on its financial results.

Environmental Matters

MidAmerican Energy’s pencrating facilities are subject to applicable provisions of the Clean Air Act and relaied air
quality standards promulgated by the United States Environmental Protection Agency (“EPA™). The Clean Air Act
provides the framework for regulation of certain air emissions and permitting and monitoring associated with those
emissions. MidAmerican Encrgy believes it is in material compliance with current air quality requirements.

The EPA has in recent years implemented and proposed mmore stringent national ambient air quality standards.
Additionally, legislation is pending, and could be proposed in the future, that may impact MidAmerican Energy if
emacted. MidAmerican Energy has implememnted a planning process that forecasts the site-specific controls and
actions that may be required to meet emissions reductions as promaigated by the EPA The plan allows
MidAmerican Energy to more ¢ffectively manage its expenditures required to comply with emissions standards. On
April 1, 2006, MidAmerican Energy submitted to the IUB an updated plan, as required every two years by lowa law,
which increased its estimate of required expenditures. MidAmerican Energy currently estimates that the incremental
capital expenditures for emissian control equipment to comply with air quality requirements will total approximately
$540 million for January 1, 2007, through December 31, 2015, Additionally, MidAmerican Energy expects 1o incur
significant incremental operating costs in conjunction with the utilization of the emissions control equipment.
Estimates of the environmental capital and operating requirements may change significantly at any time as a resuit
of, among other factors, changes in related regulations, prices of products used to meet the requirements and
management’s strategies for achieving compliance with the regulations. Refer to liem 1 - Business for further
discussion of air quality standards affecting MidAsmerican Energy.

On February 16, 2005, the Kyato Protocol became effective, requiring 35 developed countries to reduce gresnhouse
gas emissions by approximately 5% between 2008 and 2012, While the United States did not ratify the protocol, the
ratification and nnplemmtatmn of its requirements in other countries has resulted in increased attention on the
climaie change issue in the United States. Congressional leadership in the 110® Congress bas made climate
legislation 2 priority; many congressional observers expect to sec the passage of climate change legislation within
the next several years,

While debate contimies at the national fevel over the direction of domestic climate policy, several siaies are
developing state-specific or regional legislative initiatives to reduce greenhouse gas emissions. The ouicome of
climate change litigation and federal and state initiatives cannot be determined at this me; however, adoption of
siringent limits on greenhousc gas cmissions could significantly impact MidAmerican Energy’s fossil-fueled
facilities and, therefore, its resulis of operations.

Generating Capability

On July 31, 2006, retail customer usage of electricity caused a new record hourly peak demand of 4,136 MW on
MidAmerican Energy’s electric system, 137 MW greater than the previous record set in 2005. MidAmerican Energy
is interconnected with Jowa utilities and utilities in neighboring states. MidAmerican Energy is also a party to an
electric generation reserve sharing pool and regional transmission group administered by the Mid-Continent Area
Power Pool (“MAPP™), Each MAPP generation reserve participant is required 1o maintain for emergency purposss a
net generating capability reserve of at least 15% above its system peak demand on a 12-month rolling basis.
MidAmerican Energy’s reserve margin at peak demand for 2006 was approximately 22%.

MidAmerican Energy believes it has adequate electric capacity reserve through 2009, including capacity provided

by the generating projecis discussed in the “Utility Construction Expenditures™ section above. However,
sipnificantly higher-than-normal temperatures during the cooling season could cause MidAmerican Energy’s reserve
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to fall below the 15% minimum. If MidAmerican Energy fails to maintain the required mininmm reserve, significant
penalties could be contractually imposed by the MAPP,

MidAmerican Energy is financially exposed to movements in energy prices since it does not recover its energy cosis
through an energy adjustment clause in Iowa, and beginning in 2007, Illinois. Although MidAmerican Energy
believes it has sufficient generation under typical operafing conditions for its retail electric needs, a loss of adeguate
generation by MidAmerican Energy requiring the purchase of replacement power at a time of high market prices
could subject MidAmerican Energy to losses on its energy sales.

The transmission developments may aiso impact MidAmerican Energy’s wholesale eleciric purchases and sales. The
FERC has proceedings underway which may influence the wholesale electric marketplace. Because of the
uncertainties as to future regulatory pelicy governing transmission service and pricing, and regulation of wholesale
electric sates, MidAmerican Energy is uncertain whether past wholesale costs and revenues will be representative of
future wholesale costs and revenues.

All of the coal-fired generating statiohs operaied by MidAmerican Energy are fueled by low-sulfur, western coal
from the Powder River Basin, MidAmerican Energy’s coal supply portfelio includss mmiitiple suppliers and mines
under short-term and mwlti-year agreements of varying quantities. MidAmerican Energy’s coal supply portfolio has
100% of its expacted 2007 requirements under fixed-price contracts. MidAmerican Energy reguiarly monitors the
western coal market, looking for oppornumitics 1o enhance its coal supply portfolioc. Well-publicized operational
delays in rail transportatian out of the Powder River Basin during 2005 and 2006 have resulted in the reduction of
coal inventories below targeted ranges. MidAmerican Energy believes the fransportation issues have largely been
resolved and that its coal inventories will be restored to their target ranges during 2007. Additional information
regarding MidAmerican Energy’s coal supply contracts is included in Note (15) of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements in [iem 8.

New Accounting Pronouncements

For a discussion of new accounting pronouncements affecting MidAmerican Energy and MidAmerican Funding,
refer to Note (2) of Notes to Conselidaied financial statements in Item 8,

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Certain accounting policies require management to make estimates and judgments concerning transactions that will
be settled in the fitire. Amounts recognized in the financial statements from such estirnates are necessarily based on
numerous assumptions involving varying and potentially significant degrees of judgmment and unceriainty.
Accordingly, the amounts currently reflected in the financial statements witl likely increase or decrease in the future
as additional information becomes available.

Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation

MidAmerican Funding and MidAmerican Energy prepare their financial statements in accordance with the
provisions of SFAS No. 71, “Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation™ (“SFAS No. 717) which
differs in certain respects from the application of accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (“GAAP™) by nonregulated businesses. In general, SFAS No. 71 recognizes that accounting for rate-
regulated enterprises should reflect the economic effects of regulation. As a result, a regulated entity is required to
defer the recognition of costs or income if it is probable that, through the rate-making process, there will be a
corresponding increase or decrease in future rates. Accordingly, MidAmerican Funding and MidAmerican Energy
have deferred certain costs and income that will be recogunized in eamings over various future periods.

Management continually evaluates the applicability of SFAS No. 71 and assesses whether its regulatory assets are
probable of future recovery by considering factors such as a change in the regulator’s approach to setting rates from
cost-based rate making to another form of regulation, other regulatory actions or the impact of competition which
could limit MidAmerican Energy’s ability to recover its costs. Based upon this continual assessment, management
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believes the application of SFAS Ne. 71 continues to be appropriate and its existing regulatory assets are probable of
recovery. The assessment reflects the current potitical and regulatory climate at both the state and federal levels and
is subject to change in the future, If it becomes probable that these costs will not be recovered, the assets and

liabilities would be written off and recognized in operating income. Total regulatory assets were $273.2 million and

total regulatory liabilities were $989.0 million as of December 31, 2006. Refer to Note 6 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements included in Item 8 for additional information regarding regulatory assets and liabilities.

Goodwill

MidAmerican Funding’s Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2006, inciudes goodwill from the
acquisition of MHC Inc. totaling $1.3 billion. Goodwill is allocated to each reporting unit and is tested for
impairment using a variety of methods, principally discounted projected future net cash flows, at least anoually and
impairments, if any, are charged to earnings. MidAmerican Funding completed its anmal review as of October 31,
A significani amount of judgment is required in performing goodwill impairment tests. Key assumptions used in the
testing include, but are not limited to, the use of an appropriate discount rate and estimated future cash flows.
Estimated future cash flows are impacted by, among other factors, growth rates, changes in regulations and rates,
ability to rcnew contracts and estimates of future commodity prices. In cstmating cash flows, MidAmerican
Funding incorporates current market information as well as historical factors.

Accrued Pension and Postretirement Expense

MidAmerican Energy sponsors defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefit plans that cover
substantially all of the employees of MidAmerican Energy Holdings and its domestic energy subsidiaries, ather than
PacifiCorp. Effective with the adoption of SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and
Other Postretirement Plans, an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R)” as of December 31,
2006, the fimded states of defined benefit pension and postretirement plans must be recognized in the balance sheet.
Funded status is the fair value of plan assets minus the benefit obligation as of the measurement date. As of
Drecember 31, 2006, MidAmerican Energy recognized an asset totaling $66.6 million for the over-funded status and
a liability totaling $37.7 million for the under-funded status of MidAmerican Energy’s defined benefit other
posiretirement benefit plans.

The expense and benefit obligations relating to these pension and other postretirement benefit plans are based on
actuarial vaiuations. Inherent in these valuations are key assumptions, including discount rates, expected retums on
plan assets, and health care cost trend rates. These actuarial assumptions are reviewed annually and modified as
appropriate. MidAmerican Energy believes that the assumptions utilized in recording obligations under the plans are
reasonable based on prior experience, markes conditions and the advice of plan acmaries. Refer 1o Note (16) of the
Consplidated Fingncizl Statements in Item 8 for disclosures about MidAmerican Energy’s pension and other
postretirement benefit plans, inchiding key assumptions used te calculate the funded status and net periedic cost for
these plans as of and for the year ended December 31, 2006,

Hu establishing its assumption as to the expected return on assets, MidAmerican Energy reviews the expected asset
allocation and develops retum assumptions for ¢ach asset class based on historical performance and independent
advisors’ forward-looking views of the financial markets. Pension and other postretirement benefif expenses
increase as the expected rate of refumn on retirement plan and other postretirement benefit plan assets decreases.
MidAmerican Energy regularly reviews ifs actual asset allocations and periodically rebalances its investments to its
targeted allocations when considered appropriate.

MidAmerican Energy chooses a discount rate based upon high quality fixed-income investment yields in effect as of
the measurement date. The pension and other postretirement benefit liabilities, as well as expenses, increase as the
discount rate is reduced.

MidAmerican Energy chooses a health care cost wend rate that reflects the near and long-term expectations of
mncreases in medical costs and corresponds to the expected benefit payment periods. The health care cost trend rate
gradually declines to 5.00% by 2010 at which point the rate is assumed to remain constant. Refer to Note (16) of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 for health care cost rend rate sensitivity disclosures.
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The actuarial assumptions used may differ materiatly from period to period due to changing market and economic
canditions. These differences may result in a significant impact to the amount of pension and other postretirement
benefit cxpense, assets and liabilities recorded. If changes were to occur for the following assumptions, the
approximaie effect on the financial statements of the total plan hefore allbcations to affiliates would be as follows
(in thousands):

Other Postretirement

Pension Plans Benefit Plans

+3.5% -0.5% +0.5% -0.5%
Effect on December 31, 2006, benefit obligations:

Discount rate $(34,377) $37,574 (13,570 $14.9%

Effect on periodic benefit cost: . .
Discount rate (980) 1,022 (879 830
Expected return on assets {2,746) 2,746 (740) 740

A varicty of factors, including the plan funding practices of MidAmerican Energy, have an affect on the funded
status of the plans. The Pension Protection Act of 2006 imposed generally mare stringent finding requirements for
defmed benefit pension plans, particulatly for those significanily underfunded, and allowed for greater tax
deductible contributions o such plans than previous mles permitied under the Employee Retirement Income
Security Act. As a result of the Pension Protection Act of 2006, MidAmerican Encrgy does not anticipate amy
significant changes to the amount of funding previously anticipated through 2007; however, depending upon a
variety of factors that impact the funded status of the plan, including actual asset returns, discount rates and plan
chanpes, it may be required to accelerate contributions to its pension plans for periods after 2007, and there may be
mor¢ volatility in annual contributions ithan historically experienced, which could have a material impact on
financial resulis.

Income Taxes

In determining MidAmerican Energy’s and MidAmerican Funding’s tax liabilities, management is required to
interpret complex tax laws and regulations. MidAmerican and Energy and MidAmerican Funding are subject to
continuous éxaminations by federal, state and local tax authotities that may give rise to different interpretations of
these complex laws and regulations. Due to the nature of the examination process, it generally takes years before
these examinations are compleied and these matters are resolved. The Internal Revenue Service has closed
examination of MidAmerican Energy mnd MidAmerican Funding through 2001, Although the ultimate resolution of
their federal and state tax examinations is uncertain, each believes it has made adequate provisions for its tax
positions, and the aggregate amount of any additional tax liabilities that may result from these examinations, if any,
will not have a matierial adverse affect on MidAmerican Energy’s or MidAmerican Funding’s financial results.

MidAmerican Energy is required to pass income tax benefits related to certain accelerated 1ax depreciation and other
property-related basis differences on o its customers in Iowa. These amounts were recognized as regulatory assets,
which totaled $164 8 million and $146.0 millicn as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, and will be
included in rates when the temporary differences reverse. Management believes the existing regulatory assels are
probable of recovery. If it becomes ne longer probable that these costs will be recovered, the assets would be
wriiten-off and recognized in earnings.

MidAmerican Fuading and MidAmerican Energy recognize deferred tax assets and liahilities based on differences

between the financial statement and tax bases of assets and liabilities using estimated tax rates in effect for the year
in which the differences are expected to reverse.
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Revenue Recognition - Unbilled Revenue

Revenue from elcctric customers is recognized as ¢leetricity is delivered fo customers and includes amounts for
services rendered. Revenue from the sale, transportation and distribution of natural gas is recognized when either the
service is provided or the product is delivered.

For MidAmerican Fnergy, the determination of sales to individual customers is based on the reading of their meters,
which is performed on a systematic basis throughout the month. At the end of cach month, MidAmerican Energy
records unbilled revenues representing an estimate of the amount customers will be billed for energy provided
between the meter-reading dates and the end of that month. This estimate is reversed in the following month and
actual revenue is recorded based on subsequent meter readings.

The monthly unbilled revenues of MidAmerican Energy are determined by the estimation of unbilled energy
provided during the period, the assignment of unbilled energy provided to customer classes and the averape rate per
customer class. Factors that can impact the estimate of unbilled energy provided include, but are not limited to,
scasonal weather patterns, historical trends, ling fosses, economic impacts and composition of customer classes.
Unbilled revenues were $94.3 million as of December 31, 2006.

Hem TA. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures Abcut Market Risk

‘MidAmerican Energy’s Consolidated Balance Sheets include assets and Liabilities whose fair values are subject to
market risks. MidAmerican Energy’s significant market risks are primarily associated with commodity prices and
interest rates and are addressed below. MidAmerican Energy is also subject to credit risk related to itis wholesale
energy marketing activities, as discussed below. Refer to Note (11) of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in
Ttem 8 for additional information regardmg MidAmerican Energy’s accounting for derivative contracts,

Commodity Price Ri

MidAmerican Epergy is subject to significant commeodity risk. Exposures include variations in the price of
wholesale ¢lectricity that is purchased and sold, fuel costs 1o generate electricily, and natural gas supply for
regulated retail gas customers. Electricity and natural gas prices are subject to wide price swings as demand
responds to, among many other items, changing weather, iimited storage, transmission and transportation
consiraints, and lack of alternative supplies from other areas. To mitigate a portion of the risk, MidAmerican
Energy uses derivative instraments, inchuding forwards, futures, options and other over-the-counter agreements, to
effectively secure future supply or sell future production at fixed prices. The settied cost of these contracts is
generally recovered from customers in regulated rates. Accordingly, the net umrealized gains and losses associated
with interim price movements on contracts that are accousnted for as derivatives, and amounts that are probable of
recovery in retail rates, are recorded as regulatory net assets or liabilities. Financial results may be negatively
impacted if the costs of wholesale electricity, fuel and or natural gas are higher than what is permitied 1o be
recovered in regulated retail rates.

MidAmerican Energy also uses futures, oplions and swap agreemenis t¢ economically hedge gas and electric
commodity prices for physical delivery to nonregulated customers. MidAmerican Energy does not engage in a
material amount of proprietary trading activities.

The table that follows summarizes MidAmerican Energy’s commodity nisk on energy derivative contracts as of
December 31, 2006, and shows the effects of a hypothetical 10% increase and a 10% decrease in market prices as of
that date. The selected hypethetical change does not reflect what could be considered the best or worst case
scenarios (in miilions):
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Estimated Fair Value
Hypothetical Price aficr Hypothetical
Fair Value Change Change in Price
As of December 31, 2006 3 {42.2) 10% increase $ {31.1)
10% decrease $ {53.4)
Interest Rate Risk
MidAmerican Energy —

As of December 31, 2006, MidAmerican Energy had fixed-rate long-term debt totaling $1.71 billion with a fair
value of $1.72 billion. Because of their fixed interest rates, these instruments do not expose MidAmerican Energy to
the risk of eamings loss due to changes in market interest rates. However, the fair value of these instruments would
decrease by approximately $101 million if interest rates were to increase hy 10% from their levels at December 31,
2006, Comparatively, as of December 31, 2005, MidAmerican Energy had fixed-rate lopg-term debt totaling
$1.52 billion with a fair value of $1.56 billion. The fair value of these instruments wouid have decreased by
approximaicly $78 million if interest rates had increased by 10% from their levels at December 31, 2605, In general,
such a decrease in fair value would impact earnings and cash flows only if MidAmerican Energy were to reacquire
all ar a portion of these instruments prior to their maturity.

As of December3l, 2006 and 2005, MidAmerican Energy had long-term floating rate obligations totaling
$120 miflion that expose MidAmerican Euergy to risk of increased interest expense in the event of increases in
short-term interest rates. This market risk is not hedged as of December 31, 2006. The camrying value of the Jong-
term floating rate obligations as of December 31, 2006, approximated fair value. If the floating interest rates were to
increase by 10% from December 31, levels, it wold not have a material effect on MidAmerican Energy’s interest
expense for either year.

MidAmerican Funding —

As of December 31, 2006, MidAmerican Funding bad fixed-rate long-term debt totaling $700 miilion with a fair
vahie of $754 miflion. Because of their fixed interest rates, these instruments do not expose MidAmerican Funding
{0 the risk of earnings loss due to changes in market interest rates. However, the fair value of these instruments
would decrease by approximately $30 million if imterest rates were to increase by 10% from their levels at
December 31, 2006, Comparatively, as of December 31, 2005, MidAmerican Funding had fixed-rate long-term debt
totaling $700 miltion with a fair value of $757 million. The fair value of these instruments would have decreased by
approximately $32 million if imterest rates had increased by 10% from their levels at December 31, 2005. In general,
such a decrease in fair value would impact earnings and cash flows enly if MidAmerican Funding were to reacquire
all or a portion of these instruments prior o their maturity.

Credit Risk

MidAmerican Energy extends unsecured credit to other utilities, energy marketers, financial institutions and certain
commercial and industrial end-users in conjunction with wholesale energy marketing activities. MidAmerican
Energy analyzes the financial condition of each wholesale counterparty before entering into eny transactions,
establishes limits on the amount of unsecured credit to be extended to each counterparty, and evainates the
appropriateness of unsecured credit limits on an ongoing basis. Credit exposures relative to approved limits are
monitored daily, with all exceptions to approved limits reported to senior management. MidAmerican Enecrgy
defines credit exposure as the potential loss in value in the event of non-payment or non-performance by a
coumterparty, which includes not only accounts receivable, but also the replacement, or mark-10-markei value of
contracts for future performance. MidAmerican Encrgy seeks 10 nepotiate contractual arrangements with wholesale
counterparties to provide for net settlement of monthly accounts receivable and accounts payable and net settlement
of coniracts for future perfornance in the event of default. Accounts payabie are deducted from calculations of
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credit exposure for counterparties with whom such contraciual arrangements exist. Mid American Energy also seeks
to negotiate confractuzl arrangements that provide for the exchange of collateral in the event that credit exposure to
a particular counterparty (1) exceeds a specified threshold or (2) in the event of 2 material adverse change in such
counterpariy’s financial condition or downgrade in its credit ratings to below “invesiment grade™ by a nationally
recognized statistical rating organization such as Moody’s ot Standard & Poor’s. MidAmerican Energy periodically
requests and receives collateral, typically in the form of cash or letters of credit, from counterparties with credit
exposure in excess of established limits. As of December 31, 2006, 82.6% of MidAmerican Energy’s credit
exposure, net of collaieral, from wholesale operations was with counterparties baving “investment grade™ credit
ratings from Moody’s or Standard & Poor’s, while an additional 14.9% of MidAmerican Energy’s credit exposure,
net of collateral, from wholesale operations was with cowunterparties having financial characteristics deemed
equivalent to “investment grade” by MidAmerican Energy based on internal review. MidAmerican Energy had
credit exposure to a single counterparty of 19.1% of aggregate credit exposure, net of collateral, to all wholesale
counterparties as of December 31, 2006, The counterparty has investment grade credit ratings from both Moody's
and Standard & Poor’s, and MidAmerican Energy is not aware of any factors that would likely result in a
downgrade of the counterparty’s credis ratings to below investment grade over the remaining term of fransactions
cutstanding as of December 31, 2006.

MidAmerican Energy’s credit exposure with respect to wholesale natural gas, eleciricity, and derivatives
transactions is summarized below as of December 31, 2006 (dolars in thousands).

% of
Credit Rating Equivalent Credit Collateral Credit Exposure, Credit Exposure,
{Standard & Poor’s/Moody’s) Exposure Held Net of Collateral Net of Collateral
AA-/Aa3 and above $ 12,184 3 - $ 12,184 26.2%
A-/A% 1o A+H/AL 9,924 - 9,924 213
BBB-/Baa3 to BBB+/Baal 16,353 . 16,353 s
BB-/Ba3 w0 BB+/Bal 907 - a7 2.0
B+/B1 or lower 3,631 4,500 - -
Unrated 11,258 7.150 7.180¢ 154
Total credit exposure $ 54257 3 11,650 $ 46548 —100.0%
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Shateholder
MidAmerican Energy Company
Des Moines, [owa

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and consolidated statements of capitalization of
MidAmerican Energy Company and subsidiary (the “Company™) as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income, cash flows and retained earnings for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2006, Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the
Index at ltem 15, These financial siatements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Gur tesponsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements and financial
statement schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standarnds of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. The Company is not required to have, nor were
we engapged to perform, an andit of its internal control over financial reporting. Qur audits included consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedurgs that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting
principles vsed and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
MidAmerican Energy Company and subsidisry as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006, in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, such financial
statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole,
presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 158 “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement
Plans - an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R)”, a5 of December 31, 2006,

fs/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Des Moines, Iowa
Febraary 27, 2007
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MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands)
As of December 31,
2006 2005
ASSETS
Utility Plant, Net
Eleciric $ 6,366,054 $ 5,933,387
Gas 1.631.34} 992 834
7,397,395 6,926,221
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (3.261.00D) (3,096,933)
4,136,394 3,829 288
Construction work in progress 866,677 596,458
5003071 4425 746
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 8,765 70,914
Short-term investments 15,000 25,425
Receivables, less allowances of $9,565 and 510,872, respectively 393,504 463,630
Inventorics 113,343 54,923
Other 163,192 60.921
693 804 705,813
Investments and Nonregulated Property, Net 409,533 359,690
Regulatory Assets 273,242 237,201
Other Assets 129943 135.687
Total Assets £ 6509593 § 5864137
CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES
Capitalization
Common shareholder’s equity 3 1,950,779 $ 1,744,882
MidAmerican Energy preferred securities 30,329 30,329
Long-term debt, exciuding current portion 1.819.389 1.471.251
3.800.497 3.246.462
Current Liabilities
Current portion of long-term debt 1,620 160,509
Accounts payable 497,672 359,496
Taxes accrued 99,150 84,122
Interest accrued 32,407 14,488
Other 171381 106,337
802 240 724 952
Other Liabilities
Deferred income taxes 471,369 460,056
Investment tax credits 40,569 43,962
Asset retirement obligations 173,204 191,117
Regulatory lisbilities 989,044 763,155
Other 232 670 434 433
1.906.856 1,892 723
Total Capitalization and Liabilities $ 6.509,593 $ 5864137

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Operating Revenues

Regulated electric

Regulated gas
Nonregulated

Operating Expenses
Regutated:

Cost of fuel, energy and capacity

Cost of gas sold

Other operating expenses
Maintenance

Depreciation and amortization
Property and other {axes

Nonregulated:
Cost of sales
Other

Total operating expenses
Operating Income

Non-Operating Income
Interest and dividend income
Allowance for equity funds
Othet income

Other expense

Fixed Charges

Interest on long-term debt
Other interest expense
Allowance for borrowed funds

Income Before Income Taxes
Income Taxes

Net Income
Preferred Dividends

Earnings on Common Stock

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,

(Tn thousands)

“SEC Filings"
Years Ended December 31,

2006 2008 2004
$ 1,779482 $ 15 13,239 $ 1,421,709
1,111,635 1,322,717 1,010,909
336814 324 381 263735
3.447.931 3.160.337 2.696.353
672,040 476,618 404 615
R88,470 1.098.410 789,975
401958 380,811 374,810
156,199 150,740 164,821
273,565 267,628 264,952
97.199 935 064 92 637
2.489.431 2469271 2.001 810
522,108 290,890 230,567
15,217 19.052 17580
537,325 300,942 248147
3.026.756 2.779.213 2,339.957
421.175 381,124 356,396
8,965 6,016 4,401
37,241 24,433 18,949
9,658 7,128 6,340
{2 988) (4.198) (3,615
52 876 33379 26,075
93,368 80,485 71,949
11,846 8,409 5,728
{16.109) (10.544) (7.816)
89,105 78350 69 861
384 946 316,153 312,610
118.270 114 856 102,153
266,670 221,297 210,455
1o 1247 1245
$..265.420 $ 220050 $ 209210
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MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY AND SUBRSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(In thousands)
Years Ended December 31,
2000 2005 2004
Eamings on Common Stock 265429 $ 220050 5 209210
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
Tinrealized gains (losses) on cash flow hedpes:
Unrealized gains (losses) durimg period-
Before incorne taxes (22,402) - -
Income tax benefit 8912 - -
(13.4%0) - -
Less realized gains (losses) reflected in net incoine
during period-
Before income taxes (2,215) - 682
Income tax (expense) benefit 893 - {283)
1,322 - - 399
Net unteglized gains (iosses) (12,168) - (399)
Minitnm pension iability adjustment:
Before income taxes (22) (4,512) -
Income tax (expense) benehit 9 1.876 -
(13 (2.636) -
Gther comprehensive income (loss) (12.181) {2.636) (399)
Comprehensive Income 3 253248 217414 $ 208811

The accompanying notes are an iniegral part of these financial statements.
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MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
{In thousands)
Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Net income $ 266,676 £ 221297 § 210455
Adjustments to reconcile et income to net cash provided:

Depreciation and amortization 274,622 268,943 266,207

Deferred imcome taxes and investment tax credit, net (1,714 (569) 35,531

Amortization of other assets and liabilities 25984 27,667 18,210

Impact of changes in working capital-

- Receivables, net 59,585 (116,922) (28,697)
Inventories (28,420) 5,023 (4,181}
Accounis payable (75,709) 90,895 29,310
Taxes accrued 15,574 (3,602) (1,748)
Other current assets and liabilities 34,381 (8,144) 9.436

Other, net (10.984) (19.422) (11.029}
Net cash provided by operating activities 559995 463,166 523,494

Net Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Utility construction expenditures (757,327) (699,061) (631,962)
Quad Cities Station decormmissioning trust fund (8,299) (8,299) (8.299)
Purchases of avaitable-for-sale securities (852,931) (563,330) (748,801)
Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities 850,628 564,025 691,133
Other, net 16,654 17,635 18,004
Net cash nsed in investing activities (751.275) (689.030) {679.923)
Net Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Dividends paid (51,247) (1,247) (1,245)
Issuance of long-term debt, net of issuance cost 346,144 296,466 347,769
Retirement of long-term debt, including reacquisition cost {160,591) {90,850) (56,168)
Net decrease in notes payable - - (48,000)
Other (3175 4.296 {963)
Net cash provided by financing activities 129.131 208 665 241,393
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (62,149) (17,199 34,962
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 70,914 88,113 3.151
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year § 8765 $ 70914 § 88113
Supplemental Disclosure;
Interest paid, net of amounts capitalized 5 57641 3 66441 5 56985
Income taxes paid 3 106873 3 125531 3__6R.348

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CAPITALIZATION

Commen Shareholder’s Equity

Cormmon shares, no par; 350,000,000 shares
authorized; 70,980,203 shares outstanding

Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive income:
Unreatized loss on cash flow hedges
Minimum pension liability adjustment

Preferred Securities (100,000,008 shares
authorized)
Cumulative shares outstanding; not subject to
mandatory redemption:
$3.30 Series, 49,451 shares
$3.75 Series, 38,305 shares
$3.90 Series, 32,630 shares
$4 20 Series, 47,362 shares
$4.35 Series, 49,945 shares
$4.40 Series, 35,697 shares
$4.80 Series, 49,898 shares

Long-Term Debt, Excluding Current Portion
Pollution control revenue obligations:
6.1% Series duc 2007
5.95% Series, due 2023 (peneral mortgage
hond-secured)
Variabie rate seties (2006- 3.97%, 2005- 3.59%) -
Prue 2016 and 2017
Due 2023 (general mortgage bond-secured)
Due 2023
Due 2024
Due 2025
Notes:
5.125% Series, due 2013
4.65% Series, due 2014
6.75% Series, due 2031
5.75% Series, due 2035
5.8% Series, due 2036
Obligation under capital leasc
Unamartized debt premium and discount, net

“SEC Filings”
{In thousands, except share amaouints)
As of December 31,
2006 2005
$ 361,162 $ 561,162
1,401,785 1,186,356
(12,168 -
. {2.636)
1,950,779 S13% 1,744 882 53.8%
4.945 4,945
1831 3,831
31263 3,263
4,736 4,736
4,994 4,994
3,570 3,570
4.990 4,994
30,329 0.8% 30329 0.9%
- 1,060
29,030 29,030
37,600 37.600
28,205 28295
6,850 6,830
34,900 34,900
12,750 12,750
275,000 275,000
350,000 350,000
400,000 400,000
300,000 300,000
350,000 -
578 1,184
(5.614) (5,358}
1,819 389 47.9% 1.471.251 45.3%
$ 3,800,497 100,0% $ 5246462 100.0%

Total Capitalization

The accompanying notes are an integrat part of these financial statements.
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Beginning of Year
Net Income
Deduct:

Dividends declared on preferred shares
Dividends declared on comnron shares

End of Year
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MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF RETAINED EARNINGS
{In thousands)
Years Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
51,186 356 3 966,306 & _757.0%6
266,676 221297 210455
1,247 1,247 1,245
50,000 - -
— 51247 — 1247 1245
401 785 311 86,356 3 966306

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

62

g/



H
@
3
@
&)
©)
™
®
®
(1)
(11}
a1
(13)
(14
(15)
(16)
an
(18)
(19

@0

MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Company Organjzaﬁon

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Jointly Ovmed Utility Plant

Inventories

Investments and Nonregulated Property, Net
Regulatory Assets and Liabilities

Preferred Securities

Long-Term Debt

Short-Term Borrowings

Asset Retirement Obligations

Risk Management

Income Taxes

Non-Operating Other Income and Expense
Rate Matiers

Commitments and Contingencies

Employee Benefit Plans

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Segment Information

Related Party Trapsactions

Unaudited Quarterly Operafing Results

INDEX

EXHIBIT C-2

“SEC Filings”

70
71
71
73
74
74
74
75
76
78
79
79
80
83
88
88
90

91

BX



ExHIBIT C-2

“SEC Filings”

MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

) Company Organization

MidAmerican Energy Company (“MidAmerican Energy™ is a public utility with electric and natural gas operations
and is the principal subsidiary of MHC Inc. (“"MHC™), MHC has the following nonregulated subsidiaries: InterCoast
Capital Company, MidAmerican Services Company, Midwest Capital Group, Inc. and MEC Construction Services
Co. MHC is the direct wholly owned subsidiary of MidAmerican Funding, LLC, {“MidAmerican Funding™), which
is an Jowa limited liability company with MidAmerican Energy Hoidings Company (“MidAmerican Energy
Holdings™) as its sole member. MidAmerican Energy Holdings is 87.8% owned by Berkshire Hathaway Inc.
(“Berkshire Hathaway™.

(2) Sammary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consalidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of MidAmerican Energy and the subsidiary under its
control. In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP™), the
subsidiary, which is iess than 100% owned but greater than 50% owned, is consolidated with a minority interest. All
significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated, other than those between rate-regulated
operations,

Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the 2005 and 2004 Consolidated Financial Statements and supporting note disclosures have been
reclassified 1w conform to the 2006 presentation. The Consolidated Statements of Operations refiect the
reclassification of electric transmission wheeling costs from Other Operating Expenses to Cost of Fuel, Energy and
Capacity totaling $3.5 million for 2005 and $6.0 million for 2004. These reclassifications had no effect on
previously reported net income. The Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2005, reflects the
reclassification of the current portion of deferred income taxes to Current Liabilities - Other totaling $11.8 mitlion.

Use of Estimates in Preparation of Financial Statemenis

The preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assuinptions that affect the reporied amounts of assets and Habilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. These estimates include, but are
not limited te, unbilled receivabies, asset retirement obligations, valuation of energy coniracts, the effects of
regulation, the accounting for contingencies, including income tax, environmental and regulatory matters, and
certain assumptions made in accounting for pension and postretitement benefits. Actual results may differ from the
estimates used in preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Accounting for the Effects of Certain Tyvpes of Regulation

MidAmerican Energy’s wtility operations are subject to the reguiation of the Iowa Utilities Board (“TUB™); the
Niinois Commerce Commission (“TCC”); the South Dakota Public Utilities Commission, and the Federal Energy
Regulatory Commission (“FERC”). MidAmerican Encrgy’s accounting policics and the accompanying consolidated
fimancial statements conform 1o GAAP applicable 1o rate-regulated enterprises and reflect the effects of the
ratemaking process.

MidAmerican Energy prepares its financial statements in accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS™ No. 71, “Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation” (“SFAS No.
717), which differs in certain respects from the application of GAAP by nonregulated businesses. In general, SFAS
No. 71 recognizes that accounting for rate-regulated enterprises should reflect the economic effects of regulation, As
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a result, a regulated entity is required to defer the recognition of expenses or income if it is probable that, through
the rate-making process, there will be a comesponding increase or decrease in fumre raigs. Accordingly,
MidAmerican Energy has deferred certain expenses and income that will be recognized in eamings over various
fumre periods.

Management continually evaluates the applicability of SFAS No. 71 and assesses whether its regulatory assets are
probable of future recovery by considering factors such as a change in the regulator’s approach to setting rates from
cost-based rate making to another form of rzgulation, other regulatory actions or the impact of competition, which
could limit MidAmerican Energy’s ability to recover its costs. Based upon this continual assessment, management
believes the application of SFAS No. 71 continues to be appropriate and its existing regulatory assets are probable of
recovery, If it becomes no longer probable that these costs will be recovered, the regulatory assets and regulatory
liabilities would be written off and recognized in operating income.

Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents consist of funds invested in commercial paper, money markei securities and in other investments
with a maturity of three months or less when purchased.

Short-term Investinenls

Short-term investroents consist of anction rate securitics, which are classified as available-for-sale securities as
management does not intend to hold them to maturity nor are they bought and sold with the objective of generating
profits on short-term differences in price. Auction rate securities are not considered cash equivalents due 1o their
stated maturities.

Invesiments

MidAmerican Energy’s management determines the appropriate classification of investments in debt securities and
equity securities at the acquisition date and re-evaluates the classifications at each balance sheet date. Substantially
all of MidAmerican Energy’s investments in debt and equity securities recorded ou the Consolidated Balance Sheets
are held in nuclear decommissioning trusts. Refer to Note (5) for additdonat discussion of MidAmerican Energy’s
investments.

Allowgnce for Doubtful Accounis

The allowance for doubtful accounts is based on MidAmetican Energy's assessment of the collectibility of payments
from its customers. This assessment requires judgment regarding the gutcome of pending disputes, arbitrations and
the ability of customers to pay the amounts owed to MidAmerican Energy.

Derivatives

MidAmerican Energy employs a number of different derivative instrumenis in connection with its electric and
natural gas and interest rate risk management activities, including forward purchases and sales, futures, swaps and
options. Derivative instruments are recorded in the Consolidated Balance Sheets at fair value as either assets or
liabilities unless they are designated as, and qualify for, the normal purchases and normal sales exemptions afforded
by GAAP. Contracts that qualify as normal purchases or normal sales are not marked to market.

For all contracts designated as hedge relationships (“hedge contracts”), MidAmerican Energy maintains formal
documentation of the hedge. In addition, at inception and on a quarierly basis, MidAmerican Energy formally
assesses whether the hedge contracts are highly effective in offsetting changes in cash flows or fair values of the
hedged itemns. MidAmerican Energy documents hedging activity by transaction type and risk management sirategy.

Changes in the fair value of a derivative designated and qualified as a cash flow hedge, to the extent effective, are
included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets and the Consolidated Statements of Capitalization as a component of
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Common Sharcholder’s Equity, until the hedged item is recognized in income. MidAmerican Energy discontinues
hedge accounting prospectively when it has determined that a derivative no longer qualifies as an ¢ffective hedge, or
when it is no longer probable that the hedged forecasted transaction will occnr. When hedge accounting is
discontinued because the derivative no longer qualifies as an effective hedge, future changes in the value of the
derivative are charged to earnings. Gains and losses related to discontmued hedges that were previously recorded in
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (“AQCT”) will remain there until the hedged item is realized, unless it is
probable that the hedged forecasted &ransaction will not occur, at which time associated deferred amounts in AOCI
are immnediately recognized in current carnings,

Certnin derivative electric and gas contracts utilized by the regulated operations of MidAmerican Energy are
recoverable through rates. Accordingly, unrealized changes in fair value of these contracts are deferred as regulatory
assets or liabilities pursnant to SFAS No. 71.

Derivative coniracts for commodities used in MidAmerican Energy’s normal business operations that are settied by
physical delivery, arnong other critetia, are eligible for and may be designated as normal purchases and normal sales
pursuant to the exemption provided by GAAP. Recognition of these contracts in operating revenue or cast of sakes in
the Consolidated Statements of Operations occurs when the contracts settle.

When available, quoted market prices or prices obtained through external sources are nsed to measure a comtract’s
fair value. For contracts without available quoted market prices, fair value is determined based on internally
deveioped modcled prices.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of average cost or market, except for natural gas in starage, which is valued at the
lower of last-in-first-out or market. Refer to Note (4) for detail of inventories as of December 31, 2006 and 2005,

Utility Plant, Net
General

Utility plant is recorded at historical cost. MidAmerican Energy capitalizes all construction related material, direct
labor costs and contract services, as well as indirect construction costs, which include an allowance for funds used
during construction, as discussed below. The cost of major addifions and betterments are capitalized, while costs for
replacements, maintenance, and repairs that do not improve or extend the lives of the respective assels are charged
to maintenance expense.

When MidAmerican Energy retires utility plant, it charges the original cost to accumulated depreciation, The cost of
removal is charged against the cost of removal regulatory liability that was established through depreciation rates.
Generally, when tegulated assets are sold, the cost is removed from the property accounts and the related
accumniated depreciation and amortization accounts are reduced, and the residual gain or loss is deferred and
subsequently amortized through future depreciation rates. Any gain or loss on disposals of nonregulated assets is
recorded in income or expense,

MidAmerican Energy records an allowance for funds used during construction ("AFUDC™), which represents the
estimated debt and equity costs of capital funds necessary 1o finance the construction of regulated facilities. AFUDC
is computed based on guidelines set forth by the FERC and capitalized as a component of utility plant cost, with
offsetting credits to earnings. After construction is completed, MidAmetican Energy is permitted to earn a retum on
these costs by their inclusion in rate base, as well as recover these costs through depreciation expense aver the useful
life of the retated assets.

Depreciation and amortization for MidAmerican Energy’s utility operations are based on siraight-line composite

rates. In November 2004, MidAmerican Energy changed the assumed life of Quad Cities Station pursnant to a 20-
year extension to the operating license of the plant by the Nuclear Regulatory Commission. As a result of the change
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in estimated wseful Tife, nef income for 2005 was increased by $6.7 million, prior to the effect of the Iowa revemie
sharing arrangement. The average depreciation and amortization rates applied to depreciable utility plant for the
years ended December 31 were as follows:

2006 2005 2004
Electric 37% 38% 4.0%
Gas 3.3% 3.4% 3.4%

Depreciation and amortization expense for 2006, 2005 and 2004 also includes 342 .4 million, $40.9 million and
$50.8 million, respectively, for a regulatory charge pursuant to the ferms of a series of electric rate settiement
agreements in Iowa. Refer 1o Note (14) for further discussion. Additionally, depreciation expense for each year
presented includes an $8.3 million charge, which is equal to the level of MidAmerican Energy’s funding into
external trusts for the estimated annual decommiissioning costs of the Quad Cities Station.

Asset Retirement Obligations

MidAmerican Energy recognizes legal asset retirement obligations (“ARO™), mainly related to the decommissioning
of nuclear generation assets. The fair value of a liability for a legal ARO is recognized in the period in which it is
incurred, if a reasonable estimate of fair value can be made. The fair vaiue of the liability is added to the carrying
amount of the associated asset, which is then depreciated over the remaining useful life of the asset. Subsequent to
the initial recognition, the Liability is adjusted for amy revisions to the expected value of the retirement obligation
(with corresponding adjustments to utility plant) and for accretion of the liability dve to the passage of time. The
difference between the ARO liability, the comresponding ARO asset included in wtility plant and amounts recovered
in rates to satisfy such liabilities is recorded as a regulatory assel or liability. Estimated removal costs that
MidAmerican Energy recovers through approved depreciation rates but that do not meet the requirernents of a legal
ARO are accumulated in asset retirement removal costs within regulatery liabilities in the Consolidated Balance
Sheets.

Impairment

MidAmerican Energy evaluates long-lived assets, including utility plant, when events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying vahie of these assets may not be recoverable or the assets meet the criteria of held for sale.
Upon the occurrence of a riggering event, the asset is reviewed to assess whether the estimated undiscounted cash
flows expected from the use of the asset plus residual value from the ultimate disposal exceeds the carrying value of
the asset. If the carrying value exceeds the estimated recoverable amounts, the asset is written down to the estimated
discounted present value of the expected future cash flows from using the asset. The resulting impairment loss is
reflected in the Consolidated Statement of Operations. The impacts of reguiation arc censidered when cvaluating the

carrying valug of regulated assets.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue from electric customers is recognized as electricity 15 delivered to customers and includes amounts for
services rendered. Revenue from the sale, transportation and distribution of natural gas is recognized when either the
sarvice is provided or the product is delivered. Amounts recognized include unbiiled as well as billed amounts.

Unbilled revenues are an estimate of the amount customers will be billed for services rendered between the meter
reading dates in 2 pariicular month and the end of that month. Accrued unbilied revennes were $94.3 million and
$91.7 million at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, and are included in Receivables on the Consolidated
Balance Sheets.

All of MidAmerican Fnergy’s regulated retail gas sales are subject to energy adjusement clauses. MidAmerican

Energy also has costs that are recovered, at least in part, through bill riders, including energy efficiency costs. The
clanses and riders allow MidAmerican Energy to adjust the amounts charged for slectric and gas service as the
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related costs change. The costs recovered in revennes through use of the adjustment clauses and bill riders are
charged to expense in the same period the related revenues are recognized. At any given time, these costs may be
over or under collected from customers. The total under collection inciuded in Receivables at December 31, 2006
and 2005, was $33.9 million and $89.5 million, respectively.

In 2006, MidAmerican Energy changed its management strategy with regard to certain nonregulated end-use gas
contracts. This change resulied in recording prospectively the related revenues and cost of sales on a gross, rather
than net, basis in acoordance with Emerging Issues Task Force Issues No. 02-3, “Recognition and Reporting of
(Gains and Losses on Energy Trading Contracts Under Issues No. 98-10 and 00-17." Cost of sales netted in revenues
for such end-use gas contracis totaled $289.2 million and $193.8 million for 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Sales and Excise Tax

MidAmerican Energy collects from its custompers sales and excise taxes assessed by govemmental authorities on
transactions with customers and later remits the collected taxes to the appropriate authority. If the obligation to pay a
particular tax resides with the customer, MidAmerican Energy reports such taxes collected on a net basis and,
accordingly, they do not affect the Consolidated Stajement of Operations. Taxes for which the obligation resides
with MidAmerican Energy are reported on a gross basis in operating revenues and operating expenses. The amouns
reporied on a gross basis are not material.

Unamortized Debt Premiums, Discounts and Financing Cosis

Premiwm, discounts and financing costs incurred during the issuance of long-term debt are amortized over the term
of the related financing.

Income Taxes

Effective February of 2006, MidAmerican Energy Holdings and subsidiaries will be inchuded in the Berkshire
Hathaway consolidated U.S. federal and certain consolidated state income tax retumns. This resulied from Berkshire
Hathaway, converting its convertible preferred stock of MidAmerican Energy Holdings into shares of MidAmerican
Energy Holdings commeon stock on February 9, 2006, MidAmerican Energy’s and MidAmerican Funding’s income
tax liability is computed on a stand-alone basis.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are based on differences between the financial statements and tax bases of assets
and liabilities using the estimated rates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to reverse.
Changes in deferred income tax assets and liabiiities that are associated with components of other comprehensive
income are charged or credited directly to other comprehensive income. Other changes in deferred income tax assets
and liabilities are included as a component of income tax expense.

MidAmerican Energy is required to pass income tax benefits related to certain accelerated tax depreciation and other
property-telated basis differences on to its customers in fowa. These amounts were recognized as a regulatory asset
totaling $164.8 million and $146.0 million as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively, and will be included in
rates when the temporary differences reverse. Management believes the existing regulatory asset is probable of
recovery. If it becomes probable that these cosis will not be recovered, the asset would be written off and recognized

in earnings.

Investment tax credits arc generally deferred and amoartized over the estimated useful lives of the related properties
ar as prescribed by various regulatory jurisdictions.

In determining MidAmerican Energy’s and MidAmerican Funding’s tax liabilities, management is required to
interpret complex tax laws and regulations. MidAmerican Energy and MidAmerican Funding are subject to
continuous examinations by federal, state and local tax authorities that may give risc to different interpretations of
these complex laws and regulations. Due to the pature of the examination process, it generally takes years before
these examinations are completed and these maiters are resolved. The Internal Revenue Service has closed
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examination of MidAmerican Energy and MidAmerican Funding through 2001. Although the ultimate resolution of
their federal and state tax examinations is uncertain, cach believes it has made adequate provisions for its tax
positions and that the aggregaie amount of additional tax liabilities that may result from these examinations, if any,
will not have a maierial adverse affect on MidAmerican Enerpy's or MidAmerican Funding’s financial results,
MidAmerican Energy’s and MidAmerican Funding’s provisions for tax uncertaintics are included in taxes accrued
and other iong-term liabilities, as appropriate, in their respective Consolidated Balance Sheets.

New decounting Pronouncements

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued SFAS No, 157, “Fair Value
Measurements” (“SFAS No. 157). SFAS No. 157 defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair
value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements, SFAS No. 157 does not impose fair value
measurements on items not already accounted for at fair vaiue; rather it applies, with certain exceptions, 1o other
accouniing prosouncements that either require or permit fair value measurements. SFAS No. 157 is effective for
fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim periods within those fiscal years, MidAmerican
Funding and Mid American Energy are currently evaluating the impact of adopting SFAS No. 157 on their respective
consolidated financial position and resuits of operations.

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 158, “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and
Other Postretirement Plans - an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, &8, 106, and 132(R)” (“SFAS No. 158™),
SFAS No. 158 requires an employer to recognize in its statement of financial position the over- or under-fimded
status of a defined benefit postretirement plan measured as the difference between the fair value of plan assets and
the benefit obligation. For g pension plan, the benefit gbligation is the projected benefit obligation; for any other
postretirement benefit plan, such as a retiree health care plan, the benefit obligation is the accummlated
postretirement benefit obligation. SFAS No. 158 also requires entities to recognize as a component of other
comprehensive mcome, net of ax, the actuarial gains and losses and the prior service ¢osts and credits that arise
during the period, but were not recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost of the period pursuant to
SFAS No. 87, “Employers’ Accounting for Pensions” (“SFAS No.R87”) and SFAS No. 106, “Employers’
Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions”(“SFAS No. 106”). MidAmerican Energy recognizes
as regulatory asseis (liabilitics) the majority of the amoumts altributable to MidAmenican Energy Holdings™ domestic
regulated operations that would otherwise be chargexd to other comprehensive income, net of iax, pursuant to SFAS
No. 71, and amounts that are allocable to affiliates are recorded as receivables from or payables to affiligies. SFAS
No. 158 does not impact the calculation of net periodic benefit cost, and the amounts recognized in cither
accumulated other comprehensive income or regulatory assets (liabilities) will be adjusted as they are subsequently
recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost pursuant to the recognition and amoriization provisions of
SFAS No. 87 and SFAS No. 106,

MidAmerican Energy adopted SFAS No. 158 as of December 31, 2006, The incremental impact of adopting SFAS
No. 158 on the Consolidated Balance Sheets of MidAmerican Energy and MidAmerican Funding as of
December 31, 2006, is as follows (in millions):

Increase (Decrease)

Regulatory assets $ 345
Other assets 736
Common shareholder’s/Member’s equity ‘© 26
Deferred incotne faxes (21.7)
Regulaiory liabilities 122.2
Other Liabilities - Other 5.0

(1) Common shareholder’s equity relates to MidAmerican Energy, and Member's equity relates to
MidAmerican Funding. Pursuant to SFAS No. 138, the impact on accurnulated other comprehensive
income of adopting SFAS No. 158 is reflected as a cumulative change and is not recognized in
comprehensive income in the year of adoption.
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In July 2006, the FASB issued FASB terpretation No. 48, “Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes - an
intespretation of FASE Statement No. 109" (“FIN 48™). FIN 48 clatifies the accounting for uncertainty in income
taxes recognized in accordance with SFAS No. 109, “Accounting for Income Taxes,” and prescribes a recognition
threshold and measurement attribute for the financial staternent recognition and measurement of a tax position taken
or expected to be taken in a return. Guidance is also provided on de-recognition, classification, interest and
penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition. MidAmerican Energy is required to adopt FIN 48
in the first quarter of 2007, MidAmerican Energy is currently evaluating ¢he impact and, based on its assessment to
date, does not believe the adoption of FIN 48 wili have a material effect on its financial resulls.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No, 159, “The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities” (“SFAS No. 159”). SFAS No. 159 permits entities to elect to measure many financial instruments and
certain other items at fair value. Upon adoption of SFAS No. 159, an entity may elect the fair value option for
eligible items that exist at the adoption date. Subsequent to the initial adoption, the election of the fair value option
may only be made at initial recognition of the asset or liability or upon a re-measurement event that gives rise to
new-basis accounting. The decision about whether to elect the fair value option is applied on an insthuneni-by-
instrument basis, is irrevocable and is applied ounly to an entire instrwnent and not only to specified risks, cash flows
or portions of that instrument. SFAS No. 159 does not affect any cxisting accounting literature that requires certain
assets and liabilities to be carried at fair value nor does it eliminate disclosure requirements included in other
accounting standards. SFAS No. 159 is effective for fiscal years beginning afier November 15, 2007. MidAmerican
Energy is currently evaluating the impact of adopting SFAS No. 159 on its financial results,

(K}) Jointly Owned Utility Plant

Under joint ownership agreements with other utilities, MidAmerican Energy, as a tenant in common, has undivided
interests in jointly owned generation and transmission facilities. MidAmerican Energy accounts for its proportional
share of each facility, and each joint owner has provided financing for its share of each generating plant or
transmission line, Operating costs of each facility are assigned to joint owners based on ownership percentage ar
energy purchased, depending on the nature of the cost. Operating Expenses on the Consolidated Statements of
Operations include MidAmerican Energy’s share of the expenses of these facilities.

The amounts (in millions) shown in the 1able below represent MidAmerican Encrgy’s share in each jointly owned
facility as of December 31, 2606.

Company Plant in Accumulated Construction
Share Service Depreciation Wotk in Progress

Louisa Unit No. 1 88.0% $ 5638 $ 3334 $ 71.8
Council Bluffs Unit No. 3 79.1 3322 2i84 11.8
Quad Cities Unit Nos. 1 & 2 250 311.4 150.5 92
Ottamwa Unit No. 1 52.0 2319 1437 12.0
Neal Unit No. 4 406.6 169.0 118.2 0.1
Neal Unit No. 3 72.0 1428 99.6 -
Transmission facilities (a) Various 152.9 43.7 0.1

Total £ 19040 $ 11075 $ 1050
{a) Transmission facilities include 345 and 161 kilovolt transmission lines.
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{4) Inventories
. Inventories includes the following amounts as of December 31 (in thousands):
2006 2003

Materials and supplies, at average cost $ 48966 $ 41,034
Natural gas in storage, at LIFO cost 33,567 23,174
Coal stocks, at average cost 25,575 17,668
Fuel oil, at average cost 4,438 2,747
Emission allowances, at average cost 797 300

Total 3 113,343 S 84923

The current cost of natural gas in storage &t December 31, 2006 and 2005 prices was $110.0 million and
$148 2 milion, respectively.

" Investments and Nonregulated Property, Net

Investments and Nonregulated Property, Net includes the following amounts as of December 31 (in thousands):

2006 2005

Nuclear decomunissioning trusts ¥ 258,816 $ 228070
Rabbi trusts 124,158 115,267
MNon-utility property, net of accumulated depreciation of $4,823 and $4,058,

respectively 17,115 6,967
Coal transportation property, net of accumulated depreciation of $2,871 and

$2,579, tespectively 9,048 9,340
(Other 396 46

Total 2 409535 3 359690
General

Investments held by the nuclear decommissioning trusts for the Quad Cities Station units are classified as available-
for-sale and are reported at fair value. An amount eqgual to the net unrealized gains and losses on those investments
is recorded a5 an adjustment to Regulatory Liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Funds are invesied in the
trusts in gecordance with applicable federal investment guidelines and are restricted for use as reimbursement for
costs of decommissioning Quad Cities Station.

The investment in Rabbi trusts represents the cash surender value of corporate-owned life insurance policies on
certain key executives and the fair value of other related investments. The Rabbi trusts were established to hold
investments used to fund the obligations of various nongqualified execuiive and director compensation plans and to
pay the costs of the trusts.

Non-utility property consists of property such as land, computer software and other assets not recoverable for
regulated utility purposes. In 2006, MidAmerican Energy constructed $9.2 million of currently non-recoverable
utility transmission assets, which are beinp depreciaied over 55 years. Other depreciable property consists primarily
of computer software, which is amortized on a straight-line basis over five years.

The coal transportation property is owned and operated by CBEC Railway Inc., a subsidiary of MidAmerican
Energy. The property is depreciated on a straight-ling basis over 37 years.
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Invesiments in Debt and Equity Securities
MidAmerican Energy’s investments in debt and equity securities, other than auction raie securities, consist of the

investments in the Quad Cities Station nuclear decommissioning Irusts. The amortized cost, gross unrealized gains
and losses and estimated fair value of these investments as of December 31 were as follows (in thousands):

2006
Awmortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Available-for-sale:
Equity securities § B524 $ 56,907 $ (662) $ 145069
Municipal bonds 23,682 382 (60) 24,004
U. 8. Government securities 54,094 461 (374 54,181
Carporate securities 34,174 415 (125} 34,464
Cash equivalents 1,098 - - 1,098
3 201872 § 58165 $ (122D § 258816
2005
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost {(3ains Losses Vahue
Availabie-for-sale:
Equity securities $ 85221 $ 44,537 $(.087) $ 127,671
Municipal bonds 21,309 319 {131 21,497
U. 8. Gavernment securities 47024 520 (402) 47142
Corporate securities 31,243 527 (581) 31,189
Cash equivalents 571 571

§ lE5a8 L4593 L G20 5 20w

As of December 31, 2006, the debt securities held by the Quad Cities Station nuclear decommissioning trusts had
the following maturities (in thousands):

Available-For-Sale
Amortized Fair
Cost Value
Within | year 3 3,363 5 3,340
1 through 5 vears 35,220 35,056
5 through 10 years . 25912 26,041
Over 10 years 47455 48 206

The proceeds and gross realized gains and losses on the disposition of available-for-saie securities in the Quad Cities
Station nuclear decommissioning trusts are shown in the following table (in thousands). Realized and unrealized
pains and losses in the trusts are recorded in the repulatory liability related to the Quad Citics Station asset
retirement obligation and do not impact carnings. Realized gains and losses are determined by specific
identification,

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
Proceeds from sales $ 159444 $ 50,041 3 83726
Gross realized gains 3,937 2,602 2,725
Gross realized losses (1,566) (2,174} (822)
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{6) Regulatory Assets and Liabilities

Regnlatory assets represent costs that are expected to be recovered in future charpes to ulility customers. Of the
regulatory assets listed below, only the nuclear generation assets are included in rate base and earmn a retumn.
Recovery of the assets is ¢stimated to be over the periods shown. MidAmerican Energy’s regulatory assets reflected
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Average
Remaining Life 2006 2005

Deferred income taxes, net 27 years $ 164,769 $ 145967
Employee benefit plaps @ 16 years 45748 11,694
Unrealized loss on regulated derivatives 1 year 35,793 45,431
Debi refinancing costs B years 9,816 11,998
Asset retirement obligations 9 vears - 7423 9,208
Nuclear generation assets 13 years 6,246 6,487
Environmental costs 1 year 1,490 4,907
Other Various 1,957 1,509

Total $ 273240  § 237201

98] Amounts represent income tax benefits related to certain accelerated tax depreciation and property-related
basis differences that were previously flowed through to customers and will be included in rates when the

differences reverse.

(2) Amount represents unrecognized components of benefit plan fimded status that are recoverable in rates

when recognized in net periedic benefit costs.

Regulatory liabilities represent income to be recognized or returned o customers in foture periods. MidAmerican
Energy’s regulatory liabilities reflecied on the Consolidated Balance Sheets consist of the following as of

December 31 (in thonsands):
Average
Remaining Life 2006 2005

Cost of removal accruat 27 years $ 466,171 $ 448493
Iowa electric settlement accrual 1 year 259,263 213,135
Employee benefit plans @ 16 years 122,193 -
Asset retirement obligations 31 years 117,705 65,966
Unrealized gain on regulated derivatives 1 year 21,437 29,648
Nuclear insurance reserve 47 years 2,275 2,419
Environmental insurance recovery - - 3494

Total $ 989044 § 763155

(N Amounts represemt the remaining cost of removing (exclusive of ARO liabilities) electric and gas assets
and have been accrued through depreciation rates, in accordance with generally accepted regulatory

practices.

(2) Amount represents narecognized components of benefii pian funded status that are recoverable in rates

when recognized in net periodic benefit costs.
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(¢)) Preferred Securities

The total outstanding cumulative preferred securities of MidAmerican Encrgy are not subject to mandatory
redemption requirements and may be redeemed at the option of MidAmerican Energy ai prices which, in the
aggregate, total $31.1 million. The aggregate total the holders of all preferred securities outstanding at December 31,
2006, are entitied o upon involintary bankrupicy is $30.3 million plus accreed dividends. Anmual dividend
requirements for all preferred securities outstanding at December 31, 2006, total $1.2 million.

(8)  Long-Term Debt

MidAmerican Energy’s annual sinking fund requirements and maturities of long-term debt through 2011 are
$1.6 million, $0.4 million and $0.1 million for 2007, 2008 and 2009, respectively. Refer to MidAmerican Energy’s
Consolidated Statements of Capitalization for detail of long-term debt.

MidAmerican Energy’s Variable Raic Pollution Control Revenue Obligations bear interest at rates that are
periodically established fhrough remarketing of the bonds in the shori-term tax-exempt market MidAmerican
Energy, at its option, may change the mode of interest calculation for these bonds by selecting from among several
floating or fixed rate alternatives. The interest rates shown in the Consolidated Statements of Capitalization are the
weighted average interest rates as of December 31, 2006 and 2005. MidAmerican Energy maintains a revolving
credit facility agreement to provide liquidity for holders of these issucs.

The indenture pertaining to MidAmerican Energy’s unsecured senior notes provides that if MidAmerican Energy
were {0 issue secured debt in the future, then such unsecured senior notes, as may then be existing, would equally
and ratably be secured thereby. As of December 31, 2006, MidAmerican Energy was in compliance with all of its
applicable long-term debt covenants.

MidAmerican Energy does not guarantee any of MidAmerican Funding’s long-term debt. However, all of
MidAmerican Enecrgy’s common stock is security for MidAmerican Funding's long-term debt. Among other
sources, MidAmerican Funding may use¢ distributions from MidAmerican Energy to make payments on its long-
term debt. Refer to Note (8) of MidAmerican Funding’s Notes 1o Consolidated Financial Statements.

On October 6, 2006, MidAmerican Energy issued $350 million of 5.8% mediumn-term notes due in 2036. The
proceeds are being used to support construction of electric generation projects and for general corporate puzposes.

o Short-Term Borrowings

Interim financing of working capital needs and the construction program is obtained from wunaffiliated parties
through the sale of commercial paper or shori-term borrowing from banks.

MidAmerican Energy has in place a $500.0 million unsecured revolving credit facility expiring in July 2011, which
supports jts $379.6 million commercial paper program and its variable rate pollution control revenue obligations.
The credit facility has a variable interest rate based on the London Interbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR™) plus 0.115%,
that varies based on MidAmerican Encrgy’s credit mtings for its senior unsccured long-term debt securities. The
related credit agreement requires that MidAmerican Energy’s mafio of consolidated debt @y total capitalization,
including current maturities, not exceed 0.65 to 1.0 as of the last day of any quarier. In addition, MidAmetican
Energy has a $5.0 million tine of credit, which expires in June 2007, and has a variable interest rate based on LIBOR
plus 0.25%. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, MidAmerican Energy had no commercial paper or bank notes
outsianding, and the full amount of the revolving credit facility and line of credit was available. As of December 31,
2006, MidAmerican Energy was in compliance with all covenants related to its short-term borrewings.
MidAmerican Energy has authority from the FERC to issue through April 14, 2007, short-ierm debt in the form of
commercial paper and hank notes apgregating $500.0 million.
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(10) Asset Retirement Obligations

MidAmerican Energy records an asset retirement obligation (“ARQO™) for legal obligations related to the retirement
of long-lived physical assets. MidAmerican Energy estimates its ARO liabilities based upon detailed engineering
calculations of the amount and timing of the future cash spending for a third party to perform the required work.
Spending estimates are escalated for inflation and discounted at a credit-adjusted, risk-free rate. MidAmerican
Energy then records an ARO asset associated with the liability. The ARO assets are depreciated over their expected
lives, and the ARO liabilities are accreted to the projected spending date. Changes in estimates could occur due to
plan revisions, changes in estimated costs of nuclear decommissioning and other costs and changes in tming of the
performance of reclamation activities.

On December 31, 2005, MidAmerican Energy adopied FASB Interpretation No. 47, “Accounting for Cenditional
Asset Retirement Obligations, an interpretation of FASE Statement No, 1437 (“FIN 47”), FIN 47 clarifies that the
term conditional asset refirement obligation as used in SFAS No. 143, “Accounting for Asset Reiirement
Obligations,” refers to a legal obligation to perform an asset retirement activity in which the timing and/or method of
settiement are conditional on a fuiure event that may or may not be within the control of the entity. Accordingly,
MidAmerican Energy is requited to recognize a liability for the fair value of a conditional ARQ if the fair value of
the liability can be reasonably estimated. Uncertainty about the timing or method of settiement of a conditional ARQ
should be factored into the measurement of the liability when sufficient information exists.

In conjunction with the adoption of FIN 47, MidAmerican Energy recorded as of Deceraber 31, 2005, $10.8 million
of ARO liabilities related to conditional AR(Ys; $0.2 million of associated AROQ assets, net of accumulated
depreciation; and a $10.6 million reduction of regulatory liabilities. Adoption of FIN 47 did not impact net income.
The total ARO liability, computed on a pro forma basis as if FIN 47 had been applied during each of the periods
presented in the comsolidated financial statements, would have been $279.4 million as of January 1, 2004 and
$177.4 million as of December 31, 2004,

The change in the balance of the total ARO liability is summarized as follows (in thousands):

2006 2005
Balance January 1 $191,117 166,845
Adoption of FIN 47 - 10,787
Revision to nuclear decommissioning ARQ liability (30,320) -
Addition for new wind power facilitics 1,713 3,897
Accretion 11,046 9,588
Other (352) -
Balance December 31 $173.204 £191,117

As of December 31, 2006, $142.1 million of the total ARQ liability pertained to the decommissioning of Quad
Cities Station, and $258.8 million of assets reflected in Investments and Nonregulated Property, Net, were restricted
for satisfying the Quad Cities Station ARO liability. The 2006 revision to the muclear decommissioning ARO
liability is a result of a new valuation that was conducted by the operator of Quad Cities Station, consistent with its
practice of periodically performing such studies. The revision increased reguiatory liabilities and did not impact net
income.

In addition 1o the ARO ligbilitics, MidAmerican Energy has accrued for the cost of removing other electric and gas

assets through its depreciation rates, in accordance with accepted regulatory practices. These accruals are reflected
as regulatory liabilities and total $466.2 million and $448.5 million at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.
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(i1) Risk Management

MidAmerican Energy is exposed to loss of net inc
changes in the market price of gas, electricity
varigtions in the severity of weather conditions
exposures, MidAmerican Energy entets into v
options and forward physical contracts. Through
provides the overall direction, structure, conduct
including guthorization and commumication of
derivative instruments, strategic hedging pr
appropriate systems for recording, moenitoring

activities.

The following table summarizes the various
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me, cash flows and asset values due to market risk, including; 1)
fuel used in its regulated and nonregulated businesses, 2)
m normal, and 3) changes in interest rates. To manage these
ous financial derivative instruments, including fatures, swaps,
¢ functioning of a risk oversight committee, senior managementi
d contrel of MidAmerican Energy’s risk management activities,
k management policies and procedures, the use of financial
guidelines, appropriate market and credit risk limits, and
repotting the results of iransactional and risk management

ivative mark-to-market positions included in the consolidated

balance sheet as of December 31, 2006 (in thousangs):

Accumulated
Regulatory Other
Net Assets {[iabilities) Net Asset Comprehensive
Assets Liabililies Total (Liability) Income (Loss) ¥
Regulated electric $ 35744 $ (14,307 $ 21437 g 21437 S -
Regulated gas 1,760 (44.728) (42,968) 35,793 .
Nonregulated 35934 (36.648) (20.714) - 20187
Total $ 73438 SOISERD  §42245)  § 14356 8 20,187
Current § 67,581 $(109 406) $ (41,825
Nom-current 5,857 6477 {420)
Total § 73438 5 3 (42.245)
M Before income taxes.

The following table symmarizes the various derivative mark-to-market positions included i the consolidated
balance sheet as of December 31, 2005 (in thousaﬂcls):

Accumutated
Regulatory Other
Net Assets (Liabilities) Net Asset Comprehensive
Assets Liabilities Total (Liability) Income (Loss) &
Regulated electric $ 17421 $ (34,202) $ (16,781) $ 16,781 $ -
Regulated gas 15,289 (13,396) 1,893 (99%) -
Nonregulated 25.826 _ (25083 4 - -
Total $ 28336 $ (72,681) 3 (14,145 3 15783  —
Current $ 52,641 % (61,608) § (3.967)
Non-current 5895 (11,073) {5.178)
Total $ 58536  S.268D)  §.(14145
®  Bafore income axas.
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Commodity Price Risk

Under the current regulatory framework, Mi

regulated gas customers through a purchase
MidAmerican Energy’s regulated gas customets,
associated with market price volatility. In orde
regulated gas customers through the purchased
fumres, options and over-the-coumter agreements.

rican Energy is allowed to recover its cost of gas from all of its

gas adjustment clause inciuded im revemucs. Accordingly,
though ensured of the availability of gas sapplies, retain the risk
to mitigate a portion of the market price risk retained by its
gas adjustment clauvse, MidAmerican Energy uses patural pas
The reatized gains and iosses on these derivative instruments are

assigned to regulated gas customers through the pyschased gas adjustment clause.

MidAmerican Encrgy is exposed to vaniations i the price of fuel for generation and the price of wholesale power to
be purchased or sold. Under typical operating conditions, MidAmerican Energy has sufficient generation to supply

iis regulated retail electric needs, but may, at ti
incur a loss if the costs of fuel for peneration

es, need to purchase electric power. MidAmerican Energy may
any purchases of clectric power are higher than MidAmerican

Energy is permitted to recover from its customers under current clectric rates. MidAmerican Energy uses physical
and financial forward contracts fo mitigate these regulaied electric price risks.

MidAmerican Energy also derives revermes from nonregulated retail sales of natural pas and electricity to
commercial and industrial end users. Pricing provisions are individually negotated with these customers and may
include fixed prices, prices based on a daily or tonthly market index or prices based on MidAmerican Energy’s
actsal costs. MidAmerican Energy enters into nqtural gas futures, options and swap agreements to economicatly

hedge gas commodity prices for physical defivery

to nonregulated customers. Forward physical supply contracts are

generally entered into in close proximity to entetihg into retail electric contracts to offset the impact of variances in

clectricity prices. Nonregulated retail physical e
gains and losses on such contracts ate recognized
recorded at fair value.

Derivative instruments are used o cconomically
Realized gains and losses on all hedges are reco
capacity; or cost of gas sold, depending wpon the

hedges utilized for regulated purposes are reco
hedges, which are recorded in ingome. Unreali

ciric contracts are considered “normal” purchases or sales and
hen settled. All other nonregulated pas and electric contracts are

edge both commitied and forecasted energy purchases and sales.
ized in income as operating revenues; cost of fuel, energy and
ture of the item being hedped. Net unrealized gains and losses on
as regulatory Liabilities and assets, except for regulated weather
gains or losses on nouregulated dertvative financial instruments

are recognized in income or as other comprehensive income if designated and qualifying as cash flow hedges.

Certain nonreguiated derivatives included in the tgble above have been designated as cash flow hedges and are used
to mitigate changes in future cash Oows for foregasted purchases, Changes in the effective portion of the vahe of
such insouments are reporied in accumulated othgr comprehensive income (“AOCT”), net of income taxes, until the
associated forecasted transaction occurs, at whichl time such amounts are removed from AOCE and reflected in net

income. As of December 31, 2006, $10.3 million
income within the next twelve months.

hf AOCI, net of income taxes, is expecied to be reclassified to net
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(12) Income Taxes

MidAmerican Epergy’s income tax expense (benefit) includes the following for the years

thousands):

Current:
Federal
State .

Dieferred:
Federal
State

Investment tax credit, net
Total

The following table is 2 reconciliation of the sta
income tax rate indicated by the Consolidated Sta

Statutory federal income tax rate
Amortization of investment tax credit
State income tax, net of federal income tax benefit
Resolution of potential tax matter
Renewable electricity production tax credits
Effects of ratemaking

Other

Effective federal and state income tax rate

ExHiBIT C-2

“SEC Filings”

ended December 31 (in

2006 2005 2004
3 91,039 $ 91,055 $ 64,827
28,945 24370 1,797
119.984 115425 66,624
12,583 7,144 46,848
(10.905) (3.532) (6.950)
1.678 3612 36,898
(3392) {4181} (4.367)
$£118.27¢ 5114856 $102,155

tory federal income tax rate and the effective federal and state
ments of Operations for the years ended December 31:

2006 2005 2004
35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
{0.9) (1.2) 14)

49 47 58

- - @7

(5.6) (3.3) .

.0 (L7) (2.4)

(0.6 0.7 (1.6)
_307% _34.2% _32.7%
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The Consolidated Balance Sheets included the folli)wing deferred income taxes as of December 31 (in thousands):

Deferred tax assets related to:
Regulatory liabilities
Revenue sharmg
Employee benefits
Nuclear reserves and decommissioning
Unrealized gains / losses
Fuel cost recoveries
Other

Deferred tax liabilities related to:

Depreciable property
Regulatory assets
Fuel cost recoverias

Reacquired debt

Net deferred income tax liability

2006 2005
$ 136,462 $ 69,888
109,863 92,040
51,125 54,041
22,778 17,913
13,986 6,561
5,347 -
10.938 5637
150,499 246.080
577,335 496,725
233,433 208,879
- 9,896
2,559 2472
813327 717.972

3462 828 5471892

The net deferred income tax liability was reflected as follows on the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of

December 31, (in thousands).

Current assets - Other

Current liabilities - Gther
Deferred income taxes

Net deferred income tax lizbility

(13)  Non-Operating Other Income and Exps

Non-Operating income - Other Income, as shown
corporate-owned life insurance income totaling $7
respectively.

MNon-Operating Income - Other Expense congists
regulated utility customers.
(14)  Rate Matters

Under a series of settflement agreements betweer

2006 2005
$ 8541 s -
. 11,836
_471.369 460.056
$462,828 471892

bnse
on the Consolidated Statements of Operations, inchudes primarily
1 million, $5_2 million and $5.4 million for 2006, 2005 and 2004,

primarily of items not recoverable from MidAmerican Energy’s

MidAmerican Energy, the Iowa Office of Consumer Advocate

{"OCA™ and other intervenors approved by th

IUB, MidAmerican Energy has agreed not to seek a general

increase in electric base rates to become effective prior to January 1, 2013, unless its lowa jurisdictional electric

return on equity for any year falls below 10%.

or to filing for a general increase in cleetric rates, MidAmerican

Energy is required to conduct 30 days of good faith negotiations with the signaiorics t0 the settiement agreements to

attempt to avoid a general increase in such rates.
Tequest or suppott any decrease in MidAmeric
Jamuary 1, 2013. The seitlement apgreements spec

a party to the settlement agreements, the QCA has agreed not to
Energy’s Iowa electric base rates 1o become effective prior to
fically allow the IUB to approve or order electric rate design or

cost of service rate changes that could result in Bc)fmges to rates for specific customers as long as such changes do

not result in an overzll incregse in revenues for

dAmerican Energy. The settlement agreements also each provide
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recorded as a regulatory liability.
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retail electric returns on equity within specified ranges will be

Under a settlement agreement approved by

IUB on December 21, 2001, which was effective through

December 31, 2005, an amount equal to 50% of rgvenues associated with returns on equity between 12% and 14%,
and 83.33% of revenues associated with retums ¢n equity above 14%, in each year was recorded as a regulatory

linbility. A settlement agreement, which was fi
rafemnaking principles on its 2004/2005 wind-pow]
2003, provides that during the period Jammary 1,
revemjgs associated with returns on equity betw
equify batween 13% and 14%, and 83.3% of rev
will be recordad as a regulatory liability. The se
Energy and the OCA not to seek or support a g¢
beconk effective prior to January 1, 2011

On January 31, 2005, the IUB approved a settd
2005 expansion of its wind-powered gencrati
agreement filed i conjunction with MidAmeri
ratings, of additional wind-powered generation
revenue sharing mechanism through 2012 and
regarding general increases or decreases in electric

d in conjunction with MidAmerican Energy’s application for
ered generation project and approved by the TUB on October 17,
2006 through December 31, 2010, an amount equal to 40% of

11.75% and 13%, 50% of revenues associated with returns on
nues associated with returns on equity above 14%, in each vear
lement agreement also includes commitments by MidAmerican
neral increase or decreasc, respectively, in electric base rates to

ent agreement filed in conjunction with MidAmerican Energy’s
project. On April 18, 2006, the TUB approved a settlement
Energy’s application for up to 545 MW, based on nameplate
apacity in Iowa. The settiement agreements extend the current
extend MidAmerican Energy’s and the OCA’s comrnitments
base rates through December 31, 2012,

The regulatory liabilities created by the settlem

t agreemenis are recorded as a regulatory charge in depreciation

and amortization expense when the liability is acgrued. Additionally, interest expense is accrued on the portion of

the regulatory liability balance recorded in prior
be reduced as they are credited against plani in s

. Regulatory liabilities created for the years through 2010 will
ice associated with generating plant additions. As a result of such

credits applied to generating plant balances, futurg depreciation will be reduced. The regulatory liability accrued for

2011 and 2012, if any, will be credited 5o custo
of the regulatory liability is summarized as follows

Balance Jannary 1

Current year revenue sharing

Interest costs

Amounts applied to uiility plant in service
Balance December 31

(15)  Commitments and Contingencies

Ewvironmental Matters

MidAmerican Energy is subject to numerons en
quality standards promulgated by the United Sta

bills in 2012 and 2013, respectively. The change in the balance
{in thousands).

2006 2005

$213,135 $181,188
42412 40,904
10,312 6,850
(6,596) (15 .807)

$239.263 3213135

ironmental laws, including the federal Clean Air Act, related air
Eavironmental Protection Agency (“EPA™) and various state air

quality laws; the Endangered Species Act, particularly as it relates to certain endangered species of fish; the

MidAmerican Energy to reduce emissions from those facilities through the installation of additional or improved
cmission controls, the purchase of additional emission allowances, or some combination thereof. MidAmerican
Energy believes it is in material compliance with quirent environmental requiremments.
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In March 2005, the EPA released the final Clean Air Mercury Rule (“CAMR™). The CAMR utilizes a market-based
cap and trade mechanism to reduce mercury emissions from coal-burning power plants from the 1999 natonwide
level of 48 tons to 15 tons at full implementatipbn. The CAMR’s two-phase reduction program requites initial
reductions of mercury emission in 2010 and an gverall reduction in mercury emissions from coal-buming power
plants of 70% by 2018. Individual states are required to implement the CAMR or alternative requirements to achieve
equivalent or greater mercury emission reductions through their state implementation plans.

In March 2005, the EPA released the final Clea Air Interstate Rule (“CAIR™), calling for reductions of suifur
dioxide (“SO,”) and nitrogen oxides (“NO,") emispions in the eastern United States through, at each state’s optiorn, a
market-based cap and trade system, emission reductions, or both, The state of Iowa has implemented mies that
exercise the option of the markei-based cap and tmde system. While the state of Iowa has been determined to be in
attainment of the ozone and fine pariiculate dards, Jowa has been found to significantly contribuie to
nonattainment of the fine particulate standard in [Cock County, Illinois; Lake County, Indiana; Madison County,
Thinois; St. Clair County, Hlingis; and Marion Cqunty, Indiana. The EPA has also concluded that emissions from
Towa significantly contribule o ozone nonattaipment in Kenosha and Sheboygan counties in Wisconsin and
Macomb County, Michipan. Under the final CAJR, the first phase reductions of SO, emissions are effective an
Jamuary 1, 201(, with the second phase reductions effective January 1, 2015, For NO,, the first phase emissions
reductions are effective January 1, 2009, and the decond phase reductions are effective January I, 2015. The CAIR
calls for overall reductions of SO- and NO, in Iowg of 68% and 67%, respectively, from 2003 levels by 2015,

The CAMR or the CAIR could, in whole or in part, be superseded or made more stringent by one of a number of
multi-pollutant emission reduction proposals curtenatly under consideration at the federal level, including pending
legislative proposals that comemplate 70% to 90%6 reductions of 30, NOx and mercury, as well as possible new
federal regulation of carbon dioxide and other gasgs that may affect global climate change. In addition to any federal
lepislation that could be enacted by Congress o sgpersede the CAMR and the CAIR, the rules could be changed or
overturned as a result of litigation. The suffici of the standards cstablished by both the CAMR and the CATR
has been iegally challenged in the United States District Court for the District of Columbia,

MidAmerican Energy has implemented a planninf process that forecasts the site-specific controls and actions that
may be required to meet emissions rednctions as promulgated by the EPA. In accordance with an lowa law passed in
2001, MidAmerican Energy has on file with the its current multi-vesr plan and budget for managing SO., NOx
and mercury from its generating facilities in a cpst-effective manner. The plan, which is required to be updated
gvery two years, provides specific actions fo be n at each coal-fired gencrating facility and the related costs and
timing for each action.
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Unconditional Purchase Obligations
MidAmerican Energy had the following unconditignal purchase obligations as of December 31, 2006 (in millions):

Minimum paymenis required for

After

Contract type 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2011 Tonal
Coal and nataral gas for

generation 51183 % 482 $444 $256 $ 8¢ § 735 £2526
Electric capacity 28.0 358 289 94 9.4 155.9 267.4
Natural gas for gas

operations 57.1 25.3 18.0 93 73 15.6 132.6
Opecrating leascs,

easements and

maintenance contracts 12.8 95 44 38 14 734 107.3
Deferred construction

payments _ 2000 - - 200.0

34162 1188 £957  $£481 @ $£287 2 42324 2 $£9599

Cocl, Energy and Natural Gas Commitmgnts

MidAmerican Energy has coal supply and related {ransportation contracts for its coal-fired generating stations. The
contracts have expiration dates ranging from 2007 to 2012. MidAmerican Energy expects to supplement these coal
contracts with additional contracts and spot markgt purchases to fulfill its finure coal supply needs. Additionally,
MidAmerican Energy has a natural gas transpoftation confract, which expires in 2012, for a natural gas-fired
generating plant,

MidAmerican Energy has contracts to purchase glectric capacity to meet its electric system energy requirements.
The contracts have expiration dates ranging from 2007 to 2028.

MidAmerican Energy also has various natural gas pupply and transportation contracts for its gas operations that have
expiration dates ranging from 2007 to 2017.

Operating Leases, Easements and Mainlenance Confracis

MidAmerican Energy has non-cancelable operating leases with expiration dates from 2007 to 2015 primarily for
computer equipment, office space and rail cars. ican Energy also has non-cancelable easements for land in
northwest Iowa on which its wind-farm turbines afe located, as well as non-cancelable maintenance contracts for the
turbines. The easements have expiration dates from 2034 to 2057, and the maintenance contracts expire in 2007 and
2008, Payments on non-cancelable operating leasgs, easements and maiutenance contracts totaled $11.7 million for
2006, $9.8 million for 2005 and $8.3 million for 2

Deferred Construction Payments

On February 12, 2003, MidAmerican Energy executed a contract with Mitsui & Co. Energy Development, Inc.
(“Mitsui”) for engineering, procurement and ¢ ction of a 790-MW (based on expected accreditation) coal-fired
generating plant expected to be completed in the Eummex of 2007. MidAmerican Energy currently holds a 60.67%
individual ownership interest as a tenant in c oti with the other owners of the plant. Under the contract,
MidAmerican Energy is allowed to defer paymenfs, including the other owners® shares, for up to $200.0 million of
billed construction costs through the end of the project. In July 2005, MidAmerican Encrgy reached the total
allowed amount of $200.0 million of deferred payments. On the Consolidated Balance Sheets, the liability is
reflecled in Accounts Payable as of December 31, 006, and Other Liabilities - Other as of December 31, 2005.
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A 578.7 million asset representing the other owners” share of the deferred payments is reflected on the Consolidated
Balance Sheets in Curreni Assets - Other as of Dgcember 31, 2006, and in Other Assets as of December 31, 2005,

MidAmerican Energy will bill each of the other
made fo Mitsui,

Net deferred payments added to Construction Wo
from Utility Construction Expenditures on the Co
and $78.2 million for 2006, 2005 and 2004, respe

Guarantees

MidAmerican Energy is the lessee on operating le
of such equipment throughout the term of the 1

pwners for its share of the deferred payments when payment is

lc in Progress on the Consolidated Balance Sheets, but excluded
tidated Statements of Cash Flows, totaled zero, $28.9 million

ively.

hses for coal railcars that contain guarantees of the residual value
. Events triggering the residual guarantees include termination of

the lease, loss of the equipment or purchase of the equipment. Lease terms are for five years with provisions for

extensions. As of December 31, 2006, the maxi
$28.5 million. These guarantecs are not reflecicd

Other Commitments and Contingencies

MidAmerican Encrgy is mvolved in a pumber o
predict the uitimate cutcome of these matters, it 3
effect on MidAmerican Energy’s financial resuits.
(16) Employee Benefit Plans

MidAmerican Energy sponsars a noncontributory
of MidAmerican Energy Holdings and its domest

amount of such guarantees specified in these leases totaled
the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

| legal proceedings and claims. While management is unable to
s not expected that their resolution will have a material adverse

fefined benefit pension plan covering subsiantially all employees
¢ energy subsidiaries, other than PacifiCorp. Benefit obligations

under the plan are based on a cash balance mrangement for salaricd employees and certain union employees and

final average pay formulas for most union emplay
determined costs of the plan and the requirements

pes. Funding o the established trust is based upon the actuarially
of the Internal Revenue Code, the Employee Retirement Income

Security Act and the Pension Protection Act of 2006. MidAmerican Emergy also maintains noncontributory,
nonqualified defined benefit supplernental executiye retirement pians (“SERP”) for active and retired participants.

MidAmerican Energy also spohsors cerain p
substantially all retired empioyees of MidAmeri
than PacifiCorp. Under the plans, substantially

tretirement health care and life insurance bemefits covering
Energy Holdings and its domestic enetgy subsidiaries, other
empioyees of the participating companies may become ¢ligible

for these benefits if they reach retirement age whik working at their respective companies. The other postretirement
benefit plan was amended for non-union employees on July I, 2004, and substantially all union participants on
July 1, 2006. As a result, non-umion employees hired after June 30, 2004, and union employees hired after June 30,
2006, are not ¢ligible for postretirement benefity other than pensions. The plan, as amended, establishes retiree
medical accounts for participants to which Mi ican Energy makes fixed contributions umti! the emplovee’s
retirement. Parficipants will use such accounts jo pay a portion of their medical premiums during retirement,
MidAmerican Energy retains the right to change these benefits anytime, subject to the provisions in its collective

bargaining agreements. MidAmerican Energy has
benefit costs pursuant to SFAS No. 87 and SFAS

MidAmerican Energy bills to and is reimbursed ¢
all plans such affiliates participate in, as determi

MidAmerican Energy’s share of pension cost
MidAmerican Energy’s share of other posir
$12.6 million and $18.9 million, respectively. For
a market-related value is used. Market-related
investroents, which are amortized into market-re

en allowed to recover accrued pension and other postretirement
0. 106 in its electric and gas service rates.

ently for affiliates’ share of the net perodic berefit costs from
d by MidAmerican Energy’s actuaries. In 2006, 2005 and 2004,
318.1 million, $16.8 million and $14.5 million, respectively.
f cost in 2006, 2005 and 2004 totaled $13.9 million,
oses of calculating the expected return on pension plan assets,
ue is equal to fair value except for gains and losses on equity
d value on a straight-line basis over five years.
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Net periodic benefit cost for the pension, including] supplemental retitement, and other postretirement benefits plans
of MidAmerican Energy and the aforcmentioned §ffiliates included the following components for the years ended

December 31 (in thousands):

Pension Other Postretirement
2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004
Service cost $25.490 $£25.840 325568 $ 7358 S$6669 § 7.842
Imterest cost 38,186 36,518 35,159 14,401 13,455 15,716
Expected return on plan assets (38,541)  (38,188) (38.258) (10.353)  (9.611)  (8.437)
Net amortization 3992 4,037 3535 4,170 3.957 6.878
Net periodic benefit cost 128927 328207 $26004 $15,576  §14470 $21.399
The following table is a reconciliation of the fair value of plan assets as of December 31 (in thousands):
Pension Other Postretirenent
2006 20035 2006 2005

Pian assets at fair vaiue, beginning of year H 612,829 $ 591,628 3 150,900 3 179,375
Employer contributions 5,912 3,786 17,919 16,615
Participant contributions - - 9,240 9,096
Acmal return on plan asscts 82,222 46,966 15,641 5,958
Benefils paid and other _| (36.732) 31,551 (20231) (20,144
Plan assets at fair vaiue, end of year §612829  §£213460  §190900

The SERP has no asseis, however, MidAmerican

ergy and MidAmerican Energy Holdings have Rabbi trusts that

hold corporate-owned life insurance and other investments to provide funding for the future cash requirements of the
SERP. The cash surrender value of all of the poligies inchided in the Rabhi trusts, net of amounts borrowed against

the cash surrender value, plus the fair market yalue of other Rabbi trust investments was $109.3 million and
$102.9 million as of December 31, 2006 and 2005| respectively, of which $73.7 million and $70.6 million was held
by MidAmerican Energy as of December 31, 2006|and 2005, respectively, with the remainder held by MidAmerican
Energy Holdings. These assets are not included in the plan assets in the above table,
The following table is a reconciliation of the benef]t obligation as of December 31 (in thousands):
Pension Other Postretitement

2006 2005 2006 2005
Benefit obligation, beginming of year ¥ 678,112 3 657,406 § 249558 $ 256,044
Service cost 25,490 25,844 7,358 6.669
Interest cost 38,186 36,518 14,401 13,455
Participant contribotions - - 9,240 9,096
Plan change 3,701 (3,184) (16,035) (421)
Actuarial (gain) loss 4,103) (6.917) 13,224 (15,141
Benefits paid and other (36.732) (31,551 {20231) (20,14
Benefit obligation, end of year 8 704,654 $ 678112 $ 257515 $ 249558
Accurmlated benefit obligation, end of year § 608435

The portion of the pension projected benefit obligation related to the SERP was $107.0 million and $105.7 million
as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. [The SERP accumulated benefit obligation totaled $103.4 million
and $102.2 million as of December 31, 2006 and 2D05, raspectively.

As of December 31, 2006, the funded stanes of fhe pension and other postretirement plans was recorded in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet as reguired under the pdoption of SFAS Ne, 158. Balance sheet amounts recorded as of

V%,
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December 31, 2005, did not include the unrecognized nei actuarial losses (gains), prior service costs and net
transition obligations of ($42.1) million for the pension plans and $46.5 million for the other postretirement plans. A
miniomm pensicn lability of $28.1 million was recorded at December 31, 2005 related to MidAmerican Energy’s
SERP. The funded status of the plans and the net amount recognized in the accompanying Consolidated Balance
Sheets as of December 31 is as follows (in thousands):

Pension Other Posiretirement
20806 2005 2006 2005
Plan assets at fair vaiue, end of year $ 664,231 $ 612829 $ 213469 ¥ 190,900
Less - Benefit obligation, end of year 704.654 678,112 257515 249558
Funded stams (40,423) {65,283) (44,045) (58,658)
TUnrecognized net actuarial (gain) loss
and other - (42 G78) - 46,545
Net liability recognized in the Consolidated
Balance Sheets 3_(40,423) 3 (107,361) 3_(44.046) 8 (12.113)
Net liability recognized in the Consolidated
Balance Sheets:
Other current liabilities £ (6,366) $ (6091 $  (404) 3 (83)
Dther assets 66,569 - - -
Other liabilities (100,126) (128,815) (43,642) .
Intangible assets - 11,939 - -
Regularory assets - 11,694 - -
Accumulaied other coraprehensive loss - 4,512 - -
Liability of affiliate company - - - (12.030)
Net liability recognized 5 _(40423) $(107.361) 3 _i44 046) £ 02113

MidAmerican Energy sponsors pension and other postretirement pians on behalf of certain of its affiliates in
addition to itself, and therefore, the portion of the funded stams of the respective plans that has not yet been
recognized in net periodic cost is attributable to multiple entities. Additionatly, substantially all of MidAmerican
Energy’s portion of such amounts is sither refundable to or recoverable from its customers and is reflected as
regulatory liabilitics and regulatory assets. The portion of the funded status of the plans not yet recognized in net
periodic cost and its recognition in the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31 is as follows (in thousands):

Pension Other Postretirement
2006 - 2005 2006 2005
Amounts not yet recognized as components of
net periodic benefit cost:
Net loss (gain) $(100,293) $ (51,289) 3 34715 $ 29,725
Prior service cost 10,344 9,207 (3,842) -
Net transition obligation - - 3.269 16,820
Total 3 _(89.953) 3 _(42.078) 3 34142 346545
Amounts not yet recognized as components of
net periodic benefit cost are recorded as
follows in the Consolidated Balance Sheets:
Regulatory assets $ 18,291 $ 27457
Receivable from affiliaies 13,975 2,295
Regulatory lishilities (122,193) -
Payable to affiliates (26) (19,197
Deferred income taxes - 23,587
Total 3 (89.923) § 34142
85
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The net loss, prior service cost and transition obligation that will be amortized in 2007 into net periodic benefit cost
are gstimated to be as follows (in thousands):

Net Prior Service Transition

Loss Cost Cost Total
Pension 3 1,072 $ 2777 5 - $ 3849
Other postretirement 2,290 (232) 545 2,603

Plan Assumptions

Assinnptions used to determine benefit obligations as of December 31 and net benefit cost for the years ended
December 31 are as follows:

Pension Other Postretirement
2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004
Benefit obligations as of December 31:
Discount rate 5.75% 5.75% 5.75% 5.75% 5.75% 5.75%
Rate of compensation increase 4.50% 5.00% 5.00% Not applicable
Net benefit cost for the years ended
December 31:
Discount rate 5.75% 5.75% 5.75% 5.75% 5.75% 5.75%
Expected return on pian assets 7.00%  7.00%  7.00% 700%  7.00%  7.00%
Raie of compensation increase 5.00% 5.00% 5.00% Not applicable

48 Amowunts reflected are pre-tax values. Assumed afier-tax returns for a taxable, non-union other
postretirement plan were 4.27% for all years presented.

2006 2005
Assumed heatth care cost trend rates as of December 31;
Health care cost trend rate assumed for next year 2.00% 9.00%
Raie that the cost trend rate gradually declines to 5.00% 5.00%
Year that the rate reaches the rate it is assumed to remain at 2010 2010

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for the health care plans. A
one-percentage-point change in assumed health care cost trend raies would have the following effects (in
thousands):

Increase (Decrease) in Expense
One Percentage-Point One Percentage-Point
Increase Decrease
Effect on total service and interest cost £ 1,840 $ (527
Effect on other postretirement benefit obligation $ 17,381 $ (14,806)

Contributions and Benefit Payments

Employer contributions to the pension and other postretirement plans are expected to be $6.9 million and
$10.2 million, respectively, for 2007. MidAmerican Energy’s policy is to contribute the minimum required amount
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to the pension plan and the net periodic cost to its other postretirement plans. The Pension Protection Act of 2006
changed funding rules that may have the effect of making minimum pension fimding reguirsments more volatile
than they have been historically. Accordingly, MidAmerican Energy continually evaluates its funding strategies.

Net periodic benefit costs assigned to MidAmerican Energy affiliates are reimbursed curmently in accordance with its
intercompany administrative services agreements. MidAmerican Energy’s expected benefit payments to participants
from its pension and other postretirement plans for 2007 through 201! and for the five years thereafter are
summarized below (in thousands):

Projected Benefit Payvments
Other Postretitement
Pension Gross Medicare Subsidy Net of Subsidy
2007 $ 46,775 $ 15,785 3 2,567 $ 13,218
2008 49,590 17,378 2,750 14,628
2009 53,733 18,719 2,915 15,804
2010 41 985 20,118 3,057 17,061
2011 45,125 21,368 3,188 18,180
2012-16 275,016 124,838 18,766 106,672

Investment Policy and Asset Allocation

MidAmerican Energy’s investment policy for its pension and other postzetirement plans is to balance risk and refurmn
through a diversified portfolio of high-quality equity securities, fixed income securities and other al{ernative
investients. Asset alflocation for the pension and other postretirement plans are as indicated in the tables below.
Maturities for fixed income securities are managed 1o targets consisient with prudent risk tolerances. Sufficient
liquidity is maintained to meet near-term benefit payment obligations. The plans retain outside investrnent advisors
0 manage plan investments within the parameters outlined by the MidAmerican Energy Pensior and Empiloyee
Benefits Plans Administrative Committee. The weighted average return on assets assumption is based on historical
performance for the types of assets in which the pians invest.

MidAmerican Encrgy’s pension plan asset allocation as of December 31, was as follows:

Percentape of Plan Assets
Target
2006 2005 Range
Equity securities 70% 66% 65-75%
Debt securitics 24 26 20-30
Real estaie 5 6 0-10
Other 1 2 0-5
Total = 100% 190%

MidAmerican Energy’s other postretirement benefit plan asset allocation as of December 31, was as follows:

Percentage of Plan Assets
Target
2006 2005 Range
Equity securities 52% 50% 45-55%
Debt securities 47 48 45-55
Other 1 2 0-10
Total __100% 100%
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MidAmerican Energy sponsors defined contribution pension plans (401(k) plans) covering substantially all
cmptoyees. MidAmerican Energy’s contributions vary depending on the plan but are based primarily on each
participant’s level of contribution and camnot exceed the maximum allowable for tax purposes. Total MidAmerican
Encrgy contributions were $9.6 million, $9.3 million and $8.7 million for 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

an Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, notes payable and shor-term investrnents approximates fair
value because of the short-term maturity or frequent remarketing of these instruments. Quad Cities Station nuclear
decommissioning trust funds are carried at fair value, which is based on quoted market prices of the investments
held by the fund.

The fair vaiue of MidAmerican Energy’s long-term debt is estimated based on the quoted market prices for the same
or similar issues or on the current rates offered to MidAmerican Energy for debt of the same remaining maturities.
The following tablc presents the camrying amount and estimated fair valuc of MidAmerican Energy’s long-term debt,
including the current portion, as of December 31 (in thousands):

20§06 2005
Carrying amount $ 1,821,009 $ 1,631,760
Estimated fair value 1,834,590 1,676,760

(18)  Segment Information

MidAmericap Energy has identified two reportable operating segments: regulated electric and regulated gas. The
regulated electric sepment derives most of its revenue from regulated retail sales of electricity to residential,
commercial, and industrial customers and from wholesale sales to other uiilities. The regulated gas segment derives
most of its revenue from regulated retail sales of natural gas to residental, commercial, and industrial customers and
also obtains significant revenues by transporting gas owned by others through its distribution system. Pricing for
regulated electric and pas sales are established separately by regulatory agencies; therefore, management aiso
reviews each segment separately o make decisions regarding atlocation of resources and in evaluating performance.
Common operating costs, interest income, interest expense and income tax expense are allocated to each segment
based on MidAmerican Energy allocators most related to the nature of the cost. *“Nonregulated and other™ in the
tables below coasists principally of nonregulated gas and electric activities.

a8
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The following tables provide information on an operating segment basis as of and for the years ended December 31

(in thoursands):

Segment Profit Information
Operating revenucs:
Regulated electric
Regulated gas
Nonregulated and other
Total

Depreciation and amortization expense:

Regulated electric

Regulated gas

Nounregulated and other (a)
Total

Operating income:
Regulated electric
Reguiated gas
Nonregulated and other

Total

Interest and dividend income:
Regulated electric
Regulated pas
Nonreguiated and other

Total
Eliminations
Consolidated

Fixed charges and preferred dividends:
Reguiated electric
Regulated gas
Nonregulated and other
Total
Eliminations
Consolidated

Income taxes:
Regulated electric
Regulated gas
Nonregulated and other
Total

Eamings on common stock:
Regulated electric
Regulated gas
Nonregulated and other

Total

89

2006 2003 2004
$ 1,779,482 $ 1,513,239 £ 1,421,709
1,111,635 1.322,717 1,010,909
556,814 324 381 263.735
$ 3447931 3,160,337 § 2696353
$ 243,106 $ 237274 $ 235240
30,460 30,354 29712
1.057 1.315 1,255
$ 274623 $_ 268043  §_ 266207
$ 372060 $ 334618 $ 304,045
36,396 38,669 42,371
12.719 7.837 9,980
8421175 S 381024  § 356396
$ 7,313 $ 5,112 3 3,809
1,756 1,639 765
15 15 8
9.084 6,166 4,582
{119 {150) {181
S 8965 §__ 6016 $ 440]
$ 71,397 $ 68,782 $ 60,950
12,805 10,694 10,037
29 o 30
20,471 79,747 71,287
(119 (150) (181)
$ 00332 § 79597 § 71106
g 105,199 5 100,788 Y 03,122
10,041 11,360 9,557
3,030 2 768 {524)
$ 118270  § 114856  § 102155
$ 238,456 $ 193,675 $ 171,490
17,859 21,880 27825
9114 4,495 9895
$ 265420  §_ 200050  §__209210
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2000 2005 2004
e t In ion
Capital expenditures:
Regulated electric $ 770213 $ 713645 £ 690,157
Regulated gas 48,504 42,555 49768
Nonregutated and other 368 1.893 1845
Total $ 819,085 § 768003 3 741,770
Total assets:
Regulated electric $ 5,484,726 $ 4698923 3 4214700
Regulated gas 923,373 1,052,978 840224
Nonregulated and other 101,494 112,236 48,027
Total 3 6509595 3 _5.864,137 22111951

(a) Depreciation and amortization expense above includes depreciation related to nonregulated operations,
which is included in Nomregulated Operating Expense — Other on the Consolidated Statements of
Operations,

(19)  Related Party Transactions

The companies identified as affiliates of MidAmerican Energy are Berkshire Hathaway and its subsidiaries,
including MidAmerican Energy Holdings and its subsidiaries. The basis for these charges is provided for in service
agreements between MidAmerican Energy and its affiliates,

MidAmerican Energy was reimbursed for charges incurred on behalf of its affiliates. The majority of these
reimbursed expenses were for employce wages and benefits, insurance, building reni, computer costs, adminisgrative
services, travel expense, and general and administrative expense; including treasury, legal and accounting functions.
The amount of such reimbursements was $70.6 million, $51.8 million and $58.9 million for 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively,

MidAmerican Energy reimbursed MidAmerican Energy Holdings in the amount of $9.2 millicn, $16.3 million and
$11.4 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, for its share of corporate expenses.

MidAmerican Energy had an apreement with Cordova Energy Company, LLC, a subsidiary of MidAmerican
Energy Holdings, to purchase electric capacity and energy irom a gas-fired combined cycle generation plant. The
agreement, which terminated in May 2004, provided for MidAmerican Energy to purchase up to 50% of the net
capacity of the plant and to supply the fuel stock required to penerate the energy purchased. MidAmerican Energy’s
payments for monthly capacity charges totaled $12.7 million for 2004.

Northern Natural Gas Company (“NNG”), an indirect, wholly owned subsidiary of MidAmerican Energy Holdings,
has been and is one of MidAmerican Eaergy’s suppliers of nanmal gas transportation and storage capacity.
MidAmerican Energy’s net purchases of natural gas transportation and storage capacity from NNG fotaled
$52.4 mitlion in 2006, $52.6 miltion in 2005 and $48.3 million in 2004,

MidAmerican Energy had accounts receivable from affiliates of $11.2 million and $3.2 million as of December 31,
2006 and 2005, respectively, that are included in Receivables on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. MidAmerican
Energy also had accounts payable to affiliates of $9.0 million and $7.3 million as of December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively, that are included in Accounts Payable on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

MidAmerican Energy paid common dividends totaling $50.0 million to MHC in 2006.
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On December 31, 2006, MidAmerican Energy adopted SFAS No. 158 and recognized the full amount of the funded
status for its pension and postretirement plans. The funded status of such plans attributable to MidAmerican
Energy’s affiliates that had not previously been recognized through income was recognized as an intercompany
balance with such affiliates. As of December 31, 2006, amounts Teceivable from affiliates attributable fo the fimded
status of employee benefit plans totaled $16.3 million and similar amounts payabie to affiliates totaled
$£19 2 million, MidAmerican Energy will adjust these balances when changes to the fimded status of the respective
plans are recognized and does not intend to settle the balances currently. See Note (16) for further information
pertaining to pension and postretirement acconnting.

MidAmerican Energy may make distributions on its capital stock subject to regulatory resirictions agreed o by
MidAmerican Energy in March 1999. At that time, MidAmerican Energy committed to the TUB 1o use commercially
reasonable efforts to maintain an investment grade rating on its iong-term debi and to maintain its common equity
level above 42% of total capitalization unless circumstances beyond its confrol result in the common equity level
decreasing to below 39% of total capitalization. MidAmerican Energy mmst seek the approval from the TUB of a
reasonable utility capital stracture if its common equity level decreases below 42% of total capitalization, unless the
decrease is bevond the control of MidAmerican Encrgy. MidAmerican Energy is also required to seek the approval
of the TUB if MidAmerican Energy’s equity level decreases tw below 39%, even if the decrease is due to
circumstances beyond the conirol of MidAmerican Energy. A transfer of assets between MidAmerican Energy and
any of its affiliates, subject to certain nonmaterial exceptions, requires the prior approval of either or hoth the JUB
and the ICC.

(20 Unaudited Quarterly Operating Resnlts

2006
1st er 2nd Ouarter 2rd Quarter 4th er
(In thousands)
Operating revenues $1,041,182 $ 760,271 $ 765360 $ 881118
Operating income 134,888 79,206 129,060 78,021
Net income 86,9638 45,590 84,669 49 449
Earnings on common stock 86,056 45,279 84,357 49,137
2005
1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Omarter 4th Cluarier
(In thousands)
Operating revenues $ 855,136 § 618470 § 721,657 § 965,074
Operating income 99,461 58,730 130,204 92,729
Net income 56,349 32,214 82368 50,366
Earnings on comman stock 56,037 31,503 82,056 50,054

Quarterty data reflect seasonal variations commeon in the Midwest utility industry,

g1
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Managers and Member
MidAmerican Funding, LLC
Des Moines, Iowa

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheeis and consolidated statements of capitalization of
MidAmerican Funding, LLC and subsidiaries (the “Company™) as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the relared
consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income, cash flows and retained eamings for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2006. Our audits also included the financial statement schedule listed in the
Index at Item 15. These financial statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statemenis and financial
staternent scheduie based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financia! statements are free of material misstatement.- The Company is not required to have, nor were
we engaged to perform, an audit of its intemal contro! over financial reporting. Our andits included consideration of
internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriale in the
circumstances, but not for th¢ purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
controi over financiai reporting. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting
ptincipies used and significant esimates made by management, as well as evaluating the averall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our cpinion.

In our opinion, such consclidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
MidAmerican Funding, LLC and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the results of their operations
and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also, in our opinion, such financial
statement schedule, when considered in relation to the basic consolidated financial statements taken as a whole,
presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company adopted Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 158 “Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement
Plans - an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R)” as of December 31, 2006.

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Des Moines, lowa
February 27, 2007

92

a4



EXHIBIT C-2

MIDAMERICAN FUNDING, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Utility Plant, Net
Electric
Gas

Accumulated depreciation and amortization

Construction work in progress

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments

(In thousands)

ASSETS

Receivables, less allowances of $9,635 and $10,942, respectively

Inventories
Other

Investments and Nonregulated Property, Net

Goodwill
Regulatory Assets
Other Assets
Total Assets

CAPITALIZATION AND LIABILITIES

Capitalization

Member’s equity

MidAmerican Energy preferred securities
Long-term debt, excinding current portion

Current Liabilities

Note payable to affiliate

Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable

Tazes accrued

Interest accrued

Other

Other Liabilities

Deferred income taxes
Investment tax credits
Asset retirement obligations
Regulatory liabilities

Other

Total Capitalization and Liabilities

“SEC Filings”
As of December 31,
2006 2005
§ 6,360,054 $ 5933387
1.031.34]1 2992 834
7,397,395 6,926,221
(3.261.001) (3.096.933)
4,136,394 3,829,288
— B66.677 596,458
5.003.071 4425746
9.124 71,207
15,000 25,425
390,336 469,128
113,343 84,923
163,430 61277
691,753 711.960
426983 380,835
1,269,667 1,265,979
273,242 237,201
129,775 135,695
$_7.79449] 3 7157416
$ 2,513.402 $ 2234837
30,329 30,329
2.519.389 2.171.251
5,063,120 4436417
3,285 54283
1,620 160,509
493,409 360,225
97,972 105,029
48,130 30,401
171,583 104 811
815,999 B15.258
467,735 458451
40,569 43,962
173,204 191,117
989,044 763,155
244,820 449 056
1915372 1.905.741

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial staternents.
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MIDAMERICAN FUNDING, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands)
Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
Operating Revenues
Rzgulated electric $ 1,779482 $ 1,513,239 $ 1,421,709
Regulated gas 1,111,635 1,322,717 1,010,909
Nonregulated 561,677 330,128 269.082
3.452.794 3.166.084 2.701.700
Operating Expenses
Regulated:
Cost of fuel, energy and capacity 672,040 476,618 404,615
Cost of gas sold 888,470 1,098.410 789,975
Other operating expenses 401,958 380,811 374,810
Maintenance 156,199 150,740 164,821
Depreciation and amortization 273,565 267 628 264,952
Property and other taxes 97.199 95,064 92,637
2489431 2,469,271 2.091.810
Nonregulated:
Cost of sales 523,374 202 454 231,953
Other 19371 23.276 21.990
542,743 315730 253,943
Total operating expenses 3032176 2,785,001 2,345,753
Operating Income 420618 381.083 355947
Non-Operating Income
Inicrest and dividend income 9,282 6,203 4,509
" Allowance for equity fimds 37,241 24 433 18,949
Other income 63,290 23,088 11,072
Other expense [7,875) (20.007) (5.267)
101,938 33,717 29.263
Fixed Charges
Interest on long-term debt 140,464 127,581 119,004
Other interest expense 14,256 10,077 6,184
Preferred dividends of subsidiaries 1,247 1247 1245
Allowance for borrowed funds {16.109) {(10.544) (7.816)
139,858 128,361 118.6]17
Income Before Income Taxes 382,698 286,439 266,593
Income Taxes 94 457 91370 87.336
Net Income £ 288241 $ 195069 $ 179257

.
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MIDAMERICAN FUNDING, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(In thousands)
Years Ended December 31,
2006 2003 2004
Net Income 288.241 195,069 $ 179257
Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)
Unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities:
Unrealized holding gains (losses) during period-
Before income taxes 32,049 654 136
Income tax (expense) benefit (11.218) (229 (48)
20,831 425 88
Less realized gains (losses) reflected in net income
during period-
Before income taxes 32,113 653 480
Income tax (expense) benefit (11.240) (229) {168)
20.873 424 312
Net unreatized gains (losses) (42) 1 224
Unreaiized gains (losses) on cash flow bedges:
Unrealized gains (losses) during period-
Before income taxes (22,402) - -
Income tax benefit —8312 - ..
(13490 - -
Less realized gains (losses) reflected in net income
during period-
Beforc income taxes {2,215) - 682
Income tax {expense) benefit 893 - (283)
(1.322) - 399
Net unrealized gains (losses) {12.168) - 39
Minirmym pension lability adjustment:
Before income taxes (22) (4,512) -
Income tax (expense) benefit 9 1876 -
{13) (2,636) -
Other comprehensive income (loss}) (12.223) (2.635) 623
Comprehensive Income $ 276018 $ 192434 3 178634

The accompanying notes arz an integral part of these financial statements.
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MIDAMERICAN FUNDING, LL.C AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)
Years Ended December 31,
2000 2005 2004
Net Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Net income $ 288241 $ 195069 3 179257
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided.
Deprecigtion and amortization 274,814 269,142 266,409
Deferred income taxes and investment tax credit, net {3,233) {15,29%8) 30,434
Amortization of other assets and liabilities 21,269 26,229 17,199
Gain on sale of securities, assets and other investments (42,835) (13,954) (316)
Loss from irpairment of assets and other investments 225 15,641 1,735
Tmpact of changes ir working capital-
Receivables, net 67,751 {117,846) (28,717
Inventories (28.420) 5,023 (4,181)
Accounts payable (80,701) 90,494 28,164
Taxes accrued (7,012) (6,741) (2,087)
Other current assets and liabilitics 34.243 (7,724) 9,231
Other, net (2,029} {15744} {3.548)
Nei cash provided by operating activities 515313 433,691 493 580
Net Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Utility construction expenditres (758,179) (699,061) (631,962)
Quad Cities Station decommissioning trust fumd (8,299} {8,299) (8,299
Proceeds from sale of assets and other investments 17,249 15,088 -
Purchases of available-for-sale securities (852,931) (563,330) {748,801)
Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities 878,271 565,689 692,644
Other, net 17,113 16,367 22,959
Net cash used in investing activities (706,776) {673,546) {673.459)
Net Cash Flows From Financing Acfivities
Issuance of long-lerm debt, net 346,144 296,466 347,769
Retirement of long-term debt, including reacquisition cost (160,591) (90,850) (56,168)
Note payable to affiliaie (50,998) 22,783 21,050
Net decrease in notes payable - - (48,000)
Other (3.175) 4.296 (963)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 129380 232.695 263,688
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (62,083) (17,160) 83,809
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 71.207 88,367 4538
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year £ 9124 71207 $ 88367
Supplementai Disclosure:
Interest paid, net of amounts capitalized $ 107346 3 115073 § 104500
Income taxes paid $ . 107050 § 118490 § 54275

The accompanying notes are an integral part of thesc financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CAPITALIZATION
(In thousands, except share amounts)

Member’s Equity

Paid-in capital

Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive income, net:
Unrealized loss on cash flow hedges
Unrealized gain (loss) on securities
Funded status of benefit plans
Minimum pension liabitity adjustment

MidAmerican Energy Preferred Securities
(100,000,000 shares authorized)

- Cunmlative shares outstanding; not subject to
mandatory redemption:

$3 .30 Series, 49,451 shares

$3.75 Series, 38,305 shares

$3.90 Series, 32,630 shares

$4.20 Series, 47,362 shares

$4.35 Series, 49,945 shares

$4.40 Series, 35,697 shares

$4.80 Series, 49,898 shares

Long-Term Debt, Excluding Current Pertion
MidAmerican Energy:
" Pollution contro! revenue obligations -
6.1% Series due 2007
5.95% Series, duc 2023 (general mortgage
bond-secured)

Variable mate series (2006- 3.97%, 2005- 3.59%) -

Due 2016 and 2017

Due 2023 (general morigage bond-secursd)

Duc 2023
Due 2024
Due 2025
Notes -
5.125% Sernies, due 2013
4.65% Series, due 2014
6.75% Series, due 2031
5.75% Series, due 2035
5.8% Series, due 2036
Obligation under capilal lease
Unamortized debt premium and discount, net
Total MidAmerican Energy
MidAmerican Funding parent:
6.339% Senior secured notes due 2009
6.75% Senior secured totes due 2011
6.927% Senior secured notes due 2029
Total MidAmerican Funding parent

Total Capitalization

“gEC Filings"”
As of December 31,
2006 2005
$1,669,753 $1.669.753
855,914 567,673
(12,168) -
5 47
(102) -
[ {2.636)
2,513,402 _49.6% -2.234.837 50.4%
4,945 4,945
3,831 3,831
3,263 3,263
4,736 4,736
4,994 4,994
3,570 3,570
4 990 4.990
30,329 0.6% ~ 30329 0.7%
- 1,000
29,030 29,030
37,600 37,600
28,295 28295
6,850 6,850
34,900 34,900
12,750 12,750
275,000 275,000
350,000 350,000
400,000 400,600
300,000 300,000
350,000 -
578 1,184
(5.614) {5.358)
1.819.389 36.0% 1.471.251 33.1%
175,000 175,000
200,000 200,000
325,000 325.000
700,000 13.8% 700,000 15.8%
2,519,389 49.8% 2,171,251 48.9%
335063120 i000%  $4436417 100.0%

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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MIDAMERICAN FUNDING, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF RETAINED EARNINGS
(In thousands)
Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
Beginning of Year $ 567,673 $ 372,604 $ 193,347
Net Income 288.241 195069 179257
End of Year £ 855914 567,67 372 604

The accompanying notes are an intepral part of these financial statements.
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MIDAMERICAN FUNDING, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

§h) Company Organization

MidAmerican Funding, LLC (“MidAmerican Funding™) is an Iowa limited liability company with MidAmerican
Energy Holdings Company (“MidAmerican Energy Holdings™) as its sole member. MidAmerican Energy Holding’s
is 87.8% owned by Berkshire Hathaway Inc. (“Berkshire Hathaway”). MidAmerican Funding”s direct whoily owned
subsidiary is MHC Inc. (“MHC™), which constitutes substantially all of MidAmerican Funding’s assets, liabilities
and business activities except those related to MidAmerican Funding’s long-term debt securities. MHC’s principal
subsidiary is MidAmenican Energy Company (“MidAmerican Energy™), a public utility with eleciric and natural gas
operations, Other direct wholly owned subsidiaries of MHC are InterCoast Capital Company (“InterCoast Capital™),
Midwest Capital Group, Inc., MidAmerican Services Company and MEC Construction Services Co. -

(2) Summary of Significant Acconnting Policies

In addition to the foliowing significant accounting policies, refer to Note (2) of MidAmerican Energy’s Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements for significant accounting policies of MidAmerican Funding,

Principies of Consolidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of MidAmerican Funding and its subsidiaries. All
significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated, other than those between rate-regulated
aperations.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts in the 2005 and 2004 Consolidated Financial Statements and supporting note disclosures have been
reciassified fo conform to the 2006 presemtation. The Consolidated Statements of Operatons reflect the
reclassification of electric ransmission wheeling costs from Other Operating Expenses io Cost of Fuel, Energy and
Capacity totaling $8.5 million for 2005 and $6.0 million for 2004. These reclassifications had no effect on
previously reported net income. The Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2005, reflecis the
reclassification of the current portion of deferred income taxes to Current Liabilities - Other totaling $10.1 million.

Invesimentis

MidAmerican Funding’s management determines the appropriate classification of investments in debt securities and
equity securities at the acquisition date and re-evaluates the classifications at each balance sheet date. MidAmerican
Funding’s investments in debt and equity securitics, a majority of which are held i nuclear decommissioning trusts,
are primarily classified as available-for-sale.

Available-for-sale sccuritics are stated at fair value with realized gains and losses, as determined on a specific
identification basis, recognized in earnings and umrealized gains and losses recognized in accumulated other
comprehensive income (“AQOCI™, net of tax, except for realized and unrealized gains and lasses on funds held by
the Quad Cities Station nuclear decommissioning trusts. Realized and unrealized gains and losses on these trust
fumds are recorded as regulatory liabilities because MidAmerican Funding expects any difference between actual
decommissioning ¢osts and the funds available in the trusts to be reflecied in future regulated rates.

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the difference between the purchase cost and the fair value of the net assets acquired when
MidAmerican Funding purchased MHC. Goodwill is allecated to each reporting unit and is tested for impairment

using a variety of methods, principally discounted projected future net cash flows, at least anmaally and impairments,
if any, are charged to carmnings. MidAmerican Funding completed its annual review as of October 31, 2006. Key
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assumaptions used in the testing include, but are not limited to, the use of an appropriate discount rate and estimated
fumre cash flows. In estimating cash flows, MidAmerican Funding incorporates current market information as well

as historical factors,

MidAmerican Funding records goodwill adjustments for changes in the estimates of or the settlement of tax bases of

“SEC Filings"

acquired assets, liabilities and carry-forwards and items relating to acquired entities’ prior income tax remrms.

» Jointly Owned Utility Plant

Refer to Note (3) of MidAmerican Energy’s Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
{4) Inventories

Refer to Note (4) of MidAmerican Energy’s Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

&3] Investments and Nonregulated Property, Net

Investments and Nonregulated Property, Net includes the following amounts as of December 31 (in thousands):

2006 2005

Nuclear decommissioning trusts $258.816 $228.070
Rabbi trusts 128,617 119314
MidAmerican Energy non-utility property, net of accumuiated depreciation of

$4,823 and $4,058, respectively 17,115 6,967
Coal transportation property, net of accutiiated depreciation of $2,871 and

$2,579, respectively 9,048 9,340
Equipment leases 5,702 7,400
Real estate, net of accumulated depraciation of $639 and $603, respectively 4977 5,264
Other venture capital investments 1,377 1,508
Energy projects - 1,275
Other 1.33] 1,697

Total $426,983 $380.835
General

Investments held by the muclear decommissioning trusts for the Quad Cities Station vnits are classified as available-
for-sale and are reported at fair value. An amount equal to the net unrealized gains and losses on those investments
-is recorded as an adjustment to Regulatory Liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Funds are invested in
accordance with applicabie federal investment guidelines and are restricted for use as reimbursemnent for costs of

decommissioning Quad Cities Station.

The investment in Rabbi trusts represents the cash surrender value of corporate-owned life insurance policies on
certain key cxecutives and the fair value of other related investments. The Rabbi trusts were cstablished to hold
imvestments used to fund the obligations of varicus nonqualified executive and direcfor compensation plans and to

pay the costs of the trusts,

im
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MidAmerican Energy non-utility property consists of property such as computer software, land and other assets not
recoverabie for regulated wility purposes. In 2006, MidAmerican Energy consiructed $9.2 million of currently non-
recoverable utility transmission assets, which are being depreciated over 55 years. Other depreciable property
congists primarily of computer software, which is amortized on a straight-line basis over five years.

The coal transportation property is owned and operated by CBEC Railway Inc., 2 subsidiary of MidAmerican
Energy. The propetty is depreciated on a straight-line basis over 37 years.

Exuipment leases as of December 31, 2006, which are accounted for as leveraged leases and held by ImterCoast
Capital, consist primarily of a seven percent undivided interest in an eleciric generating station leased to a utility
located in Arizona. That lease terminates in 2015 and had a carrying pre-tax value of $5.4 million and $6.4 million
as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. The investment is exposed o the credit risk of the lessee.

Equipment leases for 2005 also include leveraged Ieases related to equity financing provided for two conmmercial
passenger aircrafi leased to major domestic airtines. During 2006, InterCoast Capital disposed of the two aircraft.
Refer to Note (13) for a discussion of the losses recognized in 2005 related to the aircraft leases.

The investment in real estate includes primarily a 1,920 acre planned residential and commercial development
community located in the southeast corner of South Dakota. As of December 31, 2006, 53.0% of the development
available for sale had been sold.

As of December 31, 2003, energy projects cansisted of non-controlling interests in a gas-fired cogeneration plant
and a hydroelectric generating plant. During 2006, InterCoast Capital sold its parmership interest in the gas-fired
cogeneration plant and changed a financing arrangement related to its investment in the hydroelectric generating
plant. Refer to Note (13) regarding the income recognized by MidAmerican Funding,

Other venture capital investments include investments in independently managed funds, consisting principally of
energy-related venture capital funds. The invesunents are accounted for using the cost or equity method of
accounting, depending on MidAmerican Funding’s level of ownership and management conirol. Most of the special
purpose funds bave stated fermination dates in 2007. At the time of fund termination, any remaining investments in
the fund are liquidated and distributions are made fo investors.
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Investments in Debt and Equity Securities

Substantially all of MidAmerican Funding’s investments in debt and equity securities, other than auction rate
securities, consist of the investments in the Quad Cities Sation nuclear deconumissioning trusts. Refer to Note (17)
of MidAmerican Encrgy’s Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. The amortized cost, gross unrealized gains
and losses and estimated fair value of MidAmerican Funding’s investments in debt and equity securities as of
Decemiber 31 were as Tollows (in thousands):

2006
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost (Gains Losses Vaiue
Available-for-sale:
Equity securities § 88870 $ 56915 $ (662} $ 145123
Municipal bonds 23,682 382 (60} 24,004
U. S. Government securities 54,094 461 (374) 54,188
Corporate securities 34,174 415 (125) 34,464
Cash equivalents 1,098 - - 1.098
$_201918 $ 38173 S (1221 3 258870
2005
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
Available-for-sale:
Equity securities S 85267 $ 44,609 $  (2.087) $ 127,789
Municipal bonds 21,309 319 (131) 21,497
U. S. Govermnent securities 47,024 520 (402) 47,142
Corporate secutities 31,243 527 (581) 31,189
Cash equivalents 571 - 571

$ 185414 345975 $__(32001) $ 228188
As of December 31, 2006, the debt securities held by the Quad Cities Station nuciear decommissioning trusts had
the following maturities (in thousands):

Available-For-Sale
Amortized Fair
Cost Value
Within 1 year $ 3363 3 3,346
1 through 5 years 35,220 35,056
5 through 10 years 25912 26,041
Over 10 years 47,455 48,206
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The proceeds and gross realized gains and losses on the disposition of available-for-sale securities are shown in the
following table (in thousands). Realized gains and losses in the Quad Cities Station nuclear decommissioning trusts
are recorded in the regulatory liability related to the Quad Cities Station asset retirement obiigafion amd do not
impact carnings. Realized gains and losses are determined by specific identification. Refer to Nate (13) for a
discussion of the sale of marketable securities in 2006 resulting in a $27.6 million gain.

Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
Proceeds from sales $ 187,087 § 91,733 $ 85237
Gross realized gains 31,580 3,256 3.205
Gross realized losses (1,566) (2,175) (822)

{6) Regulatory Assets and Liabilities

Refer to Note (6) of MidAmerican Energy’s Motes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

4]} Preferred Securities

Refer to Note (7) of MidAmerican Energy’s Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

8 Long-Term Debt

MidAmerican Funding’s annual sinking fund requirements and maturities of long-term debt for 2007 through 2011
are $1.6 million, $0.4 million, $175.1 million, $- million and $200.0 million, respectively. Refer to MidAmerican
Funding's Consolidated Statements of Capitalization for detail of long-term debt.

MidAmerican Energy’s Variable Raic Pollution Control Revemue Obligations bear inferest at rates that are
periodically established through remarketing of the bonds in the short-term tax-exempt market. MidAmerican

Energy, at its option, may change the mode of interest calculation for these bonds by selecting from among several
floating or fixed rate alternatives. The interest rates shown in the Consolidated Statements of Capitalization are the

weighted average interesi rates as of December 31, 2006 and 2005. MidAmerican Energy maintains a revolving

credit facility agreement 1o provide Liquidity for holders of these issues.

The indenture pertaining 1o MidAmerican Energy’s unsecured senior notes provides that if MidAmerican Energy
were to issue secured debt in the future, then such unsecured senior notes, as may then be existing, would equally
and ratably be secured thereby. As of December 31, 2006, MidAmerican Energy was in compliance with aff of its
applicable long-term debt covenants.

On October 6, 2006, MidAmerican Energy issued $350.0 million of 5.8% medium-term notes due in 2036. The
proceeds are being used to support construction of electric generation projects and for general corporate purposes.

MidAmerican Funding parent company long-term debt is secured by 3 pledge of the common stock of MHC. The
notes and bonds:

e are the direct senior secured obligations of MidAmerican Funding;
» rank on an equal basis with all of MidAmerican Funding’s other existing and future senior obligations;
e rank senior to all of MidAmerican Funding’s existing and fiture subordinated indebtedness; and

e effectively rank junior to all indebtedness and other liabilities, inchiding preferred siock, of the direct
and indirect subsidiarics of MidAmerican Funding, to the extent of the assets of these subsidiaries.
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MidAmerican Funding may redeem any series of the notes and bonds in whele or in part at any time at & redemption
price equal to the sum of:

+  the greater of the following:
)] 100% of the principal amount of the series being redeemed; and

(] the sum of the present values of the remaining scheduled payments of principal and interest on the
series being redeemed, discounted to the date of redemption on a semiannual basis at the treasury
yield plus (x) 15 basis points in the case of the 2009 notes (y) 20 basis points in the case of the
2011 notgs , or (Z) 25 basis points in the case of the 2029 Bonds; plus

+ accrued and unpaid interest on the securities being redeemed to the date of redemption.

Subsidiaries of MidAmerican Funding must make payments on their own indebtedness before making distributions
to MidAmerican Fuanding. The distributions are also subject to wutility regulatory restrictions agreed to by
MidAmerican Energy in March 1999. At that time, MidAmerican Energy committed to the TUB to use commercially
reasonable efforts to maintain an investment grade rating on its long-term debt and to maintain its common equity
level above 42% of total capitalization unless circumstances beyond its coniroi result in the common equity level
decreasing to below 39% of total capitalization. MidAmerican Energy must seck the approval from the TUB of a
reasonable utility capital structure if MidAmerican Energy’s common equity level decreases below 42% of total
capitatization, unless the decrease is beyond the control of MidAmerican Energy. MidAmerican Encrgy is also
required to seck the approval of the IUB if MidAmerican Energy’s equity level decreases to below 39%, even if the
decrease is due to circumstances beyond the control of MidAmerican Energy. As of December 31, 2006,
MidAmerican Energy’s common equity ratio was 53.6% computed on a basis consistent with its commitment.

As of December 31, 2006, MidAmerican Funding was in compliance with all of its applicable long-term debt
covenants.

Each of MidAmerican Funding’s direct or indirect subsidiaries is organized as a legal entily separate and apart from
MidAmerican Funding and its other subsidiaries. It should not be assumed that any asset of any subsidiary of
MidAmerican Funding will be available to satisfy the obligations of MidAmerican Funding or any of its other
subsidiaries; provided, however, that unrestricted cash or other assets which are available for distribution may,
subject to applicable law and the terms of financing arrangements of such parties, be advanced, loaned, paid as
dividends or otherwise distribuied or coniributed to MidAmerican Funding, one of its subsidiaries or affiliates
thereof.

)] Short-Term Borrowings

Interim financing of working capital needs and the construction program may be obtained with unaffiliated parties
from the sale of commercial paper or short-term borrowing from banks.

MidAmerican Energy has in place a $500.0 million revolving credit facility expiring in July 2011, which supports its
$379.6 million commercial paper program and its variable rate pollution control revenue obligations. The credit
facility has a variable interest rate based on the London Intetbank Offered Rate (“LIBOR™) plus 0.115% that varies
hased on MidAmerican Enerpy’s credit ratings for its senior unsecured long-term debt securities. The related credit
agreement raquires that MidAmerican Energy’s ratio of consolidated debt to total capitalization, including current
maturities, not exceed 0.65 to 1.0 as of the last day of any quarter. In addilion, MidAmerican Energy has a
$5.0 million line of credit, which expires in June 2007 and has a variable interest rate based on LIBOR plus 0.25%.
As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, MidAmerican Energy had no commereial paper or bank notes outstanding, and
the full amount of the revolving credit facility and line of credit was available. MHC has a $4.0 million line of
credit, expiring in June 2007, under which zero was outstanding at December 31, 2006, As of December 31, 2006,
MidAmerican Funding and its subsidiaries were in compliance with afl covenants related to their respective short-

105

J R



ExHIBIT C-2

“GEC Filings"

term borrowings. MidAmerican Energy has authority from the FERC 1o issue through April 14, 2007, short-termn
debt in the form of commercial paper and bank notes aggregating $500.0 million,

(10}  Asset Retiremnent Obligations
Refer to Note (10) of MidAmerican Energy’s Notes o Consolidated Financial Statements.
(11)  Risk Management

Refer to Note (11) of MidAmerican Energy’s Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a discussion of
MidAmerican Funding’s commodity price, and weather risks.

(12) Income Taxes

MidAmerican Funding’s income tax expense (benefit) includes the following for the years ended December 31 (in
thousands):

2006 2005 2004
Current:
Federal $ 91,068 $ 86,774 $ 62278
State 6,621 20,494 ___{5376)
— 97,689 —107.268 56.902
Deferred:
Federsal 9953 (9,342) 40,023
State (9.793) (2.375) (5.222)
160 (11717 34 801
Investinent tax credit, net _ (3392 —_(4.18]) —(4367)
Total $.04457 £ 0L370 §_87.336

The following table is a recomciliation of the statutory federal income tax rate and the cficctive federal and state
income tax rate indicated by the Consolidated Statemnenis of Operations for the years ended December 31:

2006 2005 2004
Statutory federal income tax rate 35.0% 35.0% 35.0%
Amortization of investment tax credit 0.9 (1.5 {1.6)
State income tax, net of federal income tax benefit 44 49 59
Remewable electricity production tax credits (5.6) 3.9 -
Effects of ratemaking 2.1 2.0) {2.8)
Resolution of potential tax matter {4.6) - -
Other (1.5 {0.6) 3.7
Effective federal and state income tax rate 24.9% —319% 32.8%
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The Consolidated Balance Sheets inciuded the following deferred income taxes as of December 31 (in thousands):

2006 2005
Deferred tax assets relaied to:
Regulatory liabilities $ 136,462 $ 69,888
Revenue sharing 109,863 92,040
Pensions 51,125 54,622
MNuclear reserves and decommissioning 22,778 17,912
Unrealized losses, net 22,619 23,214
Fuel cost recoveries 5,347 -
Other 13,404 11.721
366,598 268797
Deferred tax liabilities related to:
Depreciable property 589,828 516,100
Reguiatory assets 233,433 208,879
Fuel cost recoveries - 9,896
Reacquired debt 2.559 2472
825 820 737.347
Net deferred income tax liability g 459222 $ 468 550

The nst deferred income tax liability was reflected as foliows omn the Consolidated Balance Sheets as of

December 31, (in thousands).

2006 2005
Current assets — Other $ 8513 $ -
Current liabilities — Other - 10,099
Deferred income taxes 467 735 458 451
Net deferred income tax liability £459222 $468.550

13 Non-Operating Other Income and Expense

Non-Operating Income - Other Income and Other Expense &s shown on the Consolidated Statements of Operations

include the following for the years ended December 31 (in thousands).

2006 2005 2004
Other income:

Marketable securities gains $ 32,187 $ 4,041 $ 480
Gains on sales of assets and other investments 15277 9,943 -
Corporate~owned life insurmce income 7,119 5,151 5.447
Income from energy projecis and venture capital investments 3,196 1,211 2,540
QOther 3,511 2.742 2,605

Total 5 63290 $ 23088 § 11072

Marketable securities gains includes pains of $27.6 million in 2006 and $3.4 million in 2005 from the sale of the
common shares MidAmerican Funding beld of an ¢lecironic energy and metals trading exchange. Additionally,
2006 includes $4.5 million for a gain recognized when MidAmerican Funding donated its remaining shares in the
company 0 a charitable foundation. An offsetting other expense, shown below, was also recognized for the
donation.
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Guins on the sales of assets and other investments, net in 2006 includes an $8.5 million gain on the sale of
MidAmerican Funding’s non-controlling interest in a nonregulated gas-fired cogeneration plant and a $6.8 million
gain on the sale of a commercial passenger aircraft. Gains on sales of assets and other investments, net in 2005
reflects gains on the sales of two pon-strategic, passive investments,

Income from energy projects and venture capital invesiments for 2006 is due to changes in a financing arrangement
related to a non-strategic investment in a hydroelectric generating plant.

2006 2005 2004
Other expense:
Donation of investment in marketable securities $ 4470 3 - 5 -
Write-down of impaired airplane leases - 15,641 1,735
Other « primarily items not recoverable from MidAmerican
Energy’s regulated utility customets 3,405 4.366 3.532
Total $_7.875 § 20007 $_5.267

The write-downs of impaired airplane leases relate 10 MidAmerican Funding’s previous investments in commercial
passenrger aircraft leased to major domestic airlines. During 2003, the airline industry continued to deteriorate and
two major airline carriers filed for bankrupicy. MidAmerican Funding evaluated its investments in commercial
passenger aircraft and recognized the losses for other-than-temporary impairments of those investments.

(14)  Rate Matters

Refer to Note (14) of MidAmerican Energy’s Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

(15} Commitments and Contingencies

Refer to Note {15) of MidAmerican Energy’s Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for MidAmerican Energy
commitments and contingencies disclosures.

Uther Commitments and Contingencies

MidAmerican Funding is involved in a number of legal proceedings and claims. While management is unable to
predict the ultimate outcome of these matiers, it is not expecied that their resolution will have a material adverse
effect on MidAmerican Funding’s financial results.

(16)  Employee Benefit Plans

Refer to Note (16) of MidAmerican Energy’s Notes to Consolidated Financial Statcments for additional information
regarding MidAmerican Funding's pension, supplemental retirement and postretirement benefit plans.

Pension and postretirement costs aliocated by MidAmerican Funding to its parent and other affiliates in each of the
years ended December 31, were as follows (in millions):

2006 2005 2004
Pension costs $10.7 $11.3 $il4
Other postretirement costs 1.7 1.8 il
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an Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents. notes payabie and shori-term investments approximates fair
value because of the short-term maturity or frequent remarketing of these instruments. Quad Cities Station puclear
decommissioning trust funds and other marketable securities are camied at fair value, which is based on quoted
market prices.

The fair value of equity investments carried at cost is based on an estimate of MidAmerican Funding’s share of
parinership equity, offers from unrelated third partics or the discounted value of the future cash flows expected o be
received from these investments. The fair value of MidAmerican Funding’s long-term debt is estimated based on the
quoted market prices for the same or similar issues or on the current rates offered to MidAmerican Energy for debt
of the same remaining maturities. The following table presents the carrying amount and estimated fair value of the
named financial instruments as of December 31 (in thousands):

2006 2005
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Amount Value Amount Value
Financial instruments owned:
Equity investments carried at cost $ 1,435 $ 1,275 $ 2138 $ 2169
Financial instruments issued:

Long-term debt, including current portion $2,521.009 $2,588,752 $2,331,760 $2.433,348
(18) Segment Information

MidAmerican Funding has identified two reportable operating segments: regulated electric and regulated gas. The
repulated electric segment derives most of its revenue from regulated retail sales of electricity to residential,
commercial, and industrial customers and from wholesale sales to other utilities. The regulated gas sepment derives
most of its revenne from regulaied retail sales of natural gas to residential, commercial, and industrial customers and
also obtains significant revenues by transporting gas owned by others through its distribution system. Pricing for
regulated electric and gas sales are established separately by regulatory agencies; therefore, management also
reviews cach segment separately to make decisions regarding allecation of resousces and in evaluating performance.
Common operating costs, inferest income, interest expense and income fax expense are allocated to cach segment
based on MidAmerican Funding allocators most related to the nature of the cost. “Nonregulated and other” in the
tables below consists principally of nonregulated gas and electric activities and parent company interest expense.
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The following tables provide information on an operating segment basis as of and for the years ended December 31

{in thousends):

Segment Profit Information
{perating revenues:
Regulated electric
Regulated gas
Nonregulated and other
Total

Depreciation and amortization expense:

Regulated clectric

Regulated gas

Nonregulated and other ()
Total

Operating income:
Regulated electric
Regulated pas
Monregulated and other

Total

Imterest and dividend income:
Regmlated electric
Regulated gas
Nonreguiated and other

Tolal
Eliminations
Consclidated

Fixed charges and preferred dividends:
Regulated eleciric
Repulated gas
Nonregulated and other
Total
Eliminations
Consolidated

Income taxes:
Repulated ¢electric
Repulated gas
Nonregulzated and other
- Total

Earnings on common stock:
Regulated clectric
Regulated gas
Nonregulated and other

Total

110

2006 2005 2004
$ 1,779.482 g 1,513,239 $ 1,421,709
1,111,635 1,322.717 1,016,900
561.677 330,128 269.082
$ 3452794 § 3,166,084 $_2,701,700
S 243,106 5 237,274 $ 235240
30,460 30,354 29,712
1.248 1.514 1.457
$ 274814 §_ 269142 § 266,400
£ 372,060 $ 3340618 $ 304,045
356,3%¢ 38,669 42,371
12,162 7.796 9.531
$ 7,313 5 5,112 $ 3,809
1,756 1,039 765
2,893 1.038 334
11,962 7,189 4 908
_(268)  ____ (986)  ___ (399
928 $§ 6203 450
$ 77,397 $ 68,782 % 60,950
12,805 10,694 10,037
52,336 49 871 48.029
142,538 129,347 119,016
2.680) {986) {399)
§ 139338 $ 128361 § 118617
$ 105,199 ) 100,788 $ 93,122
10,041 11,300 9,557
(20,783} (20.718) {i5.343)
$ 238456 5 193,675 $ 171,490
17,859 21,880 27825
31.926 (20.486) {20.058)
§ 288241 5 105060  § _ 179257

S AT



- ExHi1BIT C-2

“SEC Filings”
2006 2005 2004
& iOn

Capital expenditures:
Repulated electric $ 770,213 $ 713,645 § 690,157
Repulated gas 48,504 52,555 49,768
Nonregulated and other 1.220 1,893 1,845
Total £ 819037 3768003 3 741,770

Total assets:

Regulated electric $ 6,675,884 $ 5,886,632 $ 5,404,376
Regulated gas 1,001,882 1,131,247 927,629
Nonreguiated and other 116,725 139,537 95,239
Total § 7.79449] £ 2157416 § 6427244

{2) Depreciation and amortization expense above includes depreciation related to nonregulated operations,

which is included in Nonrepulated Operating Expense — Other on the Consolidated Statements of
Operations.

Goodwill resulting from past business combinations is not amortized. Periodically, such balances are evalated for
possible impairment. Based on MidAmerican Funding’s annual poodwill impairment test completed as of
October 31, 2006, no impairment was indicated for goodwill. In 2005 and 2006, MidAmerican Funding adjusted
goodwill for 2 change in relaied deferred income taxes due io resclution of tax issucs existing at the time of
purchase.

The following table shows the change in the carrving amount of goodwill by reportable segment for the years ended
December 31, 2006 and 2003 (in thousands):

Regulated Regulated
Electric Gas Total
Balance at January 1, 2005 $1,189,676 $ 78406 $1,268,082
Income tax adjustment (1.066) (137 (2.193)
Balance at December 31, 2005 1,187,710 78,269 1,265,979
Tncome tax adjustment 3.450 238 3.688
Balance at December 31, 2006 $1,191.160 3 78507 1,269,667

a9 Related Party Transactions

The companies identified as affiliates of MidAmerican Funding arc Berkshire Hathaway and its subsidiaries,
including MidAmerican Encrgy Holdings and its subsidiaries, The basis for these charges is provided for in scrvice
agreements between MidAmerican Funding and its affilkiates. MidAmerican Energy reimbursed MidAmerican
Energy Holdings in the amount of $9.2 million, $16.3 million and $11.4 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively, for its allocated share of corporate expenses.

MidAmerican Funding was reimbursed for charges incurred on behaif of its affiliates. The majority of these
reimbursed expenses were for allocated employee wages and benefits, insurance, computer costs, administrative
services, travel expenses and general and administrative expeases: inchiding treasury, legal and accounting
functions. The amount of such reimbursements was $61.7 million, $49.2 million and $56.4 million for 2006, 20605
and 2004, respeciively.
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MidAmerican Energy had an agreement with Cordova Energy Company LLC, a subsidiary of MidAmerican Energy
Holdings, to purchase clectric capacity and energy from a gas-fired combined cycle generation plant. The
agreement, which terminated in May 2004, provided for MidAmerican Energy to purchase up to 50% of the net
capacity of the plant and to supply the fuel stock required to generate the energy purchased. MidAmerican Energy’s
payment for monthly capacity charges iotaled $12.7 million for 2004.

Northern Naturat Gas Company ("NNG™), a subsidiary of MidAmerican Energy Holdings, has been and is one of
MidAmerican Energy’s suppliers of natural gas transportation and storage capacity. MidAmerican Enerpy had net
purchases of namral gas transportation and storage capacity from NNG totaling $52.4 million in 2006, $52.6 million
in 2005 and $48.3 million in 2004.

MIIC has a $200 miliion revolving credit arranpement carrying interest at the 30-day LIBOR rate plus 25 hasis
points to borrow from MidAmerican Energy Holdings. Onitstanding balances are wmsecured and due on demand. The
outstanding balance was $3.3 million at an interest rate of 5.60% as of December 31, 2006, and $54.3 million at an
interest rate of 4.56% as of December 31, 2005, and is reflected as Note Payable to Affiliate on the Consolidated
Balance Sheet.

MidAmerican Energy Holdings has a $100 million revolving credit arrangement, carrying inierest at the 30-day
LIBOR rate plus 25 hasis points, to borrow from MHC. Outstanding balances are unsecured and due on demand,
The outstanding balance was zero throughout 2006 and 2005.

MidAmerican Funding had accounts receivable from affiliates of $10.1 million and $8.1 million as of December 31,
2006 and 20035, respectively, inciuded in Receivables on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. MidAmerican Funding
also had accounts payabie o affiliates of $6.6 million and $7.1 million as of December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively, which is included in Accounts Payable on the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

In 2006, MHC received dividends totaling $50.0 million from MidAmerican Energy.

On December 31, 2006, MidAmerican Funding adopted SFAS No. 158 and recognized the full amount of the
funded status for its pension and postretirement plans. The funded status of such plans attributable to Mid American
Funding’s affiliates that had not previously been recognized through income was recognized as an intercompany
balance with such affiliates. As of December 31, 2006, amounts receivable from affiliates attributable to the funded
status of cmployee benefit plans totaled $16.! million and similar amounts payable to affiliates wialed
$19.2 million. MidAmerican Energy will adjust these balances when changes to the funded starus of the respective
plans are recognized and does not intend to seftle the balances carrently. See Note (16) for further information
pertaining to pension and postretirement accounting.

The indenture pertaining to MidAmerican Funding’s long-term debt restricts MidAmerican Funding from paying a
distribution on its equity securities, uniess after making such distribution either its debt to sotal capital ratio does not
exceed 0.67:1 and its interest coverage ratio is not less than 2.2:1 or its senior secured long term-debx rating is at
ieast BBB or its equivalent. MidAmerican Funding may segk a release from this restriction upon delivery to the
indenture trustee of written confirmation from the ratings agencies that without this restricion MidAmerican
Funding’s senior secured long-term debt would be rated at least BBB+.
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Operating revenues
Operating income
Net income

Operating revennes
Operating income
Net income

ExHiBiT C-2

“SEC Filings”
2006
1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter
{In thousands)
$1,041.717 $ 761,582 § 766,785 $ 882710
134473 79,179 129,182 77,784
86,628 57,520 78,622 65,471
2005
15t Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Cmarter
{In thousands)
$ 856,278 5 619,714 § 723,308 $ 966,784
99,351 58,570 130,246 92,916
56,357 25,209 66,921 46,582

Quarterly data reflect seasonal variations cominon in the Midwest utility induosiry.
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Item 9, Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Finaneial Disclosure
None.
Tiem 9A.  Controls and Procedures

With the supervision and participation of MidAmerican Funding’s and MidAmerican Energy's management,
inchuding their respeciive persons acting as chief executive officer and chief financial officer, each company
performed an evaluation regarding the effectiveness of the design and operation of its disclosure controls and
procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(¢) promulgated under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended)
as of December 31, 2006. Based on that evaluation, MidAmerican Funding’s and MidAmerican Energy’s
manggement, including their respective persons acting as chief executive officer and chief financial officer,
conciuded that their respective disclosure controls and procedures were effective. There bave been no changes
during the foutth quarter of 2006 in MidAmerican Funding's or MidAmerican Enerpy’s internal conirel over
financial reporting that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, its internal contro] over
financial reporting,

Item9B. Other Information

None
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PART HI

~ Ttem 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant

MidAmerican Energy

The current directors and executive officers of MidAmerican Energy, their ages as of Febmary 16, 2007, and their
business experience is discussed below. The Board of Directors elects officers annually. There are no family
relationships among these officers, nor any arrangements or understanding berween any officer and any other person
pursuant to which the officer was selected

TODD M. RABA, 50, bas been President of MidAmerican Epergy since 2004 and Director of MidAmerican Energy
since 2002. Mr. Raba served as Senior Vice President from 2001 to 2004 and as Vice President from 1997 to 2001.

KEITH D. HARTIE, 57, has been Senior Vice President of MidAmerican Encrgy since 1999 and held various -

execwtive and management positions with MidAmerican Energy and its predecessors prior to that.

BRIAN K. HANKEL, 44, has been Director of MidAmerican Energy since 2002 and Vice President and Treasurer
of MidAmerican Energy since 1999, Mr, Haokel has been Vice President and Treasurer of MidAmerican Energy
Holdings since January 1997.

THOMAS B. SPECKETER, 50, has been Vice President and Controller of MidAmerican Energy since 1999 and
held various tax and accounting mumagement positions with MidAmerican Energy and its predecessors prior to that.

STEVEN R. WEISS, 52, has been Director of MidAmerican Energy since 2005 and Senior Vice President since
2006, Mr. Weiss bas been General Counsel of MidAmserican Energy since 2000 and served as Vice President from
2000 to 2006. Mr. Weiss served as Assistant General Counsel from 1999 to 2060 and held various other legal snd
management positions for MidAmerican Energy and its predecessors and affiliates prior to that.

MidAmerican Funding

The current managers and executive officers of MidAinerican Funding, their ages as of February 16, 2007, and their
business experience is discussed below. The Board of Managers elects officers annually. There are no family
relationships among these officers, nor any arrangemenis or understanding between any officer and any other person
pursuant to which the officer was selected,

GREGORY E. ABEL, 44, has been MidAmerican Funding’s President since 1999. Mr. Abel served as
MidAmerican Funding’s Chief Operating Officer from 1999 to 2005. Mr. Abel joined MidAmerican Energy
Holdings in 1992,

BRIAN K. HANKEL, 44, has been Vice President and Treasurer of MidAmerican Funding since 2005, Mr. Hankel
joined MidAmerican Energy Holdings in 1992.

THOMAS B. SPECKETER, 50, bas been Vice President and Controlier of MidAmerican Funding since 2005 and
Vice President and Controlier of MidAmerican Energy since 1999,

DOUGLAS L. ANDERSON, 48, has been 4 manager of MidAmerican Funding since 2005, Mr. Anderson served as
MidAmerican Funding’s Vice President and General Counsel from 2002 to 2005. Mr. Anderson joined
MidAmerican Encrgy Holdings in 1993.

PATRICK J. GOODMAN, 40, has been a manager of MidAmerican Funding since 2005. Mr. Goodman served as

MidAmerican Funding's Vice President and Treasurer from 1999 to 2005. Mr. Goodman joined MidAmerican
Enerpy Holdings in 1995.
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RONALD W. ROSKENS, 74, bas been MidAmetican Funding’s Independent Manager since Janunary 2003. Dr.
Roskens has served since 1996 as the President of Global Commections, Inc. (Omsha, Nebraska), an iniernational
business consulting firm. Dr. Roskens has previously served as Administrator of the U.S. Agency for International
Development, President of the University of Nebraska System and Executive Vice President and professor at Kent
State Uriversity, He is a director of ConAgra Foods Inc.

Audit Committee and Audit Committee Financial Expert

During the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006, and as of the date of this Report, MidAmerican Funding’s Board
of Managers and MidAmerican Energy’s Board of Directors had no committees, including any audit commitiee.
Neither MidAmerican Funding nor MidAmerican Energy have any securities listed on any securities exchange and
neither is required to have an audit committee. However, the audit committee of MidAmerican Energy Holdings is
acting as the audit committee for ¢the companies.

Code of Ethics

MidAmerican Funding and MidAmerican Energy each have adopted a code of ethics that applies to its principal
executive officer or officers, principal financial officer and to its controller, or persons acting in such capacities. The
code of ethics is filed as an exhibit to this annual report on Form 10-K.

Item 11,  Executive Compensation

Information required by Ttem 11 is omitted pursuant to General Instruction I(Z)(c) to Form 10-K.,

Item 12, Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

Information required by ltem 12 is omitted pursuant to General Instruction I(2)(c) to Form 10-K.
¥tem 13, Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Information required by Item 13 is omitted pursuant to General Instruction I(2)¢) to Form 10-K.
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Lem 14, Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The following table shows MidAmerican Funding’s (consolidated) and MidAmerican Energy’s fees paid or accrued
for audit services and fees paid for audit-related, tax and all other services rendered by Deloitie & Touche LLP, the
membet firms of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, and their respective affiliates (collectively, the “Deloitte Ensities™) for
each of the last two years (in thousands):

MidAmerican Funding MidAmerican Energy

2006 2005 2006 2005
Audit fees $ 824.6 § 5460 $ 7421 $ 491.4
Audit-related fees @ 124.4 66.8 111.9 60.1
Tax fees @ 304.3 135.2 273.9 121.7
All other fees - - - -
Total appregate fees billed 31,2533 3 7480 31,1279 8 6732

(1) Audii feas include fees for the andit of MidAmerican Funding’s and MidAmerican Energy’s consolidated
financial statements and interim reviews of their quarterly financial statements, awdit services provided in
connection with required statutory audits, and comfort letters, consents and other services related to
Securities and Exchange Commission matters.

4] Audit-related fees primarily include fees for assurance and related services for any other statutory or
regulatory requirements, audits of certain employee benefit plans and consultations on various accouning
and reporting matters.

6] Tax fees include fees for services relating to tax compliance, tax pianning and tax advice. These services
include assistance regarding federal and state tax compliance, tax return preparation and tax audits.

The audit committee of MidAmetican Energy Holdings reviewed and approved the services rendered by the Deloitie
Entities in and for fiscal 2006 as set forth in the above table and concluded that the pon-audit services wete
compatible with maintaining the principal accountant’s independence. Under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, all
audit and non-gudit services performed by the principal accountant require approval in advance by the audit
committee in order to assurc that such services do not impair the principal accoumtant’s independence from
MidAmerican Funding and MidAmerican Energy. Accordingly, the andit committee has an Audit and Non-Audit
Services Pre-Approval Policy (the “Policy™) which sets forth the procedures and the conditions pursuant to which
services to be performed by the principal accountant are to be pre-approved. Pursuant to the Policy, certain services
described in detail in the Policy may be pre-approved on an annual basis together with pre-approved maximum fee
levels for such services. The services eligible for annual pre-approval consist of services that would be included
under the categories of Audit Fees, Audit-Related Fees and Tax Fees. If not pre-approved on an anmual basis,
proposed services must otherwise be separately approved prior to being performed by the principal accountant. In
addition, any services that receive anmual pre-approval but exceed the pre-approved maximum fee level also will
require separate approval by the audit committee prior to being performed. The Policy does not delegate the audit
committee’s responsibilities to pre-apprave services performed by the principal accountant to management.
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PARTIV
Item 15. Exhibits and Finaacial Statement Schednle_s
{a}1)  Financial Statements (included herein)

Consolidated financial statements of MidAmerican Energy and MidAmerican Funding, as well as the Report of
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, are included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.

{a)(2)  Financial Statement Schedules

The fallowing schedules should be read in conjunction with the aforementfioned financial statements.

Page
MidAmerican Energy Company Consolidated Valuation and Qualifying Accounts (Schedule IT) 119
MidAmerican Funding, LLC Consolidated Valuation and Qualifying Accounts (Schedule IT) 120

Other schedules are omitied because they are not required or the information therein is not applicable, or is reflected
in the consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.

()] Exhibits

Sec Exhibits Index on page 123,

118

/27



ExaiBIT C-2

“SEC Filings"”
SCHEDULE DD
MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY
CONSOLIDATED VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
FOR THE THREE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006
(In thoosands)
Column B Column C Column E
Balance at Additions Balance
Colummn A Beginning Charged Column D at End
Description of Year talncome  Deductions of Year
Reserves Deducted From Assets To Which They Apply:
Reserve for uncollectible accounts receivable:
Year ended 2006 10872 % 9043 § (03500 3 _9.565
Year ended 2005 $ 8678 $._11037 $ (884 $ 10872
Year ended 2004 $§ 7484 $ . 9902 $_(B70R) % 8678
Reserves Not Deducted From Assets (1):
Year ended 2006 § 11637 3 2741 § (3102) § 10676
Year ended 2005 ] 9404 8§ 4019 $ (2386) $ 11037
Year ended 2004 ! 8779 § 3562 3 (233 § 9404

(L) Reserves not deducted from assets include estimated liabilities for losses retained by MidAmerican Energy
for workers compensation, public liability and properiy damage claims.
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SCHEDULE 11
MIDAMERICAN FUNDING, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
FOR THE THREE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006
(In thousands)
Columnn B Column C Column E
Balance at Additions Balance
Column A Bepginning Charged Colurn D at End
Description of Year toIncome  Peductions of Year
Reserves Deducted From Assets To Which They
Apply:
Reserve for uncollectible accounts receivable;
Year ended 2006 3100942 8 9043 § (10350) § 9,635
Year ended 2003 $ 8748 $ 11037 3 (R84} § 10942
Year ended 2004 $ 7554 § 9902 S _(8708) 748
Reserves Not Deducted From Assets (1):
Year ended 2006 $ 12481 § 2741 5 _(3100 § 12120
Year ended 2005 $ 10848 § 4019 § (2386 §_ 12481
Year ended 2004 32 9737 5 4048 8 _(2937) $ _10.848

(b Reserves not deducted from assets include primarily estimated liabilitics for losses retained by MHC for
workers compensation, public liability and property damage claims,
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SIGNATURES
MIDAMERICAN ENERGY
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY
Registrant

Date: March 1, 2007 {5/ Todd M. Rabg
(Todd M. Raba)
Presideni
(chiel executive officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the date indicated:

Signamres Title Daie

/8 Th B. T Vice President and Controlier March 1, 2607
(Thomas B. Specketer) {principal financial and accounting officer)

/s/ Brian K. Hankel Vice President and Director March 1, 2007
(Brian K. Hankel)

/! Todd M. Raba President and Dirgctor March 1, 2007
(Todd M. Raba)

/ n iss Vice President and Director March 1, 2007
{Steven R. Weiss)
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MIDAMERICAN FUNDING, LLC
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly

caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

MIDAMERICAN FUNDING, LLC
Registrant

Date: March i, 2007 /s/ Gregory E. Aba]
(Gregory E. Abel)
President
{chief executive officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by ihe
following petsons on bebalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the daie indicated:

Signatures Title Date
/s Th B. keter Vice President and Controller March ¥, 2007
(Thomas B. Specketer) (principal financial and accounting officer)
s/ Patrick J, Gogdman Manager March 1, 2007

(Patrick J. Goodman)

fs/ Ronald W, Roskens Manager March 1, 2007
(Ronald W. Roskens)

{s/ Douglas L Anderson Manager March 1, 2007
(Douglas L. Anderson)
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EXHIBIT INDEX
Exhibits Filed Herewith
MidAmerican Energy
23 Camnsent of Deloitte & Touche LLP
311 Chief executive officer certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
312 Chief financial officer certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
32.1 Chief executive officer certification pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

322 Chief financial officer certification pursuant so Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

MidAmerican Fundi

313 Chief executive officer certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
314 Chief financial officer certification pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
32.3 Chief executive officer certification pursuant to Section 906 of thé Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002
324 Chief financial officer certification pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Exhibits Incorporated by Reference

MidAmericag Energy
3.1 Restated Articles of Incorporation of MidAmerican Energy Company, as amended October 27, 1998,

(Filed as Exhibit 3.3 to MidAmerican Epergy’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended

September 30, 1998, Commission File No. 1-11505.)

3.2 Restated Bylaws of MidAmerican Energy Company, as amended July 24, 1996. (Filed as Exhibit 3.1 to
MidAmerican Energy’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q) for the period ended June 30, 1996, Commission

File No. 1-11505.)

14 Code of Ethics for Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Chief Accounting Officer. (Filed
as Exhibit 14.1 to MidAmerican Energy’s Annval Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,

2003, Conunission File No. 1-11505.)

MidAmerican Fymding

31 Articles of Organization of MidAmerican Funding, LLC (Filed as Exhibit 3.1 to MidAmerican Funding’s

Repistration Statement on Form S-4, Registration No. 333-90553.)

3.2 Operating Agreement of MidAmerican Funding, LLC (Filed as Exhibit 3.2 to MidAmerican Funding’s

Regisiration Statement on Form S-4, Registration No. 333-90553.)

4.1 Indenture, dated as of March 11, 1999, by and between MidAmetican Funding, L1.C and IBJ Whitehall
Bank & Trust Company, as Trustee (Filed as Exhibit 4.1 to MidAmerican Funding's Registration

Statement on Form S-4, Regisiration No. 333-90533.)
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First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of March 11, 1999, by and between MidAmerican Funding, L1LC
and IBJ] Whitehall Bank & Trust Company, as Trustee (Filed as Exhibit 4.2 10 MidAmetican Funding’s
Regisiration Statement on Form S~4, Registration Na. 333-90553.)

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of March 1, 2001, by and between MidAmerican Funding,
LLC and The Bank of New York, as Trustee (Filed as Exhibit 44 to MidAmerican Funding’s
Registration Statement on Form S-3, Registration No. 3133-56624.)

Registration Rights Agreement, dated March 9, 1999, by and among MidAmerican Funding, LLC, Credit
Suisse First Boston Corporadon, Lehman Brothers, Inc., Goldman Sachs & Co. and Merrill Lynch & Co.
(Filed as Exhibit 4.2 w0 MidAmerican Funding’'s Registration Statement on Form S-4, Registration
No. 333-90553.)

Code of Ethics for Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and Chief Accounting Officer. (Filed
as Exhibit 142 to MidAmerican Funding's Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2003, Comumission File No. 333-90553.)

MidAmerican and Mi ican F)

4.1

4.2

43

44

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

General Mortgage Indenture and Deed of Trust dated as of January 1, 1993, belween Midwest Power
Systems Inc. and Morgan Guaranty Trust Company of New York, Trustee. (Filed as Exhibit 4(b)-1 to
Midwest Resources Inc.’s Anmual Report on Form [(0-K for the year ended December 31, 1992,
Cormmission File No. 1-10654.)

First Supplemental Indenture dated as of January 1, 1993, between Midwest Power Systems Inc. and
Morgan Guaranty Trast Company of New York, Trustee. (Filed as Exhibit 4(b)-2 to Midwest Resources’
Anmual Report on Form 14-K for the year ended December 31, 1992, Cotmission File No. 1-10654.)

Second Supplemental Indenture dated as of January 15, 1993, between Midwest Power Systems Inc. and
Morgan Guaranty Trust Company of New York, Trustee. (Filed as Exhibit 4(b)-3 to Midwest Resources’
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1992, Commission File No. 1-10634.)

Third Supplemental Indeniure dated as of May 1, 1993, between Midwest Power Systems Inc. and
Morgan Guaranty Trust Company of New York, Trustee. (Filed as Exhibit 4.4 to Midwest Resources’
Annnat Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1993, Commission File No. 1-10654.)

Fourth Supplemental Indenture dated as of October 1, 1994, between Midwest Power Systems Iuc. and
Harris Trust and Savings Barnk, Trustee. (Filed as Exhibit 4.5 to Midwest Resources’ Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the vear ended December 31, 1994, Commission File No. 1-10654.)

Fifth Supplemental Indenture dated as of November 1, 1994, between Midwest Power Systems Inc. and
Harris Trust and Savings Bank, Trustee. (Filed as Exhibit 4.6 to Midwest Resources’ Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the vear ended December 31, 1994, Commission File No. 1-10654.)

Sixth Supplemenial Indenture dated as of July 1, 1995, between Midwest Power Sysiems Inc. and Harris
Trust and Savings Bank, Trustee. (Filed as Exhibit 4.15 to MidAmerican Energy’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K dated December 31, 1995, Commission File No. 1-11505.)

Indenture dated as of December 1, 1996, between MidAmerican Energy and The First National Bank of

Chicago, as Trustee. (Filed as Exhibit 4(1) to MidAmerican Energy’s Registration Statement on Form 8-
3, Registration No. 333-15387))
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First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Fehruary 8, 2002, by and between MidAmerican Energy
Company and The Bank of New York, as Trustee, (Filed as Exhibit 4.3 o MidAmerican Enerpy’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Diecember 31, 2004, Commission File No. 333-13387)

Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of January 14, 2003, by and berween MidAmerican Energy
Company and The Bank of New York as Trustee. (Filed as Exhibit 4.2 0 MidAmerican Energy’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004, Commission File No. 333-15387,)

Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of October 1, 2004, by and between MidAmerican Energy
Company and The Bank of New York, as Trustee. (Filed as Exhibit 4.1 o MidAmerican Energy’s
Anmial Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2004, Commission File No, 333-15387.)

Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated November 1, 2005, by and between MidAmerican Energy
Compapy and the Bank of New York Trust Company, NA, as Tmustee. (Filed as Exhibit 4.1 to
MidAmerican Energy’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2005,
Commission File No. 333-15387.)

Indenture, dated as of October 1, 2006 - Senior Debt Securities between MidAmerican Energy Company
and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N.A., as Trestee {Filed as Exhibit 4.1 to MidAmerican
Energy’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q dated Sepiember 30, 2006, Commission File No. 333-15387)

First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Ociober 6, 2006 - 5.800% Notes due 2036 between
MidAmerican Energy Company and The Bank of New York Trust Company, N A, as Trustee (Filed as
Exhibit 4.2 to MidAmerican Energy's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q dated September 30, 2006,
Commission File No, 333-15387.)

Distribution Agreement, dated October 3, 2006 - Medium Term Notes between MidAmerican Energy
Company and Credit Suisse Securities (USA) LLC, J. P. Morgan Securities, Inc., LaSalle Financial
Services, Inc., and BNF Paribas Securitics Corp. (Filed as Exhibit 4.2 w0 MidAmerican Energy’s
Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q dated September 30, 2006, Commission File No. 333-15387.)

MidAmerican Energy Company Restated Executive Deferred Compensation Plan. (Filed as Exhibit 10.2
10 MidAmerican Energy’s Quartetly Report on Form 10-Q dated March 31, 1999, Commission File
No. 1-11505.)

MidAmerican Energy Company Combined Midwest Resources/lowa Resources Restated Deferred
Compensation Plan - Board of Directors. (Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to MidAmerican Energy’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q dated March 31, 1999, Commission File No. 1-11505.)

MidAmerican Energy Company First Amended and Restated Supplemental Retirement Plan for
Designated Officers. (Filed as Exhibit 10.52 10 MidAmerican Energy Holding Company’s Registration
Statement No. 333-101699.)

Form of Indemmity Agreement between MidAmerican Energy Company and its directors and officers.
(Filed as Exhibit 10,37 to MidAmerican Energy’s Annnal Report on Form 10-K dated December 31,
1995, Commission File No. 1-11505.)

fowa Utllities Board Order Approving Settlement With Modifications, issued December 21, 2001, in

regards to MidAmerican Energy Company (Filed as Exhibit 10.7 to MidAmerican Energy’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K dated December 31, 2001, Commission File No. 1-11505)
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Stipulation and Agreement in Regard to MidAmerican Energy Company Ratemaking Principles for
‘Wind Energy Investment, approved by the Iowa Utilities Board on October 17, 2003 (Filed as Exhibit 10
t0 MidAmerican Funding’s and MidAmerican Energy’s joimt Form 10-Q for the quarier ended
September 30, 2003; Commission File Nos. 333-90553 and 1-11505, respectively.)

Credit Agreement among MidAmerican Energy Company, the Lending Institutions Party Hereto, as
Banks, Union Bank of California, N.A., as Syndication Agent, and JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., as
Administrative Agent, dated as of November 18, 2004 Union Bank of California, N A, and J.P. Morgan
Securities, Inc. Co-Lead Arrangers and Co-Book Runpers. (Filed as Exhibit 10.1 o MidAmerican
Energy’s Annual Report on Form 10-K dated December 31, 2005, Commission File No. 333-15387.)

Amended and Restated Credit Agreement among MidAmerican Energy Company, the lending
mstitutions party hereto, as banks, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N A., as Administrative Agent, Union Bank
of California, N.A., as Syndication Agent, and The Royal Bank of Scotland pic, ABN Amre Bank N.V.
and BNP Paribas, as Co-Documentation Agents, dated as of July 6, 2006. (Filed as Exhibit 10.1 to
MidAmerican Energy’s Quarterty Report on Form 10-Q) dated June 30, 2006, Commission File No. 333-
15387.)

Stipulation and Agreement Dated December 20, 2004, in Regard to MidAmerican Energy Company
Ratemaking Principles for the 2005 Wind Expansion Project, approved by the Iowa Ulilities Board on
January 31, 2005. (Filed as Exhibit 10.2 to MidAmerican Energy’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
dated June 30, 2006, Commission File No. 333-15387))

Stipulation and Agreement Dated December 14, 2005, in Regard to MidAmerican Energy Company
Ratemaking Principles for the 2006-2007 Wind Expansion Project, approved by the Iowa Utlitics Board
on April 18, 2006, (Filed as Exhibit 10.3 to MidAmerican Energy’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
dated hune 30, 2006, Commission File No. 333-15387))

Pursuant to (b) (4) (iii) (A} of Item 601 of Regulation S-K, MidAmerican Encrgy has not filed as an
exhibit to this Form 10-K certain instruments with respect 10 long-term debt not registered in which the
total amount of securities anthorized there under does not exceed 10% of total asscts of MidAmerican
Energy, but hereby agrees to furnish to the Commission on request any sach instruments.
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EXHIBIT 23

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent o the incorporation by reference in Registration Statement No. 333-134163 on Form §-3 of our report
datad February 27, 2007 (which report expresses an unquaiified opinion and includes an explanatory paragraph
relating to the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 158 “Emplovers’ Accousting for
Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans - an amendment of FASBE Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and
132(R)” as of December 31, 2006), relating to the financial statements and financial statement schedule of
MidAmerican Energy Company, appearing in this Annual Report on Form 10-K of MidAmerican Energy Company
for the year ended December 31, 2006,

/s/ Deloitte & Touche LLP

Des Moines, Iowa
February 27, 2007
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EXHIBIT 31.1

SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION FOR FORM 10-K

CERTIFICATIONS
I, Todd M. Raba, certify that:

L.

I have reviewed this annual report an Farm 10-K of MidAmerican Energy Company;

2 Based on my knowlcdge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a maierial fact or omit to state
2 material fact necessary tv make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information inciuded i this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsibie for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedurss (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(g) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and
we have:

8) Designed such disclosurs controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
tegistrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particutarly during the period in which this report is being preparad;

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in
this report our conchasions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of
the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

c) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is
reasonabiy likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal contrel over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal conirol over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of repistrant’s
board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

8) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely io adversely affect the registrant’s ability to
record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting,

Date: March 1, 2007 /s/ Todd M. Raba

Todd M. Raba
President

(chief executive officer)

/47



ExHiBIT C-2

“SEC Filings"

EXHIBIT 31.2

SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION FOR FORM 10-K

RTIFICATIONS
I, Thomas B. Specketer, certify that:

L.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of MidAmerican Energy Company;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary fo make the statements made, in light of the circumsiances uoder which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3 Based on my knowledge, the financiai statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in ail material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4, The registrant’s other certifying officers and I are responsibic for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(¢e)) for ihe registrant and
we have:

a) Designed such disclosure confrols and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to
the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b Evaluaied the effectiveness of the regisicant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of
the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

c) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s mwost recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materialty affect, the registrant’s intemal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s
board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent fanction):

a) All significant deficiencies and materigl weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant™s ability to
record, process, summatize and report financial infarmation; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting,

Date: March 1, 2007 [s/ Thomas B, Specketer

Thomas B. Specketer
Vice President and Controller
{chief financial officer)
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EXHIBIT 31.4

SECTION 302 CERTIFICATION FOR FORM 10-K

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Thomas B, Specketer, certify that:

I.

2,

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of MidAmerican Funding, LLC;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue staternent of a material fact or omit to state
& material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such
statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
regisirant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifving officers and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrani and
we have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and
procedures t0 be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the
registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of
the end of the petiod covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occwrred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affecied, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other ceriifying officers and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of
internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit coramittee of registrant’s
board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent function):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to
record, process, surmmarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a
significant role in the regisirant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 1, 2007 {5/ Thomas B. Specketer

Thomas B. Specketer
Vice President and Controlier
{chief financial officer)
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EXHIBIT 32,1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

1, Todd M. Raba, President of MidAmerican Energy Company (the “Company™), certify, pursuant to Section 906 of
the Satbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that to the best of my knowledge:

(03] the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the annuat period ended December 31, 2006 (the
“Report”) fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 {15 U.5.C. 78m or 780(d)); and

() the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respecis, the financial condition and
result of operations of the Company.

Dated: March t, 2007 /s/ Todd M. Raba
Todd M. Raba
President
{chief executive officer)
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EXHIBIT 322

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Thomas B. Specketer, Vice President and Controller of MidAmerican Energy Company (the “Company™), certify,
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that to the best of my
knowledge:

() the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the annual period ended December 31, 2006 (the
“Report”) fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securitics Exchange Act
of 1934 (15 U.5.C. 78m or 780(d)); and

{2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and
result of operations of the Company.

Dated: March 1, 2007 " fs/ Thomas B, Specketer
Thomas B. Specketer
Vice President and Controller
(chief financial officen)
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EXHIBIT 32.3

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Gregory E. Abel, President of MidAmerican Funding, LLC {the “Company™), certify, pursnant to Section 906 of
the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, that to the best of my knowledge:

(D the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the annual period ended December 31, 2006 (the
“Report™) fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securitics Exchange Act
of 1934 (15 U.5.C. 78m or 780(d)); and

(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in ail material respects, the financial condition and
result of operations of the Company.
Dated: March 1, 2007 Js/ Gregory E. Abel
Gregory E. Abel
President
(chief executive officer)
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‘ EXHIBIT 32.4
CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Thomas B. Specketer, Vice President and Controller of MidAmerican Funding, LLC (the “Company™), certify,
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, 18 US.C. Section 1350, that to the best of my
knowledge:

(1) the Annual Report on Form 10-K of the Company for the annual pericd ended December 31, 2006 (the
“Report™) fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934 (15 U.5.C. 78m or 780(d)); and

(2) the information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all materigl Tespects, the financial condition
and result of operations of the Company.

Pated: March 1, 2007 {s/ Thomas B. Specketer
Thomas B. Specketer
Vice President and Controller
(chief financial officer)
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[X} Annual Report Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchaage Act of 1934

For the fiscal vear ended December 31, 2007
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[ ] Transition Report Pursuant to Section 13 or I5(d) of the Securitics Exchange Act of 1934

Commission
File Number

For the transition period from 1o

Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter
State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization

TRS Employer
Identification No.

333-90553

333-15387

MIDAMERICAN FUNDING, LLC
(An Ipwa Limited Liability Company)
666 Grand Ave. Suite 500
Des Moines, ITowa 50309-2580
515-242-4300

MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY
(An Towa Corporation)
666 Grand Ave., Suite 500
Des Moines, lowa 50309-2580
515-242-4300

N/A

47-0819200

42-1425214

(Former name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since last report)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act: None
Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:

Preferred Stock, $3.30 Series, no par value
Preferred Stock, $3.75 Series, no par value
Preferred Stock, $3.90 Series, no par value
Preferred Stock, $4.20 Series, no par vaiue
Preferred Stock, $4.35 Series, no par value
Preferred Stock, $4.40 Series, no par value
Preferred Stock, $4.80 Series, no par value

(Title of each Class)

Indicate by check mark if either registrant is 2 well-known seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405 of the Securities

Act Yes [0 No
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Indicate by check mark if the regisirant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or Section 15(d} of the
Act.

MidAmerican Funding, LLC Yes 8 Noll MidAmerican Energy Company Yes O No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of
the Securitics Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant
was required to file such reports}), and {2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.

MidAmerican Fonding, LL.C Yes O No MidAmerican Energy Company Yes B No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation 5-K is not contained
herein, and will not be contained, to the best of registrants’ knowledpge, in definitive proxy or information staterents
incorporated by reference in Part IIT of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K.

Indicate by check mark whether the registrants are large accelerated filers, accelerated filers, non-accelerated filers
ar smaller reporting companies. See definitions of “large accelerated filer, “accelerated filer,” and “smaller reportmg
company” in Rule i2b-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check one):

Large accelerated filers 0 Accelerated filers 0 Non-accelerated filers Smalier reporting comapany O

Indicate by check mark whether either registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).
Yes 0 No

All of the member’s equity of MidAmerican Funding, LLC is held by its parent company, MidAmerican Energy
Holdings Company, as of January 31, 2008.

All commen stock of MidAmerican Energy Company is held by its parent company, MHC Inc., which is a direct,
wholly owned subsidiary of MidAmerican Funding, LLC. As of January 31, 2008, 70980203 shares of
MidAmerican Energy Company common stock, without par value, were outstanding.

MidAmerican Funding, LLC and MidAmerican Energy Company meet the conditions set forth in General
Insiruction I(1)(a) and (b) of Form 10-K and are therefore filing this Form 10-K with the reduced disclosure format
specified in General Instruction 1(2) of Form 10-K.
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MidAmerican Funding, LLC (“MidAmerican Funding”), and MidAmerican Energy Company (“MidAmerican
Energy™), separately file this combined Form 10-K. Information relating to each individual registrant is filed by such
regisirant on its own behalf. Except for its subsidiaries, MidAmerican Energy makes no representation as to

information relating to any ether subsidiary of MidAmerican Funding,
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Forward-Looking Statements '

This report contains statements that do not directly or exclusively relate to historical facts. These statements are
*‘forward-looking statements’® within the meaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995,
Forward-looking statements can typically be identified by the use of forward-looking words, such as “‘may,”’
“could,” *‘project,”” “*believe,”” “*anticipate,”” *‘expect,’’ ‘‘estimate.”’ ‘‘continue,”” “intend,” ‘‘potcntial,” ‘‘plan,’
*‘forecast,”” and similar terms. These statements are based upon MidAmerican Funding’s and/or MidAmetican
Energy’s current intentions, assumptions, expectations and beliefs and are subject to risks, uncertainties and other
important factors. Many of these factors are outside the control of MidAmerican Funding or MidAmerican Energy
and could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed or implied by such forward-looking
statements. These factors include, among others:

3

e general economic, political and business conditions in the jurisdictions in which MidAmerican
Energy’s facilities are located; :

s changes in governmental, legislative, or regulatory requirements affecting MidAmerican Energy or the
electric or gas utility industries;

» changes in, and compliance with, environmental laws, regulations, decisions and policies that couid
increase operating and capital improvement costs, reduce plant output and/or delay plant construction;

s changes in the outcome of general rate cases and other proceedings conducied by regulatory
commissions or other governmental and legal bodics;

» changes in economic, industry or weather conditions, as well as demographic trends, that could affect
customer growth and usage or supply of electricity and gas;

» changes in prices and availability for both purchases and sales of wholesale electricity, coal, natural
gas, other fuel sources and fuel transportation that could have a significant impact on energy costs;

» the financial condition and creditworthiness of significant customers and suppliers;

» chanpes in business strategy or development plans;

« availability, term and deployment of capital;

. per&:rrgance of MidAmerican Enesgy’s generation facilities, including unscheduled generation cutages
Of Tepairs;

e rigks relating {0 nuciear generation;

» the impact of derivative instruments used to mitigate or manage voluine and price risk and changes in
the commodity prices, interest rates and other conditions that affect the value of the derivatives;

e (he impact of increases in healthcare costs, changes in interest rates, morality, morbidity and
investment performance on pension and other postretirement benefits expense, as well as the impact of
changes in legislation on funding requirements;

e unanficipated construction delays, changes in costs, receipt of reguired permits and authorizations,
ability to fund capital projects and other factors that could affect future generation plants and
infrastructore additions;

» the impact of new accounting pronouncements or changes in current accounting estimates and
assumptions on financial results;

o other risks or unforeseen events, including litigation and wars, the effects of terrorism, embargoes and
oiher catastrophic events; and

= other business or investment considerations that may be disclosed from tme to time in MidAmerican
Funding’s or MidAmerican Energy’s Securities and Exchange Commission {“SEC™) filings or in other
publicly disseminated written documents.
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Further details of potential risks and uncertainties affecting MidAmerican Funding or MidAmerican Energy are
described in their filings with the SEC, including Item 1A and other discussions contained in this Form 10-K.
MidAmerican Funding and MidAmerican Encrgy undertuke no obligation to publicly update or revise any forward-
looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. The foregoing review of
factors should not be construed as exclusive.

PARTI]
Item 1. Business

MidAmerican Funding, LLC (“MidAmerican Funding™) is an Iowa limited liability company whose sole member is
MidAmerican Energy Holdings Company (“MidAmerican Energy Holdings™). MidAmerican Energy Holdings, a
holding company owning subsidiaries that are principally engaged in energy businesses, is a consolidated subsidiary
of Berkshire Hathaway Inc. (“Berkshire Hathaway™). MidAmerican Funding, a holding company, owns all of the
ouistanding common stock of MHC Inc. (“MHC™), which is 2 holding company owning all of the common stock of
MidAmerican Energy Company (“MidAmerican Energy™); InterCoast Capital Company (“InterCoast Capilal™);
Midwest Capital Group, Inc. (“Midwest Capital™); MidAmerican Services Company (“MidAmerican Services”);
and MEC Construction Services Co. (“MEC Construction™). MidAmerican Energy is a public utility company
headquartered in Des Moines, Iowa, and incorporated in the state of Iowa. MHC, MidAmerican Funding and
MidAmerican Energy Holdings are also headquartered in Des Moines, Iowa.

On March 1, 2006, MidAmerican Energy Holdings and Berkshire Hathaway entered into an Eguity Commitment
Apgreement pursuant to which Berishire Hathaway has agreed to purchase up to $3.5 billion of common equity of
MidAmerican Energy Holdings upon any requests authorized from fimne to time by the Board of Directors of
MidAmerican Energy Holdings. The proceeds of any such eguity contribution may only be used by MidAmerican
Energy Holdings for the purpose of (i) paying when due MidAmerican Energy Holdings® debt obligations and (ii)
funding the general corporate purposes and capital requirements of MidAmerican Encrgy Holdings’ regulated
subsidiaries, including MidAmerican Energy. Berkshire Hathaway will have up to 180 days to fund any such request in
minimum increments of at least $250 million pursuant to one or more drawings authorized by MidAmerican Energy
Holdings’ Board of Directors. The funding of each drawing will be made by means of a cash equity contribution to
MidAmencan Energy Holdings in exchange for additional shares of MidAmerican Energy Holdings’ common stock.
MidAmerican Energy has no right fo make or to cause MidAmerican Energy Holdings to make any equity contribuiion
requests. The Berkshire Hathaway equity commitment will expire on February 28, 2011,

MIDAMERICAN FUNDING AND MHC

MidAmerican Funding conducis no business other than activities related to its debt securities and the ownership of
MHC. MHC conducts no business ather than the ownership of its subsidiaries. MHC's interests inclade 1(0% of the
common stock of MidAmerican Energy, InterCoast Capital, Midwest Capital, MidAmerican Services and MEC
Constructon. MidAmerican Energy, which accounts for the predominant part of MHC’s assets and eamings, is a
public utility with regulated electric and natural gas operations principally in lowa. Substantially all of
MidAmerican Funding’s consolidated operating revenues are from MidAmericar Energy. Financial information on
MidAmerican Funding's segments of business is inciuded in Note 18 of Notes 1o Censolidated Financial Statements
in Item 8 of this Form 16-K.

As of December 31, 2007, MidAmerican Funding and its subsidiaries had 3,653 employzes.

-
o
~



ExHIBIT C-2

“SEC Filings”

MIDAMERIC RGY

MidAmerican Energy is a public vutility company headquariered in Iowa with $7.3 billion of asseis as of
December 31, 2007, and operating revenues for 2007 totaiing $4.3 billion. MidAmerican Energy is principally
engaped in the business of generating, transmitting, distributing and selling electricity and in distributing, selling and
transporting natural gas. MidAmerican Encrgy distributes electricity at retail in Council Bluffs, Des Moines, Fort
Dodge, Iowa City, Sioux City and Waterloo, Iowa; the Quad Cities (Davenport and Bettendorf, Iowa and Rock
Island, Moline and East Moline, Illinois); and a number of adjacent communities and areas. It also distributes natural
gas at retail in Cedar Rapids, Des Moines, Fort Dodge, Iowa City, Sioux City and Waterloo, lowa; the Quad Cities;
Sigux Falls, South Dakota; and a number of adjacent communities and areas. Additionally, MidAmerican Energy
transports natural gas through its distribution system for a2 number of end-use customers who have independently
secured their supply of namral pas. As of December 31, 2007, MidAmerican Energy had approximately 720,000
regulated retail electric customers and 702,000 regulated retail and transporiation natural gas customers.

In addition to retail sales and natural gas tramsportation, MidAmerican Energy sells electric energy and natural gas to
other utilities, rmmicipalities and marketers. These sales are referred 1o as wholesale sales.

MidAmerican Energy’s regulated electric and natural gas operations are conducted under franchisc agreements,
certificates, permits and licenses obtained from state and local authorities. The franchise agreements, with various
expiration dates, are typically for 25-year terms.

MidAmerican Energy has a diverse customer base consisting of residential, agricuitural, and & variety of commercial
and industrial customer groups. Some of the larger industrial groups served by MidAmerican Energy include the
processing and sales of food products; the manufactoring, processing and fabrication of primary metals; farm and
other non-electrical machinery; real estate; and cement and gypsum products.

MidAmerican Energy also conducts a pumber of nonregulated business activities. Refer to the “Nonregulated
Operations™ section later in this Item 1 for further discussion.

Financial information on MidAmerican Energy’s segments of business is included in Noie 18 of Notes to
Consolidated Fmancial Statements in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.

MidAmerican Energy derived its gross operating revenues from the following business activities for the years ended
December 31.

2007 2006 2065

Regulated clectric 45% 52% 48%
Regulated gas 28 32 42
Noaregulated 27 16 10

—100% —100% —100%

As of December 31, 2007, MidAmerican Energy had 3,653 employees, of which 1,725 were covered by union
contracts. MidAmerican Energy has five separate contracts with locals of the International Brotherhood of Elecirical
Workers (“IBEW™), the United Association of Plumbers and Pipefitiers and the United Paper Workers Intemnational
Union. One contract with IBEW locals 109 and 499 expires April 3¢, 2009, and covers 1,649 employee members.
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Reguiated Electric Operations

The following tables present historical regulated electric sales data related to customer class and jurisdictions.

Total Regulated Electric Sales
By Customer Class
2067 2006 2005
Residential 18% 18% 21%
Smail general service & 12 13 15
Large general service @ 27 28 28
Wholesale & 38 36 31
Other 5 5 3
__100% 100% 100%
{1) Genenally includes commercial and industrial cusfomers with a demand of 200 kilowatts or less.
@ Gererally includes commercial and industrial custoreers with a demaod of more than 200 kilowatts,
3) Wholesale generally inchides other utilities, municipalities and marketers 0 whom clectric encrgy is sold at wholesale for resale to
ultimate customers.
Regulated Retail Electric Sales By State
2007 2006 2005
Towa 90% 90% 89%
Tilinois 9 9 10
South Dakota 1 1 1
~100% —100% . 100%

There are scasonal variations in MidAmerican Energy’s electric business that are principally related to the use of
electricity for air conditioning. In general, 35-40% of MidAmerican Energy’s tegulated eleciric revenues are
reported in the months of June, July, August and Seprember.

The annual howrly peak demand on MidAmerican Energy’s electric system wsually occurs as a resuit of air
conditioning use during the cooling season. On August 13, 2007, retail customer usage of electricity caused a new
record hourly peak demand of 4,240 megawatts (“MW™) on MidAmerican Energy’s electric system, an increase of
104 MW from the previous record set in 2006,

MidAmerican Energy’s total accredited net generating capability in the summer of 2007 was 5,304 MW, including
154 MW of net capacity purchases and sales. Accredited net generating capability represents the amouni of
generation available to meet the requirements on MidAmerican Energy’s system and consists of MidAmerican
Engrgy-owned generation and the net amount of capacity purchases and sales. Accredited capacity may vary from
the nameplate, or design, capacity ratings, particulariy for wind turbines whose output is dependent upon wind levels
at any given time. Additionally, the actual amount of generating capacity available at any time may be less than the
accredited capacity due to regulatory restrictions, transmission constraints, filel restrictions and generating units
being temporarily out of service for inspection, maintenance, refucling, modifications or other reasons.
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The following table details information related to MidAmerican Energy’s electric generating facilities for summer

2007 accreditation.
Facility Net
Energy Year Capacity Net MW
Generating Facility Laocstion Searce Installed e Owned ™
COAL:

George Neal Unit No. 1 Sergeant Bhuff, [A Coal 1964 135 135

George Neal Unit No. 2 Sergeant Blufl, [A Coal 1972 289 289

George Neal Unit No. 3 Sergeant Bluff, 1A Coal 1975 515 371

QGeorge Neal Uit No. 4 Salix, 1A Coal 1979 644 261

Louisa Muscatine, IA Coal 1983 700 616

Ottumwa Guurmwa, 1A Coal 1981 672 349

Riverside Unit No. 3 Betiendorf, [A Coal 1925 5 5

Riverside Unit No. 5 Betteadosd, JA Coal 1961 130 130

Walter Scott, Jr. Unit No. 1 Couucil Bluffs, 14 Coal 1954 45 45

Walter Scott, Ir. Unit No. 2 Couneil Bluffs, [A Coal 1958 B2 88

Walter Seott, Jr. Unit No. 3 Council Bluffs, [A Coal 1978 690 546

Walter Scott, Je. Uit No. 4 Council Bluffs, 1A Coal 2007 790 471

4.703 3306
NATURAL GAS AND OTHER:

Greater Des Moines Pleasant Hill, TA Gas 2003-04 497 497

Coralville Coralvitle, IA Gas 1970 64 64

Electrifarm ‘Waterloo, [A Gas/Odl 1975-78 199 199

Moline Moline, IL Gas 1970 64 64

Parr Charies City, LA Gas 1969 32 32

Pleasant Hilt Pleasant Hill, [A Gas/Ojt 1990-24 161 161

River Hills Des Muines, IA Gas 1966-67 17 117

Sycamore Johnston, IA Gas/Oil 1974 149 149

28 portable power modules Various 0il 2000 56 S6

1,339 1.339
NUCLEAR:
Quad Cities Unit No. 1 Cordova, IL Uranitm 1972 872 218
Quad Cities Unit No. 2 Cordova, IL Uraninm 1972 863 217
—L740 —43
WIND®:

Century Blaitshorg, LA Wind 2005/2007 25 23

Inwrepid Schaller, 1A Wind 2004-05 20 20

Pomeray Pomeroy, 1A Wind 2007 - -

Viciory Westside, LA Wind 2006 2 22

67 67
HYDROELECTRIC:

Moline Unit Nos. 1-4 Moline, IL Mississippi River 1941 3 3
ACCREDITED GENERATING CAPACITY 1852 ___5,150
WIND INCREMENTAL CAPACITY®:

Century 164 164

Intrepid 156 156

Pomeroy 197 197

Victory 27 27

— 3 — 394
. el 34
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{1} Facility Net Capacity (MW) represents total plant accredited pet generating capacity from the summer of 2007 based on
MidAmerican Energy’s accreditation approved by the Mid-Continent Area Power Pool. Actual MW may vary depending on
operating conditions and plant design. Net MW Cwned indicates MidAmerican Energy’s ownership of Facility Net Capacity.

{2} MidAmerican Energy owned 673 MW (nameplate, or design capacity, ratings} of wind-powered generation as of December 31, 2007,
The 67 MW of accredited capacity for these facilities in the table is considerably less than the nameplate mting due ta the varying
nature of wind and fo the fact that the Pomeroy wind-powered generation facilities and 15 MW of the Century facilities were placed
in service after the 2007 summer acereditation.

{3) The wind incremental capacity represents the difference between the summer 2007 accreditation of the facilities and the nameplate
ratings.

On April 18, 2006, the Iowa Utilities Board (“TUB™) approved a setilement agreement between MidAmerican
Energy and the Towa Office of Consumer Advocate (“OCA”) regarding ratemaking principles for additional wind-
powersd generation capacity in Iowa to be installed in 2006 and 2007. A total of 222 MW (nameplate ratings) of
wing-powered generation was placed in service in 2006 and 2007 subject to that agreement, including 123 MW
(nameplate ratings) in the fourth quarter of 2007. On July 27, 2007, the IUB approved a settlement agreement
between MidAmerican Energy and the OCA in conjunction with MidAmerican Energy’s ratemaking principles
application for up o 540 MW (nameplate ratings) of additional wind-powered capacity in Jowa 1o be placed in
service on or before December 31, 2013, MidAmerican Energy placed 78 MW (nameplate ratings) of wind-powered
generation into service in the fourth guarter of 2007 subject to the 2007 settlement agreement Currently,
MidAmerican Energy has 462 MW (nameplate ratings) under development or construction that it expects will be
placed in service by December 31, 2008, MidAmerican Energy continues to pursue additional cost effective wind-
powered generation,

MidAmerican Energy is interconnected with utilities in Iowa and neighboring states. MidAmerican Energy is also a
member of the Mid-Continent Arca Power Pool (“MAPP™). The MAFP is a voluntary association of electric
utilities, 2 power marketing agency, power marketers, regulatory agencies and independent power producers from
Minnesota, Nebraska, North Dakota and the Canadian provinces of Saskatchewan and Manitoba and portions of
Iowa, Montana, South Dakota and Wisconsin. The MAPP has two primary fimctions: as a regional transmission
group, responsible for facilitating open access of the transmission system, and as a generation reserve sharing pool,
which provides efficient and available generation to meet regional demand. As a MAPP member, MidAmerican
Energy conducis transmission and wholesale power transactions using MAPP member interconnected transmission
facilities in accordance with the MAPP open access transmission tariff and participates in the generation reserve
sharing pool to support its operations.

Each MAPP generation reserve participant is required to maintain for emergency purposes a net generating
capability reserve of 15% above its system peak demand, including net capacity purchases and sales, for each
month, MidAmerican Energy’s reserve margin at peak demand for 2007 was approximately 25%. MidAmerican
Energy believes it has adequate electric capacity reserve through 2009, including capacity provided by the
generating projects discussed above. However, significantly higher-than-normal temperatures during the cooling
season could cause MidAmerican Energy’s reserve to fall below the 15% MAPP requirement,

MidAmerican Energy can transact with a substantial number of parties through its participation in the MAPP and
through its direct interconnections to the Midwest Independent Transmission Sysfem Operator, Inc., Southwest
Power Pool, Inc., and PJM Interconnection, L.L.C. regional transmission arganizations (“RTQ”s} and several other
major transmission-owning utilities in the region. Under normal operating conditions, MidAmerican Energy’s
transmission system has adequate capacity to deliver energy to MidAmerican Energy’s distribution system and to
export and import energy with other intercormected systems.
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Energy Supply for Electric Operations

MidAmerican Energy’s total ¢nergy supplied to retail and wholesale electric customers was from the following
SOUICes:

2007 2006 2005
MidAmerican Energy - owned generation 74% 72% 79%
Energy purchased under long-term contracts 7 7 8
Eaergy purchased - other 19 21 13

100% 100% 100%

Sources of fuel for energy supplied by MidAmerican Energy-owned electric generation were as follows for the vears
ended December 31:

2007 2006 2005
Coal 76% T7% 79%
Nuclear 14 14 15
Gas 4 4 3
Other 6 5 3

—100% —100% —100%

MidAmerican Energy is exposed to fluctuations in encrgy costs relafing to retail sales in Iowa and, affective
Jamary 1, 2607, Illinois as it does not bave an energy adjustment clause in those jurisdictions. In Ilinois, base raies
were adjusted to include recoveries at average 2004/2005 energy cost levels beginning January 1, 2007, and rate
case approval is required for any base rate changes. MidAmerican Energy may not petition for reinstatement of the
Hlinois fiuel adjustment clause until November 2011, Under its current South Dakota electric tariffs, MidAmerican
Energy is allowed to mecover fluctuations in the cost of purchased energy and all fuels used for retail electric
generation through a fuel cost adjustment ¢lause.

All of the coal-fired generating stations operated by MidAmerican Energy are fucled by low-sulfitr, western coal
from the Powder River Basin in northeast Wyoming and southeast Moniana. MidAmerican Encrgy’s coal supply
portfolio includes multiple suppliers and mines under short-term and multi-year agreements of varying terms and
quantities. MidAmerican Energy’s coal sapply portfolio has a substantial majority of its expected 2008 requirements
under fixed-price contracts. MidAmerican Energy regularly monitors the western coal market looking for
opporiunities to enhance its coal supply portfolio. Additional information regarding MidAmerican Energy’s coal
supply contracts is included in Note 15 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.

MidAmerican Energy has a long-term coal transportation agreement with Union Pacific Railroad Company (“Union
Pacific™). Under this agreement, Union Pacific delivers coal directly to MidAmerican Energy’s George Neal and
Walter Scott, Jr. Energy Centers and to an interchange point with the lowa, Chicago & Eastern Railroad Corporation
for short-haul delivery to the Louisa and Riverside Energy Centers. MidAmerican Energy has the ability to use
BNSF Railway Company for delivery of a smali amount of coal to the Walter Scott, Jr., Louisa and Riverside
Energy Centers should the need arise.

MidAmerican Energy is a 25% joint owner of Quad Cities Generating Station Units 1 and 2 ("Quacd Cities Station™),
a nuclear power plant. Exelon Generation Company, LLC (“Exelon Generation™), the 75% joint owner and the
operator of Quad Cities Station, is a subsidiary of Exelon Corporation. Appreximaiely one-third of the nuclear fuel
assemblies in cach reactor core at Quad Citics Station is 1eplaced every 24 months. MidAmerican Energy has been
advised by Exelon Generation that the following requirements for Quad Cities Station can be met under existing
supplies or commitments: uraninm requirements through 2010 and pattial requirements through 2015; uranium
conversion requirements through 2010 and partial requirements through 2011; enrichment requirements through
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2010 and partial requirements through 2617; and fabrication through 2015. MidAmerican Energy has been advised
by Exelon Generation that it does not anticipate it will have difficulty in contracting for wranium, uranium
conversion, enrichment or fabrication of nuclear fuel needed to operate Quad Cities Station during this time,

MidAmerican Energy uses natural gas and oil as fuel for intermediate and peak demand electric generation, igniter
fuel, transmission support and standby purposes. These sources are presently in adequate supply and available to
meet MidAmerican Energy’s needs.

MidAmerican Energy is pursuing renewable resources as a viabie, economic and environmentally prudent means of
generating electricity, The benefits of energy from renewable resources include low to no emissions and typically
little or no fossil fuel requirements. The intermittent natwre of some renewable resources, such as wind, is
complemented by MidAmerican Energy’s other generating resources, which are important to integrating intermittent
wind resources into the electric system,

Reguiated Natural Gas Operations

MidAmerican Energy is engaged in the procurement, transportation, storage and distribution of natural gas for
customers in the Midwest. MidAmerican Energy purchases natural gas from various suppliers, transpotts it from the
production areas to MidAmerican Encrgy’s service territory under contracts with interstate pipelines, stores it in
varions storage facilities to manage fluctuations in system demand and seasonal pricing, and distributes it to
customers through MidAmerican Energy’s distribution system.

MidAmerican Energy sells natural gas and transportation services to end-use customers and natural gas to other
utilities, municipalities and marketers. MidAmerican Energy also transports through its distribution system natural
gas purchased independently by a number of end-use customers. During 2007, 46% of total gas delivered through
MidAmerican Energy’s system for end-use custorners was under gas transportation service.

There are seasonal variations in MidAmerican Energy’s gas business that are principally due to the use of nawral
gas for heating. In general, 45-55% of MidAmerican Energy’s regulated gas revennes are reported in the months of
January, February, March and December.

The following tables present historical regniated gas sales data, excluding transportation throughput, related to
customer class and jurisdictions.

Total Regulated Gas Sales
By Customer Class
2007 2006 2005
Residential 40% 3% 38%
Small general service ¢ 19 18 18
Large general service " 4 4 4
Wholesale @ 37 4l 40
_100% _106% 100%
N Small and large general service costorers are classified primarily based on the nature of their business and gas usage. Small general

service cuskuners are business customers whose gas usage is principally for heating. Large peneral service cuslomers are business
custorers whose principal gas usage is for their manufacturing processes,

{2) Whalesale generally includes other utilities, mounicipalitics aud marketers to whom namral gas is sold at wholesale for eventual resale
to end-use customers.
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Regulated Retail Gas Sales By State

2007 2006 2005

lowa T7% T1% 77%
South Dakota 12 12 12
IHinois 10 10 10
Nebraska 1 1 i

~L100% —100% —100%

Fuel Supply and Capacity

MidAmerican Energy purchases gas supplies from producers and third party marketers. To enhance system
reliability, a geographically diverse supply portfolic with varying terms and contraci conditions is utilized for the
gas supplies. MidAmerican Energy attempts to optimize the value of its regulated assets by engaping in wholesale
transactions. TUB and South Daketa Public Utilities Cormission (“SDPUC™) rulings have allowed MidAmerican
Energy to retain 50% of the respective jurisdictional margins earned on wholesales sales of natural gas, with the
remaining 50% being returned to customers through the purchased gas adjustment clauses discussed below.

MidAmerican Energy has rights to firm pipeline capacity to transport gas to its service territory through direct
interconnects to the pipeline systems of Northern Natural Gas Company (an affiliate company), Natural Gas
Pipeline Company of America, Northern Border Pipeline Company and ANR Pipeline Company. At times, the
capacity available through MidAmerican Energy’s firm capacity portfolio may exceed the demand on MidAmerican
Energy’s distribution system. Firm capacity in e¢xcess of MidAmerican Energy’s system needs can be resold to other
companies to achieve optimum usc of the available capacity. Past TUB and SDPUC rulings have allowed
MidAmerican Energy to retain 30% of the respective jurisdictional margins earned on the resold capacity, with the
remaining 70% being returned to customers through the purchased gas adjustment clauses.

MidAmerican Energy is allowed to recover its cost of gas from all of its regulated gas customers through purchased
gas adjustment clauscs. Accordingly, as long as MidAmerican Energy is prudent in its procurement practiccs,
MidAmerican Energy’s regulated gas customers retain the risk associated with the market price of gas.
MidAmerican Energy uses several strategies designed to reduce the market price risk for its gas customers,
incinding the nse of storage gas and peak shaving facilities, sharing arrangements to share savings and costs with
customers, and shori-term and long-term financial and physical gas purchase agreements.

MidAmerican Energy utilizes leased gas storage to meet peak day requirements and to manage the daily changes in
demand due to changes in weather. The storage gas is typically replaced during off-peak months when the demand
for gas is historically lower than during the heating season. In addition, MidAmerican Energy also utilizes three
liquefied natural gas plants and two propane-air plants to meet peak day demands in the winter, The storage and
peak shaving facilities reduce MidAmerican Energy’s dependence on gas purchases during the volatile winter
heating season. MidAmerican Energy can deliver approximately 50% of its design day sales requirements from its
storage and peak shaving supply sources.

In 1995, the [UB gave initial approval of MidAmerican Energy’s Incentive Gas Supply Procurement Program. In
December 2006, the IUB extended the program through October 31, 2010. Under the program, as amended,
MidAmerican Energy is required to file with the [UB every six months a comparison of its gas procurement costs o
a reference price. If MidAmerican Energy’s cost of gas for the period is less or greater than an established folerance
band around the reference price, then MidAmerican Energy shares a portion of the savings or costs with customers.
A similar program is currently in effect in South Dakota through October 31, 2010. Since the implementation of the
program, MidAmerican Energy has successfully achieved and shared savings with its namral gas customers. Refer
to the “Nonregulated Operations™ section for addiiional information.
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On February 2, 1996, MidAmerican Energy bhad its highest peak-day delivery of 1,143,026 decatherms (“Dihs™).
This peak-day delivery consisted of approximately 88% traditional sales service and 12% transportation service of
customer-pwned gas. As of January 31, 2008, MidAmerican Energy’s 2007/2008 winter heating season peak-day
delivery of 1,020,116 Dths was reached on Jammary 29, 2008. This peak-day delivery included 73% traditional sales
service and 27% transportation service.

The supply sources utilized by MidAmerican Energy to meet its 2007/2008 winter heating season peak-day
deliveries to its traditional sales service customers were:

Thouwsands Percent
of of
Dths Total
Leased storage and peak shaving planis 218 29%
Firm supply 527 71
Y —li00%

MidAmerican Energy has strategically built mulfipie pipeline intercomnections into several of its larger
communities. Multiple pipeline interconnects create competition among pipeline suppliers for transportation
capacity to serve those comrmmities, thus reducing costs. In addition, multiple pipeline intercomnects give
MidAmerican Energy the ability to optimize delivery of the lowest cost supply from the vatious supply basins into
these communiiies and increase delivery refiability. Benefits to MidAmerican Energy’s sysitemn customers are shared
with all jurisdictions through a consolidated purchased gas adjustment clause.

MidAmerican Energy does not anticipate difficulties in meeting its future demands through the use of its supply
portfolic and pipeline intercommections for the foreseeable future,

Demand-side Management

MidAmerican Energy has provided a comprehensive set of demand-side management programs to its lowa electric
and gas customers since 1990. The programs are designed to reduce growth in peak load and energy consumption.
Current Iowa programs offer customers incentives for energy audits and weatherization; rebates or below market
financing for high efficiency equipment such as lighting, heating and cooling equipment, insulation, motors and
process equipment and systems; npew construction; and load management (curtailment) programs for large
commercial and industrial customers and residential customers whase cenitral air corditioners are controlled during
sunumer peak load perieds. Subject to random prudence reviews, Iowa regulstion aliows for contemporancous
recovery of costs incurred for the demand-side management plan through an energy charge to all remil elecrric and
gas customers. In 2007, $51 million was expended on the demand-side management programs in Iowa resulting in
an estimated 268 MW and 5,464 Dib/day of electric and pas peak demand reduction, respectively, MidAmerican
Energy Company pians to offer similar or comparabie programs to Illinois customets in 2008.

Nonregulated Operations

MidAmerican Energy’s nonregulated operations include a variety of activities outside of the traditional regulated
eleciric and gas services, including nonregulated electric and natural gas sales and gas income-sharing arrangements.

Nonregulated electric activities include nonregulated retail and wholesale operations. MidAmerican Energy’s
nonreguiated retail electric marketing services provide electric supply services to retail customers predominantly in
Illinods, but aiso in Michigan and Maryland. During 2007, MidAmerican Energy’s nonrcguliated retail electric
marketing services expanded significantly in Illinois as a result of that market becoming fully open to competition.
Effective January 1, 2007, the major electric distribution companies in Illinois increased their purchases of energy
on the open marker due to the expiration of contracts associated with industry restructuring in Iliineis.
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MidAmerican Energy’s nonregulated gas marketing services operate in Iowa, Illinois, Michigan, South Dakota and
Nebraska. MidAmerican Energy purchases gas from producers and third party markeiers and sells it direcily to
commercial and industrial end-users. In addition, MidAmerican Energy manages gas supplies for a number of
smaller commercial end-users, which includes the sale of gas to these customers to meet their supply requirements.

Nonregulated operations also include carnings from sharing arrangements under applicable state regulations and
tariffs filed with the TUB and the SDPUC for MidAmerican Energy’s regulated natural gas operations. Under these
arrangements, MidAmerican Energy is allowed to keep a portion of the benefits of gas sales for resale and capacity
release transactions. MidAmerican Energy also has an Incentive Gas Supply Procurement Program, under which it
can receive gwards for successful performance of gas supply procurement. Refer to the preceding “Regulated
Natural Gas Operations™ section of this Item 1 for further discussion of the sharing arrangements and the gas
procurement program.

Regulation

General Utility Regulstion

MidAmerican Epergy is a public utility within the meaning of the Federal Power Act and a natural gas company
within the meaning of the Natural Gas Act. Therefore, it is subject to regulation by the Federal Energy Regulatory
Conmmission (“FERC™} im regard to numerous activities, including accouniing policies and practices, electricity
wholesale rates, the establishment and regulation of electric interconnections and fransmission services, the
acquisition and disposition of utility assets and securities over threshold amounts and replacement of certain gas

utility property.

MidAmerican Energy is regulated by the IUB as to retail rates, services, construction of utility property and in other
respects as provided by the laws of lowa, MidAmerican Energy is regulated by the Illinois Commerce Commission
(“ICC™ as to bundled retail rates, unbundled delivery services, services that have not been declared to be
competitive, aspects of competitive gas sales in Illinois, issnance of securities, affiliate transactions, construction,
acquisition and sale of wtility property, acquisition and sale of securities and in other respects as provided by the
laws of Tllinois. MidAmerican Energy is also subject to regulation by the SDPUC as to eleciric and gas retail rates
and service as provided by the laws of South Dakota.

R tion

The TUB has approved over the past several years a series of electric settlement agreements between MidAmerican
Energy, the OCA and other intervenors, under which MidAmerican Energy has agreed not to seek a general increase
in eleciric base rates to become effective prior.to January 1, 2014, uniess its Jowa jurisdictional electric return on
equity for any year covered by the applicable agreement falls below 10%, computed as prescribed in each respective
agreement. Prior to filing for a general increase in electric rates, MidAmerican Energy is required to conduct 30
days of good faith negotiations with the signatories (o the settlement agreements to attempt to avoid a general
in¢rease in rates, As a party to the settlement agreements, the OCA has agreed not to request or support any decrease
in MidAmerican Energy’s Iowa electric base rates to become effective prior to January 1, 2014. The settlement
agreements specifically allow the TUB to approve or order electric rate design or cost of service rate changes that
could result in changes to rates for specific customers as long as such changes do not result in an overall increase in
revenues for MidAmerican Energy. Additionally, the settlement agreements also each provide that revemies
associated with Iowa retail electric returns on equity within specified ranges will be shared with customers. See
Note 14 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of this Form 10-K. for additional discussion of
these settlements.

Under Iowa law, there are two options for temporary collection of higher rates following the filing of a request fora
rate increase. Collection can begin, subject to refimd, either (1) within 10 days of filing, without IUB review, or
(2) 90 days after filing, with approval by the IUB, depending upon the ratemaking principles and precedenis utilized.
In either case, if the IUB has not issued a final order within ten months after the filing date, the temporary rates
become final and any difference between the requested rate increase and the temporary rates may then be collected
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subject to refund until receipt of a final order. Exceptions to the ten-month limitation provide for extensions due to a
utility’s lack of due diligence in the rate proceeding, judicial appeals and situations involving new generating units
being placed in service.

MidAmerican Energy’s cost of gas is collected in its Iowa gas raies through the Iowa Uniform Purchased Gas
Adjustment Clause ("PGA™), which is updated monthly to reflect changes in actual costs. Subject to prudence
reviews, the PGA accomplishes a pass-through of MidAmerican Epergy’s cost of gas 10 its customers and,
accordingly, has no direct affect on net income. MidAmerican Energy’s lowa energy efficiency program costs are
collected through scparaicty cstablished rates thai are adjusted annually based on actal and expected costs,
including a return, as approved by the TUB. As such, recovery of energy efficiency program cosis have an
insignificant impact on net income.

Sonth Dakota law authorizes the SDPUC to suspend new raies for up to six months during the pendency of rate
proceedings; however, the rates are permitted to be implemented six months after the filing of & request for a rate
increase subject to refund pending a final order in the proceeding.

Under Nlinois law, new rates may become effective 45 days after filing with the ICC, or on such earlier date as the
ICC may approve, subject to its authority to suspend the proposed new rates, subject to hearing, for a period not to
exceed approximately eleven months after filing. MidAmerican Energy’s cost of gas is reflected in its Illinois gas
rates through the Tlinois Uniform Purchased Gas Adjustment Clause, which is updated an a monthly basis to reflect
changes in actual costs.

The FERC regutates MidAmerican Energy’s tates charged to wholesale customers for electricity, capacity and
transmission services. Most of MidAmerican Energy’s electric wholesale sales and purchases take place under
market-hased raie pricing granted by the FERC and are therefore subject to market volatility. A December 2006
decision of the United States Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit changed the interpretation of the relevant
standard that the FERC should apply when reviewing wholesale contracts for electricity or capacity from a stringent
“public policy” standard to a “just and reasonable” standard, making contracts more vulnerable to challenge. The
decision raises some concerns regarding the finality of contract prices, particularly from the sellers’ side of the
transactions. The U. S. Supreme Count is reviewing the case on appeal and the outcome of its ruling cannot be
predicted at this time. All sellers subject to the FERC's jurisdiction, including MidAmerican Energy, are currently
subject to increased risk as a result of this decision. Margins earned on wholesale sales have historically been
included as a component of retail cost of service upon which retail rates are based.

The FERC conducts a triennial review of MidAmerican Energy’s market-based pricing autbority. MidAmerican
Energy must demonstrate the lack of generation market power in order to charge market-based rates for sales of
wholesale electricity and capacity in its balancing authority area. Under the FERC’s markei-based rules,
MidAmerican Energy must file a notice of change in status when 100 MW of incremental generation becomes
operational. MidAmerican Energy’s most recent triennial review, which began in October 2004, is complete pending
the FERC’s final uling on certain sales made within MidAmerican Energy’s balancing authority area for delivery
outside the balancing authority area. MidAmerican Energy has FERC authorization to sell at market-based rates
outside of its balancing authority area. Based on its estimate of its potential refund obligation, MidAmerican Ensrgy
does not believe the ultimate resolution of this issue will have a material impact on its financial results, Following a
change in status notice relating to mew generation filed by MidAmerican Energy, in October 2007, the FERC
confirmed that MidAmerican Energy is authorized to sell at market-based rates outside of its balancing authority
area :and directed that MidAmerican Energy submiit its next required triennial review in accordance with the
schedule established in Order No. 697. Unless the FERC determings otherwise in response to a pending request for
clarification, MidAmerican Energy’s next triennial filings will occur in June and December 2008,

The FERC continues to address and modify its rules and their application with respect to market-based wholesale

transactions. Rules impacting transmission cost and availability sigpificantly impact MidAmerican Encrgy’s
wholesale transactions.
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The FERC’s transmission regulations require MidAmerican Energy to provide open access transmission sarvice at
cosi-based rates offered on 2 non-discriminatory basis, meaning that all potential customers are provided an equal
opporlunity to access the tramsmission system. MidAmerican Energy’s transmission services are managed and
operated independently from its generating and wholesale marketing activities in accordance with the FERC
Standards of Conduct. MidAmerican Energy is not patt of an RTO, but it has hired an independent transmission
service coordinator (“TSC™) to admimister through August 2009 various MidAmerican Energy OATT functions for
wansmission service. The FERC approved MidAmerican Energy’s selection of the TSC and the related agreement.
MidAmerican Energy is cvaluating the merits of participating in an RTO market.

On February 16, 2007, the FERC adopted a final rule in Order No. 890 designed to strengthen its pro forma Open
Access Transmission Tariff {“OATT™) by providing greater specificity and increasing iransparency. The most
significant revisions o the pro forma OATT relate 10 the development of more consistent methodologies for
calculating available transfer capability, changes to the transmission planning process, changes to the pricing of
certain penerator and energy imbalances to encourage cfficient scheduling behavior and t© exempt intermittent
generators, and changes reparding long-term point-io-point transmission service, including the addition of
conditional firm long-termn point-to-peint transmission service, and generation redispaich. As 2 transmission
provider with an QATT on file with the FERC, MidAmerican Energy is required to comply with the requirements of
the new rule. The first compliance filing, which amends the OATT, was filed on July 13, 2007. Certain details
related to the precise methodology that will be used to calculate available transfer capability were filed with the
FERC on September 11, 2007. A number of parties to the proceeding, including MidAmerican Energy, requestad
rehearing or clarification of various portions of the final rule. In December 2007, the FERC issyed Order No. 890-A
generally affirming the provisions of the final rule as adopted in Order No. 890 with ceriain limited clarifications.
The final rule as revised is not anticipated to have a significant impact on MidAmerican Energy’s financial results,
but it will likcly have a significant impact on ifs transmission operations, planning and wholesale marketing
functions.

In March 2007, the FERC issued Order No. 693, “Mandatory Reliability Standards for the Bulk-Power System,”
which imposes penalties of up to $1 million per day per violation for faiture to comply with new electric reliability
standards, The FERC approved B3 reliability standards developed by the North American Electric Reliability
Corporation (“NERC”). Responsibility for compliance and enforcement of these standards has been given 1o the
Midwest Reliability Organization for MidAmerican Energy. The 83 standards comprise over 600 requirernents and
sub-requirements with which MidAmerican Encrgy must comply. On June 18, 2007, the standards became
mandatory and enforceable under federal law. MidAmerican Energy expects that the existing standards will change
as a result of modifications, guidance and clarification following industry implementation and ongoing audits and
enforcement. On January 18, 2008, the FERC approved eight additional cyber security and critical infrastructure
protection standards proposed by the NERC, The additional standards will become effective on April 7, 2008.
MidAmerican Energy expects that the existing standards will often change as a result of modifications, guidance and
clarification following industry impiementation and ongoing audits and enforcement. MidAmerican Energy cannot
predict the effect that these standards will have on its financial results; however, they will likely have a significant
impact on its transmission operations and resource planning functions.

Refer to the “Utility Regulatory Maiters” section of Management’s Discussion and Analysis in Item 7 of this Form
10-K for additional discussion of matters affecting utility regulation,

Nuclear Regulation

Genperal

MidAmerican Energy is subject to the jurisdiction of the Nuclear Regulatory Commission (“NRC”™), with respect to
its license and 25% ownership inierest in Quad Cities Station. Exelon Generation is the operator of Quad Cities

Station and is under contract with MidAmerican Evergy to secure and keep in effect all necessary NRC licenses and
anthorizations.
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The NRC regulates the granting of permits and licenses for the construction and operation of nuclear generating -
stations and regularly inspects such stations for compliance with applicable laws, regulations and license terms.
Current licenses for the Quad Cities Station provide for operation until December 14, 2032. The NRC review and
regulatory process covers, among ather things, operaiions, maintenance, and environmental and radiological aspects
of such stations. The NRC may modify, suspend or revoke licenses and impose civil penalties for failure to comply
with the Atomic Energy Act, the regulations under such Aet or the terms of such licenses.

Federal regulations provide that any nuclear opemating facility may be required to cease operation if the NRC
determines there are deficiencies in state, local or utility emergency preparedness plans relating to such facility, and
the deficiencies are not corrected. Exelon Generation has advised MidAmerican Energy that an emergency
preparedness plan for Quad Citics Station has been approved by the NRC. Exelon Generation has also advised
MidAmerican Energy that state and local plans relating to Quad Cities Station have been approved by the Faderal
Emergency Management Agency.

The NRC also regulates the decommissioning of muclear power plants including the planning and funding for the
eventual decommissioning of the plants, In accordance with these regulations, MidAmerican Energy submits a
report to the NRC every two years providing reasonable assurance that funds will be available 10 pay the costs of
decommissioning its share of Quad Cities Station.

Under the Nuclear Wasie Policy Act of 1982 (“NWPA™}, the U.S. Department of Energy (“DOE”) is responsibie for
the selection and development of repositories for, and the permanent disposal of, spent nuclear fel and high-level
radioactive wastes. Exelon Generation, as required by the NWPA, signed a contract with the DOE wnder which the
DOE was to receive spent nuclear fuel and high-level radioactive wasie for disposal beginning not later than
January 1998, The DOE did not begin receiving spent nuclear fuel on the scheduled date and remains unable to
receive such fuel and waste. The eartiest the DOE currently is expected to be able to receive such fuel and waste is
2017. The costs to be incurred by the DOE for disposal activities are being financed by fees charged to owners and
generators of the waste. In 2004, Exelon Generation reached a settlement with the DOE concerning the DOE’s
failure o begin accepting spent nuclear fuel in 1998, As z result, Quad Cities Station has been billing the DOE, and
the DOE is obligated to reimburse the station for all station costs incurred due to the DOE’s delay. Exelon
Generation has completed construction of an interim spent fuel storage installation (“ISFSI™) at Quad Cities Station
to store spent mclear fuel in dry casks in order to free space in the storage pool. The first pad at the ISFSI is
expected to facilitate storage of casks to support operations at Quad Cities Station until at least 2017. The first
storage in a dry cask commenced in November 2005, In the 2017 to 2022 timeframe, Exelon Generation plans to
add a second pad to the ISFSI to accommodate storage of spent muclear fuel through the end of operations at Quad
Cities Station.

MidAmerican Energy has established trusts for the investment of funds collected for nuclear decommissioning
associated with Quad Cities Station. Electric tariffs currently in effect include provisions for annualized collection of
estimated decomissioning costs at Quad Cities Station. In Iowa, estimated Quad Cities Station decommissioning
costs are reflected in base rates.

Nuclear Insurance

MidAmerican Energy maintains financial protection against catastrophic loss associated with its interest in Quad
Cities Station through a combination of insurance purchased by Exelon Generation Company, LLC (the operator
and joint owner of Quad Cities Station), insurance purchased directly by MidAmerican Energy, and the mandatory
industry-wide loss funding mechanism afforded under the Price-Anderson Amendments Act of 1988, which was
amended and extended by the Energy Policy Act of 2005. The general types of coverage are: nuclear liability,
property coverage and nuclear worker liability.

Exelon Generation purchases private market nuclear liability insurance for Quad Cities Station in the maximum
available amount of $300 million, which includes coverage for MidAmerican Energy’s owneérship. In accordance
with the Price-Anderson Amendments Act of 1988, as amended and extended by the Energy Policy Act of 2008,
excess lability protection above that amount is provided by a mandatory industry-wide Secondary Finamcial
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Protection program under which the licensees of nuclear generating facilities could be assessed for liability incurred
due to a serious nuclear incident at any commercial nuclear reactor in the United States. Currently, Mid American
Energy’s aggregate maxinmm potential share of an assessment for Quad Cities Station is approximately $50 million
per incident, payabl¢ in installments not to exceed $3 million annually.

The propesty insurance covers property damage, stabilization and decontamination of the facility, disposal of the
decontaminated material and premature decommissioning arising out of a covered loss. For Quad Cities Station,
Exelon Generation purchases primary and excess property insurance protection for the combined interests in Quad
Cities Station, with coverage limits totaling $2.1 billion. MidAmerican Energy also directly purchases exira expense
coverage for its share of replacement power and other extra expenses in the event of a covered accidental ontage at
Quad Citics Station. The property and related coverages purchased directly by MidAmerican Encrgy and by Exelon
(Generation, which includes the inierests of MidAmerican Energy, are wmderwritten by an industry mutual insurance
company and contain provisions for retrospective premium assessments should two or more full policy-limit losses
occur in one policy year. Currently, the maximum refrospective amounts that could be assessed against
MidAmerican Energy from industry mutual policies for iis obligations associated with Quad Cities Station total
$10 million.

The master nuclear worker liability coverage, which is purchased by Exelon Generation for Quad Cities Station, is
an industry-wide guaranteed-cost policy with an aggregate limit of $300 million for the nucicar industry as a whole,
which is in effect to cover tort ciaims of workers in muclear-related industries.

Environmental Repulations

MidAmerican Energy is subject to federal, state and local laws and regulations with regard to air and water quality,
hazardous and solid wasie disposal and other environmental matters and is subject {0 zoning and other regulation by
locat authorities. In addition to imposing continuing compliance obligations, these laws and regulations authorize
the imposition of substantial penalties for noncompliance including fines, injunctive relief and other sanctions.
MidAmerican Energy believes it is in material compliance with all Jaws and regulations.

The cost of complying with applicable environmental laws, regulations and mles is expected to be material to
MidAmerican Energy. In particular, fumre mandates may impact the operation of MidAmerican Encrgy’s generating
facilitics and may require MidAmerican Energy to reduce emissions at its facilitics through the installation of
additional emission control equipment or to purchase additional emission allowances or offsets in the fulure.
MidAmerican Energy is not aware of any established technology that reduces the carbon dioxide emissions at coal-
fired facilities, and MidAmerican Energy is uncertain when, or if, such technology will be commercially available.

Expenditures for compliance-related items such as poliution-contro! technologies, replacement generation, nuclear .

decommissioning and associated operating costs are generally incorporated into MidAmerican Energy’s routine cost
structure. An inability to recaver these costs from its customers, either through regulated rates, long-term
arrangements or market prices, could adversely affect MidAmerican Energy’s future financial resulis.

Refer to the Liquidity and Capital Resources section of Item 7 of this Form 10-K for additional information
regarding planned capital expenditures related to environmental reguiation.

Clean Air Standards

MidAmerican Energy has six jointly owned and six wholly owned coal-fired generating umits, which represenied
62% of MidAmerican Energy’s accredited net generating capabitity for summer 2007 and were the source of 74% of
the electric energy gencrated in 2007. MidAmerican Energy’s generating facilities are subject to applicable
provisions of the Clean Air Act and related air quality standards promulgated by the U.S. Environmental Protection
Agency {“EPA™). The Clean Air Act provides the framework for protecting and improving the nation’s air quality,
and centrolling mobile and stationary sources of air emissions. The major Clean Air Act programs, which most
directly affect MidAmerican Energy’s eleciric gemerating facilities, are briefly described below. Many of these
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programs are implemented and administered by the states, which can impose additional, more stringent
Tequirements.

MidAperican Energy bas implemented a planning process that forecasts the site-specific controls and actions that
may be required to meet emissions reductions as prommlgated by the EPA. In accordance with an Towa law passed in
2001, MidAmerican Energy has on file with the IUB its current muiti-year plan and budget for managing sulfur
dioxide (“50;™), nitrogen oxides (“NQ,™ and mercury from its generaiing facilities in a cosi-effective manner. The
plan, which is required to be updated every two years, provides specific actions to be taken at each coal-fired
generating facility and the relaied costs and timing for each action.

National Ambient dir Quality Standards

The EPA implements national ambient air quality standards for ozone and fine particulate matier, as well as for
other criteria pollutants that set the minirmum level of air quality for the United States. Areas that achieve the
standards, as determined by ambient air quality monitoring, are characterized s being in attainment, while those that
fail to meet the standards are designated as being nonattainment areas. Generally, sources of emissions in a
nonattainment area are required to make emissions reductions. The EPA has determined that the entire state of Towa,
where MidAmerican Energy’s major emission sources are located, is in attainment of the current ambicnt air quality
standards. A new, more stringent standard for fine particulate matter became effective on December 18, 2006, but is
under legal chailenge in the United States Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia Circuit. Air guatity
modeling and preliminary air quality monitoring data indicate that porfions of the states in which MidAmerican
Energy has major emission sources may not meet the new standards. Until three years of data are collected and
attainment designations under the new fine particulaie standard are made, the impact of these new standards on
MidAmerican Energy will not be inown.

In July 2007, the EPA proposed revisions to the primary and secondary national ambient air quality standards for
ozone, including lowering the current leve! of the 8-hour standard from (.08 parts per million to a range of 0.070
and 0.075 parls per million. The EPA also solicited public comments through October 9, 2007 on alternative levels
beiween 0.060 parts per miilion and the current 8-hour standard. Final action on the standards must be compieted by
March 12, 2008. States will then have until Junc 2009 to characterize their antainment stamis, with the EPA
determinations regarding non-attainment made by June 2010 and state impiementation plans due in 2013. Until the
EPA makes its final determination on the revised standards and attainment designations arc made, the impact of any
new standards on MidAmerican Energy will not be kmown.

Regulated dir Pollutants

In March 2005, the EPA released the final Clean Air Mercury Rule (“CAMR™), a two-phase program that utilizes g
market-based cap and trade mechanism to reduce mercury emissions from coal-burning power plants from the 1999
nationwide level of 48 tons o 13 tons. The 2005 CAMR required initial reductions of mercury emission in 2010 and
an overall reduction in mercury emissions from coal-burning power plants of 70% by 2018. The individual states in
which MidAmerican Energy operates facilities regulated under the CAMR submitted state implementation plans
reflecting their regulations refating to state mercury control programs. On February 8, 2008, the United States Court
of Appeals for the District of Columbia Circuit held that the EPA impropetly removed electricity generating units
from Section 112 of the Clean Air Act and, thus, that the CAMR was improperly promulgated under Section 111 of
the Clean Air Act. The court vacated the CAMR’s new source performance standards and remanded the matter to
the EPA for reconsideration. In light of this decision, it is not known the extent to which future mercury rules may
impact MidAmerican Energy’s current pians to reduce mercury emissions at its coai-fired facilities.

In March 2005, the EPA released the final Clean Air Interstate Rule (“CAIR™), calling for reductions of 80, and
NO, emissions in the Eastern United States through, at cach state’s option, a market-based cap and trade system,
emission reductions, or both. The state of Iowa has adopted rules implementing the market-based cap and trade
system. While the state of Jowa has been determined (o be in attainment of the existing ozone and fine particulate
standards, Iowa has been found to significantly contribute to nenattainment of the fine particulate standard in Cook
County, Illinois; Lake County, Indiana; Madison County, Illinois; St. Clair County, Illinois; and Marion County,
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Indiana. The EPA has also concluded that emissions from lowa significantly contribute to ozone nonattainment in
Kenosha and Sheboygan counties in Wisconsin and Macomb County, Michigan, Under the CAIR, the first phase of
NO, emissions reductions are effective January 1, 2009, and the first phase of SO, emissions reductions are effective
on Jamuary 1, 2010. For both NO, and 50, the second-phase reductions are effective January 1, 20135. The CATR
reguires overall reductions by 2015 of SO; and NO, in lowa of 68% and 67%, respectively, from 2003 levels,

The CAIR could, in whole or in part, be superseded or made more skringent by current or future regulatory and
legislative proposals at the federal or state levels that would result in significant reductons of SO, NOx and
mercury, as well as carbon dioxide and other gases that may affect globa! climate change. In addition to any federal
legislation that could be enacted, the CAIR. the nules could be changed or overturned as a result of litigation. The
sufficiency of the standards established by the CATR has been legally challenged in the United States Circuit Courl
of Appeals for the District of Columbia.

Regional Hoze

The EPA has initiated a regional haze program intended to improve visibility at specific federally protected areas.
Some of MidAmerican Energy’s piants meet the threshold applicability criteria under the Clean Air Visibility Rules.
In accordance with the federal requirements, states were required to submit state implementstion plans by December
2007 to demonsirate reasonable progress toward achieving natural visibility conditions in certain Class I areas by
requiring emission comtrols, known as best available retrofit technology, on sources with emissions that are
anticipated to cause or conmibute to impairment of visibility. lowa submitted its state implementation plan to the
EPA by December 2007 and suggested that the emission reductions already made by MidAmerican Energy and
additional reductions that will be made under the CAIR piace the state in the position that ao further reductions
should be required.

New Source Review

Under existing New Source Review {“NSR™) provisions of the Clean Air Act, any facility that emits regulated
poliutants is required to obtain a permit from the EPA or a state regulatory agency prior to (1) beginning
construction of a new major stationary source of an NSR-regulated pollutant or (2) making a physical or operational
change to an existing stationary source of such pollutants that increases certain levels of emissions, uniess the
changes are exempt under the regulations (inchiding routine maintenance, repair and replacement of squipment). In
general, projects subject to NSR regulations are subject to pre-construction review and permitting under the
Prevention of Significant Deterioration (“PSD”) provisions of the Clean Air Act. Under the PSD program, a project
that emits threshold levels of regulated pollutants must undergo a Best Available Control Technology analysis and
evaluate the most effective emissions controls. These controls mumst be instalied in order to receive a permit.
Viclations of NSR regulations, which may be alleged by the EPA, states, and environmental groups, among others,
potentially subject a utility to material expenses for fines and other sanctions and remedies inciuding requiring
installation of erhanced pollution controls and fimding supplementa! environmental projects.

As part of an industry-wide investigation to assess compliance with the NSR and PSD provisions, the EPA has
requested from numerous utilites information and supporting docurnentasion regarding their capital projects for
various generating plants. In 2002 and 2003, MidAmerican Energy responded to requests for information relating to
their capital projects at its generating plants. There are currently no outstanding data requests pending from the EPA.,
An NSR enforcement case against another utility has heen decided by the Supreme Court, holding that an increase in
the annual emissions of a facility, when combined with a modification (i.e., a physical or operational change), may
trigger NSR permitting. MidAmerican Energy cannot predict the ontcome of the EPA’s review of the data they have
submitted at this time.

In 2002 and 2003, the EPA proposed various changes to its NSR rules that clarify what constitutes routine repair,
maintenance and replacement for purposes of triggering NSR requirements, These changes have been subject to
legal challenge and in March 2006, a panel of the United States Court of Appeals for the District of Columbia
Circuit invalidated portions of the EPA’s new NSR rules, holding that they conflicted with the wording of the
statute. However, the EPA has asked the Supreme Court to review portions of the case. Until such time as the legal
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challenges are resolved and the revised rules are effective, MidAmerican Energy will continue to manage projects at
its generating plants in accordance with the mles in effect prior to 2002, except for pollution control projects, which
are now subject to permitting under the PSD permitiing program. In 2005, the EPA proposed a rule that would
change or clarify how emission increases are to be calculaied for purposcs of determining the applicability of the
NSR permitting program for existing power plants. The EPA aiso proposed additional changes to the NSR rules in
Beptember 2006 that are intended to simplify the permitting process and allow facilities to undertake activities that
improve the safety, reliability and efficiency of plants withow triggering NSR. In April 2007, the EPA issued a
supplemental notice of proposed rulemaking to the October 2005 proposed rulemaking to determine emissions
increases for electric generating units, proposing to use both hourly and annual emissions fests to determine whether
utilities trigger the NSR permitting program when an existing power plant makes a physical or operational change.
The supplemental proposal was issued three weeks after the U.S. Supreme Court issued a unanimous opinion in
Environmenial Defense v. Duke Energy that the EPA was correct in applying an annual emissions test to determine

NSR compliance.
Climate Change

As a result of increased attention to global climate change in the United States, numerous bills have been introduced
in the current session of the United States Congress that would reduce greenhouse gas emissions in the United
States. Congressional leadership has made climate change legislation a priority, 2nd many congressional observers
expect to see the passage of climate change legisiation within the next several years. The Lieberman-Warner
Climate Security Act of 2007 (8. 2191), was passed by the United States Senate Environment and Public Works
Committee on December 5, 2007. The bill would impose an economy-wide cap on greenhouse gas emissions to
reduce emissions 70% from 2005 levels by 2050. Included within the bill’s definition of & covered facility is any
facility that uses more than 5,000 tons of coal in a calendar year, which includes all of MidAmerican Energy’s coal-
fired generating piants.

In addition, nongovernmental organizations have become more active in initiating citizen suits under exisling
environmental and other laws. In April 2007, a United States Supreme Court decision concluded that the EPA has
the authority under the Clean Air Act to regulate emissions of greenhouse gases from motor vehicles. Furthermore,
pending cases that address the potential public nuisance from greenhouse gas emissions from electricity generators
and the EPA's failure to regulate greenhouse gas ernissions from new and existing coal-fired plants are expected to
become active, While debate contmues at the national level over the direction of domestic climate policy, several
states have developed state-specific laws or regional legisiative initiatives to reduce greenhouse gas emissions,
including Oregon, Washingion, California and several Northeastern states, and individual siate actions to regulate
greenhouse gas emissions are likely to increase.

In Iowa, legislation enacted in 2007 requires the Iowa Climate Change Advisory Council, a 23-member group
appointed by the lowa povernor, to develop scenarios designed to reduce statewide preenhouse gas emissions,
including ome scenario that would reduce emissions by 50% by 2050, and submit its recommendations to the
legisiature. The Iowa Climate Change Advisory Council has determined that it will also develop 2 second scenario
to reduce greenhouse gas emissions by 90% with reductions in both scenarios from 2005 emission levels.

On November 15, 2007, the lowa governor signed the Midwest Greenhouse Gas Accord and the Energy Security
and Climate Stewardship Platform for the Midwest. The signatories to the platform were other Midwestern states
that agreed io implement a regional cap and tade system for greenhouse gas emissions by May 2010 after
establishing emissions reduction targets by July 2008 and adopting a model rule by November 2008, In addition, the
accord calls for the participating states to collectively meet at least 2% of regional annual retail sales of natural gas
and clectricity through energy efficiency improvements by 2015 and continue to achieve an additional 2% in
cfficicncy improvements every year thereafter.

MidAmerican Energy continues to add renewable electric capacity to its generation pottfolio. MidAmerican Energy
has engaped in several voluntary programs designed te either reduce or avoid greenhouse gas emissions, including
the EPA’s sulfur hexafluoride reduction program, refrigerator recycling programs, and the EPA landfili methane
cuireach program. The impact of any pending judicial proceedings and any pending or enacted federal and state
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climate change lepislation and regulation cannot be-determined at this time; however, adoption of stringent limits on
greenhouse gas cmissions could significantly impact MidAmerican Energy’s cument and fumre fossil-fueled
facilitics, and, therefore, its financial results.

ther

The EPA’s regulation of certain poliutants under the Clean Air Act, and its failure 1o regulate other pollutants, is
being challenged by various lawsuits brought by both individual state attorney generals and environmental groups.
To the extent that these actions may be successful in imposing additional and/or more stringent reguiation of
emissions on fossil-fueled facilities in general and MidAmerican Energy’s facilities in particular, such actions will
likely impact MidAmerican Energy’s fossil-fueled facilities and, therefore, its financial results.

Waiter Quality

The Clean Water Act establishes the framework for maintaining and improving water quality in the United States
through a program that regulates, among other things, discharges to and withdrawals from waterways. The Ciean
Water Act requires that cooling water intake structures reflect the “best techmology available for minimizing adverse
envirommental impact™ to aquatic organisms. In July 2004, the EPA established significant new national technology-
based performance standards for existing electric generating facilities that take in mare than 50 million galions of
water a dav. These rules are aimed at minimizing the adverse environmental impacts of cooling water intake
structures by reducing the number of aquatic organisms lost as a result of water withdrawals. In response to a legal
challenge to the rule, in January 2007, the Second Circuit Court of Appeals remanded almost all aspects of the mle
to the EPA, leaving companies with cooling water intake structures uncertain regarding compliance with these
requirements. Petitions for certiorari are pending before the US. Supreme Court regarding that decision.
Compliance and the potential costs of compliance, therefore, cannot be ascertained until such time as further action
is taken by the EPA. Currently, all of MidAmerican Energy’s coal-fired generating facilities except Louisa,
Ottumwa and Walter Scoit, Jr. Unit No. 4, which have water cooling towers, ¢xceed the 50 million gallons of water
per day in-take threshold. In the event that MidAmerican Energy’s existing intake structures require modification or
aliernative technology is required by new rules, expenditures to comply with these requirements could be
significant.

INTERCOAST CAPITAL

InterCoast Capital is a wholly owned nonregulated subsidiary of MHC primarily engaged in investment activities,
which it manages through its nonregulated investment subsidiaries. As of December 31, 2007, InterCoast Capital
had total assets of $6 million, of which approximately $5 miHion was an equity investment in an equipment lease
related to a 7% undivided interest in an electric generating station leased to a utility located in Arizona. Refer to
Note 5 of MidAmerican Funding’s MNotes 1o Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of this Form 10-X for
additional discussion of equipment leases. Addiionslly, InterCoast Capital and its subsidiaries had direct
ipvestments in energy projects and indirect investments, through venture capital fnds, in a variety of nonregulated
energy production technologies.

MIDWEST CAPITAL

Midwest Capital is a wholly owned nonregulated subsidiary of MHC with total assets of $6 million as of
December 31, 2007, Midwest Capital’s primary activity is the management of utility service area investments to
support economic development. Midwest Capital’s principal interest is Dakota Dunes, a 1,920-acre planned
residential and commercial development in southeastern South Dakota. The major construction phase of the planned
community is complete, and the marketing phase to sell developed residential and commercial lots is in progress. As
of December 31, 2007, 57% of the development available for sale had been sold.
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Item 1A, - Risk Factors

MidAmerican Energy and MidAmerican Funding are subject to certain risks in their business operations, as
described below. Careful consideration of these risks, together with zll of the other information included in this
annual report and the other public information fited by us, should be made before making an investment decision
relating to MidAmerican Energy or MidAmerican Funding. The risks and uncertainties described below are not the
only ones facing us. Additional risks and uncertainties not presently known or that are currently deemed immaterial
may alsc impair the business operatons of MidAmerican Encrgy or MidAmerican Funding.

MidAmericar Energy is subject to extensive regulations that affect its operations and costs. These regulations are
complex, dynamic and subject to change.

MidAmerican Energy is subject to numerous regulations and laws enforced by regulatory agencies. These regulatory
agencies include, among others, the FERC, the EPA, the NRC, the TUB, the ICC and other federal, state and local
agencies.

Regulations affect almost every aspect of MidAmerican Energy’s business and limits its ability 1o independently
make and implement management decisions regarding, among other items, business combinations, constructing,
acquiring or disposing of operating assets, setting rates charged to customers, establishing capital structures and
issuing equity or debt securities, paying dividends and engaging in transactions between MidAmerican Energy and
its affiliates. Regulations are subject to ongoing policy initiatives, and MidAmerican Energy cannot predict the
future course of changes in regulatory laws, regulations and orders, or the ultimate effect that regulatory changes
may have on MidAmerican Energy. However, such changes could materially impact MidAmerican Energy’s
financial results. For example, such changes could result in, but are not limited to, increased retil competition
within its service territories, new environmental requirements, including the implementation of renewable portfolio
standards and greenhouse gas emission reduction poals, and the acquisition by a mmunicipality or other quasi-
governmental body of its distribution facilities (by negotiation, legislation or condemnation).

Federal and state energy regulation changes are emerging as one of the more challenging aspects of managing utility
operations. New and expanded regulations imposed by policy makers, court systems, and industry restructaring have
imposed changes on the industry. The following are examples of current or recent changes to our regulatory
environment that may impact us:

»  Energy Policy Act of 2005 - In the United States, the Energy Policy Act impacts many segments of the
energy industry. The U.S. Congress granted the FERC additional authority in the Energy Policy Act
which expanded its regulatery role from 2 regulatory body to an enforcement agency. To implement

the law, the FERC has and will continue to issue new regulations and regulatory decisions addressing -

electric system reliability, electric transmission planning, operation, expansion and pricing, repulation
of wtitity holding companies, and enforcement authority, including the ability to assess civil penatties
of up to $1 million per day per infraction for non-compliance. The full impact of those decisions
Temains uncertain however, the FERC has vigorously exercised its enforcement suthority by imposing
significant civil penalties for violations of its rules and regulations. In addition, as g result of past
events affecting electric reliability, the Energy Policy Act requires federal agencies, working together
with non-governmental organizations charged with electric reliability respansibilities, to adopt and
implement measures designed to ensure the reliability of clectric transmission and distribution systems.
Since the adoption of the Energy Policy Act, the FERC has approved numerous electric reliability,
cyber security and critical infrastructure protection standards developed by the NERC. A transmission
owner’s refiability compliance issues with these and future standards could result in financial penalties.
In Order No. 693, the FERC implemented its authority to impose penalties of up to $1 million per day
pet violation for faitute to comply with electric reliability standards. The adoption of these and future
electric reliability standards will impose more comprehensive and stringent requircments on our public
utility subsidiaries, which could result in increased compliance costs and could adversely affect our
financial results.
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e FERC Orders — In Order Nos. 888, 889, 890 and 820-A, the FERC required electric utilities to-adopt a
pro forma OATT by which transmission service would be provided on a just, reasonable and not
unduly discriminatory or preferential basis. The miles adopted by these orders promote transparency
and consistency in the administration of the QOATT and increase the ability of customers to access new
generating resources and promote efficient utilization of transmission by requiring an open, transparent
and coordinated transmission pianning pracess. Together with the increased reliability standards
required of transmission providers, the cost of operating the {ransmission system and providing
transmission service has increased and, to the extent such increased costs are not recovered in rates
charged (o customers, it could adversely affect our financial resulls,

MidAmerican Energy is subjeci to numerous environmental, kealth, safety, and other laws, regulations and other
requirements that may adversely affect its financial resuits.

Operational Standards

MidAmerican Energy is subject to numerous environmental, health, safety, and other laws, regulations and other
requirements affecting many aspects of MidAmerican Energy’s present and future operations, including, among
others:

» the EPA’s CAIR, which established cap and trade programs to reduce 8O, and NOx emissions starting
in 2009 to address alleged contributions to downwind non-attainment with the revised Nationat
Ambient Air Quality Standards; and

s other laws or regulations that establish or could establish standards for greenhouse gas emissions,
water quality, wastewater discharges, solid waste and hazardous waste.

These and related iaws, regulations and orders genemlty require MidAmerican Energy to obtain and comply with a
wide variety of environmental licenses, permits, inspections and other approvals.

Compliance with environmental, health, safety, and other laws, regulations and other requirements can require
significant capita! and operating cxpenditures, including expenditures for new equipment, inspection, clean-up costs,
damages arsing out of conlaminaied properties, and fines, penalties and injunclive measures affecting operating
assets for failure to comply with environmental regulations. Compliance activities pursuant to regulations could be
prohibitively expensive. As a result, some facilities may be required to shut down or alter their operations. Further,
MidAmerican Energy may not be able to obtain or maintain all required environmental regulatory approvals for its
operating assets or development projects. Delays I of active opposition by third parties 1o obtaining any required
environmental or regulatory permits, failure to comply with the terms and conditions of the permits or increased
regnlatory or environmental requirements may increase its costs or prevent or delay MidAmerican Energy from
operating its facilities, developing new facilitics, expanding existing facilities or favorably locating new facilities. If
MidAmerican Energy fails to comptly with all applicable environmental reguirements, it may be subject to penalties
and fines or other sanctions. The costs of complying with current or new environmental, health, safety, and other
laws, regulations and other requirements could adversely affect MidAmerican Energy’s financial results. Not being
able to operate existing facilities or develop new electric generating facilities to meet customer energy needs could
require MidAmerican Energy to increasc its purchases of power from the wholcsale matkets, which could increase
market and price risks and adversely affect its financial results. Proposals for voluntary initiatives and mandatory
controls are being discussed in the United States and worldwide to reduce so-calied “‘greenhouse gases™ such as
carbon dioxide, a by-product of burning fossil fuels, methane, (the primary component of natural gas), and methane
leaks from pipelines. These actions could result in increased costs for MidAmerican Energy to (i) operate and
maintain its facilities, (ii) instali new emission conirols on its facilities and (iii) administer and manage any
greenhouse gas emissions program. These actions could also impact the consumption of natural gas, thereby
affecting MidAmerican Energy’s operations.
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Further, the regulatory rate structure or long-term customer contracts may not necessarily allow MidAmerican
Energy to recover all costs incurred to comply with new environmental requiretnents. Although MidAmerican
Energy believes that, in most cases, it is legally entitled to recover these kinds of costs, the inability to flly recover
such costs in a timely manner could adversely affect its financial results.

Site Clean-up and Contamination

Environmental, health, safety, and other laws, regulations and requirements also impose obligations to remediate
contaminated propetties or to pay for the cost of such remediation, often by parties that did not actually cause the
contamination. MidAmerican Energy is generally responsible for on-site liabilities, and in some cases off-site
ligbilities, associated with the environments! condition of MidAmerican Energy’s assets, including power generation
facilities, and electric transmission and electric and natural gas distribution assets that it has acquired or developed,
regardiess of when the liabilities arose and whether they are known or unknown. In connection with acquisitions,
MidAmerican Energy may obtain or require indemmification against some environmenta! liabilities. If MidAmerican
Energy incurs a material liability, or the other party i0 a ransaction fails to meet its indemmification obligations, it
could suffer material losses. MidAmerican Energy has established liabilities to recognize its estimated obligations
for known remediation liabilities, but such estimates may change materially over time, In addition, future cvents,
such as chanpes in existing laws or policies or their enforcement, or the discovery of currently unknown
contamination, may give rise to additional remediation liabilities which may be material. MidAmerican Energy is
also required to fund its portion of the costs for decommissioning the Quad Cities Station whez it is retired from
service, which may include site remediation or decontamination.

Recovery of MidAmerican Energy’s costs is subject to regulatory review and approval, and ihe inability lo
recover costs may adversely affect Middmerican Energy’s financial results.

State Rate Proceedings

MidAmerican Energy establishes rates for its regulated retail service through siate regulatory proceedings. These
proceedings iypically involve multiple parties, including government bodies and officials, consumer advocate
groups, and varions consumers of energy, who have differing concerns, but who generally have the common
objective of limiting rate increases. Decisions are subject to appeal, potentially leading to additional uncertainty
associated with the approval proceedings. Each state sets retail rates based in part upon the state utility
commission’s acceptance of an allocated share of total utility costs. When states adopt different methods to calculate
interjurisdictional cost allocations, some ¢osts may not be incorperated into rates of any state. Ratemaking is also
generally done on the basis of ¢stimates of normalized costs, so if a given year’s realized costs are higher than
normal, rates witl not be sufficient to cover those costs. State commissions also decide the allowed rate of return

MidAmerican Energy will be given an opportunity to earn on MidAmerican Energy’s equity investment. They also .

decide the allowed levels of expense and investment that they deem is just and reasonable in providing service. The
state cornmissions may disallow recovery in rates for anmy costs that do not meet such standard.

In Iowa, MidAmerican Energy has agreed not to seek a general increase in electric base rates to become effective
prior o January 1, 2014, unless its Jowa jurisdictional electric return on equity for any year falls below 10%.
MidAmerican Energy expects to continue to make significant capital expenditures to mainiain and improve the
1eliability of its generation, transmission and distribution facilities, to reduce emissions and to support new business
and customer growth. As a result, MidAmerican Energy’s financial results may be adversely affected if it is not able
to deliver electricity in a cost-¢fficient manner and is unable to offset inflation and the cost of infrastructure
investments with cost savings or additional sales.
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In Jowa and Illinois, MidAmerican Energy’s electric fuel and purchased power cosis are embedded in its base rates.
Accordingly, MidAmerican Energy is not permitted to pass through fiel price increases in its electric ates in those
states without regulatory approval. In Iowa, MidAmerican Energy is prohibited from secking reinstatement of a fuel
adjustment clause for eiectric rates to become effective until January 1, 2014, unless its Jowa jurisdictional electric
return on equity for any year falls below 10%. In Ilinois, MidAmerican Energy is prohibited by law from seeking
reinstatement of a fuel adjustment clause for electric rates until November 2011. Any significant increase in fuel
costs or purchased power costs for electricity generation could have a negative impact on MidAmerican Energy,
despite efforts to minimize the impact through the use of hedging instruments. Any of these consequences could
adversely affect MidAmerican Energy’s financial results.

While rate regulation is premised on providing MidAmerican Energy a fair opportunity to obtain a reasonable rate of
return on invesied capital, state regulatory commissions do not guarantee that MidAmerican Energy will be able to
realize a reasonable rate of return.

FERC Jurisdiction

The FERC establishes cosi-based tariffs under which MidAmerican Energy provides transmission services to
wholesale markets and retail markets in states that allow retail competition, The FERC also has tesponsibitity for
approving both cost- and market-based rates under which MidAmerican Energy sells glectricity at wholesale. The
FERC may impose price iimitations, bidding rules and other mechanisms to address some of the volatility of these
nmarkets or may (pursuant fo pending or futmre proceedings) revoke or restrict MidAmerican Energy’s ability to sell
eleciricity at matket-based rates, which could adversely affect MidAmerican Energy’s financial resuits. The FERC
may also impose substantial civil penalties for any non-compliance with the Federal Power Act or the FERC's rules
or orders.

MidAmerican Energy is actively pursuing, developing and constructing new or expanded facilities, the
completion and expected cost of which is subject to significant risk, and it has significant funding needs related
to its planned capital expenditures.

MidAmerican Energy is constructing wind-powered generating facilities in Iowa, and, in the future, may pursue the
development, construction, ownership and operation of additional new or expanded facilities, including electric
gencrating facilities, electric transmission or distribution projects and environmental comtrol and compliance
systems, as well as the continued maintenance of the insialled asset base. Development and construction of major
facilities are subject to substantial risks, inchuding fluctuations in the price and availability of commodities,
manufactured goods, equipment, labor and other ftems over a multi-year construction period. These risks may result
in higher-than-expecied costs to complete an asset and place it into service. Such costs may not be recoverable in the
regulated rates or market prices MidAmerican Energy is able to charge its customers. It is also possibic that
additional generation needs may be obtained through power purchase agreements, which could increase long-term
purchase obligations on MidAmerican Energy and force it to rely on the operating performance of a third party. The
inability to successfully and timely complete a project, avoid unexpected costs of to recover any such costs through
ratemaking decisions may materially affect MidAmerican Epergy’s financial results.

Furthermore, MidAmerican Energy depends upon both internal and external sources of liquidity to provide working
capital and to fund capital requirements. If MidAmerican Energy is unable to obtain funding from external sources,
it may need to posipone or cancel planned capital expenditures. Failure to construct these projects could limit
oppuortunities for revenue growth, increase operating costs and adversely affect the reliability of electric service to
MidAmerican Enctgy’s customers.
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Inflation and changes in commodity prices and fuel transporiation - costs may- adversely uffect MidAmerican
Energy’s frnancial results.

Inflation affects MidAmerican Energy through increased operating costs and increased capital costs for plant and
equipment. As a result of existing rate agreements and competitive price pressures, MidAmerican Energy may not
be able to pass the costs of inflation on to its electric retail customers in lowa and Iilinois. If MidAmerican Energy is
unable to manage cost increases or pass them on {0 its customers, MidAmerican Energy’s financial results could be
adverscly affected.

MidAmerican Energy is also heavily exposed to changes in prices and availability of coal and natural gas and the
transportation of coal and natural gas because a substantial majority of its generation capacity utilizes these fossil
fuels. MidAmerican Energy currently has contracts of varying durations for the supply and transportation of coal for
its existing generation capacity. When these contracts expire or if they are not honored, MidAmerican Energy may
not be able to purchase or transport coal on terms as favorable as the current contracts. MidAmerican Energy has
similar exposures regarding the market price of natural gas. Changes in the cost of coal or natural gas supply or
transportation and changes in the relationship between such costs and the market price of power will affect its
financia! results, Since the sales price MidAmerican Energy receives for power may not change at the same rate as
MidAmerican Energy’s coal or natural gas supply or transportation costs, it may be unabie to pass on the changes in
costs to many of its electric customers. In addition, the overall prices MidAmerican Enerpy charges its retail
customers in Iowa are fixed, as described above, and MidAmerican Energy does not have fuel recovery mechanisms
m Iown and Ilinois.

A significant decrease in demanrd for natural gas or electricity in the markets served by MidAmerican Energy
would significantly decrease MidAmerican Energy’s operaiing revenues and thereby adversely affect
MidAmerican Energy’s business and financial resalfs.

A sustained decrease in demand for natural gas or electricity in the markets served by MidAmerican Energy would
significantly reduce its operating revenue and adversely affect its financial results. Factors that could lead to a
decrease in market demand include, among others;

¢ 2 recession or other adverse economic condition that results in a lower level of economic activity or
reduced spending by consumers on natural gas or electricity,

s  an increase in the market price of natural gas or electricify or a decrease in the price of other competing
forms of energy,

« efforts by customers o reduce their consumption of energy through various conservation and energy
efficiency measures and programs;

¢ higher fuel taxes or other governmental or regulatory actions that increase, directly or indirectly, the
cost of naiural gas or the fuel source for electricity generation or that limit the use of natural gas or the
generation of electricity from fossil fuels; and

s g shift to more energy-efficient or alternative fuel machinery or an improvement in fuel economy,
whether as a resuli of technological advances by manufacturers, legislation mandating higher fuel
sconomy, price differentials, incentives or otherwise.

MidAmerican Energy’s financial results may be adversely affected if it is unable to obtain adequate, reliable and
affordabie access to transmission service,

MidAmerican Energy depends on transmission facilities owned and operated by utilities to transport electricity and
natural gas to both wholesale and retail markets, as well as natural gas purchased to supply some of MidAmerican
Energy’s electric generation facilities. If adequate transmission is unavailable, MidAmerican Energy may be unghle
purchase or sell and deliver producis. Such unavailability could also hinder MidAmerican Energy from providing
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adequate or economical clectricity or natural gas to its wholesale and retail electric and gas customers and could -
adversely affect MidAmerican Energy’s financial results.

The different regional power markets have varying and dynamic regulatory structures, which could affect
MidAmerican Energy’s business growih and performance. In addition, the independent system operators who
oversee the transmission systems in regional power markets have imposed in the past, and may impose i the future,
price limitations and other mechanisms to coumter volatility in the power markets. These types of price limitations
and other mechanisms may adversely affect MidAmerican Energy’s financial results.

MidAmerican Energy is subject to market risk, counterparty performance risk and other risks associated with
wholesale energy markets.

In general, wholesale market risk is the risk of adverse fluctuations in the market price of whoiesale electricity and
fuel, including natural gas and coal, which is compounded by velumetric changes affecting the availability of or
demand for electricity and fuel. MidAmerican Energy purchases electricity and fuel in the open market or pursuant
to shori-term or variable-priced contracts as part of its normal operating business. If market prices rise, especially in
a time when larger than expected volumes must be purchased at market or short-term prices, MidAmerican Enetgy

may incur significantly greater expense than anticipated. Likewise, if electricity market prices decline in a period -

when MidAmerican Energy is & net seller of electricity in the wholesale market, Mid American Energy will earn less
revenue.

MidAmerican Energy’s fotal accredited net genecrating capability exceeds its historical peak load. As a resnlt,
MidAmerican Energy has less exposure to wholesale electricity market price fluctuations. The actual amount of
generation capacity availabie at any time, however, may be less than the accredited capacity due to regulatory
restrictions, iransmission constraints, fuel resirictions and geperating units being temporarily out of service for
inspection, mmintenance, refueling, modifications or other reasons. In such circumstances, MidAmerican Energy
may nesd to purchase energy in the wholesale markets and MidAmerican Energy may not recover in rates all of the
additional costs that tay be associated with such purchases. Most of MidAmerican Energy’s electric wholesale
sales and purchases take place under market-based raie pricing allowed by the FERC and are therefore subject to
market volatility, including price fluctuations.

MidAmerican Energy is also exposed to risks relaied to performance of contractual obligations by wholesale
suppliers and customers. MidAmerican Energy relies on suppliers to deliver commaodities, including natural gas,
coal and electricity, in accordance with shori~term and long-term contracts. Failure or delay by suppliers to provide
these commeodities pursuant to existing contracts could disrupt the delivery of electricity and require MidAmerican
Energy to incur additional expenses to meet customer needs. In addition, when these contractual agreements
terminate, MidAmerican Energy may be umable to purchase the commodities on terms c¢quivalent to the terms of
current coniractual agreements. MidAmerican Energy also relies on wholesale customers to take delivery of the
energy they have committed to purchase and to pay for the energy on a timely basis. Failure of wholesalie customers
to take delivery may require MidAmerican Energy to find other customers to take the energy at lower prices than the
original customers commitied to pay. At certain times of the year, prices paid by MidAmerican Energy for energy
needed 1o satisfy its customers’ energy needs may exceed the amounts received through retail rates from these
customers. If the strategy used o hedge these risk exposures is ineffective, significant losses could result.

MidAmerican Energy’s operating results may fluctuate on a seasonal and quarterly basis.

The sale of eleciric power and natural gas are generally seasonal businesses. In the markets in which MidAmerican
Energy operates, demand for electricity peaks during the hot summer months when cooling needs are higher. Market
prices for electric supply also generally peak at that time. In addition, demand for gas and other fuels generally
peaks during the winter when heating needs are higher. Further, extreme weather conditions such as heat waves or
winter storms could cause these seasonal fluctuations 1o be more pronounced.
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- As a result, MidAmerican Energy’s overall fimancial results may fluctuate substantially on a seasonal and quarterly
basis, MidAmerican Energy has historically sold less power, and consequently earned less income, when weather
conditions are mild, Unusually mild weather in the future may adversely affect MidAmerican Energy’s financial
results through lower revenues or increased energy costs. Conversely, unusually extreme weather conditions could
increase MidAmerican Energy’s costs to provide power and adversely affect its financial results. The extent of
fluctuation in financiat results may change depending on a number of factors related to MidAmerican Energy's
regulatory environment and contrachual agreements, including MidAmerican Energy’s ability to recover power
costs, the existence of revenue sharing provisions and terms of the power sale contracts.

MidAwerican Energy is subject to operating uncertainties which may adversely affect its financial results.

The operation of 2 compiex electric and gas utility (including generation, transmission and distribution) systems
involves many operating uncertainties and events beyond MidAmerican Energy’s control. These potential events
include the breakdown or failure of power generation equipment, compressors, pipelines, transmission and
distribution lines or other equipment or processes, unscheduled plant outages, work stoppages, a shortage of
gualified labor, transmission and disiribution system constrainis or oumtages, fuel shortages or interruption,
unavailability of critical equipment, materials and supplies, performance below expected levels of output, capacity
or efficiency, operator error and catastrophic events such as severe storms, fires, earthquakes or explosions. A
casualty occurrence might result in injury ot loss of life, extensive property damage or environmental damage. Any
of these tisks or other operational risks could significanily reduce or eliminate MidAmerican Energy’s revenues or
significantly increase its expenses. For example, if MidAmerican Energy cannot operate its electric or nawral gas
facilities at full capacity due to damage caused by a catastrophic event, its revenues could decrease due to decreased
sales and its expenses could increase due to the need to obtain energy from more expensive sources. Further,
MidAmerican Energy self~insures many risks and current and future insurance coverage may not be sufficient to
replace lost revemue or cover repair and replacement costs. Any reduction of revenues for such reason, or any other
reduction of MidAmerican Enerpy’s reveaues or increase in its expenses resulting from the risks described above
could adversety affect MidAmerican Energy’s financial results,

Potential terrorist activities or military or other actions could adversely affect us.

The continued threat of terrorism since September 11, 2001, and the impact of military and other actions by the
United States and its allies may lead to increased political, economic and financial market instability and subject
MidAmerican Energy’s gas or electric operations to increased risk of acts of terrorism. The United States
government has issued wamnings that energy assets. specifically nuclear generation and other eleciric wiility
infrastruciure, are potential targets of terrorist organizations. Political, economic or financial market instability or
damape to MidAmerican Energy’s operating assets of the assets of its customers or suppliers may resuit in business
interruptions, lost revenucs, higher commeodity prices, disruption in fuel supplies, lower eaergy consumption and
unsiable markets, particularly with respect to namral gas and eleciric energy, increased security, repair or other costs
that may materially adversely affect MidAmerican Energy in ways that canmot be predicted at this time. Any of
these risks could materially affect MidAmerican Energy’s finaneial results. Furthermore, instability in the financial
markets as & result of terrorism or war could also materially adversely affect MidAmerican Energy’s ability to raise
capital.

The insurance industry changed in response to these events. As a result, insurance covering risks MidAmerican
Energy typically insures against may decrease in scope and availability, and it may elect to self~insure against many
such risks, In addition, the available insurance may have higher deductibles, higher premiums and more restrictive
policy terms,
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MidAmerican Energy is subject to the unique risks associated with nuclear generation. -

The ownership and operation of miclear power plants, such as MidAmerican Energy’s 25% ownership interest in the
Quad Citdes Station, involves certain risks. These risks include, among other items, mechanical or structural
problems, inadequacy or lapses in maintenance protocols, the impairment of reactor operation and safely systems
due to human error, the costs of storage, handling and disposal of nuclear materials, limitations on the amounts and
types of insurance coverage commercially available, and uncertainties with respect to the technological and financial
aspects of decommissioning nuclear facilities at the end of their useful lives. The prolonged unavailability of the
Quad Cities Station could materially affect MidAmerican Energy’s financial results, particularly when the cost to
produce power at the plant is significantly less than market wholesale power prices. The following are among the
more significant of these risks:

»  QOperational Risk — Operations af any nuclsar power plant could degrade to the point where the plant
would have to be shut down. If such degradations were to occur, the process of identifying and
correcting the causes of the operational downgrade to return the plant to operation could require
significant time and expense, resulting in both lost revemuie and increased fuel and purchased power
expense to meet supply commitments. Rather than incurring substantial costs to restart the plant, the
piant could be shut down. Furthermore, a shut-down ar failure at any other nuclear plant could cause
regulators to require a shui-down or reduced availability at the Quad Cities Station.

* Regulatory Risk — The NRC may modify, suspend or revoke licenses and impose civil penalties for
failure to comply with the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended, applicable regulations or the terms
of the licenses of muclear facilities. Unless extended, the NRC aperating licenses for the Quad Cities
Station will expire in 2032. Changes in regulations by the NRC could require a subsiantial increase in
capital expenditures or result in increased operating or decommissioning costs.

s  Nuclear Accident Risk — Accidents and other unforeseen problems have occurred at nuclear facilities
other than the Quad Cities Station, both in the United States and elsewhere. The consequences of an
accident can be severe and include loss of life and propesty damage. Any resulting Liability from a
nuclear accident could exceed MidAmericah Energy’s resources, including insurance coverage.

MidAmerican Energy is involved in nwineraus legal proceedings, the outcomes of which are uncertain and conld
nepatively affect its financial results.

MidAmerican Energy is party to numerous legal proceedings. Litigation is subject {0 many uncertainties, and
MidAmerican Energy cannot predict the ontcome of individual matters. It is possible that the final resolution of
some of the matters in which MidAmerican Encrgy is involved could resuit in additional payments in excess of
established reserves over an extended period of time and in amounts that could have a material adverse effect on
MidAmerican Energy’s financial resulls. Similarly, it is also possible that the terms of resolution could require that
MidAmerican Energy change business practices and progedures, which could also have a material adverse effect on
its financial results. Further, litigation could result in the imposition of financial penaltics or injunctions which could
limit MidAmerican Energy’s ability to take certain desired actions or the denial of nceded permits, licenses or
regulatory authority to conduct its business, including the siting or permitting of facilities. Any of these outcomes
could have a material adverse effect on its financial resuits,

MidAmerican Energy’s indirect paremt, MidAmerican Energy Holdings, could exercise contrel over
MidAmerican Energy in a manner that would benefit MidAmerican Energy Holdings to the detriment of
MidAmerican Energy’s creditors and preferred stockholiders,

MidAmerican Energy Holdings is MidAmerican Energy’s indirect parent and the direct parent of MidAmerican
Funding and, accordingly, has comtrol over all decisions requiring sharehoider approval, including the election of
directors. In circumstances involving a conflict of inferest between MidAmerican Energy Holdings and
MidAmerican Energy’s creditors and preferred stockholders or MidAmerican Funding's creditors, MidAmerican
Energy Holdings could exercise its control in a manner that would benefit MidAmerican Energy Holdings to the
detriment of MidAmerican Energy’s creditors and preferred stockholders or MidAmerican Funding’s creditors.
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Potential changes in accounting standards might cause MidAmerican Energy to revise its financial results and
disclosure in the future, which may change the way analysts measure its business or financial performance.

Accounting irregularitics discovered in the past foew years in various industrics have caused regulators and
legislators to take a renewed look at accounting practices, financial disclosures, companies’ relationships with their
independent auditors and retirement plan practices. Because it is still unclear what laws or regulations will
ultimately develop, MidAmetican Energy cannot predict the ultimate impact of any future changes in accounting
regulations or practices in general with respect to public companies or the energy industry or in its operations
specifically. In addition, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™), the FERC or the SEC could enact
new or revised accounting standards or FERC orders that might impact how MidAmerican Energy is required to
record revenues, expenses, assets and lizbilities,

Iem 1B, Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
Item 2. Properties

MidAmerican Energy’s regulaied utility properties consist of physical assets necessary and appropriate to render
clectric and gas service im its service territories. It is the opinion of management that the principal depreciable
properties owned by MidAmerican Energy are in good operating condition and well maintained, MidAmerican
Energy’s most individually significant properties are its electric generation facilities. For information regarding
these facilities, please refer to the “Regulated Electric Operations” discussion in Item 1 of this Form 10-K.
Additional electric property consists primarily of transmission and distribution faciities.

The electric transmission system of MidAmerican Energy at December 31, 2007, included approximately
1,000 miles of 345 kilavolt (“kV™) lines and approximately 1,200 miles of 161 kV lines. MidAmerican Energy’s
electric distribution system included approximately 400 substations at December 31, 2007,

Gas property consists primarily of natural gas mains and services pipelines, meters and related distribution
equipment, including feeder lines to communities served from natural gas pipelines owned by others. The gas
distribution facilities of MidAmerican Energy at December 31, 2007, included approximately 21,800 miles of gas
mains and service pipelines. In addition, gas property includes three liquefied natural gas plants and two propane-air
plants. Refer to the “Regulated Natural Gas Operations” discussion in ltem 1 of this Form 10-K for information
regarding these facilities.

Utility plant, including construction work in progress and net of accumulated depreciation, by functional
classification is as follows as of December 31 (in millions);

2007 2006
Electric
Generation i 3,084 $ 2,551
Transmission 405 370
Distribution 1,524 1,418
Gas distribution 695 664

§__ 5708 §. 2003
Refer to Note 18 of MidAmetican Energy's Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of this Form 10-K
for a discussion of operating segments.

31

V£7%)



ExHIBIT C-2

“SEC Filings”

- Item 3. Legal Proceedings

On Degember 28, 2004, an apparent pas explosion and fire resulted in three fatalities, one serious injury and
property damage at 8 commercizal building in Ramsey, Minnesota. According to the Minnesota Office of Pipeline
Safety, an improper installation of a pipeline connection may have been a cause of the explosion and fire. A
predecessor company to MidAmerican Energy provided gas service in Ramsey, Minnesota, at the time of the
ariginal installation in 1980. In 1993, a predecessor of CenterPoint Energy, Inc. (“CentetPoint™) acquired all of the
Minnesota pas propertics owned by the MidAmerican Energy predecessor company.

All of the wrongful death, personal injury and properiy damage claims arising from this incident have been settled
by CenterPoint. MidAmerican Energy’s exposute, if any, to these settlements is covered under its liability insurance
to which a §2 million retention applies.

Two lawsuits naming MidAmerican Energy as a third party defendant have been filed by CenterPoint Energy
Resources Corp. in the [1S. District Court, District of Minnesota, related to this incident. The complaints seek
reimbursement of all sums associated with CenterPoint’s replacement of all service lines in the MidAmerican
Energy predecessor company’s properties located in Minnesota at a cost of approximately $39 million according to
publicly available reports. MidAmerican Energy filed a motion for summary judgment in both of these actions
requesting that CenterPoint’s third party claims based wpon misrepresentation and negligent installation and
negligent operation and maintenance of the gas pipeline be barred. On March 5, 2007, the U.S. District Court issued
an order granting MidAmerican Energy’s motion for swmmary judgment as to CenterPoint’s misrepresentation and
negligent installation claims and denying MidAmerican Energy’s motion for summary judgment as to CenterPpint’s
neglipent operation and maintenance claims. A court-ordered settlement conference was held September 21, 2007,
but the parties did not achieve a scttlement. Subsequently, the court ordered the parties to be ready for trial on or
afier February 1, 2008, Trial has not comunenced. MidAmericap Energy intends to vigorously defend its position in
these claims and believes their ultimate outcome will not have a material impact on its financial results.

Other than the litigation described above, MidAmerican Funding and its subsidiaries currently have no material
legal proceedings. Information on MidAmerican Energy’s environmental matters is included in Item 1 of this Form
10-K.

ftem 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

None.
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PARTII

Item §, Market for the Registrant’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issmer Purchases
of Equity Securities

All common stock of MidAmerican Energy is held by its parent company, MHC, which is a direct, wholly owned
subsidiary of MidAmerican Funding. MidAmerican Funding is an Iowa limited liability company whose
membership interest is held solety by MidAmerican Energy Holdings.

Iem 6, Selected Finaneial Data

The following tables set forth selected financial data of MidAmerican Energy and MidAmerican Funding, which
should be read in conjunction with the information included in Hem 7 of this Form 10-K and with their respective
historical Congolidated Financial Statements and notes thereto included in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.

MIDAMERICAN ENERGY COMPANY AND SUBSIDIARY

SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
(In millions;
Years Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Statement of Operations Data:
Opetating revenues $ 4258 § 3,448 § 3,160 $ 269 $ 2,596
Operating income 513 421 381 356 in
Nel income 326 266 221 210 189
Eamings on common stock 325 265 220 209 187
As of December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Balance Sheet Data:
Total assets $ 7251 £ 6,510 $ 53864 $ 5112 $ 4404
Long-term debt {a) 2,471 1,821 1,632 1,423 1,129
Notes payable 86 - - - 48
MidAmerican Energy preferred

securities 30 30 30 30 32
Common shareholder’s equity 2,288 1,951 1,745 1.527 1,319
{a} Includes amounts due within one year.
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MIDAMERICAN FUNDING, LLC AND SUBSIDIARIES - -
SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
(In miilions)
Years Ended December 31,

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Statement of Operations Data:
Operating revenues $ 4267 § 3453 § 3,166 5 2,702 $ 2,600
Operating income 514 421 381 356 368
Net income (a) 300 288 195 179 157

As of December 31,

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
Balance Sheet Data:
Total assets $ 8544 S 7,794 $ 7157 $ 6427 $ 5,738
Long-term debt (b) 3,171 2,521 2332 2,123 1,829
Notes payable 86 - - - 48
MidAmerican Energy preferred

securities 30 30 30 30 32

Member’s equity 2,825 2,514 2,235 2,042 1,864
(a) In 2005, MidAmerican Funding recorded afier-tax losses totaling 37 million for write-downs of impaired aitplane leases and

$8 million of afier-tax gains on the sales of assefs and investments. Net income for 2006 reflects a $19 million reduction of inwome
taxes dus to the resolution of a potential max matter and aflerdax pnins totaling $30 million on the sales and restructurings of
MidAmerican Funding nonstrategic passive investments.

® Includes amounts due within one year.
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Ttem 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
General

MidAmerican Funding, L1.C (“MidAmerican Funding™) is an Towa limited liability company whose sole member is
MidAmerican Energy Holdings Company ("MidAmerican Energy Holdings™). MidAmerican Funding owns all of
the outstanding common stock of MHC Inc. (“MHBC™), which owns all of the common stock of MidAmerican
Energy Company (“MidAmerican Energy™), InterCoast Capital Company, Midwest Capital Group, Inc.,
MidAmerican Setvices Company and MEC Construction Services Co. MHC, MidAmerican Funding and
MidAmerican Encrgy Holdings are public utility holding companies headquartered in Des Moines, Iowa.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A"™) addresses the financial statements of MidAmerican Energy and
MidAmerican Funding as presented in this joint filing. Information related to MidAmerican Energy, whether or not
segregated, also relates to MidAmerican Funding, Information related to other subsidiaries of MidAmerican Funding
pertains only io the discussion of the financial condition and results of operations of MidAmerican Funding. Where
necessary, discussions have been segregated and labeled to allow the reader to identify information applicable onty
to MidAmerican Funding.

Executive Summary

The following significant events and changes, as discussed in more detail herzin, highlight some of the factors that
had an effect on MidAmerican Energy’s and MidAmerican Funding’s operating results, liquidity and capital
ICSOUICES:

s MidAmerican Energy’s total regulated electric gross margin increased $86 million for 2007 compared
10 2006 due to a $60 million inctease in gross margin from wholesale sales and a $26 million increase
in retail gross margin. MidAmerican Energy’s nopregulated gross margin improved $54 million
compared to 2006 due principally to a 182% increase in eleciric retail sales vohemes as a result of
changes in the [llinois market.

»  Waiter Scott, Jr. Energy Center Unit No. 4 (“WSEC Unit 4™}, formerly Council Bluffs Energy Center
Unit No. 4, began commercial operation on June 1, 2007. The it is a 790-megawatt (“MW™)
{(summer accredited capacity) supercritical, coal-fired generation plant operated by MidAmerican
Energy. MidAmerican Energy owns 59.66% of the plant as a tenant in common with other owners of
the plant,

e On July27, 2007, the Iowa Utilities Board (“IUB”) approved a seitlement agreement between
MidAmerican Energy and the Jowa Office of Consumer Advocate (“OCA™) in conjunction with
MidAmerican Energy’s ratemaking principles application for up to 540 MW (nameplate ratings) of
additional wind-powercd generation in Iowa. The settlement agreement also extends the conditional
cap on Iowa electric retail base rates throngh December 31, 2013.

¢  On Jume 29, 2007, MidAmetican Energy issued $400 million of 5.65% Senior MNotes due July 15,
2012, and $250 million of Senior Notes due July 15, 2017,

« MidAmerican Energy’s clectric distribution and tramsmission systems sustained cxtensive damage
from sterms in February and December 2007. Capital expenditures for restoration of facilities damaged
by the storms totaled approximately $33 million. Additionally, MidAmerican Energy incurred
%17 million of maintenance expense related to storm restoration.
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Following is a discussion of various factors that affected earnings for the periods presented on the Consolidated
Statement of Operations. Explanations include management’s best estimate of the impact of weather, customer

growth and other factors. MidAmerican Energy’s and MidAmerican Funding’s future results could differ
significantly from historical resulis.

Results of Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2007 and 2006
Eamings Overview
MidAmerican Energy -

MidAmerican Energy’s earnings on commeon stock improved $60 miflion to $325 million for 2607 compared fo
$265 million for 2006. Operating income increased $92 million due primarily to improved regulated electric
margins,

MidAmerican Funding -

MidAmerican Funding’s net income for 2007 increased $12 million to $300 million for 2007 compared to.

$288 million for 2006. The $60 million increase in MidAmerican Energy’s earnings on common stock was partially
offset by $30 million of after-tax income in 2006 fom gains on the sales and restructuring of a number of
MidAmerican Funding’s nonstrategic, passive investments, and a $19 million reduction in 2006 income tax expense
due to the resolution of a potential tax matter.

Regulated Eleciric Gross Margin

2007 2006
Gross margin {in millions);
Operating revenues $ 1934 8 1779
Less cost of fiel, energy and capacity 741 672
Electric gross margin £ 1,193 $ 1107
Sales (Gigawatt hours (“GWh™)):
Retail 20,976 19,831
‘Whalesale 12,638 11,168
Total ——its014 — 30999

Electric gross margin for 2007 increased $86 million compared to 2006 principally due to a 860 million increase in
grass margin on wholesale sales, which include sales of energy to other utilities, municipatities and marketers inside
and ouside of MidAmerican Energy's balancing authority arca. Eiectric wholesale gross margin increased
$41 million compared to 2006 as a result of an improved average electric wholesale margin per megawatt hour sold,
which was due to increased availability of low-cost energy indirectly resulting from the addition of WSEC Unit 4
generation, The remaining $19 million increase in electric whelesale gross margin was attributable to a 13%
increase in wholesale sales volumes compared to 2006 duc to the addition of WSEC Unit 4 in June 2007, pewly
added wind-powered generation, and greater regional wholesale market opportunities.

Gross margin on electric retail sales increased 326 million, with electric retail sales volumes increasing 6%
compared 1o 2006. The effect of more extreme temperature conditions during 2007 compared to 2006, an increase in
the average munber of retail customers, and other retail usage factors, such as home size, technology changes and
multiple appliances, contributed $39 million to the improvement in electric retail gross margin. An increase in fuel
costs related to retail electric sales reduced electric retail pross margin by $16 million compared to 2006 due in part
to an increase in the portion of energy requirements met with higher cost generation resources, partticoiarly prior to
the addition of WSEC Unit 4. '
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Repulated Gas Gross Margin -
2007 2006
Gross margin (in millions);
Operating revenues $ L174 5 1,112
Less cost of gas sold 937 g8g
(Gas gross margin £ 237 s 224
Szles (000°s Decatherms (“Dths™)):
Retail 78,500 70,587
Wholesale 45 891 49209
Total 124,391 119,796

Regulated gas revenues include purchased gas adjustment clauses through which MidAmerican Energy is allowed lo
recover the cost of gas sold from its retail gas utility customers. Consequently, fluctuations in the cost of gas sold do
not direcily affect gross margin or net income because revenues reflect comparable fluctuations through the
purchased gas adjusiment clauses. Regulated gas revemues and cosi of gas sold increased $35 million due to
improved sales volumes for 2007. Compared 1o 2006, MidAmerican Energy’s average per-umit cost of gas sold
increased 2%, resulting in a $14 million increase in gas revenues and cost of gas sold.

The following table summarizes the variance in gas operating revenues based on the change in gas cost recoverics
and margin components (in millions).

2007 vs. 2006
Change in recoveries of cost of gas sold: :

Sales volumes $ 35
Average cost per unit 14
Total change in cost of gas soid 49
Change in margin;
Usage factors 11
QOther
Total revenue variance 8 62

Usage factors includes the effect of colder temperature conditions in the first quarter of 2007 compared to the same
period in 2006, a 1% increase in the average number of gas retail customers, and influences other than weather on
customer usage, such as technology, energy efficiency and economics. Total natural pas retail -sales volumes
increesed 11% compared to 2006,

lated ting Expenses

Other operating expenses of $419 million increased $17 million for 2007 compared w0 2006 due largely to an
$11 million increase in generation operation costs principally attributable 10 WSEC Uit 4, which began commercial
aperation on JTune I, 2007, and greater nuclear genevation costs. Gas distribution costs increased $3 million due in
part to a sizable chanpge-out of certain metering devices in a portion of MidAmerican Energy's distribution system.
Electric transmission costs increased $2 million compared o 2006, while electric distribution and information
technology costs each increased $1 million. Additionally, other operating expenses for 2007 include $1 million of
costs to address Illinois generation cost matters. These increases were partialty offset by a $6 million decrease in
employee benefit costs and a $3 million decrease in manufactured gas clean up costs compared to 2006.

Maintenance expenses of $201 million increased $45 million for 2007 compared 2006 due principally to a

$22 million increase in electric distribution maintenance as a result of $17 million incurred for restoration of
facilities damaged by storms. Other power pencration maintenance costs increased $12 million primerily due to the
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maintenance -of a compressor and hot gas path at Greater Des Moines Energy Center. Fossil-fueled generaiion
maintenance increased $6 million due to a transformer failure at Lonisa Generating Station and the addition of
WSEC Unit 4.

Depreciation and amortization expense of $268 million for 2007 decreased $6 million compared to 2006 due to a
$25 million decrease in regulatory expense related 10 a revenue sharing arrangement in Iowa as a result of lower
Towa eleciric equity retwrns, Partially offsetting this decrsase was 2 $19 million increase in utitity plant depreciation
expense as a resuit of additional plant in service, including wind-powered generating facilities placed in service in
the fourth quarter of 2006 and WSEC Unit 4 on June 1, 2007. Refer to the “Utility Regulatory Matters” section for
an explanation of the revenue sharing atrangement.

Nonregulated Gross Margin

2007 2006
MidAmerican Energy (in millions) —
Nonregulated operating revenues 5 L1550 $ 557
Less nonregulated cost of sales 1.061 522 .
Noearegulated gross margin $ 89 ) 335
MidAmerican Fumding Consolidated (in millions) —
Nonrggulated operating revenues $ L1359 § 362
Less nonregulated cost of sales 1.063 523
Nonreguiated gross margin 20 39
Nonregulated electric retail sales (GWh) 10042 3558

MidAmerican Energy’s nonregulated gross margin for 2007 increased $54 million compared to 2006, The following
table presents the margins related o various nonreguiated activities (in millions):

2007 2006
Nonregulated electric 5 70 $ 13
Nonregulaied gas 8 11
Income sharing arrangements under regulated gas tariffs 5 6
Incentive gas supply procurement program award 2 1
Other 4 4

$ 8 F 33

Nonregulated revenues, cost of saies and gross margin for 2007 increased compared to 2006 due primarily to 2
182% increase in nonregulated electric retail sales volumes, which was driven by a greater number of commercial
and industrial customers being served by MidAmerican Energy in the IHinois market. Beginning January 1, 2007,
the Iilinois eleciricity market became fully competitive, and the major electric distribution companies in Illinois
increased their purchases of energy on the open market due to the expiration of coniracts associated with industry
restructuring in Ilineis. That change has provided greater opportunitics for MidAmerican Energy’s nooregalated
electric retail business. Higher average prices and costs related to nonregulated electric sales also contributed to the
increases. These increases were partiaily offset by a 15% decrease in nonregulated gas sales volumes and lower
average prices and Cosis.

Nonregulated operations alse include carnings from sharing arrangements under applicable state regulations and
tariffs filed with the TUB and the South Dakota Public Utilities Commission (“SDPUC"™) for MidAmerican Energy’s
regulated natural gas operations. Under these arrangements, MidAmerican Energy is allowed to keep a portion of
the benefits of gas sales for resale and capacity release transactions. MidAmerican Encrgy also has an Incentive Gas

38

/94



EXHIBIT C-2

“SEC Filings”

Supply Procuremen: Program (“IG5PP™) in Iowa and a similar program in South Dakota, under which it can recejve
awards for successful performance of gas supply procurement. Under the IGSPP, if MidAmerican Energy’s cost of
gas varies from an established reference price range, then the savings ot cost is shared between customers and
shareholders. The IGSPP and the South Dakota program exiend through October 31, 2010,

Non-Operating Income
MidAmerican Energy -

MidAmerican Energy’s non-operating income for 2007 increased $4 million compared to 2006 due to an increase in
allowance for equity funds as a result of the increase in construction work in progress. As 2 regulated public utility,
MidAmerican Energy is allowed to capitalize, and record as income, a cost of construction for eguity funds used,
based on guidelines set forth by the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (“FERC™).

MidAmerican Funding -

MidAmerican Funding’s non-operating income decreased $43 miltion for 2007 compared to 2006, In addition to the
MidAmerican Energy item discussed above, MidAmerican Funding’s non-operating income reflects the following
significamt factors.

Other income for MidAmerican Funding decreased $52 million due to $52 million of pretax gains in 2006 related to
nonstrategic investments including:

(1) $32 million of pre-tax gains from the disposals of shares of common stock of an electronic energy and
metats trading exchange;

(2) an $8 million pre-tax gain on the sale of MidAmerican Funding’s non-controlling interest in a non-
utility gas-fired cogeneration piant;

(3) a$7 million pre-tax gain on the sale of a commercial passenger aircraft; and

(4) $5million of pre-tzx income resuliing from changes in a financing arrangement related to a
nonsirategic investment in a hydroeleciric generating plant.

Fix =

The $29 million increase in MidAmerican Energy’s mterest on long-term debt was due to long-term debt issuances
of $350 million in October 2006 and $650 million in June 2007. MidAmerican Energy's other interest expense
decreased $3 million due to the reduction in the Iowa revenue sharing liability as a result of WSEC Unit 4 being
placed in service in une 2007. MidAmerican Energy is allowed o capitalize, and record as a reduction to fixed
charges, a cost of construction for debt finds used, based on guideiines set forth by the FERC. The $2 million
increase in gliowance for borrowed funds for 2007 was due to the increase in construction work in progress

compared to 2006.

Income Taxes

MidAmerican Energy -

Federal law currently provides for federal production tax credits for encrgy produced by renewable electricity
gencration facilities, including wind-powered generation for ten years afier the in-service date. MidAmerican

Energy’s income taxes for 2007 include $9 million of additional production tax credits compared to 2006 due to
additional wind-powered generation.
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State utility rate reguiation in Towa requires that the tax effect of certain timing differences be flowed throngh
ipmediately to customers. Therefore, amounts that would otherwise have been recognized in income tax expense
have been included as changes in regulatory assets. This flow-through treatment of such timing differences impacts
the effective tax rates from year to year.

MidAmerican Funding -

In 2006, MidAmerican Funding reduced its income tax ¢xpense by $19 million due to the resolution of a potential
tax matter.

Results of Operations for the Years Ended December 31, 2006 and 2005
Earnings Overview
MidAmerican Energy -

MidAmerican Energy’s earnings on common stock improved $45 million to $265 million for 2006 compared to
$220 million for 2005. Operating income increased $40 million due primarily to improved regulated. electric
marging. Also, an increase in income taxes due to greater pre-tax income in 2006 was partially offset by the
resoiution of a potential {ax matter and by additional repewable electricity production tax credits as a resuit of
greater wind-powered generation.

MidAmerican Funding -

MidAmerican Funding’s net income for 2006 increased $93 million to $288 million for 2006 compared to
$195 million for 2005. In addition to the items discussed for MidAmerican Energy, MidAmerican Funding’s net
income for 2006 reflects a $19 million reduction in income tax expense due to the resolution of a potential tax
matter and $30 million of after-tax imcome from gains on the sales and restructurings of & number of nonsirajegic,
passive investments.

Regulated Electric Gross Margin

2006 2005
Gross margin (in millions):
Operating revenucs £ 1,77 $ 13513
Less cost of fiuel, encrgy and capacity 672 477
Electric gross margin 3 1,107 $ 1,03
Sales (GWh):
Retail 19,831 19,044
Wholesale 11,168 8.378
Total 30,999 27422

Electric gross margin for 2006 incteased $71 million compared to 2005 due to a $45 million increase in gross
margin on wholesale sales, which include sales of energy to other utilities, municipalities and marketers inside and
outside of MidAmerican Energy's balancing awthority area. The increased availability of MidAmerican Energy-
owned base load generation, in part due 1o the effect of newly added wind-powered generation in 2005 and 2006,
and greater market opportunities contribitted to a 33.3% increase in wholesale sales volumes during 2006, resnlting
in a $29 million increase in wholesale gross margin. An increase in the average ¢lectric wholcsale margins per
megawatt hour sold due to higher matket prices improved electric whotesale gross margin by $16 million compared
to 2005.
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Gross margin on electric retail sales increased- $21 million, with electric retail sales volumes increasing 4%
compared to 2005, An increase in the average number of retail customers, in particular the addition of a large steel
manufacturer in the fourth quarter of 2005, improved electric retail gross margin by $30 million compared to 2005.
The effect of milder temperature conditions during 2006 compared o 2005 and other retail usage factors, including
home size, technology changes and multiple appliances, decreased electric margin by $7 million. An increase in fuel
costs related to Towa retail electric sales decreased electric remil gross margin by $9 million compared to 2005 due
in part to an increase in the cost of energy purchased to serve the retail load. Recoveries of energy efficiency
program costs increased electric retail gross margin by $7 miilion compared o 2005, Changes in revenues from the
recovery of emergy efficiency program costs are substantially matched with comesponding changes in other
operating expenses.

Regulated Gas Gross Margin
2006 2005
Gross margin (in millions):
Ope¢rating revenues $ 1,112 $ 1323
Leas cost of gas sokd 888 1,098
Gas gross margin $ 224 $ 225
Sales (000°s Dths):
Retail 76,587 76,942
Whoicsalc 49,209 51,635
Total L12.796 128597

Regulated gas revenues include purchased gas adjustment clauses through which MidAmerican Energy is allowed to
recover the cost of gas sold from its retail gas utility customers. Consequently, fluctuations in the cost of gas sold do
not directly affect gross margin or net income because revenues teflect comparable fluctuations through the
purchased gas adjustment clauses. MidAmerican Energy’s average per-unit cost of gas decreased 13% compared to
2005 resulting in a $135 million decrease in gas revenues and cost of gas sold. In addition, a 7% deczease in sales
volumes compared to 2005 reduced gas revenues and cost of gas sold by $75 million.

The following table summarizes the variance in gas operating revenues based on the change in gas cost recoveries
and margin compotents (in mitlions).

2006 vs. 2005
Change in recoveries of cost of gas sold:
Average cost per unit $ (135)
Sales volumes _— 9
Total change in cost of gas sold (210}
Change in margin;
Usage factors (8)
Energy efficiency cost recovery _ 1
Total tevenue variance § __(Q2ly

Usage factors includes the effect of warmer temperature conditions during the heating seasons of 2006 compared to
2005, a 1% increase in MidAmerican Energy’s average number of gas retail customers and influences on customers
usage other ¢han weather, such as technology, energy efficiency and economics. Changes in revenues from the
recovery of energy efficiency program costs arc substanfially matched with corresponding changes in other
operating expenses. Total natural pas retail sales volumes decreased 8%.

41

/75



EXHIBIT C-2

“SEC Filings™
late ing Ex

Other oparating expenses of $402 mitlicn increased $21 million for 2006 compared to 2005 due primarily to a
$14 million increase in energy efficiency program costs. Changes in energy efficiency program costs are
substantially matched with changes in related electric and gas revenues. Additionally, steam generating plant
operating costs increased $5 million, while electric and gas distribution costs increased $4 million.

Maintenance expenses for 2006 increased §5 million compared t0 2005 due to increases of $2 million each for Quad
Cities Station maintenance, wind-powered generating facilities maintenance, and maintenance of electric and gas
distribution systems.

Depreciation and amortization expense for 2006 increased $7 million compared to 2005 due to an increase in utility
plant depreciation principally as a result of wind-powered generating facilities placed in setvice in the third quarier
of 2005 and the last half of 2006, offset partially by a decrease in amortization of software.

Property and other taxes increased $2 million due te an increase in property taxes as a result of higher levels of
electricity generated and delivered during the measurement period.

Nonregulated Gross Margin

2006 2005
MidAmerican Energy (in millions) —
Nooregulated operating revenues £ 557 § 324
Less nonregulated cost of sales 522 291
Nonregulated gross margin 5 35 §.. 33
MidAmerican Funding Consolidated (in milliens) —
Nonregulated operating revenues £ s562 § 330
Less nonregulated cost of sales 523 293
Nonregulated gross margin $ 3 § 37
Nonregulated electric retail sales (GWh) 3558 347

MidAmerican Energy’s nonregulated gross margin for 2006 increased $2 million comparad to 2005, The foliowing
table presents the wargins related to various nonregulated activities (in millions):

2006 2005
Noaregulated lectric b3 13 b 13
Nonregulated gas 11 7
Income sharing arrangements under regulated gas tariffs 6 6
Incentive gas supply procurement progtamn award 1 3
Other 4 4

G i 33
Nonregulated revenues and cost of szles for 2006 increased due primarily to a change in the management strategy
related to certain end-use gas contracts that resulted in recording prospectively the relaled revenues and cost of sales
on a gross, rather than net, basis in accordance with Emerging Issues Task Force Issue No. 02-3, “Recognition and
Reporting of Gains and Losses on Energy Trading Contracts Under Issues No. 98-10 and 00-17.” For 2005, cost of

sales totaling $289 million was netted in nonregulated operating revenues for such end-use gas contracts. The
increase in nonregulated gross margin compared to 2005 was principally due to higher realized gas margins,
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partially offset by an increase in unrealized net losses-on gas financial instruments. Beginning in the second half of -

2006, MidAmerican Energy began recognizing umrealized gains and losses on certain eleciric and gas positions in
other comprehensive income, reducing a portion of firure market volatility on margins.

Nonregulated operations also include earnings from sharing arrangements under applicable state regulations and
tariffs filed with the TUB and the SDPUC for MidAmerican Energy’s regulated natural gas operations. Under these
arrangements, MidAmerican Energy is allowed to keep a portion of the benefits of gas sales for resale and capacity
release transactions. MidAmerican Energy also has an IGSPP in lowa and a similar program in South Dakota, under
which it can receive awards for successful performance of gas supply procurement. Under the IGSPP, if
MidAmerican Energy’s cost of gas varies from an established reference price range, then the savings or cost is
shared between customers and shareholders. The IGSPP and the South Daketa program extend through October 31,
2010.

Non-Operating Income
MidAmerican Energy -

MidAmerican Eoergy’s non-operating income increased $19 million compared to 2005 due primarily to a
$13 million increase in allowance for equity funds as a result of the increase in construction work in progress. As a
regulated public utility, MidAmetican Encrgy is allowed to capitalize, and record as income, & cost of construction
for equity funds used, based on guidelines set forth by the FERC.

Interest and dividend mcome increased $3 million compared to 2005 due to a more favorable cash position and
higher interest rates. Other income increased due to a $2 million increase in income from corporate-owned life
insurance policies.

MidAmerican Funding -

MidAmerican Funding’s non-operating incomg increased $69 million for 2006 compared to 2005, In addition to the
MidAmerican Energy items discussed above, MidAmerican Funding’s non-operating income reflects the following
significant factors.

Other income for MidAmerican Funding mcreased $40 million due principally to $52 million of pratax gains in
2006 related o nonstrategic investments including:

(1) $32 million of pre-tax gains from the disposals of shares of common stock of an electronic energy and
metals irading exchange;

(2) an $8 million pre-tax gain on the sale of non-controlling interest in a non-utility gas-fired cogeneration
plant;

(3) a$7 miliion pre-tax gain on the saie of a commercial passenger aircraft;

(4) %5 million of pre-tax income resulting from changes in a financing amrangement related to a
nonstrategic investment in a hydroelectric generating plant.

Other income for 2005 includes $10 million of pre-tax gains from the sale of two nonstrategic, passive investments
and a $3 million pre-tax gain on the sale of MidAmerican Funding's shares of common stock of the electronic
energy and metals trading exchange discussed above.

Other expense for MidAmerican Funding decreased $12 million compared to 2005 due primarily o write-downs in
2005 of certain investments in commercial passenger aitcraft. MidAmerican Funding's evaluation of its investments
in these aircraft resulted in $16 million of pre-tax write-downs in 2005. The write-downs reflected a continued
deterioration in the airline industry, including the bankruptcy filings of two major carriers during 2005.
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Fixed Charpes

The $13 million increase in MidAmerican Energy’s interest on long-term debt was due 1o long-term debt issuances
of 3300 million in November 2005 and $350 million in October 2006, offset partiatly by maturities of higher interest
rate debt in 2005 and 2006. Other interest expense increased $3 million due principally to a higher balance of the
Iowa revenue sharing liability. MidAmerican Energy is allowed to capitalize, and record as a reduction to fixed
charges, a cost of construction for debt fumds used, based on guidelines set forth by the FERC. The $5 miilion
increase in allowance for borrowed funds for 2006 was due 1o the increase in construction work in progress
compared to 2005,

Income Taxes
MidAmerican Energy -

Federal law cutrently provides for federal production tax credits for energy produced by renewable electricity
generation projects, including wind-powered penerating facilities for ten years after the in-service date.
MidAmerican Energy’s income taxes for 2006 include $10 million of additional production tax credits compared to
2005 due to additional wind-powered generation.

State utility rate regulation in fowa requires that the tax effect of certain timing differences be flowed through
immediately to customers. Therefore, amounts that would otherwise have been recognized in income tax expense
have been included as changes in regulatory asseis. This flow-through treatment of such timing differences impacts
the effective tax rates from year to year.

MidAmerican Funding -

In 2006, MidAmerican Funding reduced its income tax expense by $19 million due to the resolution of a potential
tax matter.

Liqnidiiy and Capital Resources

MidAmerican Energy and MidAmerican Funding have available a variety of sources of liquidity and capital
resources, both internal and external. These resources provide funds required for current operations, construction
expenditures, dividends, debt retirement and other capital requirements. To the extent funds are not available to
support capital expenditures, projects may be delayed and operating income may be reduced.

As reflected on the Consolidated Statemenis of Cash Flows, MidAmerican Energy’s net cash provided by operating
activities was $599 million, $560 million and $463 million for 2007, 2006 and 2005, respectively. MidAmerican
Funding’s nef cash provided by operating activities was $570 million, $516 million and $424 million for 2007, 2006
and 2005, respectively.

Utility Construction Expendityres

MidAmerican Encrgy’s primary need for capital is utility construction expenditures, which totaled $1,220 miltion
for 2007. MidAmerican Energy’s utility construction expenditures for 2008, excluding the non-cash atlowance for
equity funds used during comstruction, are estimafed to be approximately $1,141 million, which inchides
5645 million for the wind-powered gencration projects discussed below, $90million for emissions control
equipment {0 address current and anticipated air quality regulations, and $406 million for ongeing operational
projects, including asset replacements, connections for new customers and facilities to accommodate load growth.
Capital expenditure needs are reviewed regularly by management and may change significantly as a result of such
reviews. MidAmerican Energy expects 10 meet these capital ¢xpenditures with cash flows from operatiens and the
issuance of long-term debt.

/76



ExHiIBIT C-2

“SEC Filings"

On April 18, 2006, the IUB approved a settiement agreement between MidAmerican Energy and the OCA regarding
ratemaking principles for additional wind-powered generation capacity to be mstalled in Iowa in 2006 and 2007. A
total of 222 MW (nameplate ratings) of wind-powered generation was placed in service in 2006 and 2007 subject o
that agreement, including 123 MW (nameplate ratings) in the fourth quarter of 2007, On July 27, 2007, the IUB
approved a settlement agreement between MidAmerican Energy and the OCA in conjunction with MidAmerican
Energy’s ratemaking principles application for up to 540 MW (nameplate ratings) of additional wind-powered
generation capacity in Iowa to be placed in service om or before December 31, 2013, All new wind-powered
generation capacity up to the 540 MW will be subject to the 2007 settiement agreement, including 78 MW
(nameplate ratings) placed in service in the fourth quarter of 2007. Currentty, MidAmerican Energy has 462 MW
(nameplate ratings) wnder development or consiruction that it expects will be placed in service by December 31,
2008. Generally speaking, accredited capacity rafings for wind-powered gencration facilities are considerably Iess
than the nameplate ratings due to the varying nature of wind. MidAmerican Energy continues to pursue additional
cost effective wind-powered generstion. Refer to Note 14 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 in
this Form 10-K for a more in-depth discussion of the settlement agreement.

Refer to the “Environmental Matters” section later in MD&A for additional information regarding capital
expenditures for emission confrel eguipment.

Nuglear Decomnissioning

Each licensee of a nuclear facility is required to provide financial assurance for the cost of decommissionmg its
licensed nuclear facility. In general, decomimissioning of a nuclear facility means to safely remove the facility from
service and restore the property to a condition allowing unrestricted use by the operator. MidAmerican Energy has
historically contributed $8 million annually to trusts established for the investment of funds for decommissioning
Quad Cities Siation. Beginning in 2007, pursuant to an agreement approved by the TUB, MidAmerican Energy
reduced its funding of the wusts to $2 million annually as a result of an evaluation of the funded status, estirnated
decommissioning costs and uscful life of the piant. As of December 31, 2007, approximately 54% of the fair value
of the tusis’ funds was invested in domestic common equity securities, 13% in domestic corporate debt and the
remainder in investment grade municipal and U.S. Treasury bonds. Funding for Quad Cities Station muclear
decommissioning is reflected as depreciation expense in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. Future funding
levels are subject to a variety of factors and are periodically reviewed. Refer to Note 14 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements in lem § of this Form 10-K for a discussion of the rate treatment of the decrease in funding.

Spent Nuclear Fuel

In 2007, MidAmerican Energy implemented a practice of retiring fully amortized spent nuclear fuel two years after
it is removed from a reactor. Accordingly, electric utility plant and accummlated depreciation and amortization were
each reduced by $227 million, the original cost of the qualifying spent nuclear foel The adjustment did not affect
net utility plant, net income or cost of service,
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Contractual Qbligations and Commercial Commitments

MidAmerican Energy and MidAmerican Funding bave various contractual obligations and commercial
commitments that may affect its finamcial condition. The following table summarizes as of December 31, 2007, the
material cash obligations of MidAmerican Energy and MidAmerican Funding (in millions).

Period Payments are Due
2009- 2011- After
Tvpe of Obligation Total 2008 2010 2012 2012
MidAmerican Energy:
Long~term debt, excluding unamortized
debt premium and discount, net § 2477 $ 1 3 - $ 400 $ 207
Operating leases, easements and
maintenance coutracts ! 150 16 21 15 98
Coal, electricity and pipeline transportation
commitments 805 235 288 122 160
Tnterest payments on long-term debt 2,205 136 268 268 1.533
5,637 388 577 8Os 3,867
MidAmerican Funding parent:
Long-term debt 700 - 175 200 325
Inter=st payments on long-term debt 548 47 78 52 371
1,248 47 2353 252 696
Total $ 6885  $ 435 3 80 31057  § 43563
(1} ‘The operating leases, casements and maintenance cootracts, and coal, electricity and pipeline transportation commitments are not

reflected on the Consolidated Balance Sheets. Refer to Note 15 in Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in [tem 8 of this Form
10-K for a discussion of the natwre of these comnsitments.

2) Excludes interest payments on §120 million of variable rate long-term debt.

MidAmerican Energy has other types of commitments that relate primarily to construction expenditures (in “Utility
Construction Expenditures” section above), asset retirement obligations (Note 10), residual guarantees on operating
leases (Note 15), and pension and postretirement plans (Note 16). Refer, where applicable, to the respective
referenced noie in Notes to Comsolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of this Form 10-K for -additional
information.

Debt Issnance

On fune 29, 2007, MidAmerican Energy issued $400 million of 5.65% Senior MNotes due July 15, 2012, and
$250 million of 5.95% Senior Notes due July 15, 2017. The proceeds were used by MidAmerican Energy to pay
consgruction costs of its interest in WSEC Unit 4 and its wind projects in Iowa, to repay short-term indebtedness and
for general corporate purposes.

Debt Aj izati redit Facilities
MidAmerican Energy has authoerity from the FERC to issue through April 14, 2009, shori-term debt in the form of
commercial paper and bank notes aggregating $300 million. MidAmerican Energy cumently has in place a

$500 million revolving credit facility, expiring July 6, 2012, that supports its $380 million commercial paper
program and its variable rate pollution control revenue obligations.
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MidAmerican Energy currently has an effective registration statement with the SEC to issue up to $680 million of
additional long-term securities. It also has authorization from the FERC to issue additional lonp-term securities
totaling up to $700 million through May 14, 2009, Additionally, regarding annual and multiple year capital projects,
MidAmerican Energy has authorizations, expiring May 2, 2009, and May 2, 2011, respectively, from the Illinois
Commerce Commission (“ICC™) to issue up to an aggregate of 3631 million of longterm debt securities. On
Tuly 11, 2007, MidAmerican Energy received authorization from the ICC to refinance prior to July 11, 2009,
approximately $57 million of pollution control revenue bonds issued in 1993.

In conjunction with the March 1999 merger, MidAmerican Energy committed to the IUB to use commercially
reasonable efforts to maintain an investment grade rating on its long-term debt and to maintin its common equity
level above 42% of total capitalization unless circumstances beyond its control result in the common equity level
decreasing to below 39% of total capitalization. MidAmerican Energy must seek the approval of the TUB of a
reasonable utility capital structure if MidAmerican Energy's common equity level decreases below 42% of iofal
capitalization, unless the decrease is beyond the control of MidAmerican Energy. MidAmerican Energy is also
required to segk the approval of the IUB if MidAmerican Energy’s equity level decreases to below 39%, even if the
decrease is due to circumstances beyond the control of MidAmerican Energy. If MidAmerican Energy’s common
equity level were to drop below the required thresholds, MidAmerican Energy’s ability to issue debt could be
restricted. As of December 31, 2007, MidAmerican Energy’s common equity ratio was 50% computed on a basis
consistent with its commitment.

Other Financing Information

MidAmerican Funding or MidAmerican Energy may from time to time seck to retire its outstanding debt through
cash purchases and/or exchanges for other securities, in open market purchases, privately negotiated transactions or
otherwise. The repurchases or exchanges, if any, will depend on prevailing market conditions, the issning
company’s liquidity requirements, contractual restrictions and other factors. The amounts involved may be material.

Credit Ratings Risks

As of January 31, 2008, MidAmerican Energy’s senior unsecured debt credit ratings were as follows; Fitch Ratings,
“Afstabie;” Moody's Investor Service, “A2/stable;” and Standard and Poor’s, “A-/stable.”

Debt and preferred securities of MidAmerican Energy are rated by nationally recagnized credit rating agencies.
Assigned credit ratings are based on each rating agency’s assessment of MidAmerican Energy’s ability to, in
general, meet the obligations of the debt or preferred securities issued by the rated company. The credit ratings are
not 3 recommendation to buy, sell or hold securities, and there is no assurance that 2 particular credit rating will
continue for any given period of time. Other than the epergy supply and marketing agreemenis discussed below,
MidAmerican Energy does not have any credit agreements that require tetmination or a material change in collateral
requirements or payment schedule in the event of a downgrade in the credit ratings of the respective company’s
securities.

In comjunction with its risk management activities, MidAmerican Energy must meet credit quality standards as
required by counterparties. In accordance with industty practice, master agreements that govern MidAmerican
Energy’s energy supply and marketing activities either specifically require it to maintain investment grade credit
ratings or provide the right for counterparties to demand “adequate assurances™ in the event of a maierial adverse
change in MidAmerican Energy’s creditworthiness. If one or more of MidAmerican Energy’s credit ratings decline
below investment prade, MidAmerican Energy may be required to post cash collateral, letters of cradit or other
similar credit support to facilitaie ongoing wholesale energy supply and marketing activities. As of December 31,
2007, MidAmerican Energy’s estimated poteniial collateral requirements totaled approximately $225 million.
MidAmerican Energy’s potential collateral requirements could fluctuate considerably due to seasonality, market
price volatility, and a loss of key MidAmerican Energy generating facilities or other related factors.

47

Fof



ExHiBIT C-2

“SEC Filings”

Utility Regulatory Matters
Rate Matters

The IUB has approved a series of electric settlement agreements between MidAmerican Energy, the OCA and other
intervenars, under which MidAmerican Energy has agreed not to seek a general increase in electric base rates to
become effective prior to January 1, 2014, unless its Iowa jurisdictional eleciric return on equity in any year covered
by the applicable agreement falls below 10%, compuied as prescribed in each respective agreement. As a party to
the settlement agrecments, the OCA has agreed not to request or support any decrease in MidAmerican Energy’s
Towa electric base rates to bacome effective prior to January 1, 2014. Refer 1o Note 14 of MidAmerican Energy’s
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Itemn 8 of this Form 10-K for further discussion of these rate matters.

In an order issued September 27, 2004, the JUB required MidAmerican Energy to file various plans to fully equalize
and consolidate its class zonal electric tates by the end of each of the years 2007 through 2010, On
October 18, 2004, MidAmerican Energy filed a moton for reconsideration opposing full rate equalization and
proposing a series of rate reductions, On March 21, 2005, the TUB required MidAmerican Energy to file additional
information about potential rate changes concerning phased equalization or consolidation of existing zonal rate
differences that could have the effect of bringing rates together on a basis designed to have no impact on the overall
revemes MidAmerican Energy receives from its lowa cleciric customers. MidAmerican Energy filed the requasted
informalion o April 11, 2005. On June 19, 2006, the TUB issued an order requiring MidAmerican Energy to hold
informal workshaps in 2007 and file a comprehensive class cost-of-service study and revenue neutral rate
equalization/rate consolidation alternatives by mid-2009. MidAmerican completed the series of informal workshops
in October 2007, Refer to Note 14 of MidAmerican Energy’s Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item §
of this Form 10-K for discussion of the 2007 seitiement agreement and its impact on zonzal rate equalization in Iowa.

Environmental Matters

MidAmerican Energy is subject to federal, state and local laws and regulations with regard to air and water quality,
repewable portfolio standards, climate change, hazardous and solid waste disposal and other environmental matters,
The cost of complying with applicable environmental laws, regulations and miles is expected to be material to
MidAmerican Energy. In particular, fiture mandates may impact the operation of MidAmerican Energy generating
facilitics and may require MidAmerican Energy o reduce emissions at its facilities through the insiallation of
additional emission control equipment or to purchase additional emission atlowances or offsets in the future,
MidAmerican Energy is not aware of any established technology that reduces the carbon dioxide emissions at coal-
fired facilities, and MidAmerican Energy is uncertain when, or if, such technology will be commercially available.

Expenditures for compliance-related items such as pollution-controf technologies, replacement generation, nuclear
decommissioning and associated operating costs are generally incorporated into MidAmerican Energy’s routine cost
structure. An inability to recover these costs from MidAmerican Energy’s customers, either through regulated rates,
fong-term arrangements or market prices, could adversely affect its future financial results.

MidAmerican Energy has implemented 2 planning process that forecasts the sife-specific controls and actions that
may be required to meet emissions reductions as promulgated by the EPA. The plan allows MidAmerican Energy to
more effectively manage its expenditures required to comply with emmssions standards. On April 1, 2006,
MidAmerican Energy submitted to the TUB an updated plan, as required every two years by lowa law, which
increased its estimate of required expenditures. MidAmerican Energy cumrently estimates that the cost of incremental
capital expenditures for emission control equipment included in its plan for compliance with current air quality
requirements will toral approximately $300 million for January 1, 2008, through December 31, 2015. Additionally,
MidAmerican Energy expects to incur significant incremental operating costs in conjunction with the utilization of
the emissions control equipment. Estimates of the environmental capital and operating requirements may change
significantly at any time as a result of, among other factors, changes in related regulations. prices of products used to
meet the requirements and managament’s strategies for achieving compliance with the regulations.
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Refer to the Environmental Regulations section of Itern ! of the Form 10-K for a detailed discussion of
cnvironmental standards affecting MidAmerican Epergy.

Generating Capability

Omn August 13, 2007, zetail customer usage of electricity caused a new record hourly peak demand of 4,240 MW on
MidAmerican Energy’s electric system, 104 MW greater than the previous record set in 2006. MidAmerican Energy
is interconnected with Iowa wilities and utilities in neighbaring states. MidAmerican Energy is also a member of the
Mid-Continent Area Power Pool ("MAPP”), a regional transmission group and generation reserve sharitig pool.
Each MAPP generation reserve participant is required to maintain for emergency purposes 4 net generating
capability reserve of 15% above its system peak demand, including net capacity purchases and sales, for each
month. MidAmerican Energy’s reserve margin at peak demand for 2007 was approximately 25%.

MidAmerican Energy believes it has adequate electric capacity reserve through 2009, including capacity provided
by the penerating projects discussed in the “Utility Construction Expenditures” section above. However,
significantly higher-than-normal temperatures during the cooling season could cause MidAmerican Energy’s reserve
to fall below the 15% MAPP requirement.

MidAmerican Energy is financially exposed to movements in energy prices since it does not recover its energy costs
through an energy adjustment clause in lowa and Illinois. Although MidAmerican Energy belicves it has sufficient
generation under typical operating conditions for its retail electric needs, a loss of adequate generation by
MidAmerican Energy requiring the purchase of replacement power at a time of high market prices could subject
MidAmerican Erergy to losses on ifs energy sales.

All of the coal-fired generating stations operated by MidAmerican Energy are fueled by low-sulfur, western coal
from the Powder River Basin. MidAmerican Energy’s coal supply portfolio includes multiple suppliers and mines
under short-term and muiti-year agreements of varying quantities. MidAmerican Energy’s coal supply portfolio has
100% of its expected 2008 requirements under fixed-price contracts. MidAmerican Energy regularly monitors the
western coal market, looking for opportunitics to enhance its coal supply portfolic. Additional information regarding
MidAmerican Energy’s coal supply coniracts is included m Note 15 of Notes 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
in Item 8 of this Form 10-K,

New Accounting Pronouncements

For a discussion of new accounting pronouncements affecting MidAmerican Energy and MidAmerican Funding,
refer to Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in Item 8 of this Form 10-K.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Certain accounting policies require management to make estimates and judgments concerning transactions that will
be settled in the future. Amounts recognized in the financial statements from such estimates are necessarily based on
numerous assumptions involving varying and potentially significant degrees of judgment and uncertainty.
Accordingly, the amounts currently reflected in the financial statements will likely increase or decrease in the future
as additional information becomes available. The following critical accounting policies are impacted significantly by
judgments, assumptions and estimates used in the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

Accounting jor the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation

MidAmerican Funding and MidAmerican Energy prepare their financial statements in accordance with the
provisions of SFAS No. 71, “Accounting for the Effects of Certain Types of Regulation” (“SFAS No. 71™) which
differs in certain respects from the application of accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (“GAAP”) by nonregulated busincsses. In general, SFAS No. 71 recognizes thai accounting for rate-
reguiated enterprises should reflect the economic effects of regulation, As a result, a regulated entity is required to
defer the recognition of costs or income if jt is probable that, through the ratemaking process, there will be a
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corresponding increase or decrease in future rates. Accordingly, MidAmerican Funding and MidAmerican Energy -
have deferred certain costs and income that will be recognized in earnings over various future periods.

Management continually evaluates the applicability of SFAS No. 71 and assesses whether its regulatory assets are
probable of future recovery by considering factors such as a change in the reguiator’s approach to setting rates from
cost-based ratemaking to another form of regulation, other regulatory actions or the impact of competition which
could limit MidAmerican Energy’s ability to recover its costs. Based upon this continual assessment, management
believes the application of SFAS No. 71 contimues to be apprapriate and its existing regulatory assets are probabie of
recovery. The assessment reficcts the current polifical and regulatery climate at both the state and federal levels and
is subject to change in the future. If it becomes no longer probable that these costs will be recovered, the assets and
liabilities would be written off and recognized in operating income. Total regulatory assets were $268 miflion and
total regulatory liabilities were $793 million as of December 31, 2007. Refer to Note 6 of Notes to Congolidated
Financial Staternents included in Item 8 in this Form 10-K for additional information regarding regulatory assets and
liabilities.

Goodwill

MidAmerican Funding’s Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2007, includes goodwill from the
acquisition of MHC Inc. totaling $1.3 billion. Goodwill is allocated to each reporting unit and is tested for
impairment using & variety of methods, principally discounted projected future net cash flows, at least annually and
impairments, if any, are charged to eamnings. MidAmerican Funding completed its annual review as of October 31.
A significant amount of judgment is required in performing goodwill impairment tests. Key assumptions used in the
testing include, but gre not limited to, the use of an appropriate discount rate and estimated future cash flows.
Estimated fuamre cash flows are impacied by, among other factors, growth rates, changes in regulations and rates,
ability to renew contracts and estimates of future commodity prices. In estimating cash flows, MidAmerican
Funding incorporaies current market information as well as historical factors.

Accrued Pension and Postretirement Expense

MidAmerican Energy sponsors defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefit plans that cover
substantially all of the employees of MidAmerican Energy Holdings and its domestic energy subsidiaries, other than
PacifiCorp. The expense and benefit obligations relating to these pension and other postretirement benefit plans are
based on actuarial valuations. Inherent in these valuations are key assumptions, including discount rates, expected
returns on plan assets, and health care cost trend rates. These actuarial assumptions are reviewed annually and
modified as appropriate. MidAmerican Energy believes that the assumptions wilized in recording obligations under
the plans are reasonable based on prior experience and market conditions. Refer to Note 16 of Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements in Item 8 in this Form 10-K for disclosures about MidAmerican Energy’s pension and other
postretirement benefit plans, including key assumptions used to calculate the funded status and net periodic cost for
these plans as of and for the vear ended December 31, 2007.

In establishing ifs assumption as to the expected return on assets, MidAmerican Ensrgy reviews the expected asset
allocation and develops return assumptions for each asset class based on historical performance and forward-looking
views of the financial markets. Pension and other postretirement benefit expenses increase as the expecied rate of
return on retirement plan and other postretirement benefit plan assets decreases. MidAmerican Energy regularly
reviews its actual asset allocations and periodically rebalances its investments to its targeted altocations when
considered appropriate.

MidAmerican Energy chooses a discount rate based upon high quality fixed-income investment yields in effect as of
the measurement date. The pension and other postretirement benefit Hlabilitics, as well as expenses, increase as the
discount rate is reduced.

MidAmerican Energy chooses a health care cost trend rate that reflects the near and long-term expectations of
increases in medical costs and corresponds (o the expected benefit payment periods. The health care cost trend rate
gradually declines to 5% by 2016 at which point the rate is assumed to remain constant. Refer to Note 16 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 in this Form 10-K for health care cost trend rate sensitivity
disclosures.
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